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PART I

This report contains forward-looking statements that are based upon current expectations within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We intend that such statements be protected by the safe harbor created thereby. Forward-looking
statements involve risks and uncertainties and our actual results and the timing of events may differ significantly from the results
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Examples of such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements
about or relating to:

 • guidance concerning revenues, research and development expenses and general and administrative expenses for 2009;

 • the sufficiency of existing resources to fund our operations for at least the next 12 months;

 • our capital requirements and needs for additional financing;

 • the results from the clinical trials that we have conducted with CK-1827452, and whether such results may result in Amgen Inc.
(“Amgen”) exercising its option with respect to CK-1827452;

 • the initiation, progress, timing and scope of clinical trials and development activities for our drug candidates and potential drug
candidates by ourselves or our partners, including the anticipated timing for initiation of clinical trials and anticipated dates of
data becoming available or being announced from clinical trials;

 • the advancement of potential drug candidates into preclinical studies and clinical trials;

 • our and our partners’ plans or ability for the continued research and development of our drug candidates and potential drug
candidates, such as CK-1827452, ispinesib, SB-743921, GSK-923295 and CK-2017357;

 • our expected roles in research, development or commercialization under our strategic alliances, such as with Amgen and
GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK”);

 • the properties and potential benefits of, and the potential market opportunities for, our drug candidates and potential drug
candidates;

 • the focus, scope and size of our research and development activities and programs;

 • the sufficiency of the clinical trials conducted with our drug candidates to demonstrate that they are safe and efficacious;

 • our plans or ability to commercialize drugs with or without a partner, including our intention to develop sales and marketing
capabilities;

 • our receipt of milestone payments, royalties and other funds from our partners under strategic alliances, such as with Amgen and
GSK;

 • the issuance of shares of our common stock under our committed equity financing facility entered into with Kingsbridge Capital
Limited (“Kingsbridge”) in 2007;

 • our ability to protect our intellectual property and to avoid infringing the intellectual property rights of others;

 • expected future sources of revenue and capital;

 • losses, costs, expenses and expenditures;

 • future payments under lease obligations and equipment financing lines;

 • potential competitors and competitive products;

 • increasing the number of our employees and recruiting additional key personnel;

 • expected future amortization of employee stock-based compensation; and

 • our ability to sell equipment held for sale and the timing of such sales.
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Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those risks and uncertainties
relating to:

 • our ability to obtain additional financing;

 • difficulties or delays in the development, testing, production or commercialization of our drug candidates, including decisions by
GSK to postpone or discontinue research or development activities relating to GSK-923295;

 • difficulties or delays in or slower than anticipated patient enrollment in our or our partners’ clinical trials;

 • unexpected adverse side effects or inadequate therapeutic efficacy of our drug candidates that could slow or prevent product
approval (including the risk that current and past results of preclinical studies or clinical trials may not be indicative of future
clinical trials results);

 • the possibility that the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) or foreign regulatory agencies may delay or limit our or our
partners’ ability to conduct clinical trials or may delay or withhold approvals for the manufacture and sale of our products;

 • our receipt of funds under our strategic alliances, including those funds dependent upon Amgen’s potential exercise of its option
with respect to CK-1827452;

 • activities and decisions of, and market conditions affecting, current and future strategic partners;

 • our ability to maintain the effectiveness of our registration statement permitting resale of securities to be issued to Kingsbridge by
us under, and in connection with, our 2007 committed equity financing facility;

 • changing standards of care and the introduction of products by competitors or alternative therapies for the treatment of
indications we target that may make our drug candidates commercially unviable;

 • the uncertainty of protection for our intellectual property, whether in the form of patents, trade secrets or otherwise; and

 • potential infringement by us of the intellectual property rights or trade secrets of third parties.

In addition such statements are subject to the risks and uncertainties discussed in the “Risk Factors” section and elsewhere in this
document. Operating results reported are not necessarily indicative of results that may occur in future periods.

When used in this report, unless otherwise indicated, “Cytokinetics,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refers to Cytokinetics,
Incorporated.

CYTOKINETICS, and our logo used alone and with the mark CYTOKINETICS, are registered service marks and trademarks of
Cytokinetics. Other service marks, trademarks and trade names referred to in this report are the property of their respective owners.

Item 1.  Business

Overview

We were incorporated in Delaware in August 1997 as Cytokinetics, Incorporated. We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical
company focused on the discovery and development of novel small molecule therapeutics that modulate muscle function for the potential
treatment of serious diseases and medical conditions. Our research and development activities relating to the biology of muscle function
have evolved from our knowledge and expertise regarding the cytoskeleton, a complex biological infrastructure that plays a fundamental
role within every human cell. Our current research and development programs relating to the biology of muscle function are directed to
small molecule modulators of the contractility of cardiac, skeletal and smooth muscle. Our cardiac muscle contractility program is
focused on cardiac muscle myosin, a motor protein that powers cardiac muscle contraction. Our lead drug candidate from this program,
CK-1827452, is a novel cardiac muscle myosin activator. CK-1827452 entered Phase IIa clinical trials for the treatment of heart failure
in 2007. We have granted Amgen an option for an exclusive license to develop and commercialize CK-1827452 world-wide, except Japan,
subject to our development and
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commercialization participation rights. Further details regarding our strategic alliance with Amgen can be found below in Item 1 of this
report under “Muscle Contractility Focus — Cardiac Muscle Contractility Program — Amgen Collaboration and Option Agreement.”

In April 2008, we announced the selection of a potential drug candidate, CK-2017357, an activator of the skeletal muscle sarcomere,
the basic unit of skeletal muscle contraction. We believe CK-2017357 may be useful in treating diseases or medical conditions associated
with skeletal muscle weakness or wasting. We have also designated a second, structurally distinct skeletal muscle sarcomere activator for
development as a backup compound to CK-2017357. Both of these compounds activate the skeletal muscle troponin complex, which is a
set of regulatory proteins that modulates the contractility of the skeletal sarcomere.

In January 2009, we announced the selection of a potential drug candidate that modulates smooth muscle contractility. This
compound is a direct inhibitor of smooth muscle myosin, the motor protein central to the contraction of smooth muscle, that causes the
relaxation of contracted smooth muscle. Specifically intended for inhaled delivery applications, this compound may be developed as a
potential treatment for pulmonary arterial hypertension and diseases associated with bronchoconstriction.

Our initial research activities were directed to mitotic kinesins, a family of cytoskeletal motor proteins involved in the process of cell
division, or mitosis. This research produced three drug candidates currently in clinical testing for the potential treatment of cancer:
ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295. Ispinesib and SB-743921 are structurally distinct inhibitors of kinesin spindle protein and
GSK-923295 is an inhibitor of centromere-associated protein E. We are currently conducting the Phase I portion of a Phase I/II clinical
trial of ispinesib as monotherapy as a first-line treatment in chemotherapy-naïve patients with locally advanced or metastatic breast cancer
and the Phase I portion of a Phase I/II trial of SB-743921 in patients with non-Hodgkin or Hodgkin lymphoma. Under a strategic alliance
established in 2001, GSK is conducting a Phase I clinical trial with GSK-923295. Further details regarding our strategic alliance with
GSK can be found below in Item 1 of this report under “Oncology Program: Mitotic Kinesin Inhibitors — GSK Strategic Alliance.”

Following is a summary of the status of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates. All development is being conducted by
Cytokinetics, except where otherwise noted:

Muscle Contractility Programs

   Mode of          
Compound   Administration   Development Stage   Potential Indication(s)   Planned 2009 Activities

             
CK-1827452 * 
(cardiac muscle myosin activator)

  

oral, intravenous

  

Phase II

  

heart failure

  

•   initiate a Phase IIa
pharmacokinetic clinical trial of a
modified release and an immediate
release formulation in Q2 2009

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

•   initiate 1st Phase IIb clinical
trial in mid-2009

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

•   continue Phase IIa clinical trial
in heart failure patients
undergoing cardiac catheterization

             
CK-2017357 (skeletal sarcomere
activator)

  

oral

  

IND-enabling studies

  

Diseases and conditions associated
with muscle weakness or wasting,
e.g., amyotrophic lateral sclerosis,
sarcopenia, cachexia   

•   submit IND

•   initiate Phase I clinical trial in
healthy volunteers

             
smooth muscle myosin inhibitor

  

inhaled

  

IND-enabling studies

  

pulmonary arterial hypertension,
asthma, chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease   

•   continue IND-enabling studies

* CK-1827452 is being developed by Cytokinetics, subject to Amgen’s option to develop and commercialize world-wide, except Japan.

4



Table of Contents

Oncology Programs

   Mode of          
Compound   Administration   Development Stage   Potential Indication(s)   Planned 2009 Activities

ispinesib (kinesin spindle protein inhibitor)
  

intravenous
  

Phase I
  

breast cancer
  

•   continue Phase I of a Phase I/II
clinical trial

             
SB-743921 (kinesin spindle protein
inhibitor)   

intravenous
  

Phase I
  

Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin
lymphomas   

•   continue Phase I of a Phase I/II
clinical trial

             
GSK-923295 ** (centromere-associated
protein E inhibitor)

  

intravenous

  

Phase I

  

cancer

  

•   GSK to continue Phase I
clinical trial in patients with
advanced, refractory solid tumors

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

•   GSK anticipated to initiate a
Phase II clinical trial

** GSK-923295 is being developed by GSK under our strategic alliance.

All of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates have grown out of our cytoskeletal research activities. Our focus on the
biology of the cytoskeleton distinguishes us from other biopharmaceutical companies, and potentially positions us to discover and
develop novel therapeutics that may be useful for the treatment of severe diseases and medical conditions. We believe that this focus and
the resulting knowledge and expertise that we have developed, especially with our proprietary technologies that permit us to evaluate the
function of cytoskeletal proteins in high information content biological assays, has allowed us to increase the efficiency of our drug
discovery activities. Our research and development activities since our inception in 1997 have produced four drug candidates currently
in clinical testing and three potential drug candidates currently in preclinical development. Each of has a novel mechanism of action
compared to currently marketed drugs, which we believe validates our focus on the cytoskeleton as a robust area for drug discovery. We
intend to leverage our experience in muscle contractility in order to expand our current pipeline, and expect to continue to be able to identify
additional potential drug candidates that may be suitable for clinical development.

Our Corporate Strategy

Our strategy is to discover, develop and commercialize novel drug products that modulate muscle function in ways that may benefit
patients with disorders that cause serious diseases or medical conditions, with the goal of establishing a fully integrated
biopharmaceutical company. We intend to achieve this by:

 • Focusing on drug discovery and development activities relating to the biology of muscle function.  We intend to capitalize on
the knowledge and expertise we acquired in each of our cardiac, smooth and skeletal muscle research and development programs.
In these programs, we are investigating potential treatments for diseases or medical conditions where dysregulation of the
contractile function of muscle plays a key role and may be amenable to treatment by modulation of muscle contractility, such as
heart failure and medical conditions associated with skeletal muscle weakness or wasting.

 • Leveraging our cytoskeletal expertise and proprietary technologies to increase the speed, efficiency and yield of our drug
discovery and development processes.  We believe that our unique understanding of the cytoskeleton and our proprietary
research technologies should enable us to discover and potentially to develop drug candidates with novel mechanisms of action
that may offer potential benefits not provided by existing drugs. We expect that we may be able to leverage our expertise in muscle
contractility to develop programs that relate to other muscle functions and similarly may impact serious medical diseases and
conditions. This may facilitate our building a diversified pipeline of drug candidates in a cost-effective way while managing risk.

 • Building development and commercialization capabilities directed at concentrated markets.  We focus our drug discovery
and development activities on disease areas where there are serious unmet medical needs. In particular, we direct our activities to
potential commercial opportunities in concentrated and tractable customer segments, such as hospital specialists, that may be
addressed by a smaller, targeted sales force. In
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 this manner, we believe that a company with limited resources may be able to compete effectively against larger, more established
companies with greater financial and commercial resources. For these opportunities, we intend to develop clinical development
and sales and marketing capabilities with the goal of becoming a fully-integrated biopharmaceutical company.

 • Establishing select strategic alliances to support our drug development programs while preserving significant development
and commercialization rights.  We believe that such alliances may allow us to obtain financial support and to capitalize on the
therapeutic area expertise and resources of our partners that can potentially accelerate the development and commercialization of
our drug candidates. Where we deem appropriate, we plan to retain certain rights to participate in the development of drug
candidates and commercialization of potential drugs arising from our alliances, so that we can expand and capitalize on our
internal development capabilities and build our commercialization capabilities.

Muscle Contractility Focus

Our long-standing interest in the cytoskeleton has led us to focus our research and development activities on the biology of muscle
function, and in particular, small molecule modulation of muscle contractility. We believe that our expertise in the modulation of the
contractility of each of cardiac, skeletal and smooth muscle is an important differentiator for us. Our established preclinical and clinical
expertise in muscle contractility may position us to discover and develop additional novel therapies that have the potential to improve the
health of patients with severe and debilitating diseases or medical conditions.

Small molecules that affect muscle contractility may have several applications for a variety of serious diseases and medical
conditions. For example, heart failure is a disease often characterized by impaired cardiac muscle contractility which may be treated by
modulating the contractility of cardiac muscle; certain neuromuscular diseases and medical conditions associated with muscle weakness
may be amenable to treatment by enhancing the contractility of skeletal muscle; hypertension is a disease in which elevated blood pressure
may be decreased by relaxation of the arterial smooth muscle; and asthma is a disease in which constriction of the airways may be treated
by relaxation of the airway smooth muscle.

Because each muscle type may be relevant to multiple diseases or medical conditions, we believe we can leverage our expertise in
each of cardiac, skeletal and smooth muscle contractility to more efficiently discover and develop as potential drugs compounds that
modulate the applicable muscle type for multiple indications. In addition, muscle has biological functions other than contractility.
Accordingly, our knowledge and expertise could also serve as an entry point to the discovery of novel treatments for disorders involving
muscle functions other than muscle contractility, such as muscle metabolism and energetics.

We are currently developing four small molecule compounds arising from our muscle contractility programs. CK-1827452, a novel
cardiac muscle myosin activator, is currently in Phase IIa clinical trials for the potential treatment of heart failure. CK-2017357 is our
lead potential drug candidate from our skeletal muscle contractility program. We are evaluating the potential indications for which this
compound may be useful. These may include skeletal muscle weakness associated with neuromuscular diseases and other medical
conditions characterized by skeletal muscle weakness or wasting. We plan to submit an investigational new drug application (“IND”)
with the FDA to initiate a Phase I clinical trial for CK-2017357 in 2009. We have selected a second potential drug candidate from this
program that may serve as a backup compound to CK-2017357. We are also developing an inhaled inhibitor of smooth muscle myosin
as a bronchodilator, which is currently in IND-enabling studies. We are continuing to conduct discovery, characterization and lead
optimization activities for other compounds with the potential to modulate muscle contractility and other muscle functions.

Cardiac Muscle Contractility Program

Overview.  Our cardiac muscle contractility program is focused on the cardiac sarcomere, the basic unit of muscle contraction in the
heart. The cardiac sarcomere is a highly ordered cytoskeletal structure composed of cardiac muscle myosin, actin and a set of regulatory
proteins. This program is currently directed towards the discovery and development of small molecule cardiac muscle myosin activators
with the goal of developing novel drugs to treat acute and chronic heart failure. Cardiac muscle myosin is the cytoskeletal motor protein in
the cardiac

6



Table of Contents

muscle cell. It is directly responsible for converting chemical energy into the mechanical force, resulting in cardiac muscle contraction.
This program is based on the hypothesis that activators of cardiac muscle myosin may address certain adverse properties of existing
positive inotropic agents. Current positive inotropic agents, such as beta-adrenergic receptor agonists or inhibitors of phosphodiesterase
activity, increase the concentration of intracellular calcium, thereby increasing cardiac sarcomere contractility. However, the increase in
calcium levels increases the velocity of cardiac muscle contraction and shortens systolic ejection time, which has been linked to
potentially life-threatening side effects. In contrast, our novel cardiac muscle myosin activators work by a mechanism that directly
stimulates the activity of the cardiac muscle myosin motor protein, without increasing the intracellular calcium concentration. They
accelerate the rate-limiting step of the myosin enzymatic cycle and shift it in favor of the force-producing state. Rather than increasing the
velocity of cardiac contraction, this mechanism instead lengthens the systolic ejection time, which results in increased cardiac muscle
contractility and cardiac output in a potentially more oxygen-efficient manner.

Background on Heart Failure Market.  Heart failure is a widespread and debilitating syndrome affecting millions of people in the
United States. The high and rapidly growing prevalence of heart failure translates into significant hospitalization rates and associated
societal costs. It is estimated that in 2006, 5.5 million patients in the United States suffered from chronic heart failure. Approximately
4.5 million patients in the United States had a hospital discharge diagnosis of heart failure in 2007, of which over 2.4 million had a
primary or secondary diagnosis of heart failure. These numbers are increasing due to the aging of the U.S. population and an increased
likelihood of survival following acute myocardial infarctions. The costs to society attributable to the prevalence of heart failure are high,
especially as many chronic heart failure patients suffer repeated acute episodes. Despite currently available therapies, readmission rates
for heart failure patients over the age of 65 are as high as 42% within one year of hospital discharge. Mortality rates over the five-year
period following a diagnosis of heart failure are approximately 60%. The limited effectiveness of current therapies points to the need for
therapeutics that offer improved efficacy without increased adverse events, thus decreasing morbidity and mortality rates among this
patient population. The annual cost of heart failure to the U.S. health care system is estimated to be $35 billion dollars. A portion of that
cost is attributable to drugs used to treat each of chronic and acute heart failure. Sales of drugs to treat chronic heart failure reached almost
$2.5 billion in 2006 while sales of drugs to treat acute heart failure reached over $350 million in 2007.

CK-1827452.  Our lead drug candidate from this program is CK-1827452, a novel cardiac muscle myosin activator. CK-1827452
has been the subject of a clinical trials program, initiated in 2007, comprised of Phase I and Phase IIa clinical trials designed to evaluate
the safety, tolerability, pharmacodynamics and pharmacokinetic profile of both intravenous and oral formulations of this drug candidate
in a diversity of patients, including patients with stable heart failure and patients with ischemic cardiomyopathy. Our goal is to develop
CK-1827452 as a potential treatment across the continuum of care in heart failure both as an intravenous formulation for use in the
hospital setting and as an oral formulation for use in the outpatient setting.

In 2006, we reported that in the first-time-in-humans Phase I clinical trial of CK-1827452 administered intravenously in healthy
volunteers, CK-1827452 demonstrated statistically significant and concentration-dependent increases in indices of left ventricular
function over a range of well-tolerated doses and plasma concentrations. In addition, CK-1827452 exhibited generally linear, dose-
proportional pharmacokinetics across the dose range studied. The adverse effects observed at intolerable doses in humans appeared
similar to the adverse findings which occurred in preclinical safety studies at similar plasma concentrations. These effects are believed to
be related to the mechanism of action of this drug candidate which, at intolerable doses, resulted in an excessive prolongation of the
systolic ejection time. However, these effects resolved promptly with discontinuation of the infusions of CK-1827452.

A Phase I oral bioavailability study of CK-1827452 in healthy volunteers conducted in 2006 demonstrated an oral bioavailability of
approximately 100%, with no first-pass metabolism by the liver observed. Because the oral formulation of CK-1827452 used in this
study was found to be rapidly absorbed, we are pursuing the development of modified release oral formulations of CK-1827452 to
achieve a reduced rate of drug absorption without significantly affecting the overall bioavailability.
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The following clinical trials of CK-1827452 were conducted or completed during 2008:

CK-1827452 (intravenous)

Phase IIa stable heart failure (safety and tolerability):  Throughout 2008, we continued to conduct our ongoing Phase IIa clinical
trial of CK-1827452 administered intravenously to patients with stable heart failure. The trial’s primary objective is to evaluate the safety
and tolerability of CK-1827452. Its secondary objectives are to establish a relationship between the plasma concentration and the
pharmacodynamic effects of CK-1827452 and to determine its pharmacokinetics in stable heart failure patients. This clinical trial was
planned to consist of five cohorts of eight patients with stable heart failure. We have completed treatment of Cohort 5 of this trial. In the
first four cohorts, patients underwent four treatment periods, receiving three escalating active doses of CK-1827452, with one placebo
treatment randomized into the dose escalation sequence to maintain blinding. In Cohort 5, patients had two treatment periods, receiving an
active dose of CK-1827452 in one treatment period and a placebo treatment in the other.

We presented interim data from this trial at several scientific meetings in 2008, most recently at the Scientific Sessions of the
American Heart Association in November 2008. The presentation included data from 28 patients (eight patients from each of Cohorts 1, 2
and 3 and four patients from Cohort 4), and showed statistically significant effects in measures of cardiac function. Specifically, these
interim analyses demonstrated statistically significant increases in systolic ejection time and fractional shortening at CK-1827452 plasma
concentrations greater than 100 ng/mL, and statistically significant increases in stroke volume at CK-1827452 plasma concentrations
greater than 200 ng/mL. There were also statistically significant increases in ejection fraction at CK-1827452 plasma concentrations
greater than 300 ng/mL when ejection fraction was calculated by a hybrid method in which stroke volume, measured using Doppler
technology, was divided by the left ventricular end-diastolic volume, measured using two-dimensional echocardiography. In addition, the
data demonstrated statistically significant correlations between increasing CK-1827452 plasma concentration and increases in systolic
ejection time, stroke volume, fractional shortening, ejection fraction and cardiac output and between increasing CK-1827452 plasma
concentration and decreases in supine and standing heart rate and left ventricular end-systolic volume. In this trial, CK-1827452 was
well-tolerated in stable heart failure patients over a range of plasma concentrations during continuous intravenous administration. These
data reflect what we believe is the clinically relevant activity of this novel drug candidate. We anticipate presenting final data from this
clinical trial at the Annual Meeting of the American College of Cardiology in March 2009.

Phase IIa stable heart failure (cardiac catheterization):  Preclinical studies have suggested that CK-1827452 increases
ventricular performance in the absence of substantial changes in cardiac muscle oxygen consumption, thereby increasing cardiac muscle
efficiency. In 2008, we initiated an open-label, non-randomized Phase IIa clinical trial designed to evaluate CK-1827452 administered
intravenously to patients with stable heart failure undergoing clinically indicated coronary angiography in order to corroborate this
preclinical finding in humans. In September 2008, a poster outlining the design of this clinical trial was presented at the annual Heart
Failure Society of America Conference. The first cohort, consisting of six patients, is planned to undergo a dose-escalation phase,
beginning with a target plasma concentration of approximately 280 ng/mL. Based on the tolerability and pharmacodynamic effects
observed in this initial cohort, the investigators will select a single dosing regimen for the second and final cohort of twelve patients. We
are continuing to enroll patients in the first cohort of this trial.

CK-1827452 (oral):

Phase I drug-drug interaction:   In June 2008 and December 2008, we announced results from a Phase I clinical trial in healthy
male subjects evaluating the potential for certain drug-drug interactions mediated by the drug-metabolizing enzymes cytochrome P450 3A4
and cytochrome P450 2D6. Results showed that there were no clinically important differences observed between subjects who were
extensive or poor metabolizers with respect to their defined genotype for cytochrome P450 2D6. No clinically meaningful pharmacokinetic
drug-drug interactions with either ketoconazole, a potent inhibitor of cytochrome P450 3A4, or diltiazem, a moderate inhibitor of
cytochrome P450 3A4, were identified in either extensive metabolizer or poor metabolizer subjects with respect to cytochrome P450 2D6.
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Phase I oral single to multi-dose:   In June 2008, we announced final results from a Phase I clinical trial evaluating CK-1827452
administered as a single oral dose and as multiple oral doses of 10 mg and 30 mg strength capsules. The primary objective of this study
was to evaluate the safety and tolerability of CK-1827452 after a single oral dose and after multiple oral doses to steady-state in healthy
men and women. The secondary objectives of this study were to evaluate the pharmacokinetics of CK-1827452 after a single oral dose
and after multiple oral doses to steady-state and to compare the pharmacokinetic parameters between healthy men and women. CK-
1827452 was well-tolerated in the trial, with no drug-related serious adverse events. Dose-proportionality between the 10 mg and 30 mg
dose levels was observed in both men and women, both after a single dose and after multiple doses to steady-state, with similar
pharmacokinetics observed in men and women.

Phase I modified release:  In June 2008, we announced results from a Phase I clinical trial evaluating the pharmacokinetics and
relative bioavailability of three different oral modified release prototype formulations of CK 1827452, as compared to the immediate
release formulation, in healthy male subjects. The single-dose pharmacokinetics of each of these formulations, in both the fasted and fed
states, demonstrated that, as compared to the immediate release formulation, they reduced the maximum CK-1827452 plasma
concentration and elevated the trough plasma concentration without a substantial effect on overall bioavailability. This resulted in a
smaller range of fluctuation in plasma concentrations as compared to oral dosing with the immediate release formulation. We have selected
one prototype modified release formulation to proceed forward into further clinical testing.

CK-1827452 (intravenous-to-oral):

Phase IIa ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina (safety and tolerability):  In April 2008 we initiated, and in December 2008 we
announced, results from a double-blind, randomized, placebo-controlled Phase IIa clinical trial designed to evaluate an intravenous and an
oral formulation of CK-1827452 in patients with ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina. The primary objective of this trial was to assess
the effect of intravenous CK-1827452 on symptom-limited treadmill exercise tolerance. The secondary objective of this trial was to assess
the tolerability and resulting plasma concentrations of CK-1827452 administered as an oral formulation. The trial was designed to
evaluate two cohorts of 45 patients, each with ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina and an ejection fraction of less than or equal to
35 percent. In each cohort, patients whose symptom-limited exercise tolerance during an infusion of double-blind study drug did not
deteriorate relative to a baseline treadmill exercise test received either CK-1827452 or placebo administered orally for seven days. CK-
1827452 plasma levels were measured during the infusions and before and one hour after the final oral dose. Patients in the first cohort
were randomized in a 2-to-1 ratio to CK-1827452 versus placebo, at a dose level intended to target a maximum plasma concentration of
295 ng/ml during the infusion and 184 ng/ml during oral dosing. Patients in the second cohort were randomized in a 2-to-1 ratio to CK-
1827452 versus placebo, at a dose level intended to target a plasma concentration of 550 ng/ml during the infusion and 368 ng/ml during
oral dosing.

A total of 94 patients were enrolled and treated in this clinical trial; 29 patients received placebo, 31 received CK-1827452 at the
lower dose level, and 34 received CK-1827452 at the higher dose level. The primary safety endpoint was defined as stopping an exercise
treadmill test during double-blind treatment with CK-1827452 or placebo due to unacceptable angina at an exercise stage earlier than at
baseline. This endpoint was observed in one patient receiving placebo and did not occur in any patient receiving CK-1827452 at either
dose level. Twenty-one of 27 unique adverse events observed in this trial were reported as mild in severity, 4 were reported as moderate
and 2 were reported as severe. Of the 94 patients treated, 19 reported at least one unique adverse event at any time during the trial:
5 patients on placebo; 2 patients on the lower dose level of CK-1827452; and 12 patients on the higher dose level of CK-1827452, who
reported a total of 18 unique adverse events (15 of which were reported as mild in severity). The 2 severe adverse events were the only
serious adverse events reported. Both occurred in the same patient, who received intravenous CK-1827452 in Cohort 2. Both these events
were judged by the investigator to have been unrelated to treatment with CK-1827452. We anticipate that final data from this clinical trial
will be presented in 2009.

Planned Clinical Development.   We believe the safety data from our Phase IIa clinical trial evaluating the safety and tolerability of
CK-1827452 in patients with ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina, together with the improvements in systolic function observed in our
Phase IIa clinical trial evaluating the safety and tolerability of CK-1827452 in stable heart failure patients, support the progression of
CK-1827452 into Phase IIb clinical
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development. In mid-2009, we anticipate the initiation of a Phase IIb clinical trial of CK-1827452 in chronic heart failure outpatients at
increased risk for death and hospitalization. In the second quarter of 2009, we anticipate initiating an additional Phase IIa clinical trial
designed to evaluate the pharmacokinetics of both a modified release and an immediate release formulation of CK-1827452 in patients
with heart failure.

Amgen Collaboration and Option Agreement.   In December 2006, we entered into a collaboration and option agreement with
Amgen to discover, develop and commercialize novel small-molecule therapeutics that activate cardiac muscle contractility for potential
applications in the treatment of heart failure, including CK-1827452. The agreement provides Amgen with a non-exclusive license and
access to certain technology. The agreement also granted Amgen an option to obtain an exclusive license world-wide, except Japan, to
develop and commercialize CK-1827452 and other drug candidates arising from the collaboration. Amgen’s option is exercisable during a
defined period, the ending of which is dependent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, primarily our delivery of certain Phase I and
Phase IIa clinical data for CK-1827452 in accordance with an agreed development plan, the results of which may reasonably support its
progression into Phase IIb clinical development. In February 2009, we announced that we believe we completed delivery of this data to
Amgen. Prior to the exercise or expiration of Amgen’s option, we are responsible for conducting all development activities for CK-
1827452, at our own expense.

To exercise its option, Amgen would pay an exercise fee of $50.0 million and thereafter would be responsible for the development and
commercialization of CK-1827452 and related compounds, at its expense, subject to Cytokinetics’ development and commercialization
participation rights. Following exercise of the option, the agreement provides for potential pre-commercialization and commercialization
milestone payments of up to $600.0 million in the aggregate on CK-1827452 and other potential products arising from research under the
collaboration, and royalties that escalate based on increasing levels of annual net sales of products commercialized under the agreement.
The agreement also provides for us to receive increased royalties by co-funding Phase III development costs of drug candidates under the
collaboration. If we elect to co-fund such costs, we would be entitled to co-promote CK-1827452 in North America and participate in
agreed commercialization activities in institutional care settings, at Amgen’s expense. If Amgen elects not to exercise its option to CK-
1827452, we may then independently proceed to develop and commercialize CK-1827452, ourselves or with one or more other partners.

Skeletal Muscle Contractility Program

Overview.  Our skeletal muscle contractility program is focused on the activation of the skeletal sarcomere, the basic unit of skeletal
muscle contraction. The skeletal sarcomere is a highly ordered cytoskeletal structure composed of skeletal muscle myosin, actin, and a
set of regulatory proteins, which include the troponins and tropomyosin. This program leverages our expertise developed in our ongoing
discovery and development of cardiac sarcomere activators, including the cardiac muscle myosin activator CK-1827452.

Our skeletal sarcomere activators have demonstrated pharmacological activity that may lead to new therapeutic options for diseases
and medical conditions associated with aging, muscle weakness and wasting and neuromuscular dysfunction. The clinical effects of
muscle weakness and wasting, fatigue and loss of mobility can range from decreased quality of life to, in some instances, life-threatening
complications. By directly improving skeletal muscle function, a small molecule activator of the skeletal sarcomere potentially could
enhance functional performance and quality of life in patients suffering from diseases or medical conditions characterized or complicated
by muscle weakness or wasting. These could include, but are not limited to, neuromuscular diseases such as amyotrophic lateral
sclerosis, also known as ALS or Lou Gehrig’s disease, cachexia in connection with heart failure or cancer, claudication, sarcopenia and
general frailty associated with aging.

Potential drug candidates.   In April 2008, we announced that we had selected CK-2017357 as the lead potential drug candidate
from this program. We expect to submit an IND with the FDA to initiate a Phase I clinical trial of CK-2017357 in healthy volunteers in
2009. In January 2009, we announced that we had selected another compound from this program as a backup development compound to
CK-2017357. CK-2017357 and its backup development compound are structurally distinct small molecule activators of the skeletal
sarcomere. These potential drug candidates act on the troponin regulatory complex of the skeletal sarcomere. Activation of the
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troponin complex increases its sensitivity to calcium, leading to an increase in skeletal muscle contractility. This mechanism of action has
demonstrated encouraging pharmacological activity in preclinical models.

Ongoing research in skeletal muscle activators.  Our research on the direct activation of skeletal muscle continues in two areas.
We are conducting translational research with our existing series of skeletal sarcomere activators to explore the potential applications of
this novel approach in preclinical studies. In addition, we have a research program aimed at the discovery and validation of other
chemically and pharmacologically distinct mechanisms to activate the skeletal sarcomere.

Smooth Muscle Contractility Program

Overview.  Smooth muscle is a non-striated form of muscle that is found in the circulatory, respiratory, digestive and genitourinary
organ systems and is responsible for the contractile properties of these tissues. Because the contractile elements in non-striated muscle are
not arranged into sarcomeres, the regulation of smooth muscle is different from that in cardiac and skeletal muscles. Smooth muscle
contractility is driven by smooth muscle myosin, a cytoskeletal motor protein that is directly responsible for converting chemical energy
into mechanical force. Our smooth muscle contractility program is focused on the discovery and development of small molecule smooth
muscle myosin inhibitors, and leverages our expertise in muscle function and its application to drug discovery. Our inhaled smooth
muscle myosin inhibitors have demonstrated pharmacological activity in preclinical models of bronchoconstriction and pulmonary
vascular constriction and may have application for indications such as pulmonary arterial hypertension, asthma or chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease. Our smooth muscle myosin inhibitors, administered orally or intravenously, have demonstrated pharmacological
activity in preclinical models of systemic vascular constriction. Smooth muscle myosin inhibitors administered orally may have
application in systemic hypertension

Potential drug candidate.   In January 2009, we announced that we had selected a lead potential drug candidate from this program
for advancement. This compound is a small molecule direct inhibitor of smooth muscle myosin. By inhibiting the function of the myosin
motor protein central to smooth muscle contraction, this compound directly leads to the relaxation of contracted smooth muscle.
Specifically intended for inhaled delivery applications, this potential drug candidate has demonstrated encouraging pharmacological
activity in preclinical models as a novel mechanism vasodilator and bronchodilator. This data suggests that it may be useful as a
potential treatment of diseases such as pulmonary arterial hypertension, asthma or chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. This potential
drug candidate is currently in IND-enabling studies.

Ongoing research in smooth muscle myosin inhibitors.  We are continuing to conduct early research activities to develop direct
smooth muscle myosin inhibitor compounds for systemic administration for potential use in acute or chronic settings. Our research focus
is to differentiate our compounds from existing drugs that are vasodilators that act by indirectly causing smooth muscle relaxation, such
as commonly used calcium channel blockers. We are particularly interested in potential applications for our compounds where the
benefits of currently available treatments are constrained by adverse side effects or limited effectiveness. For example, we are exploring the
possible benefits of our smooth muscle inhibitors with respect to end-organ damage in the context of the potential treatment of systemic
hypertension.

Oncology Program: Mitotic Kinesin Inhibitors

We currently have three drug candidates in clinical trials for the potential treatment of cancer: ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-
923295. All of these arose from our earlier research activities directed to the role of the cytoskeleton in cell division and were progressed
under our strategic alliance with GSK. This strategic alliance was established in 2001 to discover, develop and commercialize novel small
molecule therapeutics targeting mitotic kinesins for applications in the treatment of cancer and other diseases. Mitotic kinesins are a
family of cytoskeletal motor proteins involved in the process of cell division, or mitosis. Under this strategic alliance, we focused
primarily on two mitotic kinesins: kinesin spindle protein (“KSP”) and centromere-associated protein E (“CENP-E”).

We are currently conducting a Phase I/II clinical trial for each of ispinesib and SB-743921. Each of these is a structurally distinct
small molecule that specifically inhibits KSP, interrupting cancer cell division and causing cell

11



Table of Contents

death. GSK’s option to acquire a license to ispinesib and SB-743921 expired at the end of 2008. As a result, we have retained all rights to
develop and commercialize ispinesib and SB-743921, subject to certain royalty obligations to GSK. We intend to complete the Phase I
portion of our clinical trials for each of ispinesib and SB-743921. We are seeking a strategic partner for the future development and
commercialization of these drug candidates.

GSK-923295 specifically inhibits CENP-E, interrupting cancer cell division and causing cell death. GSK is currently conducting
a Phase I clinical trial of GSK-923295 in connection with our strategic alliance. We are conducting translational research directed to
CENP-E jointly with GSK.

Background on Anti-Cancer Market.  The market for anti-cancer drugs in the United States in 2006 was estimated to be
approximately $18.1 billion. Within this market, we estimate that sales of drugs that inhibit mitosis, or anti-mitotic drugs, comprise a
large portion of the commercial market for anti-cancer drugs. Taxanes, an important subset of anti-mitotic drugs, include paclitaxel from
Bristol-Myers Squibb, and docetaxel from Sanofi-Aventis Pharmaceuticals Inc. Sales in the United States of taxanes alone were estimated
to be $2.8 billion in 2006.

Mitotic Kinesin Inhibitors.   Since their introduction over 40 years ago, anti-mitotic drugs such as taxanes and vinca alkaloids have
advanced the treatment of cancer and are commonly used for the treatment of several tumor types. However, these drugs have
demonstrated limited treatment benefit against certain cancers. In addition, these drugs target tubulin, a cytoskeletal protein involved not
only in mitosis and cell proliferation, but also in other important cellular functions. Inhibition of these other cellular functions produces
dose-limiting toxicities such as peripheral neuropathy, an impairment of peripheral nervous system function.

Mitotic kinesins are also essential to mitosis, and, unlike tubulin, are not believed to be present in non-dividing cells. We believe that
drugs that inhibit KSP, CENP-E and other mitotic kinesins may represent the next generation of anti-mitotic cancer drugs by arresting
mitosis and cell proliferation without impacting unrelated, normal cellular functions, thereby avoiding many of the toxicities commonly
experienced by patients treated with existing anti-mitotic drugs. We believe that our anti-cancer drug candidates may be safer and, in
certain tumor types, more effective than current anti-mitotic drugs. Preclinical testing of ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295 and
clinical trials of ispinesib and SB-743921 indicate that these drug candidates may have fewer toxicities than many existing anti-cancer
drugs. Preclinical studies of ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295 indicate that the primary toxicities are limited to gastrointestinal
side effects and a reduction in bone marrow function. In clinical trials of ispinesib and SB-743921, the major dose-limiting toxicity
observed was neutropenia, a decrease in the number of a certain type of white blood cell, which was generally reversible. Limited or no
evidence of drug-related toxicities to the nervous system, heart, lung, kidney or liver was observed. We believe that this safety profile
could potentially increase the therapeutic value of our mitotic kinesin inhibitors relative to other anti-mitotic drugs, and that a mitotic
kinesin inhibitor drug candidate that is shown to have efficacy in one tumor type may also potentially have applications in other tumor
types.

GSK Strategic Alliance.  In 2001, we entered into a collaboration and license agreement with GSK which established a strategic
alliance directed to the discovery, development and commercialization of novel small molecule drugs targeting KSP, CENP-E and certain
other mitotic kinesins for applications in the treatment of cancer and other diseases. Under the strategic alliance, GSK, in collaboration
with the National Cancer Institute (“NCI”), conducted a broad Phase II clinical trials program designed to evaluate ispinesib across
multiple tumor types. GSK also conducted a Phase I clinical trial of SB-743921. In November 2006, we amended the agreement and
assumed responsibility, at our expense, for the continued research, development and commercialization of inhibitors of KSP, including
ispinesib and SB-743921, and other mitotic kinesins, other than CENP-E. GSK retained an option to resume responsibility for the
development and commercialization of either or both of ispinesib and SB-743921. This option expired at the end of 2008. Accordingly, we
retain all rights to both ispinesib and SB-743921, subject to certain royalty obligations to GSK.

GSK is currently conducting a Phase I clinical trial of GSK-923295. We will receive royalties from GSK’s sales of any drugs
developed under the strategic alliance. For those drug candidates that GSK develops under the strategic alliance, we can elect to co-fund
certain later-stage development activities which would increase our potential royalty rates on sales of resulting drugs and provide us with
the option to secure co-promotion rights in North America. If we elect to co-fund later-stage development, the royalties to be paid to us on
future sales of GSK-923295 could potentially increase based on increasing product sales and our anticipated level of co-funding. If we
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exercise our co-promotion option, then we are entitled to receive reimbursement from GSK for certain sales force costs we incur in support
of our commercialization activities.

In each of June 2006, 2007 and 2008, we amended the agreement to extend the research term of the GSK strategic alliance for an
additional year to continue joint translational research directed to CENP-E.

Development Programs

Ispinesib

GSK and the NCI sponsored the initial clinical trials program for ispinesib, which consisted of nine Phase II clinical trials and eight
Phase I or Ib clinical trials evaluating ispinesib in a variety of both solid and hematologic cancers. To date, we believe clinical activity for
ispinesib has been observed in non-small cell lung, ovarian and breast cancers, with the most clinical activity observed in a Phase II
clinical trial evaluating ispinesib in the treatment of patients with locally advanced or metastatic breast cancer that had failed treatment
with taxanes and anthracyclines. In addition, preclinical and Phase Ib clinical data on ispinesib indicate that it may have an additive
effect when combined with certain existing chemotherapeutic agents. As a result of the expiration of GSK’s option relating to ispinesib, we
have retained all development and commercialization rights to ispinesib. We are conducting a Phase I/II clinical trial for ispinesib to
further define its clinical activity profile in chemotherapy-naïve locally advanced or metastatic breast cancer patients on a more dose-dense
schedule than was previously evaluated to determine if the overall response to ispinesib can be increased while maintaining its existing
safety profile. We intend to complete the Phase I portion of this trial. We are seeking a strategic partner for the future development and
commercialization of ispinesib.

The following clinical trials for ispinesib were conducted or completed in 2008:

Breast Cancer:  In December 2007, we initiated an open-label, non-randomized Phase I/II clinical trial designed to evaluate ispinesib
as monotherapy administered as a first-line treatment in chemotherapy-naïve patients with locally advanced or metastatic breast cancer.
This trial is designed to be a proof-of-concept study to potentially amplify the signals of clinical activity seen in GSK’s Phase II
monotherapy trial of ispinesib in breast cancer that had failed to respond or progressed after treatment with an anthracycline and a taxane.
The primary objectives of the Phase I portion of this clinical trial are to determine the dose-limiting toxicities and maximum tolerated dose,
and to assess the safety and tolerability of ispinesib administered as a 1-hour intravenous infusion on days 1 and 15 of a 28-day cycle.
The secondary objectives are to characterize the pharmacokinetics of ispinesib on this schedule and to evaluate the effect of ispinesib on
biomarkers of cell proliferation in patients with accessible tumors. In September 2008, at the American Society of Clinical Oncology
Breast Cancer Symposium, we presented interim results from this trial. These data demonstrated that ispinesib was well-tolerated on this
dosing schedule, with the most frequent adverse event being neutropenia. The best responses observed to date were investigator-reported
tumor reductions of 30% or greater in the sum of the target lesion diameters, reported in 3 patients. One of these patients had an
investigator-reported partial response according to the Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumors. We presented additional data related
to ispinesib at the San Antonio Breast Cancer Symposium in December 2008. We continue to enroll and dose-escalate patients in the Phase
I portion of this trial.

Ispinesib with capecitabine:   In June 2008, we announced the results of a Phase Ib clinical trial sponsored by GSK designed to
evaluate ispinesib in combination with capecitabine, an oral chemotherapy agent commonly used in the treatment of breast cancer. The
investigators in this clinical trial concluded that the combination of ispinesib with capecitabine had an acceptable tolerability profile on the
21-day schedule investigated in the trial. The dose-limiting toxicities in this combination regimen were consistent with the monotherapy
toxicities of ispinesib (prolonged neutropenia) and capecitabine (rash). In this trial, the best response observed among the 24 patients
treated was a partial response in a patient with advanced breast cancer. In addition, 11 patients had a response of stable disease.

Pediatric Solid Tumors:  In June 2008, at the American Society of Clinical Oncology annual meeting, the NCI presented final data
from a Phase I clinical trial designed to evaluate the safety, tolerability, pharmacodynamics and pharmacokinetic profile of ispinesib as
monotherapy administered to pediatric patients with relapsed or refractory solid tumors on days 1, 8 and 15 of a 28-day cycle. The
authors concluded that the maximum tolerated
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dose on this schedule for this patient population was 9 mg/m2. The best response observed was stable disease at 7 courses. Three patients
experienced stable disease for longer than 3 courses of therapy. Ispinesib was well-tolerated, with neutropenia and hepatotoxicity
representing the most commonly observed dose-limiting toxicities.

SB-743921

SB-743921 was studied by GSK in a dose-escalating Phase I clinical trial evaluating its safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetics in
advanced cancer patients when administered intravenously on a once every 21-day schedule. The observed toxicities at the recommended
Phase II dose were manageable. Dose-limiting toxicities in this clinical trial consisted predominantly of neutropenia and elevations in
hepatic enzymes and bilirubin. Disease stabilization, ranging from 9 to 45 weeks, was observed in seven patients; one patient with
cholangiocarcinoma had a confirmed partial response at the maximum tolerated dose. As a result of the expiration of GSK’s option relating
to SB-743921, we have retained all development and commercialization rights to SB-743921. We are conducting a Phase I/II clinical trial
evaluating SB-743921 in patients with Hodgkin or non-Hodgkin lymphoma on a more dose-dense schedule than was previously
evaluated by GSK. We intend to complete the Phase I portion of this trial. We intend to seek a strategic partner for the future development
and commercialization of SB-743921.

Phase I/II Hodgkin and Non-Hodgkin Lymphoma:  We are continuing to conduct the Phase I portion of a Phase I/II clinical trial of
SB-743921. The primary objectives of the Phase I portion of this trial are to determine the dose-limiting toxicities and maximum tolerated
dose and to assess the safety and tolerability of SB-743921 administered as a 1-hour intravenous infusion on days 1 and 15 of a 28-day
cycle, a more dose-dense schedule than was previously evaluated, first without and then with the prophylactic administration of
granulocyte colony-stimulating factor (“G-CSF”). The secondary objectives are to characterize the pharmacokinetics of SB-743921
administered on this schedule and to evaluate the effect of SB-743921 on biomarkers of cell proliferation in patients with accessible
tumors. In 2008, we presented interim data from this trial at several scientific conferences, most recently at the December 2008 American
Society of Hematology meeting. At this interim analysis point, 51 patients had been treated; all were evaluable for safety and 43 were
evaluable for efficacy. The maximum tolerated dose of SB-743921 was 6 mg/m2 when given days 1 and 15 every 28 days without
prophylactic G-CSF support. This represents a greater dose density (0.43 mg/m2/day) than was achieved on the previously studied
schedule; i.e., 4 mg/m2 once every 21 days (0.19 mg/m2/day). The main dose-limiting toxicity observed without G-CSF was neutropenia;
therefore, further dose escalation with empiric, prophylactic G-CSF was initiated and is ongoing. The trial is currently enrolling at
9 mg/m2 with prophylactic G-CSF support. Grade 3 and 4 toxicities other than neutropenia were uncommon; in particular, no evidence of
neuropathy or alopecia greater than Grade 1 have been observed. As of March 2009, three partial responses have been reported at doses at
or above 6 mg/m2,  two in patients with Hodgkin lymphoma and one in a patient with non-Hodgkin lymphoma.

GSK-923295

GSK-923295, an inhibitor of CENP-E, is the third drug candidate to arise from our strategic alliance with GSK. CENP-E is
directly involved in certain biological processes essential for cancer cells to proliferate. GSK-923295 causes partial and complete
shrinkages of human tumors in animal models and has exhibited properties in these studies distinguishing it from ispinesib and SB-
743921.

Phase I First-Time-in-Humans:  During 2008, GSK continued to enroll patients and dose-escalate in an ongoing Phase I clinical
trial of GSK-923295. The primary objective of this dose-escalation and pharmacokinetic Phase I clinical trial is to determine the
maximum tolerated dose, dose-limiting toxicities, safety and pharmacokinetics of GSK-923295 in advanced, refractory solid tumors.
Interim results from this trial were presented in October 2008 at the EORTC — NCI-AACR International Symposium. GSK-923295 was
well-tolerated at doses evaluated to date, ranging from 10 to105 mg/m2. Of the adverse events observed, nausea and fatigue (all less than
or equal to Grade 2) were the most frequent non-hematological toxicities. Anemia (all less than or equal to Grade 2) was the most frequent
hematological toxicity. In addition, no neurotoxicity was observed. To date, the maximum tolerated dose has not been reached. One
reversible dose-limiting toxicity was observed in the form of aspartate aminotransferase elevation. The plasma pharmacokinetics of GSK-
923295 were dose-proportional and exhibited low intra-patient and modest inter-patient variability.
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Preclinical:  At the October 2008 EORTC — NCI-AACR International Symposium, GSK presented two posters containing
preclinical data relating to GSK-923295. The first poster concluded that positron emission tomography using 2-[18F] fluoro-s-deoxy-d-
glucose imaging may provide a means of evaluating pharmacodynamic activity in patients treated with GSK-923295. The second poster
concluded that GSK-923295 has dose-dependent pharmacodynamic activity in Colo205 human xenografts.

We anticipate that GSK will initiate a Phase II clinical trial of GSK-923295 in 2009.

Research and Development Expense

Our research and development expense was $54.0 million, $53.4 million and $49.2 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,
and $337.4 million for the period from August 5, 1997 (date of inception) through December 31, 2008. Total operating expense was
$71.5 million, $70.1 million and $64.5 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $440.4 million for the period from date of
inception through December 31, 2008.

Our Patents and Other Intellectual Property

Our policy is to seek patent protection for the technologies, inventions and improvements that we develop that we consider important
to the advancement of our business. As of December 31, 2008, we had 127 issued U.S. patents and over 200 additional pending
U.S. and foreign patent applications. In addition, we have an exclusive license from the University of California and Stanford University
to 13 issued U.S. patents and an issued European patent. We also rely on trade secrets, technical know-how and continuing innovation to
develop and maintain our competitive position. Our commercial success will depend on obtaining and maintaining patent protection and
trade secret protection for our drug candidates and technologies and our successfully defending these patents against third-party
challenges. We will only be able to protect our technologies from unauthorized use by third parties to the extent that valid and enforceable
patents cover them or we maintain them as trade secrets.

With regard to our oncology drug candidates currently in clinical trials, we have a U.S. patent covering ispinesib that will expire in
2020, unless extended, and a U.S. patent covering SB-743921 will expire in 2023, unless extended. However, both ispinesib and SB-
743921 are still in clinical development and have not yet been approved by the FDA. If either of these drug candidates is approved, then
pursuant to federal law, we may apply for an extension of the U.S. patent term for a patent covering the approved drug, which extension
could extend the term of the applicable patent by up to a maximum of five additional years. We have U.S. and foreign patent applications
pending for GSK-923295. At present, it is not known or determinable whether patents will issue from any of these applications or what
the expiration dates would be for any patents that do issue.

With regard to our drug candidates directed to muscle biology targets, we have U.S. and foreign patent applications pending for each
of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates. We have received a notice of patent allowance from the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office for a patent relating to our cardiac muscle myosin activators. It is not known or determinable whether other patents will issue from
any of our other pending applications or what the expiration dates would be for any patents that do issue.

The degree of future protection of our proprietary rights is uncertain because legal means may not adequately protect our rights or
permit us to gain or keep our competitive advantage. Due to evolving legal standards relating to the patentability, validity and
enforceability of patents covering pharmaceutical inventions and the claim scope of these patents, our ability to enforce our existing
patents and to obtain and enforce patents that may issue from any pending or future patent applications is uncertain and involves
complex legal, scientific and factual questions. The standards which the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and its foreign counterparts
use to grant patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly and are subject to change. To date, no consistent policy has emerged
regarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology and pharmaceutical patents. Thus, we cannot be sure that any patents will issue
from any pending or future patent applications owned by or licensed to us. Even if patents do issue, we cannot be sure that the claims of
these patents will be held valid or enforceable by a court of law, will
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provide us with any significant protection against competitive products, or will afford us a commercial advantage over competitive
products. For example:

 • we or our licensors might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by each of our pending patent applications and
issued patents;

 • we or our licensors might not have been the first to file patent applications for the inventions covered by our pending patent
applications and issued patents;

 • others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our technologies without infringing our
intellectual property rights;

 • some or all of our or our licensors’ pending patent applications may not result in issued patents or the claims that issue may be
narrow in scope and not provide us with competitive advantages;

 • our and our licensors’ issued patents may not provide a basis for commercially viable drugs or therapies or may be challenged
and invalidated by third parties;

 • our or our licensors’ patent applications or patents may be subject to interference, opposition or similar administrative
proceedings that may result in a reduction in their scope or their loss altogether;

 • we may not develop additional proprietary technologies or drug candidates that are patentable; or

 • the patents of others may prevent us or our partners from discovering, developing or commercializing our drug candidates.

The defense and prosecution of intellectual property infringement suits, interferences, oppositions and related legal and
administrative proceedings are costly, time-consuming to pursue and result in diversion of resources. The outcome of these types of
proceedings is uncertain and could significantly harm our business.

Our ability to commercialize drugs depends on our ability to use, manufacture and sell those drugs without infringing the patents or
other proprietary rights of third parties. U.S. and foreign issued patents and pending patent applications owned by third parties exist that
may be relevant to the therapeutic areas and chemical compositions of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates. While we are
aware of certain relevant patents and patent applications owned by third parties, there may be issued patents or pending applications of
which we are not aware that could cover our drug candidates. Because patent applications are often not published immediately after filing,
there may be currently pending applications, unknown to us, which could later result in issued patents that our activities with our drug
candidates could infringe.

Currently, we are aware of an issued U.S. patent and at least one pending U.S. patent application assigned to Curis, Inc. (“Curis”),
relating to certain compounds in the quinazolinone class. Ispinesib falls into this class of compounds. The Curis U.S. patent claims a
method of use for inhibiting signaling by what is called the hedgehog pathway using certain quinazolinone compounds. Curis also has
pending applications in Europe, Japan, Australia and Canada with claims covering certain quinazolinone compounds, compositions
thereof and/or methods of their use. Two of the Australian applications have been allowed and two of the European applications have been
granted. We have opposed the granting of certain of these patents to Curis in Europe and in Australia. Curis has withdrawn one of the
Australian applications. One of the European patents which we opposed was recently revoked and is no longer valid in Europe. Curis has
appealed this decision.

Curis or its licensee may assert that the manufacture, use, importation or sale of ispinesib may infringe one or more of these patents.
We believe that we have valid defenses against the issued U.S. patent owned by Curis if it were to be asserted against us. However, we
cannot guarantee that a court would find these defenses valid or that any additional oppositions would be successful. We have not
attempted to obtain a license to these patents. If we decide to seek a license to these patents, we cannot guarantee that such a license would
be available on acceptable terms, if at all.

The development of our drug candidates and the commercialization of any resulting drugs may be impacted by patents of companies
engaged in competitive programs with significantly greater resources. This could result in the expenditure of significant legal fees and
management resources.
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We also rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, especially where we do not believe patent protection is appropriate or
obtainable. However, trade secrets are often difficult to protect, especially outside of the United States. While we use reasonable efforts to
protect our trade secrets, our employees, consultants, contractors, partners and other advisors may unintentionally or willfully disclose
our trade secrets to competitors. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using our trade secrets would be expensive
and time-consuming, and the outcome would be unpredictable. Even if we are able to maintain our trade secrets as confidential, our
competitors may independently develop information that is equivalent or similar to our trade secrets.

We seek to protect our intellectual property by requiring our employees, consultants, contractors and other advisors to execute
nondisclosure and invention assignment agreements upon commencement of their employment or engagement, through which we seek to
protect our intellectual property. Agreements with our employees also preclude them from bringing the proprietary information or materials
of third parties to us. We also require confidentiality agreements or material transfer agreements from third parties that receive our
confidential information or materials.

For further details on the risks relating to our intellectual property, please see the risk factors under Item 1A of this report, including,
but not limited to, the risk factors entitled “Our success depends substantially upon our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual
property protection relating to our drug candidates and research technologies” and “If we are sued for infringing third party intellectual
property rights, it will be costly and time-consuming, and an unfavorable outcome would have a significant adverse effect on our
business.”

Government Regulation

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in state and local jurisdictions and in foreign countries impose substantial
requirements upon the clinical development, manufacture, marketing and distribution of drugs. These agencies and other federal, state
and local entities regulate research and development activities and the testing, manufacture, quality control, labeling, storage, record
keeping, approval, advertising and promotion of our drug candidates and drugs.

In the United States, the FDA regulates drugs under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and implementing regulations. The
process required by the FDA before our drug candidates may be marketed in the United States generally involves the following:

 • completion of extensive preclinical laboratory tests, preclinical animal studies and formulation studies, all performed in
accordance with the FDA’s good laboratory practice regulations;

 • submission to the FDA of an IND, which must become effective before clinical trials may begin;

 • performance of adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the drug candidate for each
proposed indication in accordance with good clinical practices;

 • submission of a new drug application (“NDA”) to the FDA;

 • satisfactory completion of an FDA preapproval inspection of the manufacturing facilities at which the product is produced to
assess compliance with current good manufacturing practice (“cGMP”) regulations; and

 • FDA review and approval of the NDA prior to any commercial marketing, sale or shipment of the drug.

This testing and approval process requires substantial time, effort and financial resources, and we cannot be certain that any
approvals for our drug candidates will be granted on a timely basis, if at all.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluation of product chemistry, formulation and stability, and studies to evaluate toxicity in
animals. The results of preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, are submitted as part of an IND
application to the FDA. The IND automatically becomes effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA, within the 30-day
period, raises concerns or questions about the conduct of the clinical trial, including concerns that human research subjects may be
exposed to unreasonable health risks. In such a case, the IND sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding concerns before the
clinical trial can begin. Similar regulatory procedures generally apply in those countries outside of the United States where we conduct
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clinical trials. Our submission of an IND or a foreign equivalent, or those of our collaborators, may not result in authorization from the
FDA or its foreign equivalent to commence a clinical trial. A separate submission to an existing IND must also be made for each
successive clinical trial conducted during product development. Further, an independent institutional review board (“IRB”) or its foreign
equivalent for each medical center proposing to conduct the clinical trial must review and approve the plan for any clinical trial before it
commences at that center and it must monitor the clinical trial until completed. The FDA, the IRB or their foreign equivalents, or the
clinical trial sponsor may suspend a clinical trial at any time on various grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients are
being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Clinical Trials:  For purposes of an NDA submission and approval, clinical trials are typically conducted in the following three
sequential phases, which may overlap:

 • Phase I:  These clinical trials are initially conducted in a limited population to test the drug candidate for safety, dose tolerance,
absorption, metabolism, distribution and excretion in healthy humans or, on occasion, in patients, such as cancer patients. In
some cases, particularly in cancer trials, a sponsor may decide to conduct a “Phase Ib” clinical trial, which is a second, safety-
focused Phase I trial typically designed to evaluate the impact of the drug candidate in combination with currently approved
drugs.

 • Phase II:  These clinical trials are generally conducted in a limited patient population to identify possible adverse effects and
safety risks, to make an initial determination of potential efficacy of the drug candidate for specific targeted indications and to
determine dose tolerance and optimal dosage. Multiple Phase II clinical trials may be conducted by the sponsor to obtain
information prior to beginning larger and more expensive Phase III clinical trials. Phase IIa clinical trials generally are designed to
study the pharmacokinetic or pharmacodynamic properties and conduct a preliminary assessment of safety of the drug candidate
over a measured dose response range. In some cases, a sponsor may decide to conduct a Phase IIb clinical trial, which is a
second, typically larger, confirmatory Phase II trial that could, if positive and accepted by the FDA, serve as a pilot or pivotal
clinical trial in the approval of a drug candidate.

 • Phase III:  These clinical trials are commonly referred to as pivotal clinical trials. If the Phase II clinical trials demonstrate that a
dose range of the drug candidate is effective and has an acceptable safety profile, Phase III clinical trials are then undertaken in
large patient populations to further evaluate dosage, to provide substantial evidence of clinical efficacy and to further test for
safety in an expanded and diverse patient population at multiple, geographically dispersed clinical trial sites.

In some cases, the FDA may condition approval of an NDA for a drug candidate on the sponsor’s agreement to conduct additional
clinical trials to further assess the drug’s safety and effectiveness after NDA approval, known as Phase IV clinical trials.

The Food and Drug Amendments Act of 2007 generally requires that the clinical trials we conduct for our drug candidates, both
before and after approval, and the results of those trials, be included in a clinical trials registry database that is available and accessible to
the public via the internet. A failure by us to properly participate in the clinical trial database registry could subject us to significant civil
monetary penalties.

Health care providers in the United States, including research institutions from which we or our partners obtain patient information,
are subject to privacy rules under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and state and local privacy laws. In
the European Union, these entities are subject to the Directive 95/46-EC of the European Parliament on the protection of individuals with
regard to the processing of personal data and individual European Union member states implementing additional legislation. Other
countries have similar privacy legislation. We could face substantial penalties if we knowingly receive individually identifiable health
information from a health care provider that has not satisfied the applicable privacy laws. In addition, certain privacy laws and genetic
testing laws may apply directly to our operations and/or those of our partners and may impose restrictions on the use and dissemination
of individuals’ health information and use of biological samples.

New Drug Application.  The results of drug candidate development, preclinical testing and clinical trials are submitted to the FDA
as part of an NDA. The NDA also must contain extensive manufacturing information. Once the submission has been accepted for filing,
by law the FDA has 180 days to review the application and respond to the applicant. The review process is often significantly extended
by FDA requests for additional information or
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clarification. The FDA may refer the NDA to an advisory committee for review, evaluation and recommendation as to whether the
application should be approved. The FDA often, but not always, follows the advisory board’s recommendations. The FDA may deny
approval of an NDA if the applicable regulatory criteria are not satisfied, or it may require additional clinical data, including data in a
pediatric population, or an additional pivotal Phase III clinical trial or impose other conditions that must be met in order to secure final
approval for an NDA. Even if such data are submitted, the FDA may ultimately decide that the NDA does not satisfy the criteria for
approval. Data from clinical trials are not always conclusive and the FDA may interpret data differently than we or our partners do. Once
issued, the FDA may withdraw a drug approval if ongoing regulatory requirements are not met or if safety problems occur after the drug
reaches the market. In addition, the FDA may require further testing, including Phase IV clinical trials, and surveillance or restrictive
distribution programs to monitor the effect of approved drugs which have been commercialized. The FDA has the power to prevent or
limit further marketing of a drug based on the results of these post-marketing programs. Drugs may be marketed only for the approved
indications and in accordance with the provisions of the approved label. Further, if there are any modifications to a drug, including
changes in indications, labeling or manufacturing processes or facilities, we may be required to submit and obtain prior FDA approval of
a new NDA or NDA supplement, which may require us to develop additional data or conduct additional preclinical studies and clinical
trials.

Satisfaction of FDA regulations and requirements or similar requirements of state, local and foreign regulatory agencies typically
takes several years. The actual time required may vary substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty of the drug candidate
or disease. Typically, if a drug candidate is intended to treat a chronic disease, as is the case with some of our drug candidates, safety
and efficacy data must be gathered over an extended period of time. Government regulation may delay or prevent marketing of drug
candidates for a considerable period of time and impose costly procedures upon our activities. The FDA or any other regulatory agency
may not grant approvals for new indications for our drug candidates on a timely basis, if at all. Even if a drug candidate receives
regulatory approval, the approval may be significantly limited to specific disease states, patient populations and dosages or restrictive
distribution programs. Further, even after regulatory approval is obtained, later discovery of previously unknown problems with a drug
may result in restrictions on the drug or even complete withdrawal of the drug from the market. Delays in obtaining, or failures to obtain,
regulatory approvals for any of our drug candidates would harm our business. In addition, we cannot predict what future U.S. or foreign
governmental regulations may be implemented.

Other regulatory requirements.  Any drugs manufactured or distributed by us or our partners pursuant to FDA approvals or their
foreign counterparts are subject to continuing regulation by the applicable regulatory authority, including recordkeeping requirements and
reporting of adverse experiences associated with the drug. Drug manufacturers and their subcontractors are required to register their
establishments with the FDA and other applicable regulatory authorities, and are subject to periodic unannounced inspections by these
regulatory authorities for compliance with ongoing regulatory requirements, including cGMPs, which impose certain procedural and
documentation requirements upon us and our third-party manufacturers. Failure to comply with the statutory and regulatory requirements
can subject a manufacturer to possible legal or regulatory action, such as warning letters, suspension of manufacturing, seizure of
product, injunctive action or possible civil penalties. We cannot be certain that we or our present or future third-party manufacturers or
suppliers will be able to comply with the cGMP regulations and other ongoing FDA and other regulatory requirements. If our present or
future third-party manufacturers or suppliers are not able to comply with these requirements, the FDA or its foreign counterparts may halt
our clinical trials, require us to recall a drug from distribution, or withdraw approval of the NDA for that drug.

For further details on the risks relating to government regulation of our business, please see the risk factors under Item 1A of this
report, including, but not limited to, the risk factor entitled “The regulatory approval process is expensive, time-consuming and uncertain
and may prevent our partners or us from obtaining approvals to commercialize some or all of our drug candidates.”

Competition

We compete in the segments of the pharmaceutical, biotechnology and other related markets that address cardiovascular diseases and
other diseases relating to muscle dysfunction and cancer, each of which is highly competitive. We face significant competition from most
pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies
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that are also researching and selling products designed to address cardiovascular diseases, diseases and medical conditions associated
with skeletal muscle weakness and wasting, and cancer. Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, manufacturing,
marketing and drug development resources than we do. Large pharmaceutical companies in particular have extensive experience in clinical
testing and in obtaining regulatory approvals for drugs. These companies also have significantly greater research capabilities than we do.
In addition, many universities and private and public research institutes are active in research of cardiovascular diseases, diseases where
there is muscle dysfunction, and cancer, some in direct competition with us.

We believe that our ability to successfully compete will depend on, among other things:

 • our drug candidates’ efficacy, safety and reliability;

 • the speed and cost-effectiveness at which we develop our drug candidates;

 • the selection of suitable indications for which to develop our drug candidates;

 • the successful completion of clinical development and laboratory testing of our drug candidates;

 • the timing and scope of any regulatory approvals we or our partners obtain for our drug candidates;

 • our or our partners’ ability to manufacture and sell commercial quantities of our approved drugs to meet market demand;

 • acceptance of our drugs by physicians and other health care providers;

 • the willingness of third party payors to provide reimbursement for the use of our drugs;

 • our ability to protect our intellectual property and avoid infringing the intellectual property of others;

 • the quality and breadth of our technology;

 • our employees’ skills and our ability to recruit and retain skilled employees;

 • our cash flows under existing and potential future arrangements with licensees, partners and other parties; and

 • the availability of substantial capital resources to fund development and commercialization activities.

Our competitors may develop drug candidates and market drugs that are less expensive and more effective than our future drugs or
that may render our drugs obsolete. Our current or future competitors may also commercialize competing drugs before we or our partners
can launch any drugs developed from our drug candidates. These organizations also compete with us to attract qualified personnel and
potential parties for acquisitions, joint ventures or other strategic alliances.

If CK-1827452 is approved for marketing by the FDA for heart failure, that compound would compete against current generically
available therapies, such as milrinone, dobutamine or digoxin or newer branded drugs such as nesiritide, and potentially against other
drug candidates in development. If approved for marketing by the FDA, depending on the approved clinical indication, our anti-cancer
drug candidates such as ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295 would compete against existing cancer treatments such as paclitaxel
(and its generic equivalents), docetaxel, vincristine, vinorelbine, navelbine, ixabepilone and potentially against other anti-cancer drug
candidates that are currently in development such as those that are reformulated taxanes, other tubulin binding compounds or epothilones.
We are also aware that other companies are conducting research and development focused on KSP and other mitotic kinesins, and other
approaches to inhibiting mitosis.

For further details on the risks relating to government regulation of our business, please see the risk factors under Item 1A of this
report, including, but not limited to, the risk factor entitled “Our competitors may develop drugs that are less expensive, safer or more
effective than ours, which may diminish or eliminate the commercial success of any drugs that we may commercialize.”

20



Table of Contents

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, our workforce consisted of 110 full-time employees, 30 of whom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degrees, or both,
and 23 of whom hold other advanced degrees. Of our total workforce, 81 are engaged in research and development and 29 are engaged in
business development, finance and administration functions.

In September 2008, we announced a restructuring plan to realign our workforce and operations in line with a strategic reassessment
of our research and development activities and corporate objectives. As a result, we have focused our research activities to our muscle
contractility programs while continuing our ongoing clinical trials in heart failure and cancer and discontinued early research activities
directed to oncology. To implement this plan, we reduced our workforce by approximately 29%, or 45 employees, to 112 employees. The
affected employees were provided with severance payments and outplacement assistance.

We have no collective bargaining agreements with our employees, and we have not experienced any work stoppages. We believe that
our relations with our employees are good.

Available Information

We file electronically with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
or the Exchange Act. The public may read or copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

You may obtain a free copy of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to those reports on the day of filing with the SEC on our website at http://www.cytokinetics.com or by contacting the
Investor Relations Department at our corporate offices by calling 650-624-3000.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

In evaluating our business, you should carefully consider the following risks in addition to the other information in this
report. Any of the following risks could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition or
your investment in our securities, and many are beyond our control. It is not possible to predict or identify all such factors and,
therefore, you should not consider any of these risk factors to be a complete statement of all the potential risks or uncertainties that
we face.

Risks Related To Our Business

We will need substantial additional capital in the future to sufficiently fund our operations.

We have consumed substantial amounts of capital to date, and our operating expenditures will increase over the next several years if
we expand our research and development activities We have funded all of our operations and capital expenditures with proceeds from
private and public sales of our equity securities, strategic alliances with GSK, Amgen and others, equipment financings, interest on
investments and government grants. We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, interest earned on
investments, proceeds from our loan with UBS Bank USA and proceeds from our 2007 committed equity financing facility with
Kingsbridge should be sufficient to meet our projected operating requirements for at least the next 12 months. We have based this estimate
on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could utilize our available capital resources sooner than we currently expect. Because
of the numerous risks and uncertainties associated with the development of our drug candidates and other research and development
activities, including risks and uncertainties that could impact the rate of progress of our development activities, we are unable to estimate
with certainty the amounts of capital outlays and operating expenditures associated with these activities.
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For the foreseeable future, our operations will require significant additional funding, in large part due to our research and
development expenses and the absence of any revenues from product sales. Until we can generate a sufficient amount of product revenue,
we expect to raise future capital through public or private equity offerings, debt financings and strategic alliance and licensing
arrangements. We do not currently have any commitments for future funding other than milestone and royalty payments that we may
receive under our collaboration and license agreement with GSK and, if Amgen exercises its option with respect to CK-1827452, option
fees and milestone and royalty payments that we may receive under our collaboration and option agreement with Amgen. We may not
receive any further funds under either of these agreements. Our ability to raise funds may be adversely impacted by current economic
conditions, including the effects of the recent disruptions to the credit and financial markets in the United States and worldwide. In
particular, the pool of third-party capital that in the past has been available to development-stage companies such as ours has decreased
significantly in recent months, and such decreased availability may continue for a prolonged period. As a result of these and other
factors, we do not know whether additional financing will be available when needed, or that, if available, such financing would be on
terms favorable to our stockholders or us.

To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders will experience additional dilution. To the
extent that we raise additional funds through strategic alliance and licensing arrangements, we will likely have to relinquish valuable
rights to our technologies, research programs or drug candidates, or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. To the extent
that we raise additional funds through debt financing, the financing may involve covenants that restrict our business activities. In
addition, such funding, if needed, may not be available to us on favorable terms, or at all.

If we can not raise the funds we need to operate our business, we will need to discontinue certain research and development activities
and our stock price likely would be negatively affected.

We have a history of significant losses and may not achieve or sustain profitability and, as a result, you may lose all or part
of your investment.

We have incurred operating losses in each year since our inception in 1997 due to costs incurred in connection with our research
and development activities and general and administrative costs associated with our operations. Our drug candidates are in the early
stages of clinical testing, and we must conduct significant additional clinical trials before we can seek the regulatory approvals necessary
to begin commercial sales of our drugs. We expect to incur increasing losses for at least several more years, as we continue our research
activities and conduct development of, and seek regulatory approvals for, our drug candidates, and commercialize any approved drugs.
If our drug candidates fail or are significantly delayed in clinical trials or do not gain regulatory approval, or if our drugs do not achieve
market acceptance, we will not be profitable. If we fail to become and remain profitable, or if we are unable to fund our continuing losses,
you could lose all or part of your investment.

We have never generated, and may never generate, revenues from commercial sales of our drugs and we may not have drugs
to market for at least several years, if ever.

We currently have no drugs for sale and we cannot guarantee that we will ever have marketable drugs. We must demonstrate that our
drug candidates satisfy rigorous standards of safety and efficacy to the FDA in the United States and other regulatory authorities abroad.
We and our partners will need to conduct significant additional research and preclinical and clinical testing before we or our partners can
file applications with the FDA or other regulatory authorities for approval of any of our drug candidates. In addition, to compete
effectively, our drugs must be easy to use, cost-effective and economical to manufacture on a commercial scale, compared to other
therapies available for the treatment of the same conditions. We may not achieve any of these objectives. CK-1827452, our drug candidate
for the potential treatment of heart failure, and ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295, our drug candidates for the potential treatment
of cancer, are currently our only drug candidates in clinical trials. We cannot be certain that the clinical development of these or any
future drug candidate will be successful, that they will receive the regulatory approvals required to commercialize them, or that any of our
other research programs will yield a drug candidate suitable for clinical testing or commercialization. Our commercial revenues, if any,
will be derived from sales of drugs that we do not expect to be commercially marketed for several years, if at all. The
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development of any one or all of these drug candidates may be discontinued at any stage of our clinical trials programs and we may not
generate revenue from any of these drug candidates.

Clinical trials may fail to demonstrate the desired safety and efficacy of our drug candidates, which could prevent or
significantly delay completion of clinical development and regulatory approval.

Prior to receiving approval to commercialize any of our drug candidates, we must adequately demonstrate to the FDA and foreign
regulatory authorities that the drug candidate is sufficiently safe and effective with substantial evidence from well-controlled clinical trials.
In clinical trials we will need to demonstrate efficacy for the treatment of specific indications and monitor safety throughout the clinical
development process and possibly following approval. None of our drug candidates have yet been demonstrated to be safe and effective in
clinical trials and they may never be. In addition, for each of our current preclinical compounds, we must adequately demonstrate
satisfactory chemistry, formulation, stability and toxicity in order to submit an IND to the FDA, or an equivalent application in foreign
jurisdictions, that would allow us to advance that compound into clinical trials. If our current or future preclinical studies or clinical
trials are unsuccessful, our business will be significantly harmed and our stock price could be negatively affected.

All of our drug candidates are prone to the risks of failure inherent in drug development. Preclinical studies may not yield results
that would adequately support the filing of an IND (or a foreign equivalent) with respect to our potential drug candidates. Even if these
applications are or have been filed with respect to our drug candidates, the results of preclinical studies do not necessarily predict the
results of clinical trials. For example, although preclinical testing indicated that ispinesib causes tumor regression in a variety of tumor
types, to date, Phase II clinical trials of ispinesib have not shown clinical activity in a number of different tumor types. Similarly, for any
of our drug candidates, the results from Phase I clinical trials in healthy volunteers and clinical results from Phase I and II trials in
patients are not necessarily indicative of the results of larger Phase III clinical trials that are necessary to establish whether the drug
candidate is safe and effective for the applicable indication.

In addition, the clinical trials for any of our drug candidates may not be designed with focus on the appropriate indications, tumor
types, patient populations, dosing regimens, safety or efficacy parameters or other variables to provide the necessary safety or efficacy
data to support regulatory approval to commercialize the resulting drugs. For example, in a number of two-stage Phase II clinical trials
designed to evaluate the safety and efficacy of ispinesib as monotherapy in the first- or second-line treatment of patients with different
forms of cancer, ispinesib did not satisfy the criteria for advancement to Stage 2. Also, the methods we select to assess particular safety
or efficacy parameters may not yield the same statistical precision in estimating our drug candidates’ effects as may other alternative
methodologies. Even if we believe the data collected from clinical trials of our drug candidates are promising, these data may not be
sufficient to support approval by the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities. Preclinical and clinical data can be interpreted in different
ways. Accordingly, the FDA or foreign regulatory authorities could interpret these data in different ways than we or our partners do,
which could delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval.

Administering any of our drug candidates or potential drug candidates may produce undesirable side effects, also known as adverse
effects. Toxicities and adverse effects observed in preclinical studies for some compounds in a particular research and development
program may also occur in preclinical studies or clinical trials of other compounds from the same program. Potential toxicity issues may
arise from the effects of the active pharmaceutical ingredient itself or from impurities or degradants that are present in the active
pharmaceutical ingredient or could form over time in the formulated drug candidate or the active pharmaceutical ingredient. These
toxicities or adverse effects could delay or prevent the filing of an IND (or a foreign equivalent) with respect to our drug candidates or
potential drug candidates or cause us to cease clinical trials with respect to any drug candidate. If these or other adverse effects are severe
or frequent enough to outweigh the potential efficacy of a drug candidate, the FDA or other regulatory authorities could deny approval of
that drug candidate for any or all targeted indications. The FDA, other regulatory authorities, our partners or we may suspend or
terminate clinical trials with our drug candidates at any time. Even if one or more of our drug candidates were approved for sale as drugs,
the occurrence of even a limited number of toxicities or adverse effects when used in large populations may cause the FDA to impose
restrictions on, or stop, the further marketing of those drugs. Indications of potential adverse effects or toxicities
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which do not seem significant during the course of clinical trials may later turn out to actually constitute serious adverse effects or
toxicities when a drug is used in large populations or for extended periods of time.

We have observed certain adverse effects in the clinical trials conducted with our drug candidates. For example, in clinical trials of
ispinesib, the most commonly observed dose-limiting toxicity was neutropenia, a decrease in the number of a certain type of white blood
cell that results in an increase in susceptibility to infection. In a Phase I clinical trial of SB-743921, the dose-limiting toxicities observed
were: prolonged neutropenia, with or without fever and with or without infection; elevated transaminases and hyperbilirubinemia, both of
which are abnormalities of liver function; and hyponatremia, which is a low concentration of sodium in the blood. In a Phase I clinical
trial of CK-1827452, intolerable doses of CK-1827452 were associated with complaints of chest discomfort, palpitations, dizziness and
feeling hot, increases in heart rate, declines in blood pressure, electrocardiographic changes consistent with acute myocardial ischemia
and transient rises in cardiac troponins I and T, which are markers of possible myocardial injury.

Any failure or significant delay in completing preclinical studies or clinical trials for our drug candidates, or in receiving and
maintaining regulatory approval for the sale of any resulting drugs, may significantly harm our business and negatively affect our stock
price.

Clinical trials are expensive, time-consuming and subject to delay.

Clinical trials are subject to rigorous regulatory requirements and are very expensive, difficult and time-consuming to design and
implement. The length of time and number of trial sites and patients required for clinical trials vary substantially based on the type,
complexity, novelty, intended use of the drug candidate and safety concerns. We estimate that the clinical trials of our current drug
candidates will each continue for several years. However, the clinical trials for all or any of these drug candidates may take significantly
longer to complete. The commencement and completion of our clinical trials could be delayed or prevented by many factors, including,
but not limited to:

 • delays in obtaining, or inability to obtain, regulatory or other approvals to commence and conduct clinical trials in the manner we
or our partners deem necessary for the appropriate and timely development of our drug candidates and commercialization of any
resulting drugs;

 • delays in identifying and reaching agreement, or inability to identify and reach agreement, on acceptable terms, with prospective
clinical trial sites;

 • delays or additional costs in developing, or inability to develop, appropriate formulations of our drug candidates for clinical trial
use, including an appropriate modified release formulation for CK-1827452;

 • slower than expected rates of patient recruitment and enrollment, including as a result of competition for patients with other
clinical trials; limited numbers of patients that meet the enrollment criteria; patients’, investigators’ or trial sites’ reluctance to
agree to the requirements of a protocol; or the introduction of alternative therapies or drugs by others;

 • for those drug candidates that are the subject of a strategic alliance, delays in reaching agreement with our partner as to
appropriate development strategies;

 • an IRB or its foreign equivalent may require changes to a protocol that then require approval from regulatory agencies and other
IRBs and their foreign equivalents, or regulatory authorities may require changes to a protocol that then require approval from the
IRBs or their foreign equivalents;

 • for clinical trials conducted in foreign countries, the time and resources required to identify, interpret and comply with foreign
regulatory requirements or changes in those requirements, and political instability or natural disasters occurring in those
countries;

 • lack of effectiveness of our drug candidates during clinical trials;

 • unforeseen safety issues;

 • inadequate supply of clinical trial materials;
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 • uncertain dosing issues;

 • introduction of new therapies or changes in standards of practice or regulatory guidance that render our clinical trial endpoints or
the targeting of our proposed indications obsolete;

 • failure by us, our clinical research organizations, investigators or site personnel to comply with good clinical practices and other
applicable laws and regulations;

 • inability to monitor patients adequately during or after treatment; and

 • inability or unwillingness of medical investigators to follow our clinical protocols.

We do not know whether planned clinical trials will begin on time, or whether planned or currently ongoing clinical trials will need to
be restructured or will be completed on schedule, if at all. Significant delays in clinical trials will impede our ability to commercialize our
drug candidates and generate revenue and could significantly increase our development costs.

We have limited capacity to carry out our own clinical trials in connection with the development of our drug candidates and,
to the extent we elect to develop a drug candidate without a strategic partner, we will need to expand our development
capabilities and will require additional funding.

The development of drug candidates is complicated and expensive, and we currently have limited financial and operational resources
to carry out drug development. In order to expand our capability to conduct clinical development we will need to bring additional skills,
technical expertise and resources into our organization, which will require significant additional funding.

Pursuant to our collaboration and option agreement with Amgen, we are responsible for conducting Phase IIa clinical development for
our drug candidate CK-1827452. We cannot engage another strategic partner for CK-1827452, except in Japan, until Amgen elects not to
exercise its option to conduct later-stage clinical development for CK-1827452 or its option expires, whichever is earlier. We intend to
initiate a Phase IIb clinical trial for CK-1827452 regardless of whether Amgen exercises its option, which will require significant
operational and financial resources.

We have retained all rights to develop and commercialize ispinesib and SB-743921. We currently do not have a strategic partner for
these drug candidates. Currently, we are conducting the Phase I portion of a Phase I/II clinical trial for each of ispinesib in breast cancer
and SB-743921 in Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin lymphoma. We intend to complete the Phase I portion of each of these clinical trials. We
rely on GSK to conduct preclinical and clinical development for GSK-923295 in cancer. If GSK elects to terminate its development
activities with respect to GSK-923295, we currently do not have an alternative strategic partner for this drug candidates.

We intend to seek strategic partners or other third party sources of funding for the future development and commercialization of
ispinesib and SB-743921, for CK-1827452 if Amgen does not exercise its option and for GSK-923295 should GSK terminate its
development activities. We may be unable to enter into an agreement with a third party that would provide sufficient operational support
and funding for the further clinical development of these drug candidates on acceptable terms, or at all. In that case, we would have to
curtail or abandon development of one or more of these drug candidates.

If we fail to enter into and maintain successful strategic alliances for our drug candidates, potential drug candidates or
research and development programs, we will have to reduce, delay or discontinue our advancement of those drug
candidates, potential drug candidates and programs or increase our expenditures.

Our strategy for developing, manufacturing and commercializing our drug candidates and potential drug candidates currently
requires us to enter into and successfully maintain strategic alliances with pharmaceutical companies or other industry participants to
advance our programs and reduce our expenditures on each program. We currently have strategic alliances with Amgen relating to CK-
1827452 and with GSK relating to GSK-923295. Similarly, we expect to rely on one or more strategic partners to advance and develop
ispinesib and SB-743921 and our potential drug candidates directed towards skeletal sarcomere and smooth muscle contractility.
However, we may not be able to negotiate and enter into such strategic alliances on acceptable terms, if at all. If we are not able to
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maintain our existing strategic alliances or establish and maintain additional strategic alliances, we will have to limit the size or scope of,
or delay or discontinue, one or more of our drug development programs or research programs, or undertake and fund these programs
ourselves. If we elect to continue to conduct any of these drug development programs or research programs on our own, we will need to
obtain significant additional capital, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all.

If Amgen does not exercise its option for CK-1827452, we will have to reduce, delay or discontinue our development of CK-
1827452 or increase our expenditures.

Our collaboration and option agreement with Amgen grants it an option to obtain an exclusive license for the development and
commercialization rights for CK-1827452 world-wide, except Japan. Amgen’s option is exercisable during a defined period, the ending of
which is dependent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, primarily the delivery of certain Phase I and Phase IIa clinical trials data
for CK-1827452 in accordance with an agreed development plan, the results of which reasonably support its progression into Phase IIb
clinical development. We believe we have completed delivery of this data to Amgen, which can exercise its option by paying us a specified
option fee within the pre-defined option exercise period.

Amgen may elect not to exercise its option, irrespective of the data that we provide, may dispute whether we have provided sufficient
information and data to require it to decide whether to exercise its option, or may seek to require us to conduct additional clinical trial
activities prior to deciding whether to exercise its option. If Amgen elects not to exercise its option for CK-1827452, we would have to seek
an alternative strategic partner for the CK-1827452 development program. However, we may not be able to negotiate and enter into such a
strategic alliance on acceptable terms, if at all. Without a strategic partner, we would have to limit the size or scope of, or delay or
discontinue, development of CK-1827452 or undertake and fund that development ourselves. If we elect to continue to conduct
development on our own, we will need to obtain additional capital, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all.
Further, a decision by Amgen not to exercise its option could negatively affect our stock price.

We depend on GSK for the conduct, completion and funding of the clinical development and commercialization of GSK-
923295.

Under our strategic alliance, GSK is responsible for the clinical development and obtaining and maintaining regulatory approval of
our drug candidate GSK-923295 for cancer and other indications. GSK is responsible for filing applications with the FDA or other
regulatory authorities for approval of GSK-923295 and will be the owner of any marketing approvals issued by the FDA or other
regulatory authorities for GSK-923295. If the FDA or other regulatory authorities approve GSK-923295, GSK will also be responsible
for the marketing and sale of the resulting drug, subject to our right to co-promote GSK-923295 in North America if we exercise our
option to co-fund certain later-stage development activities for GSK-923295. However, even if we do exercise our option to co-fund the
development of GSK-923295, we cannot control whether GSK will devote sufficient attention and resources to the clinical trials program
for GSK-923295 or will proceed in an expeditious manner. Even if the FDA or other regulatory agencies approve GSK-923295, GSK
may elect not to proceed with the commercialization of the resulting drug. GSK generally has discretion to elect whether to pursue or
abandon the development of GSK-923295 and may terminate our strategic alliance for any reason upon six months prior notice. These
decisions are outside our control. We do not control the clinical development being conducted or that may be conducted in the future by
GSK, including the timing of initiation, termination or completion of clinical trials, the analysis of data arising out of those clinical trials
or the timing of release of data concerning those clinical trials, which may impact our ability to report on GSK’s results.

If the initial results of one or more of its early clinical trials do not meet GSK’s expectations, GSK may elect to terminate further
development of GSK-923295 or certain of the potential clinical trials for GSK-923295, even if the actual number of patients treated at
that time is relatively small. If GSK abandons GSK-923295, it would result in a delay in or could prevent us from commercializing
GSK-923295, and would delay and could prevent us from obtaining revenues for this drug candidate. Disputes may arise between us
and GSK, which may delay or cause the termination of any GSK-923295 clinical trials, result in significant litigation or arbitration, or
cause GSK to act in a manner that is not in our best interest. If development of GSK-923295 does not progress for these or any other
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reasons, we would not receive further milestone payments or royalties on product sales from GSK with respect to GSK-923295. If GSK
abandons development of GSK-923295 prior to regulatory approval or if it elects not to proceed with commercialization of the resulting
drug following regulatory approval, we would have to seek a new partner for clinical development or commercialization, curtail or
abandon that clinical development or commercialization, or undertake and fund the clinical development of GSK-923295 or
commercialization of the resulting drug ourselves. If we seek a new partner but are unable to do so on acceptable terms, or at all, or do not
have sufficient funds to conduct the development or commercialization of GSK-923295 ourselves, we would have to curtail or abandon
that development or commercialization, which could harm our business.

The success of our development activities depends in part on the performance of our strategic partners, over which we have
little or no control.

Our ability to commercialize drugs that we develop with our partners and that generate royalties from product sales depends on our
partners’ abilities to assist us in establishing the safety and efficacy of our drug candidates, obtaining and maintaining regulatory
approvals and achieving market acceptance of the drugs once commercialized. Our partners may elect to delay or terminate development
of one or more drug candidates, independently develop drugs that could compete with ours or fail to commit sufficient resources to the
marketing and distribution of drugs developed through their strategic alliances with us. Our partners may not proceed with the
development and commercialization of our drug candidates with the same degree of urgency as we would because of other priorities they
face. In particular, we are relying on GSK to conduct clinical development of GSK-923295. GSK may modify its plans to conduct that
clinical development or may not proceed diligently with that clinical development. In addition, if Amgen exercises its option with respect to
CK-1827452, it will then be responsible for the clinical development of CK-1827452. We do not control the clinical development of
GSK-923295 being conducted by GSK or that may be conducted in the future by GSK for GSK-923295 or by Amgen for CK-
1827452, including the timing of initiation, termination or completion of clinical trials, the analysis of data arising out of those clinical
trials or the timing of release of data concerning those clinical trials, which may impact our ability to report on their results. If our
partners fail to perform diligently, our potential for revenue from drugs developed through our strategic alliances, if any, could be
dramatically reduced.

We depend on contract research organizations to conduct our clinical trials and have limited control over their performance.

We utilize contract research organizations (“CROs”) for our clinical trials of CK-1827452, ispinesib and SB-743921 within and
outside of the United States. We do not have operational control over many aspects of our CROs’ activities, and cannot fully control the
amount, timing or quality of resources that they devote to our programs. CROs may not assign as high a priority to our programs or
pursue them as diligently as we would if we were undertaking these programs ourselves. The activities conducted by our CROs therefore
may not be completed on schedule or in a satisfactory manner. CROs may also give higher priority to relationships with our competitors
and potential competitors than to their relationships with us. Outside of the United States, we are particularly dependent on our CROs’
expertise in communicating with clinical trial sites and regulatory authorities and ensuring that our clinical trials and related activities and
regulatory filings comply with applicable local laws. Our CRO’s failure to carry out development activities on our behalf according to our
requirements and the FDA’s or other regulatory agencies’ standards and in accordance with applicable laws, or our failure to properly
coordinate and manage these activities, could increase the cost of our operations and delay or prevent the development, approval and
commercialization of our drug candidates. In addition, if a CRO fails to perform as agreed, our ability to collect damages may be
contractually limited.

If we fail to develop the additional skills, technical expertise and resources necessary to carry out the development of our drug
candidates or to effectively manage our CROs carrying out this development or if our CROs fail to perform as agreed, the
commercialization of our drug candidates will be delayed or prevented.
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We have no manufacturing capacity and depend on our strategic partners or contract manufacturers to produce our clinical
trial drug supplies for each of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates, and anticipate continued reliance on
contract manufacturers for the development and commercialization of our potential drugs.

We do not currently operate manufacturing facilities for clinical or commercial production of our drug candidates or potential drug
candidates. We have limited experience in drug formulation and manufacturing, and we lack the resources and the capabilities to
manufacture any of our drug candidates on a clinical or commercial scale. As a result, we rely on GSK to conduct these activities for the
ongoing clinical development of GSK-923295. For CK-1827452, ispinesib and SB-743921, we rely on a limited number of contract
manufacturers, and, in particular, we rely on single-source contract manufacturers for the active pharmaceutical ingredient and the drug
product supply for our clinical trials. We expect to rely on contract manufacturers to supply all future drug candidates for which we
conduct clinical development. If any of our existing or future contract manufacturers fail to perform satisfactorily, it could delay clinical
development or regulatory approval of our drug candidates or commercialization of our drugs, producing additional losses and depriving
us of potential product revenues. In addition, if a contract manufacturer fails to perform as agreed, our ability to collect damages may be
contractually limited.

Our drug candidates require precise high-quality manufacturing. The failure to achieve and maintain high manufacturing
standards, including failure to detect or control anticipated or unanticipated manufacturing errors or the frequent occurrence of such
errors, could result in patient injury or death, discontinuance or delay of ongoing or planned clinical trials, delays or failures in product
testing or delivery, cost overruns, product recalls or withdrawals and other problems that could seriously hurt our business. Contract
drug manufacturers often encounter difficulties involving production yields, quality control and quality assurance and shortages of
qualified personnel. These manufacturers are subject to stringent regulatory requirements, including the FDA’s current good
manufacturing practices regulations and similar foreign laws and standards. Each contract manufacturer must pass a pre-approval
inspection before we can obtain marketing approval for any of our drug candidates and following approval will be subject to ongoing
periodic unannounced inspections by the FDA, the U.S. Drug Enforcement Agency and other regulatory agencies, to ensure strict
compliance with current good manufacturing practices and other applicable government regulations and corresponding foreign laws and
standards. We seek to ensure that our contract manufacturers comply fully with all applicable regulations, laws and standards. However,
we do not have control over our contract manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations, laws and standards. If one of our contract
manufacturers fails to pass its pre-approval inspection or maintain ongoing compliance at any time, the production of our drug
candidates could be interrupted, resulting in delays or discontinuance of our clinical trials, additional costs and potentially lost revenues.
In addition, failure of any third party manufacturers or us to comply with applicable regulations, including pre-or post-approval
inspections and the current good manufacturing practice requirements of the FDA or other comparable regulatory agencies, could result in
sanctions being imposed on us. These sanctions could include fines, injunctions, civil penalties, failure of regulatory authorities to grant
marketing approval of our products, delay, suspension or withdrawal of approvals, license revocation, product seizures or recalls,
operational restrictions and criminal prosecutions, any of which could significantly and adversely affect our business.

In addition, our existing and future contract manufacturers may not perform as agreed or may not remain in the contract
manufacturing business for the time required to successfully produce, store and distribute our drug candidates. If a natural disaster,
business failure, strike or other difficulty occurs, we may be unable to replace these contract manufacturers in a timely or cost-effective
manner and the production of our drug candidates would be interrupted, resulting in delays and additional costs.

Switching manufacturers or manufacturing sites may be difficult and time-consuming because the number of potential
manufacturers is limited. In addition, before a drug from any replacement manufacturer or manufacturing site can be commercialized, the
FDA and, in some cases, foreign regulatory agencies, must approve that site. These approvals would require regulatory testing and
compliance inspections. A new manufacturer or manufacturing site also would have to be educated in, or develop substantially equivalent
processes for, production of our drugs and drug candidates. It may be difficult or impossible to transfer certain elements of a
manufacturing process to a new manufacturer or for us to find a replacement manufacturer on acceptable terms quickly, or at all, either
of which would delay or prevent our ability to develop drug candidates and commercialize any resulting drugs.
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We may not be able to successfully scale-up manufacturing of our drug candidates in sufficient quality and quantity, which
would delay or prevent us from developing our drug candidates and commercializing resulting approved drugs, if any.

To date, our drug candidates have been manufactured in small quantities for preclinical studies and early-stage clinical trials. In
order to conduct larger scale or late-stage clinical trials for a drug candidate and for commercialization of the resulting drug if that drug
candidate is approved for sale, we will need to manufacture it in larger quantities. We may not be able to successfully increase the
manufacturing capacity for any of our drug candidates, whether in collaboration with third-party manufacturers or on our own, in a
timely or cost-effective manner or at all. If a contract manufacturer makes improvements in the manufacturing process for our drug
candidates, we may not own, or may have to share, the intellectual property rights to those improvements. Significant scale-up of
manufacturing may require additional validation studies, which are costly and which the FDA must review and approve. In addition,
quality issues may arise during those scale-up activities because of the inherent properties of a drug candidate itself, or of a drug
candidate in combination with other components added during the manufacturing and packaging process or during shipping and storage
of the finished product or active pharmaceutical ingredients. If we are unable to successfully scale-up manufacture of any of our drug
candidates in sufficient quality and quantity, the development of that drug candidate and regulatory approval or commercial launch for
any resulting drugs may be delayed or there may be a shortage in supply, which could significantly harm our business.

The mechanisms of action of our drug candidates and potential drug candidates are unproven, and we do not know
whether we will be able to develop any drug of commercial value.

We have discovered and are currently developing drug candidates and potential drug candidates with what we believe are novel
mechanisms of action directed against cytoskeletal targets, and intend to continue to do so. Because no currently approved drugs appear
to operate via the same biochemical mechanisms as our compounds, we cannot be certain that our drug candidates and potential drug
candidates will result in commercially viable drugs that safely and effectively treat the indications for which we intend to develop them.
The results we have seen for our compounds in preclinical models may not translate into similar results in humans, and results of early
clinical trials in humans may not be predictive of the results of larger clinical trials that may later be conducted with our drug candidates.
Even if we are successful in developing and receiving regulatory approval for a drug candidate for the treatment of a particular disease, we
cannot be certain that we will also be able to develop and receive regulatory approval for that or other drug candidates for the treatment of
other diseases. If we or our partners unable to successfully develop and commercialize our drug candidates, our business will be
materially harmed.

Our success depends substantially upon our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual property protection relating to our
drug candidates and research technologies.

We own, or hold exclusive licenses to, a number of U.S. and foreign patents and patent applications directed to our drug candidates
and research technologies. Our success depends on our ability to obtain patent protection both in the United States and in other countries
for our drug candidates, their methods of manufacture and use, and our technologies. Our ability to protect our drug candidates and
technologies from unauthorized or infringing use by third parties depends substantially on our ability to obtain and enforce our patents. If
our issued patents and patent applications, if granted, do not adequately describe, enable or otherwise provide coverage of our technologies
and drug candidates, including CK-1827452, ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295, we would not be able to exclude others from
developing or commercializing these drug candidates. Furthermore, the degree of future protection of our proprietary rights is uncertain
because legal means may not adequately protect our rights or permit us to gain or keep our competitive advantage.

Due to evolving legal standards relating to the patentability, validity and enforceability of patents covering pharmaceutical inventions
and the claim scope of these patents, our ability to enforce our existing patents and to obtain and enforce patents that may issue from any
pending or future patent applications is uncertain and involves complex legal, scientific and factual questions. The standards which the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and its foreign counterparts use to grant patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly and
are subject to change. To date, no consistent policy has emerged regarding the breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology and
pharmaceutical patents. Thus, we cannot be sure that any patents will issue from any pending or future patent
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applications owned by or licensed to us. Even if patents do issue, we cannot be sure that the claims of these patents will be held valid or
enforceable by a court of law, will provide us with any significant protection against competitive products, or will afford us a commercial
advantage over competitive products. In particular:

 • we or our licensors might not have been the first to make the inventions covered by each of our pending patent applications and
issued patents;

 • we or our licensors might not have been the first to file patent applications for the inventions covered by our pending patent
applications and issued patents;

 • others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of our technologies without infringing our
intellectual property rights;

 • some or all of our or our licensors’ pending patent applications may not result in issued patents or the claims that issue may be
narrow in scope and not provide us with competitive advantages;

 • our and our licensors’ issued patents may not provide a basis for commercially viable drugs or therapies or may be challenged
and invalidated by third parties;

 • our or our licensors’ patent applications or patents may be subject to interference, opposition or similar administrative
proceedings that may result in a reduction in their scope or their loss altogether;

 • we may not develop additional proprietary technologies or drug candidates that are patentable; or

 • the patents of others may prevent us or our partners from discovering, developing or commercializing our drug candidates.

Patent protection is afforded on a country-by-country basis. Some foreign jurisdictions do not protect intellectual property rights to
the same extent as in the United States. Many companies have encountered significant difficulties in protecting and defending intellectual
property rights in foreign jurisdictions. Some of our development efforts are performed in countries outside of the United States through
third party contractors. We may not be able to effectively monitor and assess intellectual property developed by these contractors;
therefore, we may not appropriately protect this intellectual property and could thus lose valuable intellectual property rights. In addition,
the legal protection afforded to inventors and owners of intellectual property in countries outside of the United States may not be as
protective of intellectual property rights as in the United States. Therefore, we may be unable to acquire and protect intellectual property
developed by these contractors to the same extent as if these development activities were being conducted in the United States. If we
encounter difficulties in protecting our intellectual property rights in foreign jurisdictions, our business prospects could be substantially
harmed.

Under our license agreement with the University of California and Stanford University, we have obtained an exclusive license to
certain issued U.S. and European patents relating to certain of our research activities. If we fail to fulfill our obligations under this license
agreement, including certain diligence obligations, this agreement may be terminated, in which case we would no longer have a license to
these patents or to future patents that may issue from the pending applications. This may impair our ability to continue to practice the
research methods covered by the issued patents, which could harm our business. Alternatively, our license rights may become non-
exclusive, which would allow the University of California and Stanford University to grant third parties the right to practice those
patents.

We rely on intellectual property assignment agreements with our corporate partners, employees, consultants, scientific advisors and
other collaborators to grant us ownership of new intellectual property that is developed. These agreements may not result in the effective
assignment to us of that intellectual property. As a result, our ownership of key intellectual property could be compromised.

Changes in either the patent laws or their interpretation in the United States or other countries may diminish the value of our
intellectual property or our ability to obtain patents. For example, the U.S. Congress is currently considering bills that could change
U.S. law regarding, among other things, post-grant review of issued patents and the calculation of damages once patent infringement has
been determined by a court of law. If enacted into law, these provisions could severely weaken patent protection in the United States. In
addition, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office adopted new rules that were to become effective on November 1, 2007, regarding
processes for
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obtaining patents in the United States. However, a permanent injunction preventing implementation of the new rules has been issued. This
decision is now being appealed. The new rules are numerous and complex and, if made effective, generally are expected to make it more
difficult for patent applicants to obtain patents, especially with regard to pharmaceutical products and processes. If these rules changes
become effective, they would likely make it more difficult for us and others to obtain patent protection in the United States for any future
drug candidates.

If one or more products resulting from our drug candidates is approved for sale by the FDA and we do not have adequate intellectual
property protection for those products, competitors could duplicate them for approval and sale in the United Sates without repeating the
extensive testing required of us or our partners to obtain FDA approval. Regardless of any patent protection, under current law, unless
certain requirements are met an application for a generic version of a new chemical entity cannot be submitted to for five years after the
FDA has approved the original product. When that period expires, or if it is altered, the FDA could approve a generic version of our
product regardless of our patent protection. An applicant for a generic version of our product may only be required to conduct a relatively
inexpensive study to show that its product is bioequivalent to our product, and may not have to repeat the lengthy and expensive clinical
trials that we or our partners conducted to demonstrate that the product is safe and effective. In the absence of adequate patent protection
for our products in other countries, competitors may similarly be able to obtain regulatory approval in those countries of generic versions
of products our products.

We also rely on trade secrets to protect our technology, particularly where we believe patent protection is not appropriate or obtainable.
However, trade secrets are often difficult to protect, especially outside of the United States. While we endeavor to use reasonable efforts to
protect our trade secrets, our or our partners’ employees, consultants, contractors or scientific and other advisors may unintentionally or
willfully disclose our information to competitors. In addition, confidentiality agreements, if any, executed by those individuals may not be
enforceable or provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets or other proprietary information in the event of unauthorized use or
disclosure. Pursuing a claim that a third party had illegally obtained and was using our trade secrets would be expensive and time-
consuming, and the outcome would be unpredictable. Even if we are able to maintain our trade secrets as confidential, if our competitors
independently develop information equivalent or similar to our trade secrets, our business could be harmed.

If we are not able to defend the patent or trade secret protection position of our technologies and drug candidates, then we will not be
able to exclude competitors from developing or marketing competing drugs, and we may not generate enough revenue from product sales to
justify the cost of development of our drugs or to achieve or maintain profitability.

If we are sued for infringing third party intellectual property rights, it will be costly and time-consuming, and an
unfavorable outcome would have a significant adverse effect on our business.

Our ability to commercialize drugs depends on our ability to use, manufacture and sell those drugs without infringing the patents or
other proprietary rights of third parties. Numerous U.S. and foreign issued patents and pending patent applications owned by third
parties exist in the therapeutic areas in which we are developing drug candidates and seeking new potential drug candidates. In addition,
because patent applications can take several years to issue, there may be currently pending applications, unknown to us, which could
later result in issued patents that our activities with our drug candidates could infringe. There may also be existing patents, unknown to
us, that our activities with our drug candidates could infringe.

Currently, we are aware of an issued U.S. patent and at least one pending U.S. patent application assigned to Curis, Inc., relating to
certain compounds in the quinazolinone class. Ispinesib falls into this class of compounds. The Curis U.S. patent claims a method of
use for inhibiting signaling by what is called the hedgehog pathway using certain quinazolinone compounds. Curis also has pending
applications in Europe, Japan, Australia and Canada with claims covering certain quinazolinone compounds, compositions thereof
and/or methods of their use. Two of the Australian applications have been allowed and two of the European applications have been
granted. We have opposed the granting of certain of these patents to Curis in Europe and in Australia. Curis has withdrawn one of the
Australian applications. One of the European patents which we opposed was recently revoked and is no longer valid in Europe. Curis has
appealed this decision.
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Curis or a third party may assert that the manufacture, use, importation or sale of ispinesib may infringe one or more of these
patents. We believe that we have valid defenses against the issued U.S. patent owned by Curis if it were to be asserted against us.
However, we cannot guarantee that a court would find these defenses valid or that any additional oppositions would be successful. We
have not attempted to obtain a license to these patents. If we decide to seek a license to these patents, we cannot guarantee that such a
license would be available on acceptable terms, if at all.

Other future products of ours may be impacted by patents of companies engaged in competitive programs with significantly greater
resources (such as Bayer AG, Merck & Co., Inc., Merck GmbH, Eli Lilly and Company, Bristol-Myers Squibb and AstraZeneca).
Further development of these products could be impacted by these patents and result in significant legal fees.

If a third party claims that our actions infringe on its patents or other proprietary rights, we could face a number of issues that could
seriously harm our competitive position, including, but not limited to:

 • infringement and other intellectual property claims that, even if meritless, can be costly and time-consuming to litigate, delay the
regulatory approval process and divert management’s attention from our core business operations;

 • substantial damages for past infringement which we may have to pay if a court determines that our drugs or technologies infringe
a competitor’s patent or other proprietary rights;

 • a court prohibiting us from selling or licensing our drugs or technologies unless the holder licenses the patent or other proprietary
rights to us, which it is not required to do; and

 • if a license is available from a holder, we may have to pay substantial royalties or grant cross-licenses to our patents or other
proprietary rights.

If any of these events occur, it could significantly harm our business and negatively affect our stock price.

We may become involved in disputes with our strategic partners over intellectual property ownership, and publications by our
research collaborators and clinical investigators could impair our ability to obtain patent protection or protect our
proprietary information, which, in either case, would have a significant impact on our business.

Inventions discovered under our strategic alliance agreements may become jointly owned by our strategic partners and us in some
cases, and the exclusive property of one of us in other cases. Under some circumstances, it may be difficult to determine who owns a
particular invention, or whether it is jointly owned, and disputes could arise regarding ownership or use of those inventions. These
disputes could be costly and time-consuming, and an unfavorable outcome would have a significant adverse effect on our business if we
were not able to protect or license rights to these inventions. In addition, our research collaborators and clinical investigators generally have
contractual rights to publish data arising from their work, subject to our prior review. Publications by our research collaborators and
clinical investigators relating to our research and development programs, either with or without our consent, could benefit our current or
potential competitors and may impair our ability to obtain patent protection or protect our proprietary information, which could
significantly harm our business.

We may be subject to claims that we or our employees have wrongfully used or disclosed alleged trade secrets of their former
employers.

Many of our employees were previously employed at universities or other biotechnology or pharmaceutical companies, including our
competitors or potential competitors. Although no claims against us are currently pending, we may be subject to claims that these
employees or we have inadvertently or otherwise used or disclosed trade secrets or other proprietary information of their former employers.
Litigation may be necessary to defend against these claims. If we fail in defending these claims, in addition to paying monetary damages,
we may lose valuable intellectual property rights or personnel. A loss of key research personnel or their work product could hamper or
prevent our ability to commercialize certain potential drugs, which could significantly harm our business.
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Even if we are successful in defending against these claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and distract management.

Our competitors may develop drugs that are less expensive, safer or more effective than ours, which may diminish or
eliminate the commercial success of any drugs that we may commercialize.

We compete with companies that have developed drugs or are developing drug candidates for cardiovascular diseases, cancer and
other diseases for which our drug candidates may be useful treatments. For example, if CK-1827452 is approved for marketing by the
FDA for heart failure, that drug candidate would compete against other drugs used for the treatment of heart failure. These include generic
drugs, such as milrinone, dobutamine or digoxin and newer marketed drugs such as nesiritide. CK-1827452 could also potentially
compete against other novel drug candidates in development, such as levosimendan, which is marketed by Abbott Laboratories in a
number of countries outside of the United States; istaroxamine, which is being developed by Debiopharm Group; rolofylline, which is
being developed by Merck & Co. Inc.; bucindolol, which is being developed by ARCA biopharma, Inc.; BG9928, which is being
developed by Biogen Idec Inc.; and CD-NP, which is being developed by Nile Therapeutics, Inc. In addition, there are a number of
medical devices being developed for the potential treatment of heart failure.

Similarly, if approved for marketing by the FDA, depending on the approved clinical indication, our anti-cancer drug candidates
such as ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295 would compete against existing cancer treatments such as paclitaxel (and its generic
equivalents), docetaxel, vincristine, vinorelbine, navelbine, ixabepilone and potentially against other novel anti-cancer drug candidates
that are currently in development such as those that are reformulated taxanes, other tubulin binding compounds or epothilones. We are
also aware that Merck & Co., Inc., Eli Lilly and Company, Bristol-Myers Squibb, AstraZeneca AB, Array Biopharma Inc., ArQule,
Inc., Anylam, Inc. and others are conducting research and development focused on KSP and other mitotic kinesins. In addition, Bristol-
Myers Squibb, Merck & Co., Inc., Novartis, Genentech, Hoffman-La Roche Ltd., Eisai, Inc. and other pharmaceutical and
biopharmaceutical companies are developing other approaches to inhibiting mitosis.

Our competitors may:

 • develop drug candidates and market drugs that are less expensive or more effective than our future drugs;

 • commercialize competing drugs before we or our partners can launch any drugs developed from our drug candidates;

 • hold or obtain proprietary rights that could prevent us from commercializing our products;

 • initiate or withstand substantial price competition more successfully than we can;

 • more successfully recruit skilled scientific workers and management from the limited pool of available talent;

 • more effectively negotiate third-party licenses and strategic alliances;

 • take advantage of acquisition or other opportunities more readily than we can;

 • develop drug candidates and market drugs that increase the levels of safety or efficacy that our drug candidates will need to show
in order to obtain regulatory approval; or

 • introduce therapies or market drugs that render the market opportunity for our potential drugs obsolete.

We will compete for market share against large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies and smaller companies that are
collaborating with larger pharmaceutical companies, new companies, academic institutions, government agencies and other public and
private research organizations. Many of these competitors, either alone or together with their partners, may develop new drug candidates
that will compete with ours. These competitors may, and in certain cases do, operate larger research and development programs or have
substantially greater financial resources than we do. Our competitors may also have significantly greater experience in:

 • developing drug candidates;

 • undertaking preclinical testing and clinical trials;
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 • building relationships with key customers and opinion-leading physicians;

 • obtaining and maintaining FDA and other regulatory approvals of drug candidates;

 • formulating and manufacturing drugs; and

 • launching, marketing and selling drugs.

If our competitors market drugs that are less expensive, safer or more efficacious than our potential drugs, or that reach the market
sooner than our potential drugs, we may not achieve commercial success. In addition, the life sciences industry is characterized by rapid
technological change. If we fail to stay at the forefront of technological change, we may be unable to compete effectively. Our competitors
may render our technologies obsolete by improving existing technological approaches or the development of new or different approaches,
potentially eliminating the advantages in our drug discovery process that we believe we derive from our research approach and proprietary
technologies.

We may expand our development and clinical research capabilities and, as a result, we may encounter difficulties in
managing our growth, which could disrupt our operations.

We may have growth in our expenditures, the number of our employees and the scope of our operations, in particular with respect to
those drug candidates that we elect to develop or commercialize independently or together with a partner. To manage our anticipated future
growth, we must continue to implement and improve our managerial, operational and financial systems, expand our facilities and
continue to recruit and train additional qualified personnel. Due to our limited resources, we may not be able to effectively manage the
expansion of our operations or recruit and train additional qualified personnel. The physical expansion of our operations may lead to
significant costs and may divert our management and business development resources. Any inability to manage growth could delay the
execution of our business plans or disrupt our operations.

We currently have no sales or marketing staff and, if we are unable to enter into or maintain strategic alliances with
marketing partners or to develop our own sales and marketing capabilities, we may not be successful in commercializing our
potential drugs.

We currently have no sales, marketing or distribution capabilities. We plan to commercialize drugs that can be effectively marketed
and sold in concentrated markets that do not require a large sales force to be competitive. To achieve this goal, we will need to establish
our own specialized sales force and marketing organization with technical expertise and with supporting distribution capabilities.
Developing such an organization is expensive and time-consuming and could delay a product launch. In addition, we may not be able to
develop this capacity efficiently, cost-effectively or at all, which could make us unable to commercialize our drugs. If we determine not to
market on our drugs on our own, we will depend on strategic alliances with third parties, such as GSK and Amgen, which have
established distribution systems and direct sales forces to commercialize them. If we are unable to enter into such arrangements on
acceptable terms, we may not be able to successfully commercialize these drugs. To the extent that we are not successful in
commercializing any drugs ourselves or through a strategic alliance, our product revenues and business will suffer and our stock price
would decrease.

Our failure to attract and retain skilled personnel could impair our drug development and commercialization activities.

Our business depends on the performance of our senior management and key scientific and technical personnel. The loss of the
services of any member of our senior management or key scientific or technical staff may significantly delay or prevent the achievement
of drug development and other business objectives by diverting management’s attention to transition matters and identifying suitable
replacements. We also rely on consultants and advisors to assist us in formulating our research and development strategy. All of our
consultants and advisors are either self-employed or employed by other organizations, and they may have conflicts of interest or other
commitments, such as consulting or advisory contracts with other organizations, that may affect their ability to contribute to us. In
addition, if and as our business grows, we will need to recruit additional executive management
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and scientific and technical personnel. There is currently intense competition for skilled executives and employees with relevant scientific
and technical expertise, and this competition is likely to continue. Our inability to attract and retain sufficient scientific, technical and
managerial personnel could limit or delay our product development activities, which would adversely affect the development of our drug
candidates and commercialization of our potential drugs and growth of our business.

Our workforce reductions in September 2008 and any future workforce and expense reductions may have an adverse
impact on our internal programs and our ability to hire and retain skilled personnel.

In September 2008, we reduced our workforce by approximately 29% in order to reduce expenses and to focus on research activities
in our muscle contractility programs and advancing drug candidates in our clinical pipeline. These headcount reductions and the cost
control measures we have implemented may negatively affect our productivity and limit our research and development activities. For
example, as part of this strategic restructuring, we have discontinued our early research activities in oncology. Our future success will
depend in large part upon our ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel. We may have difficulty retaining and attracting such
personnel as a result of a perceived risk of future workforce reductions. In light of our continued need for funding and cost control, we
may be required to implement future workforce and expense reductions, which could further limit our research and development
activities. In addition, the implementation of any additional workforce or expense reduction programs may divert the efforts of our
management team and other key employees, which could adversely affect our business.

Risks Related To Our Industry

The regulatory approval process is expensive, time-consuming and uncertain and may prevent our partners or us from
obtaining approvals to commercialize some or all of our drug candidates.

The research, testing, manufacturing, selling and marketing of drugs are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and other
regulatory authorities in the United States and other countries, which regulations differ from country to country. Neither we nor our
partners are permitted to market our potential drugs in the United States until we receive approval of an NDA from the FDA. Neither we
nor our partners have received marketing approval for any of Cytokinetics’ drug candidates.

Obtaining NDA approval is a lengthy, expensive and uncertain process. In addition, failure to comply with FDA and other
applicable foreign and U.S. regulatory requirements may subject us to administrative or judicially imposed sanctions. These include
warning letters, civil and criminal penalties, injunctions, product seizure or detention, product recalls, total or partial suspension of
production, and refusal to approve pending NDAs or supplements to approved NDAs.

Regulatory approval of an NDA or NDA supplement is never guaranteed, and the approval process typically takes several years
and is extremely expensive. The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies also have substantial discretion in the drug approval process.
Despite the time and efforts exerted, failure can occur at any stage, and we could encounter problems that cause us to abandon clinical
trials or to repeat or perform additional preclinical testing and clinical trials. The number and focus of preclinical studies and clinical
trials that will be required for approval by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies varies depending on the drug candidate, the disease or
condition that the drug candidate is designed to address, and the regulations applicable to any particular drug candidate. The FDA and
foreign regulatory agencies can delay, limit or deny approval of a drug candidate for many reasons, including, but not limited to:

 • they might determine that a drug candidate is not be safe or effective;

 • they might not find the data from preclinical testing and clinical trials sufficient;

 • they might not approve our, our partner’s or the contract manufacturer’s processes or facilities; or

 • they might change their approval policies or adopt new regulations.

Even if we receive regulatory approval to manufacture and sell a drug in a particular regulatory jurisdiction, other jurisdictions’
regulatory authorities may not approve that drug for manufacture and sale. If we or our partners
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fail to receive and maintain regulatory approval for the sale of any drugs resulting from our drug candidates, it would significantly harm
our business and negatively affect our stock price.

If we or our partners receive regulatory approval for our drug candidates, we or they will be subject to ongoing obligations
to and continued regulatory review by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies, such as continued safety reporting
requirements, and may also be subject to additional post-marketing obligations, all of which may result in significant
expense and limit commercialization of our potential drugs.

Any regulatory approvals that we or our partners receive for our drug candidates may be subject to limitations on the indicated uses
for which the drug may be marketed or require potentially costly post-marketing follow-up studies. In addition, if the FDA or foreign
regulatory agencies approves any of our drug candidates, the labeling, packaging, adverse event reporting, storage, advertising,
promotion and record-keeping for the drug will be subject to extensive regulatory requirements. The subsequent discovery of previously
unknown problems with the drug, including adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or the discovery that adverse effects or
toxicities observed in preclinical research or clinical trials that were believed to be minor actually constitute much more serious problems,
may result in restrictions on the marketing of the drug or withdrawal of the drug from the market.

The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies may change their policies and additional government regulations may be enacted that could
prevent or delay regulatory approval of our drug candidates. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of adverse government
regulation that may arise from future legislation or administrative action, either in the United States or abroad. If we are not able to
maintain regulatory compliance, we might not be permitted to market our drugs and our business would suffer.

If physicians and patients do not accept our drugs, we may be unable to generate significant revenue, if any.

Even if our drug candidates obtain regulatory approval, the resulting drugs, if any, may not gain market acceptance among
physicians, healthcare payors, patients and the medical community. Even if the clinical safety and efficacy of drugs developed from our
drug candidates are established for purposes of approval, physicians may elect not to recommend these drugs for a variety of reasons
including, but not limited to:

 • introduction of competitive drugs to the market;

 • clinical safety and efficacy of alternative drugs or treatments;

 • cost-effectiveness;

 • availability of coverage and reimbursement from health maintenance organizations and other third-party payors;

 • convenience and ease of administration;

 • prevalence and severity of adverse side effects;

 • other potential disadvantages relative to alternative treatment methods; or

 • insufficient marketing and distribution support.

If our drugs fail to achieve market acceptance, we may not be able to generate significant revenue and our business would suffer.

The coverage and reimbursement status of newly approved drugs is uncertain and failure to obtain adequate coverage and
reimbursement could limit our ability to market any drugs we may develop and decrease our ability to generate revenue.

Even if one or more of our drugs is approved for sale, the commercial success of our drugs in both domestic and international
markets will be substantially dependent on whether third-party coverage and reimbursement is available for our drugs by the medical
profession for use by their patients, which is highly uncertain. Medicare, Medicaid, health maintenance organizations and other third-
party payors are increasingly attempting to contain
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healthcare costs by limiting both coverage and the level of reimbursement of new drugs. As a result, they may not cover or provide
adequate payment for our drugs. They may not view our drugs as cost-effective and reimbursement may not be available to consumers or
may be insufficient to allow our drugs to be marketed on a competitive basis. If we are unable to obtain adequate coverage and
reimbursement for our drugs, our ability to generate revenue will be adversely affected. Likewise, legislative or regulatory efforts to control
or reduce healthcare costs or reform government healthcare programs could result in lower prices or rejection of coverage and
reimbursement for our potential drugs. Changes in coverage and reimbursement policies or healthcare cost containment initiatives that
limit or restrict reimbursement for our drugs would cause our revenue to decline.

We may be subject to costly product liability or other liability claims and may not be able to obtain adequate insurance.

The use of our drug candidates in clinical trials may result in adverse effects. We cannot predict all the possible harms or adverse
effects that may result from our clinical trials. We currently maintain limited product liability insurance. We may not have sufficient
resources to pay for any liabilities resulting from a personal injury or other claim excluded from, or beyond the limit of, our insurance
coverage. Our insurance does not cover third parties’ negligence or malpractice, and our clinical investigators and sites may have
inadequate insurance or none at all. In addition, in order to conduct clinical trials or otherwise carry out our business, we may have to
contractually assume liabilities for which we may not be insured. If we are unable to look to our own or a third party’s insurance to pay
claims against us, we may have to pay any arising costs and damages ourselves, which may be substantial.

In addition, if we commercially launch drugs based on our drug candidates, we will face even greater exposure to product liability
claims. This risk exists even with respect to those drugs that are approved for commercial sale by the FDA and foreign regulatory
agencies and manufactured in licensed and regulated facilities. We intend to secure limited product liability insurance coverage, but may
not be able to obtain such insurance on acceptable terms with adequate coverage, or at reasonable costs. There is also a risk that third
parties that we have agreed to indemnify could incur liability, or that third parties that have agreed to indemnify us do not fulfill their
obligations. Even if we are ultimately successful in product liability litigation, the litigation would consume substantial amounts of our
financial and managerial resources and may create adverse publicity, all of which would impair our ability to generate sales of the affected
product and our other potential drugs. Moreover, product recalls may be issued at our discretion or at the direction of the FDA and foreign
regulatory agencies, other governmental agencies or other companies having regulatory control for drug sales. If product recalls occur, they
are generally expensive and often have an adverse effect on the reputation of the drugs being recalled and of the drug’s developer or
manufacturer.

We may be required to indemnify third parties against damages and other liabilities arising out of our development,
commercialization and other business activities, which could be costly and time-consuming and distract management.

To the extent we elect to fund the development of a drug candidate or the commercialization of a drug at our expense, we will
need substantial additional funding.

The discovery, development and commercialization of new drugs for the treatment of a wide array of diseases is costly. As a result,
to the extent we elect to fund the development of a drug candidate or the commercialization of a drug, we will need to raise additional
capital to:

 • expand our research and development capabilities;

 • fund clinical trials and seek regulatory approvals;

 • build or access manufacturing and commercialization capabilities;

 • implement additional internal systems and infrastructure;

 • maintain, defend and expand the scope of our intellectual property; and

 • hire and support additional management and scientific personnel.
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Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including, but not limited to:

 • the rate of progress and cost of our clinical trials and other research and development activities;

 • the costs and timing of seeking and obtaining regulatory approvals;

 • the costs associated with establishing manufacturing and commercialization capabilities;

 • the costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights;

 • the costs of acquiring or investing in businesses, products and technologies;

 • the effect of competing technological and market developments; and

 • the payment and other terms and timing of any strategic alliance, licensing or other arrangements that we may establish.

Until we can generate a sufficient amount of product revenue to finance our cash requirements, which we may never do, we expect to
continue to finance our future cash needs primarily through public or private equity offerings, debt financings and strategic alliances. We
cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are not able to secure additional funding
when needed, we may have to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our clinical trials or research and development
programs or future commercialization initiatives.

Responding to any claims relating to improper handling, storage or disposal of the hazardous chemicals and radioactive
and biological materials we use in our business could be time-consuming and costly.

Our research and development processes involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, including chemicals and radioactive and
biological materials. Our operations produce hazardous waste products. We cannot eliminate the risk of accidental contamination or
discharge and any resultant injury from those materials. Federal, state and local laws and regulations govern the use, manufacture,
storage, handling and disposal of hazardous materials. We may be sued for any injury or contamination that results from our use or the
use by third parties of these materials. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations is expensive, and current or future
environmental regulations may impair our research, development and production activities.

Our facilities in California are located near an earthquake fault, and an earthquake or other types of natural disasters,
catastrophic events or resource shortages could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our results.

All of our facilities and our important documents and records, such as hard copies of our laboratory books and records for our drug
candidates and compounds and our electronic business records, are located in our corporate headquarters at a single location in South
San Francisco, California near active earthquake zones. If a natural disaster, such as an earthquake or flood, a catastrophic event such
as a disease pandemic or terrorist attack or localized extended outages of critical utilities or transportation systems occurs, we could
experience a significant business interruption. Our partners and other third parties on which we rely may also be subject to business
interruptions from such events. In addition, California from time to time has experienced shortages of water, electric power and natural
gas. Future shortages and conservation measures could disrupt our operations and cause expense, thus adversely affecting our business
and financial results.

Risks Related To an Investment in Our Securities

We expect that our stock price will fluctuate significantly, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or at or above your
investment price.

The stock market, particularly in recent months and years, has experienced significant volatility, particularly with respect to
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and other life sciences company stocks, which often does not relate
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to the operating performance of the companies represented by the stock. Factors that could cause volatility in the market price of our
common stock include, but are not limited to:

 • results from, delays in, or discontinuation of, any of the clinical trials for our drug candidates, such as CK-1827452 for heart
failure, ispinesib for breast cancer, SB-743921 for Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin lymphoma and GSK-923295 for cancer,
including delays resulting from slower than expected or suspended patient enrollment or discontinuations resulting from a failure
to meet pre-defined clinical end-points;

 • announcements concerning our strategic alliances with Amgen, GSK or future strategic alliances, including, but not limited to,
announcements concerning Amgen’s option relating to CK-1827452;

 • announcements concerning clinical trials for our drug candidates;

 • failure or delays in entering additional drug candidates into clinical trials;

 • failure or discontinuation of any of our research programs;

 • issuance of new or changed securities analysts’ reports or recommendations;

 • failure or delay in establishing new strategic alliances, or the terms of those alliances;

 • market conditions in the pharmaceutical, biotechnology and other healthcare-related sectors;

 • actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial and operating results;

 • developments or disputes concerning our intellectual property or other proprietary rights;

 • introduction of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors;

 • issues in manufacturing our drug candidates or drugs;

 • market acceptance of our drugs;

 • third-party healthcare coverage and reimbursement policies;

 • FDA or other U.S. or foreign regulatory actions affecting us or our industry;

 • litigation or public concern about the safety of our drug candidates or drugs;

 • additions or departures of key personnel; or

 • volatility in the stock prices of other companies in our industry or in the stock market generally.

These and other external factors may cause the market price and demand for our common stock to fluctuate substantially, which
may limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares of common stock and may otherwise negatively affect the liquidity of our
common stock. In addition, when the market price of a stock has been volatile, holders of that stock have instituted securities class
action litigation against the company that issued the stock. If any of our stockholders brought a lawsuit against us, we could incur
substantial costs defending the lawsuit. Such a lawsuit could also divert our management’s time and attention.

If the ownership of our common stock continues to be highly concentrated, it may prevent you and other stockholders from
influencing significant corporate decisions and may result in conflicts of interest that could cause our stock price to decline.

As of February 28, 2009, our executive officers, directors and their affiliates beneficially owned or controlled approximately 25.4%
of the outstanding shares of our common stock (after giving effect to the exercise of all outstanding vested and unvested options and
warrants). Accordingly, these executive officers, directors and their affiliates, acting as a group, will have substantial influence over the
outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or
substantially all of our assets or any other significant corporate transactions. These stockholders may also delay or prevent a change of
control of us, even if such a change of control would benefit our other stockholders. The significant concentration of stock ownership
may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock due to investors’ perception that conflicts of interest may exist or arise.
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Volatility in the stock prices of other companies may contribute to volatility in our stock price.

The stock market in general, and The NASDAQ Global Market (“NASDAQ”) and the market for technology companies in
particular, have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of those companies. Further, there has been particular volatility in the market prices of securities of early stage and
development stage life sciences companies. These broad market and industry factors may seriously harm the market price of our
common stock, regardless of our operating performance. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s
securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted. A securities class action suit against us could result in substantial
costs, potential liabilities and the diversion of management’s attention and resources, and could harm our reputation and business.

Our common stock is thinly traded and there may not be an active, liquid trading market for our common stock.

There is no guarantee that an active trading market for our common stock will be maintained on NASDAQ, or that the volume of
trading will be sufficient to allow for timely trades. Investors may not be able to sell their shares quickly or at the latest market price if
trading in our stock is not active or if trading volume is limited. In addition, if trading volume in our common stock is limited, trades of
relatively small numbers of shares may have a disproportionate effect on the market price of our common stock.

Evolving regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses, use of resources and
continuing uncertainty.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, new Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) regulations and NASDAQ Stock Market LLC rules are creating uncertainty
for public companies. We are presently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to new and proposed rules and cannot
predict or estimate the amount of the additional costs we may incur or the timing of these costs. For example, compliance with the internal
control requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has to date required the commitment of significant resources to document
and test the adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting. Our assessment, testing and evaluation of the design and operating
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting resulted in our conclusion that, as of December 31, 2008, our internal control
over financial reporting was effective to ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.
However, we can provide no assurance as to conclusions of management or by our independent registered public accounting firm with
respect to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in the future. In addition, the SEC has adopted regulations that
will require us to file corporate financial statement information in a new interactive data format known as XBRL beginning in 2011. We
will incur significant costs and need to invest considerable resources to implement and to remain in compliance with these new
requirements.

These new or changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of
specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing
bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to
disclosure and governance practices. We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. As a
result, we intend to invest the resources necessary to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may
result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating
activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the activities
intended by regulatory or governing bodies, due to ambiguities related to practice or otherwise, regulatory authorities may initiate legal
proceedings against us, which could be costly and time-consuming, and our reputation and business may be harmed.

40



Table of Contents

We have never paid dividends on our capital stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future.

We have paid no cash dividends on any of our classes of capital stock to date and we currently intend to retain our future earnings,
if any, to fund the development and growth of our businesses. In addition, the terms of existing or any future debts may preclude us from
paying these dividends.

Risks Related To Our Financing Vehicles and Investments

Our committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge may not be available to us if we elect to make a draw down, may
require us to make additional “blackout” or other payments to Kingsbridge, and may result in dilution to our stockholders.

In October 2007, we entered into a committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge. This committed equity financing facility
entitles us to sell and obligates Kingsbridge to purchase, from time to time over a period of three years, shares of our common stock for
cash consideration up to an aggregate of $75.0 million, subject to certain conditions and restrictions. Kingsbridge will not be obligated to
purchase shares under this committed equity financing facility unless certain conditions are met, which include a minimum volume
weighted average price of $2.00 for our common stock; the accuracy of representations and warranties made to Kingsbridge; compliance
with laws; effectiveness of the registration statement registering for resale the shares of common stock to be issued in connection with this
committed equity financing facility; and the continued listing of our stock on NASDAQ. In addition, Kingsbridge is permitted to
terminate this committed equity financing facility if it determines that a material and adverse event has occurred affecting our business,
operations, properties or financial condition and if such condition continues for a period of 10 days from the date Kingsbridge provides
us notice of such material and adverse event. If we are unable to access funds through this committed equity financing facility, we may be
unable to access capital on reasonable terms or at all.

We are entitled, in certain circumstances, to deliver a blackout notice to Kingsbridge to suspend the use of the resale registration
statement and prohibit Kingsbridge from selling shares under the resale registration statement. If we deliver a blackout notice in the 15
trading days following the settlement of a draw down, or if the registration statement is not effective in circumstances not permitted by the
agreement, then we must make a payment to Kingsbridge, or issue Kingsbridge additional shares in lieu of this payment. This payment
or issuance of shares is calculated based on the number of shares actually held by Kingsbridge pursuant to the most recent draw down
under the committed equity financing facility and the change in the market price of our common stock during the period in which the use
of the registration statement is suspended. If the trading price of our common stock declines during a suspension of the registration
statement, the blackout or other payment could be significant.

When we choose to sell shares to Kingsbridge under this committed equity financing facility, or issue shares in lieu of a blackout
payment, it will have a dilutive effect on our current stockholders’ holdings, and may result in downward pressure on the price of our
common stock. If we draw down under this committed equity financing facility, we will issue shares to Kingsbridge at a discount of up
to 10% from the volume weighted average price of our common stock. If we draw down amounts under this committed equity financing
facility when our share price is decreasing, we will need to issue more shares to raise the same amount of cash than if our stock price was
higher. Issuances in the face of a declining share price will have an even greater dilutive effect than if our share price were stable or
increasing, and may further decrease our share price.

We may be required to record impairment charges in future quarters as a result of the decline in value of our investments in
auction rate securities.

We hold interest-bearing student loan auction rate securities (“ARS”) that represent investments in pools of assets. These ARS were
intended to provide liquidity via an auction process that resets the applicable interest rate at predetermined calendar intervals, allowing
investors to either roll over their holdings or gain immediate liquidity by selling such interests at par value. The recent uncertainties in the
credit markets have affected all of our holdings in ARS and auctions for our investments in these securities have failed to settle on their
respective settlement dates. Consequently, these investments are not currently liquid and we will not be able to access these funds until a
future auction of these investments is successful, the issuer redeems the outstanding securities, the securities mature or a
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buyer is found outside of the auction process. Maturity dates for these ARS range from 2036 to 2045. To date, we have recorded
$3.4 million of unrealized loss in Statement of Operations related to the ARS that we hold in our investment portfolio. However, if the
current market conditions deteriorate further, or the anticipated recovery in market values does not occur, we may be required to record
additional unrealized losses due to further declines in value in future quarters. This could adversely impact our results of operations and
financial condition. Furthermore, in light of auction failures associated with our ARS, we re-classified our ARS as long-term investments
due to the uncertainty associated with the timing of our ability to access the funds underlying these investments. We have entered into a
settlement agreement with UBS AG relating to the failed auctions of our ARS through which UBS AG and its affiliates may provide us
with additional funds based on these ARS. However, if we are unable to access the funds underlying or secured by these investments in a
timely manner, we may need to find alternate sources of funding for certain of our operations, which may not be available on favorable
terms, or at all, and our business could be adversely affected.

We may not be able to recover the value of our ARS under our settlement agreement with UBS AG.

We have entered into a settlement agreement with UBS AG relating to the failed auctions of our ARS through which UBS AG and its
affiliates may provide us with additional funds based on these ARS. In accepting the settlement offer, we agreed to give up certain rights
and accept certain risks. Under this settlement, UBS AG has issued to us Series C-2 Auction Rate Securities Rights (the “ARS Rights”).
The ARS Rights entitle us to require UBS AG to purchase our ARS, through UBS Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services Inc. (the
“UBS Entities”) as agents for UBS AG, from June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012 at par value, i.e., at a price equal to the liquidation
preference of the ARS plus accrued but unpaid interest, if any. In connection with the ARS Rights, we granted to the UBS Entities the
right to sell or otherwise dispose of, and/or enter orders in the auction process with respect to, our ARS on our behalf at its discretion, so
long as we receive a payment of par value upon any sale or disposition. The ARS Rights are not transferable, tradable or marginable, and
will not be listed or quoted on any securities exchange or any electronic communications network. If our ARS are sold through the UBS
Entities, we will cease to receive interest on these ARS. We may not be able to reinvest the cash proceeds of any sale of these ARS at the
same interest rate currently being paid to us with respect to our ARS.

In connection with the settlement, we entered into a loan agreement with UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial Services Inc., and on
January 5, 2009 borrowed approximately $12.4 million under the loan agreement. We have drawn down the full amount available under
the loan agreement. The borrowings under the loan agreement are payable upon demand, subject to UBS Financial Services’ obligations to
arrange alternative financing for us under certain circumstances.

While we entered into the settlement in expectation that UBS AG will fulfill its obligations in connection with the ARS Rights, UBS
AG may not have sufficient financial resources to satisfy these obligations. The United States and worldwide financial markets have
recently experienced unprecedented volatility, particularly in the financial services sector. UBS AG may not be able to maintain the
financial resources necessary to satisfy its obligations with respect to the ARS Rights in a timely manner or at all. UBS AG’s obligations
in connection with the ARS Rights are not secured by UBS AG’s assets or otherwise, nor guaranteed by any other entity. UBS AG is not
required to obtain any financing to support its obligations. If UBS AG is unable to perform its obligations in connection with the ARS
Rights, we will have no certainty as to the liquidity or value for our ARS. In addition, UBS AG is a Swiss bank and all or a substantial
portion of its assets are located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for us to serve legal process on UBS AG or its
management or cause any of them to appear in a U.S. court. Judgments based solely on U.S. securities laws may not be enforceable in
Switzerland. As a result, if UBS AG fails to fulfill its obligations, we may not be able to effectively seek recourse against it.

In consideration for the ARS Rights, we agreed to release UBS AG, the UBS Entities, and/or their affiliates, directors, and officers
from any claims directly or indirectly relating to the marketing and sale of our ARS, other than consequential damages. Even if UBS AG
fails to fulfill its obligations in connection with ARS Rights, this release may still be held to be enforceable.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2.  Properties

Our facilities consist of approximately 81,587 square feet of research and office space. We lease 50,195 square feet located at 280
East Grand Avenue in South San Francisco, California until 2013 with an option to renew that lease over that timeframe. We also lease
31,392 square feet at 256 East Grand Avenue in South San Francisco, California until 2011. We believe that these facilities are suitable
and adequate for our current needs.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “CYTK,” and has been quoted on such market
since our initial public offering on April 29, 2004. Prior to such date, there was no public market for our common stock. The following
table sets forth the high and low closing sales price per share of our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market for the
periods indicated.

  Closing Sale Price  
  High   Low  

Fiscal 2007:         
First Quarter  $ 8.60  $6.56 
Second Quarter  $ 7.38  $5.65 
Third Quarter  $ 5.77  $ 4.58 
Fourth Quarter  $ 6.25  $ 4.40 

Fiscal 2008:         
First Quarter  $ 4.73  $ 3.00 
Second Quarter  $ 4.17  $ 2.81 
Third Quarter  $5.69  $ 3.61 
Fourth Quarter  $ 4.43  $ 2.00 

On February 27, 2009, the last reported sale price for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $1.58 per share. We
currently expect to retain future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business and have not paid and do not in
the foreseeable future anticipate paying any cash dividends. As of February 27, 2009, there were 133 holders of record of our common
stock.

On December 29, 2006, in connection with entering into a collaboration and option agreement with Amgen, we contemporaneously
entered into a common stock purchase agreement with Amgen, which provided for the sale of 3,484,806 shares of our common stock at a
price per share of $9.47, an aggregate purchase price of approximately $33.0 million, and a registration rights agreement that provides
Amgen with certain registration rights with respect to these shares. The shares were issued to Amgen on January 2, 2007. Pursuant to the
common stock purchase agreement, Amgen has agreed to certain trading and other restrictions with respect to our common stock. We
relied on the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act in connection with the issuance and sale of the
shares to Amgen.

The following table summarizes stock repurchase activity for the quarter ended December 31, 2008:

        Total Number   Maximum  
        of Shares   Number of  
        Purchased as   Shares That  
        Part of Publicly   May Yet Be  
  Total Number   Average   Announced   Purchased  
  of Shares   Price Paid per   Plans or   Under the Plans  
Period  Repurchased   Share   Programs   or Programs  

October 1 to October 31, 2008   —   —   —   — 
November 1 to November 30, 2008   —   —   —   — 
December 1 to December 31, 2008   1,500   —   —   — 

Total   1,500   —   —   — 

The shares repurchased were unvested registered common stock that we repurchased from employees upon termination of
employment. As December 31, 2008, 396,460 shares of common stock held by employees were subject to repurchase by us.
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Equity Compensation Information

Information regarding our equity compensation plans and the securities authorized for issuance thereunder is set forth in Part III,
Item 12.

Comparison of Historical Cumulative Total Return Among Cytokinetics, Incorporated, the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.)
Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index(*)

(*) The above graph shows the cumulative total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash on April 29, 2004, the date our
common stock began to trade on the NASDAQ Global Market, through December 31, 2008 for: (i) our common stock; (ii) the
NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index; and (iii) the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. All values assume reinvestment of the full
amount of all dividends. Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder
returns.

  4/29/04   12/31/08  

Cytokinetics, Incorporated  $ 100.00  $ 17.70 
NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index  $ 100.00  $65.20 
NASDAQ Biotechnology Index  $ 100.00  $ 90.49 

The information contained under this caption “Comparison of Historical Cumulative Total Return Among Cytokinetics,
Incorporated, the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index” shall not be deemed to be soliciting
material or to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), nor shall such information be incorporated by reference
into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the
extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplemental Data” of this report on Form 10-K.

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006   2005   2004  
  (In thousands, except per share amounts)  

Statement of Operations Data:                     
Revenues:                     

Research and development revenues from related party  $ 186  $ 1,388  $ 1,622  $ 4,978  $ 9,338 
Research and development, grant and other revenues   —   —   4   1,134   1,304 
License revenues from related parties   12,234   12,234   1,501   2,800   2,800 

Total revenues   12,420   13,622   3,127   8,912   13,442 
Operating expenses:                     

Research and development   53,950   53,388   49,225   40,570   39,885 
General and administrative   15,076   16,721   15,240   12,975   11,991 
Restructuring charges   2,473   —   —   —   — 

Total operating expenses   71,499   70,109   64,465   53,545   51,876 
Operating loss   (59,079)   (56,487)   (61,338)   (44,633)   (38,434)
Interest and other, net   2,705   7,593   4,223   2,381   1,236 
Net loss  $ (56,374)  $ (48,894)  $ (57,115)  $ (42,252)  $ (37,198)

Net loss per common share — basic and diluted(2)  $ (1.14)  $ (1.03)  $ (1.56)  $ (1.48)  $ (1.88)

Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per common
share — basic and diluted(1)(2)   49,392   47,590   36,618   28,582   19,779 

  As of December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006   2005   2004  
  (In thousands)  

Balance Sheet Data:                     
Cash, cash equivalents and short- and long-term investments(1)  $ 73,503  $ 139,764  $ 109,542  $ 76,212  $ 110,253 
Restricted cash   2,750   5,167   6,034   5,172   5,980 
Working capital   36,033   95,568   127,228   67,600   98,028 
Total assets   87,454   155,370   169,516   91,461   128,101 
Long-term portion of equipment financing lines   2,615   4,639   7,144   6,636   8,106 
Deficit accumulated during the development stage   (335,907)   (279,533)   (230,639)   (173,524)   (131,272)
Total stockholders’ equity(1)   49,766   99,916   106,313   73,561   107,556 

(1) Our initial public offering was declared effective by the SEC and our common stock commenced trading on April 29, 2004. We sold
7,935,000 shares of common stock in the offering for net proceeds of approximately $94.0 million. In addition, we sold
538,461 shares of our common stock to GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK”)
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immediately prior to the closing of the initial public offering for net proceeds of approximately $7.0 million. Also in conjunction with
the initial public offering, all of the outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock were converted into 17,062,145 shares of
our common stock. In December 2005, we sold 887,576 shares of common stock to Kingsbridge Capital Limited (“Kingsbridge”)
pursuant to the committed equity financing facility we entered into with Kingsbridge in 2005 for net proceeds of $5.5 million. In
2006, we sold 10,285,715 shares in two registered direct offerings for net proceeds of approximately $66.9 million, and sold
2,740,735 shares of common stock to Kingsbridge pursuant to the 2005 committed equity financing facility for net proceeds of
$17.0. In 2007, we sold 2,075,177 shares of common stock to Kingsbridge pursuant to the 2005 committed equity financing facility
for net proceeds of $9.5 million. In January 2007, we issued 3,484,806 shares of Cytokinetics common stock to Amgen for net
proceeds of $32.9 million in connection with a common stock purchase agreement with Amgen.

(2) All share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the 1-for-2 reverse stock split that occurred on
April 26, 2004.

Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and accompanying notes included
elsewhere in this report. Operating results are not necessarily indicative of results that may occur in future periods.

Overview

We are a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery and development of novel small molecule therapeutics
that modulate muscle function for the potential treatment of serious diseases and medical conditions. Our research and development
activities are founded on our knowledge and expertise regarding the cytoskeleton, a complex biological infrastructure that plays a
fundamental role within every human cell. These activities initially focused on inhibitors of cell division, and are now directed to the
biology of muscle function, and in particular, to small molecule modulators of the contractility of cardiac, smooth and skeletal muscle.
We intend to leverage our experience in muscle contractility in order to expand our current pipeline into new therapeutic areas, and expect to
continue to be able to identify additional potential drug candidates that may be suitable for clinical development.

We have four drug candidates currently in human clinical trials: CK-1827452 is in Phase IIa clinical trials for the potential
treatment of heart failure; ispinesib is the subject of a Phase I/II clinical trial in breast cancer patients; SB-743921 is the subject of a
Phase I/II clinical trial in patients with Hodgkin or non-Hodgkin lymphoma; and GSK-923295 is the subject of Phase I clinical trial in
patients with advanced solid tumors. We also have three potential drug candidates currently in preclinical development: CK-2017357, a
skeletal sarcomere activator which may be developed for diseases or medical conditions associated with muscle weakness or wasting; a
back-up development compound for CK-2017357; and an inhibitor of smooth muscle myosin intended for inhaled delivery that may be
useful as a potential treatment of diseases such as pulmonary arterial hypertension, asthma or chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.

Muscle Contractility Programs

Cardiac Muscle Contractility

Our lead drug candidate, CK-1827452, a novel cardiac muscle myosin activator for the potential treatment of heart failure, is
currently in Phase IIa clinical development to evaluate the safety, tolerability, pharmacodynamics and pharmacokinetic profile of this
drug candidate in both an intravenous and oral formulation.

In December 2008, we announced top-line results from a Phase IIa clinical trial evaluating the safety of CK-1827452 in patients with
ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina. The primary safety endpoint was defined as stopping an exercise test during double-blind
treatment with CK-1827452 or placebo due to unacceptable angina at an earlier exercise stage than at baseline. This endpoint was
observed in one patient receiving placebo and did not occur in any patient receiving CK-1827452. We anticipate presenting final data
from this clinical trial in 2009.
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At the November 2008 Scientific Sessions of the American Heart Association, we reported interim results from a Phase IIa clinical
trial evaluating CK-1827452 administered intravenously to patients with stable heart failure. The interim results showed that CK-
1827452 demonstrated statistically significant increases in systolic ejection time and fractional shortening at plasma concentrations
greater than 100 ng/mL and statistically significant increases in stroke volume at plasma concentrations greater than 200 ng/mL. There
were also statistically significant increases in ejection fraction at CK-1827452 plasma concentrations greater than 300 ng/mL when
ejection fraction was calculated by a hybrid method in which stroke volume, measured using Doppler technology, was divided by the left
ventricular end-diastolic volume, measured using two-dimensional echocardiography. In addition, these data demonstrated statistically
significant correlations between increasing CK-1827452 plasma concentration and increases in systolic ejection time, stroke volume,
fractional shortening, ejection fraction and cardiac output. The results also showed statistically significant correlations between increasing
CK-1827452 concentrations and decreases in supine and standing heart rate and left ventricular end-systolic volume. This trial was
planned to consist of 5 cohorts. We recently completed treatment of Cohort 5 of this trial. We anticipate presenting final data from this
clinical trial at the Annual Meeting of the American College of Cardiology in March 2009.

We are continuing to conduct an open-label, non-randomized Phase IIa clinical trial designed to evaluate an intravenous formulation
of CK-1827452 administered to patients with stable heart failure undergoing clinically indicated coronary angiography. In addition, we
have conducted five Phase I clinical trials of CK-1827452 in healthy subjects: a first-time-in-humans study evaluating an intravenous
formulation, an oral bioavailability study evaluating both intravenous and oral formulations, and three studies of oral formulations: a
drug-drug interaction study, a dose proportionality study and a study evaluating modified-release formulations.

We believe the safety data from our Phase IIa clinical trial evaluating the safety and tolerability of CK-1827452 in patients with
ischemic cardiomyopathy and angina, together with the improvements in systolic function observed in our Phase IIa clinical trial
evaluating CK-1827452 in stable heart failure patients, support the progression of CK-1827452 into Phase IIb clinical development. In
mid-2009, we anticipate the initiation of a Phase IIb clinical trial of CK-1827452 in chronic heart failure outpatients at increased risk for
death and hospitalization. In the second quarter of 2009, we anticipate initiating an additional Phase IIa clinical trial designed to evaluate
the pharmacokinetics of both a modified release and an immediate release formulation of CK-1827452 in patients with heart failure.

In December 2006, we entered into a collaboration and option agreement with Amgen Inc. to discover, develop and commercialize
novel small-molecule therapeutics that activate cardiac muscle contractility for potential applications in the treatment of heart failure,
including CK-1827452. The agreement provides Amgen with a non-exclusive license and access to certain technology. The agreement also
granted Amgen an option to obtain an exclusive license world-wide, except Japan, to develop and commercialize CK-1827452 and other
drug candidates arising from the collaboration. Amgen’s option is exercisable during a defined period, the ending of which is dependent
upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, primarily our delivery of certain Phase I and Phase IIa clinical trials data for CK-1827452 in
accordance with an agreed development plan, the results of which may reasonably support its progression into Phase IIb clinical
development. In February 2009, we announced that we believe we completed delivery of this data to Amgen. Prior to the exercise or
expiration of Amgen’s option, we are responsible for conducting all development activities for CK-1827452, at our own expense.

To exercise its option, Amgen would pay an exercise fee of $50.0 million and thereafter would be responsible for the development and
commercialization of CK-1827452 and related compounds, at its expense, subject to Cytokinetics’ development and commercialization
participation rights. Following exercise of the option, the agreement provides for potential pre-commercialization and commercialization
milestone payments of up to $600.0 million in the aggregate on CK-1827452 and other potential products arising from research under the
collaboration, and royalties that escalate based on increasing levels of annual net sales of products commercialized under the agreement.
The agreement also provides for us to receive increased royalties by co-funding Phase III development costs of drug candidates under the
collaboration. If we elect to co-fund such costs, we would be entitled to co-promote CK-1827452 in North America and participate in
agreed commercialization activities in institutional care settings, at Amgen’s expense. If Amgen elects not to exercise its option to CK-
1827452, we may then independently proceed to develop and commercialize CK-1827452, ourselves or with another partner.
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The clinical trials program for CK-1827452 may proceed for several years, and we will not be in a position to generate any revenues
or material net cash flows from this drug candidate until the program is successfully completed, regulatory approval is achieved, and a
drug is commercialized. CK-1827452 is at too early a stage of development for us to predict when or if this may occur. We currently fund
all research and development costs associated with this program. We recorded research and development expenses for activities relating to
our cardiac muscle contractility program of approximately $20.9 million, $22.4 million and $18.1 million in the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We anticipate that our expenditures relating to the research and development of
compounds in our cardiac muscle contractility program will increase significantly as we advance CK-1827452 through clinical
development. Our expenditures will also increase if Amgen does not exercise its option and we elect to develop CK-1827452 or related
compounds independently, or if we elect to co-fund later-stage development of CK-1827452 or other compounds in our cardiac muscle
contractility program under our collaboration and option agreement with Amgen following Amgen’s exercise of its option.

Skeletal Muscle Contractility

In April 2008, we announced that we had selected CK-2017357 as the lead potential drug candidate from this program. We expect to
submit an investigational new drug application (“IND”) with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) to initiate a Phase I
clinical trial of CK-2017357 in healthy volunteers in 2009. In January 2009, we announced that we had selected another compound from
this program as a backup development compound to CK-2017357. CK-2017357 and its backup development compound are structurally
distinct small molecule activators of the skeletal sarcomere. These potential drug candidates act on the troponin regulatory complex of the
skeletal sarcomere. Activation of the troponin complex increases its sensitivity to calcium, leading to an increase in skeletal muscle
contractility. This mechanism of action has demonstrated encouraging pharmacological activity in preclinical models. We are evaluating
the potential indications for which CK-2017357 may be useful. These may include diseases and medical conditions associated with
skeletal muscle weakness or wasting, such as amyotrophic lateral sclerosis, also known as ALS or Lou Gehrig’s disease, cachexia in
connection with heart failure or cancer, sarcopenia and general frailty associated with aging.

CK-2017357 is at too early a stage of development for us to predict if or when we will be in a position to generate any revenues or
material net cash flows from its commercialization. We currently fund all research and development costs associated with this program.
We recorded research and development expenses for activities relating to our skeletal muscle contractility program of approximately
$10.5 million, $5.9 million and $2.1 million in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We anticipate that our
expenditures relating to the research and development of compounds in our skeletal muscle contractility program will increase
significantly if and as we advance CK-2017357, its back-up compound or other compounds from this program through clinical
development.

Smooth Muscle Contractility

In January 2009, we announced that we had selected a lead potential drug candidate from this program for advancement. This
compound is a small molecule direct inhibitor of smooth muscle myosin. By inhibiting the function of the myosin motor central to the
contraction of smooth muscle, this small molecule directly leads to the relaxation of contracted smooth muscle. Specifically intended for
inhaled delivery applications, this potential drug candidate has demonstrated encouraging pharmacological activity in preclinical models
as a novel mechanism vasodilator and bronchodilator. This data suggests that it may be useful as a potential treatment of diseases such
as pulmonary arterial hypertension, asthma or chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. This potential drug candidate is currently in IND-
enabling studies. This potential drug candidate is at too early a stage of development for us to predict if or when we will be in a position to
generate any revenues or material net cash flows from its commercialization. We currently fund all research and development costs
associated with this program. We recorded research and development expenses for activities relating to our smooth muscle contractility
program of approximately $7.3 million, $7.0 million and $7.0 million in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. We anticipate that our expenditures relating to the research and development of compounds in our smooth muscle contractility
program will increase significantly if and as we advance this smooth muscle myosin inhibitor or other compounds from this program
through clinical development.
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Oncology Program: Mitotic Kinesin Inhibitors

We currently have three drug candidates in clinical trials for the potential treatment of cancer: ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-
923295. All of these arose from our earlier research activities directed to the role of the cytoskeleton in cell division and have been
progressed under our strategic alliance with GSK. This strategic alliance was established in 2001 to discover, develop and commercialize
novel small molecule therapeutics targeting mitotic kinesins for applications in the treatment of cancer and other diseases. Mitotic kinesins
are a family of cytoskeletal motor proteins involved in the process of cell division, or mitosis. Under that strategic alliance, we have
focused primarily on two mitotic kinesins: kinesin spindle protein (“KSP”) and centromere-associated protein E (“CENP-E”). In
November 2006, we amended the agreement and assumed responsibility, at our expense, for the continued research, development and
commercialization of inhibitors of KSP, including ispinesib and SB-743921, and other mitotic kinesins, other than CENP-E. GSK
retained an option to resume responsibility for the development and commercialization of either or both of ispinesib and SB-743921. This
option expired at the end of 2008. Accordingly, we retain all rights to both ispinesib and SB-743921, subject to certain royalty obligations
to GSK. In each of June 2006, 2007 and 2008, we amended the agreement to extend the research term of the GSK strategic alliance for an
additional year to continue joint translational research directed to CENP-E.

Ispinesib

Under our strategic alliance, GSK, in collaboration with the National Cancer Institute, conducted a broad Phase II clinical trials
program designed to evaluate ispinesib across multiple tumor types. To date, we believe some clinical activity for ispinesib has been
observed in non-small cell lung, ovarian and breast cancers, with the most clinical activity observed in a Phase II clinical trial evaluating
ispinesib in the treatment of patients with locally advanced or metastatic breast cancer that had failed treatment with taxanes and
anthracyclines. In addition, preclinical and Phase Ib clinical data relating to ispinesib indicate that it may have an additive effect when
combined with certain existing chemotherapeutic agents.

As a result of GSK’s option expiring, we have retained all development and commercialization rights to ispinesib. We are conducting
a Phase I/II clinical trial for ispinesib to further define its clinical activity profile in chemotherapy-naïve locally advanced or metastatic
breast cancer patients. This clinical trial is using a more dose-dense schedule than was previously evaluated to determine if the overall
response to ispinesib can be increased while maintaining its existing safety profile. We intend to complete the Phase I portion of this trial
and to seek a strategic partner for the future development and commercialization of ispinesib.

SB-743921

SB-743921 was studied by GSK in a dose-escalating Phase I clinical trial evaluating its safety, tolerability and pharmacokinetics in
advanced cancer patients when administered intravenously on a once every 21-day schedule. The observed toxicities at the recommended
Phase II dose were manageable. As a result of GSK’s option expiring, we have retained all development and commercialization rights to
SB-743921. We are conducting a Phase I/II clinical trial evaluating SB-743921 in patients with Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin lymphoma on
a more dose-dense schedule than was previously evaluated. We intend to complete the Phase I portion of this trial and to seek a strategic
partner for the future development and commercialization of SB-743921.

GSK-923295

Under our strategic alliance, GSK is responsible, at its expense, for the development of and commercialization of GSK-923295.
GSK is currently conducting a first-time-in-humans Phase I clinical trial of GSK-923295 in patients with advanced, refractory solid
tumors. We anticipate that GSK will initiate a Phase II clinical trial of GSK-923295 in 2009. We will receive royalties from GSK’s sales
of any drugs developed under the strategic alliance. For those drug candidates that GSK develops under the strategic alliance, we can elect
to co-fund certain later-stage development activities which would increase our potential royalty rates on sales of resulting drugs and
provide us with the option to secure co-promotion rights in North America. If we elect to co-fund later-stage development, we expect that the
royalties to be paid on future sales of GSK-923295 could potentially increase based on increasing product sales and our anticipated level
of co-funding. If we exercise our co-promotion option, then we
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are entitled to receive reimbursement from GSK for certain sales force costs we incur in support of our commercialization activities.

The clinical trials program for each of ispinesib, SB-743921 and GSK-923295 may proceed for several years, and we will not be
in a position to generate any revenues or material net cash flows from any of these drug candidates until its clinical trials program is
successfully completed, regulatory approval is achieved and a drug is commercialized. Each of these drug candidates is at too early a
stage of development for us to predict when or if this may occur. We currently fund all research and development costs associated with
ispinesib and SB-743921. If we continue to conduct our Phase I/II clinical trials for either or both of ispinesib and SB-743921, our
expenditures relating to research and development of these drug candidate will increase significantly. We recorded research and
development expenses for activities relating to our mitotic kinesins oncology program of approximately $7.0 million, $5.8 million and
$6.1 million in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We received and recognized as revenue reimbursements
from GSK of FTE and other expenses related to our mitotic kinesins oncology program of $0.2 million, $0.4 million and $1.6 million for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively,

Development Risks

The successful development of any of our drug candidates is highly uncertain. We cannot estimate with certainty or know the exact
nature, timing and costs of the activities necessary to complete the development of any of our drug candidates or the date of completion of
these development activities due to numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to:

 • the uncertainty of the timing of the initiation and completion of patient enrollment and treatment in our clinical trials;

 • the possibility of delays in the collection of clinical trial data and the uncertainty of the timing of the analyses of our clinical trial
data after these trials have been initiated and completed;

 • our potential inability to obtain additional funding and resources for our development activities on acceptable terms, if at all,
including, but not limited to, our potential inability to obtain or retain partners to assist in the design, management, conduct and
funding of clinical trials;

 • delays or additional costs in manufacturing of our drug candidates for clinical trial use, including developing appropriate
formulations of our drug candidates;

 • the uncertainty of clinical trial results;

 • the uncertainty of obtaining FDA or other foreign regulatory agency approval required for the clinical investigation of our drug
candidates;

 • the uncertainty related to the development of commercial scale manufacturing processes and qualification of a commercial scale
manufacturing facility; and

 • possible delays in the characterization, synthesis or optimization of potential drug candidates.

If we fail to complete the development of any of our drug candidates in a timely manner, it could have a material adverse effect on
our operations, financial position and liquidity. In addition, any failure by us or our partners to obtain, or any delay in obtaining,
regulatory approvals for our drug candidates could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. A further discussion of the
risks and uncertainties associated with completing our programs on schedule, or at all, and certain consequences of failing to do so are
discussed further in the risk factors entitled “We have never generated, and may never generate, revenues from commercial sales of our
drugs and we may not have drugs to market for at least several years, if ever,” “Clinical trials may fail to demonstrate the desired safety
and efficacy of our drug candidates, which could prevent or significantly delay completion of clinical development and regulatory
approval” and “Clinical trials are expensive, time-consuming and subject to delay,” and other risk factors.
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Revenues

Our current revenue sources are limited, and we do not expect to generate any revenue from product sales for several years, if at all.
We have recognized revenues from our strategic alliances with Amgen and GSK for license fees and contract research activities.

Under our collaboration and option agreement with Amgen, we received an upfront, non-refundable license and technology access fee
of $42.0 million. In connection with entering into the agreement, we also entered into a common stock purchase agreement with Amgen. In
January 2007, we issued 3,484,806 shares of our common stock to Amgen for net proceeds of $32.9 million, of which the $6.9 million
purchase premium was recorded as deferred revenue. We are amortizing the upfront fee and stock premium to license revenue ratably over
the maximum term of the non-exclusive license, which is four years. We may receive additional payments from Amgen upon achieving
certain precommercialization and commercialization milestones. Milestone payments are non-refundable and are recognized as revenue
when earned, as evidenced by achievement of the specified milestones and the absence of ongoing performance obligations.

We may also be eligible to receive reimbursement for contract development activities subsequent to Amgen’s option exercise, which
we will record as revenue if and when the related expenses are incurred. We record amounts received in advance of performance as
deferred revenue.

Revenues from GSK in 2006 were based on negotiated rates intended to approximate the costs for our full-time employee equivalents
(“FTEs”) performing research under the strategic alliance and our out-of-pocket expenses, which we recorded as the related expenses were
incurred. GSK paid us an upfront licensing fee, which we recognized ratably over the strategic alliance’s initial five-year research term,
which ended in June 2006. In 2007, we received a $1.0 million milestone payment from GSK relating to its initiation of a Phase I clinical
trial of GSK-923295. We may receive additional payments from GSK upon achieving certain precommercialization milestones.
Milestone payments are non-refundable and are recognized as revenue when earned, as evidenced by achievement of the specified
milestones and the absence of ongoing performance obligations. We record amounts received in advance of performance as deferred
revenue. The revenues recognized to date are non-refundable, even if the relevant research effort is not successful. In December 2008,
GSK’s option to license ispinesib and SB-743291 expired and all rights to these drug candidates remain with us under the collaboration
and license agreement, subject to our royalty obligations to GSK. GSK continues to conduct the development of GSK-923295 under the
agreement.

Because a substantial portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future will depend on achieving development and other
precommercialization milestones under our strategic alliances with GSK and, if Amgen exercises its option, Amgen, our results of
operations may vary substantially from year to year.

We expect that our future revenues will most likely be derived from royalties on sales from drugs licensed to GSK or Amgen under
our strategic alliances and from those licensed to future partners, and from direct sales of our drugs. If Amgen exercises its option, we will
retain a product-by-product option to co-fund certain later-stage development activities under our strategic alliance with Amgen, thereby
potentially increasing our royalties and affording us co-promotion rights in North America. For those products being developed by GSK
under our strategic alliance, we also retain a product-by-product option to co-fund certain later-stage development activities, thereby
potentially increasing our royalties and affording us co-promotion rights in North America. If we exercise our co-promotion rights under
either strategic alliance, we are entitled to receive reimbursement for certain sales force costs we incur in support of our commercial
activities.

Research and Development

We incur research and development expenses associated with both partnered and unpartnered research activities. Research and
development expenses related to our strategic alliance with GSK consisted primarily of costs related to research and screening, lead
optimization and other activities relating to the identification of compounds for development as mitotic kinesin inhibitors for the treatment
of cancer. Prior to June 2006, certain of these costs were reimbursed by GSK on an FTE basis. From 2001 through November 2006,
GSK funded the majority of the costs related to the clinical development of ispinesib and SB-743921. Under our amended

52



Table of Contents

collaboration and license agreement with GSK, we assumed responsibility for the continued research, development and commercialization
of inhibitors of KSP, including ispinesib and SB-743921, and other mitotic kinesins other than CENP-E, at our sole expense. We also
have the option to co-fund certain later-stage development activities for GSK-923295. Our conduct of the development of ispinesib and
SB-743921 and the potential exercise of our co-funding option for GSK-923295 would result in a significant increase in research and
development expenses. We expect to incur research and development expenses in the continued conduct of preclinical studies and clinical
trials for: CK-1827452 for the potential treatment of heart failure; CK-2017357 and other skeletal sarcomere activators for the potential
treatment of diseases and medical conditions associated with muscle weakness or wasting; our smooth muscle myosin inhibitor potential
drug candidate and other smooth muscle myosin inhibitor compounds for the potential treatment of pulmonary arterial hypertension and
diseases and medical conditions associated with bronchoconstriction; ispinesib for the potential treatment of breast cancer; SB-743921
for the potential treatment of Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin lymphoma; and in connection with our research programs in other disease areas.

Research and development expenses related to any development and commercialization activities we elect to fund would consist
primarily of employee compensation, supplies and materials, costs for consultants and contract research, facilities costs and depreciation
of equipment. From our inception through December 31, 2008, we incurred costs of approximately $119.8 million for research and
development activities relating to our cardiac muscle contractility program, $18.4 million for our skeletal muscle contractility program,
$26.5 million for our smooth muscle contractility program, $67.2 million for our mitotic kinesin inhibitors, $52.7 million for our
proprietary technologies and $52.8 million for other research programs.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation for employees in executive and administrative functions,
including, but not limited to, finance, human resources, legal, business and commercial development and strategic planning. Other
significant costs include facilities costs and professional fees for accounting and legal services, including legal services associated with
obtaining and maintaining patents and regulatory compliance. We expect that general and administrative expenses will increase in 2009.

Restructuring

In September 2008, we announced a restructuring plan to realign our workforce and operations in line with a strategic reassessment
of our research and development activities and corporate objectives. As a result, we have focused our research activities to our muscle
contractility programs while continuing our ongoing clinical trials in heart failure and cancer and have discontinued early research
activities directed to oncology. To implement this plan, we reduced our workforce by approximately 29%, or 45 employees, to
112 employees. The affected employees were provided with severance payments and outplacement assistance.

We have completed substantially all restructuring activities and recognized all anticipated restructuring charges. All severance
payments were made as of December 31, 2008. We expect to record only immaterial charges to the accrued restructuring costs during
2009, primarily related to employee benefits and outplacement services.

As a result of the restructuring plan, in 2008, we recorded total restructuring charges of $2.2 million for employee severance and
benefit related costs and a $0.3 million charge related to the impairment of lab equipment that is held for sale. We expect to sell the
held-for-sale equipment by September 2009.
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Stock Compensation

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation related to employee stock options, restricted stock awards and employee
stock purchases for 2008, 2007 and 2006, which was allocated as follows (in thousands):

  Years Ended December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006  

Research and development  $ 2,794  $ 2,932  $2,532 
General and administrative   2,812   2,621   2,111 

Stock-based compensation included in operating expenses  $5,606  $5,553  $ 4,643 

As of December 31, 2008, there was $7.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options
compensation arrangements granted under our stock plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
2.4 years. The total unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted stock awards as of December 31, 2008 was $0.8 million and
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years. In addition, through 2008, we continued to amortize deferred
stock-based compensation recorded prior to adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” for stock options granted prior to the initial public offering. The remaining balance became fully
amortized in the fourth quarter of 2008 and the balance of deferred stock based compensation was zero at December 31, 2008.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which is the asset and liability
method for accounting and reporting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the
differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amounts expected to be realized. We have not recorded an income tax provision in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
because we had a net taxable loss in each of those periods. Given that we have a history of recurring losses, we have recorded a full
valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets. We had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $292.1 million and
state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $95.4 million at December 31, 2008. If not utilized, the federal and state operating
loss carryforwards will expire in various amounts beginning 2018 and 2010, respectively. Due to California state’s temporary suspension
of net operating losses in 2008 and 2009, the state carryover period will be extended by two additional years for an net operating losses
sustained in pre-2008 tax years. The net operating loss carryforwards include deductions for stock options. When utilized, the portion
related to stock options deductions will be accounted for as a credit to stockholders’ equity rather than as a reduction of the income tax
provision.

We had research credit carryforwards of approximately $9.2 million and $10.6 million for federal and state income tax purposes,
respectively, at December 31, 2008. If not utilized, the federal carryforwards will expire in various amounts beginning in 2018. The
California state credit can be carried forward indefinitely.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 limits the use of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards in certain situations where equity
transactions resulted in a change of ownership as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382. During the year ended December 31,
2007, we conducted a study and determined that our use of our federal research credit is subject to such a restriction. Accordingly, we
reduced our deferred tax assets and the corresponding valuation allowance by $0.8 million. As a result, the research credit amount as of
December 31, 2007 reflects the restriction on our ability to use the credit.

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,  an Interpretation of SFAS 109” (“FIN 48”). The new standard defines the threshold for
recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial statements as “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing
authorities based solely on the technical merits of the position. If the recognition threshold is met, the tax benefit is measured and
recognized as the largest amount of tax benefit, in
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our judgment, which is greater than 50% likely to be realized. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 resulted in no
FIN 48 liability on the Balance Sheet. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption was $3.1 million. We are
currently not subject to income tax examinations. In general, the statute of limitations for tax liabilities for these years remains open for
purpose of adjusting the amounts of the losses and credits carried forward from those years.

Interest and penalties were zero for 2008. We account for interest and penalties by classifying both as income tax expense in the
Financial Statements. Because we have recorded a full valuation allowance on all our deferred tax assets, FIN 48 has had no impact on
our effective tax rate. We do not expect our unrecognized tax benefits to change materially over the next 12 months.

Results of Operations

Years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Revenues

  Years Ended December 31,   Increase (Decrease)  
  2008   2007   2006   2008   2007  
  (In millions)  

Research and development revenues from related party  $ 0.2  $ 1.4  $1.6  $(1.2)  $ (0.2)
License revenues from related parties   12.2   12.2   1.5   —   10.7 

Total revenues  $ 12.4  $13.6  $ 3.1  $(1.2)  $10.5 

We recorded total revenues of $12.4 million, $13.6 million, and $3.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Research and development revenues from related party refers to revenues from our partner GSK, which is also a stockholder of
Cytokinetics. Research and development revenues from GSK of $0.2 million in 2008 consisted of patent expense reimbursements.
Research and development revenues from GSK of $1.4 million in 2007 consisted of a $1.0 milestone payment for GSK’s initiation of a
Phase I clinical trial of GSK-923295 in patients with solid tumors, and patent expense reimbursements of $0.4 million. Research and
development revenues from GSK of $1.6 million in 2006 consisted of $1.4 million for the reimbursement of FTEs and approximately
$0.2 million for patent expense reimbursements. FTE reimbursements from GSK terminated in June 2006 due to the conclusion of the
initial five-year research term under the GSK Agreement for all mitotic kinesins except CENP-E. The FTE sponsorship was determined
annually by GSK and us in accordance with the annual research plan and contractually predefined FTE support levels. In each of June
2006, 2007, and 2008, the research term of our strategic alliance with GSK was extended for an additional year under an updated
research plan focused only on CENP-E without corresponding FTE reimbursement. In December 2008, GSK’s option to license each of
ispinesib and SB-743921 as provided under the parties’ collaboration and license agreement expired. Accordingly, we retain all rights to
both ispinesib and SB-743921, subject to certain royalty obligations to GSK.

License revenues from related parties represents license revenue from our strategic alliances with Amgen and GSK. License revenue
from Amgen was $12.2 million in 2008, $12.2 million in 2007 and $0.1 million in 2006, and represented recognition of the upfront
license fee and the premium paid on the common stock purchase by Amgen. As of December 31, 2008, our remaining balance of Amgen
deferred revenue was $24.5 million. We are amortizing the Amgen deferred revenue on a straight-line basis over the maximum term of the
non-exclusive license granted to Amgen under the collaboration and option agreement, which is four years. License revenue from GSK
was zero in each of 2008 and 2007 and $1.4 million in 2006. The license revenue from GSK was amortized on a straight-line basis over
the agreement’s initial research term, which ended in June 2006.
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Research and development expenses

     Increase  
  Years Ended December 31,   (Decrease)  
  2008   2007   2006   2008   2007  
  (In millions)  

Research and development expenses  $ 54.0  $ 53.4  $ 49.2  $0.6  $4.2 

Research and development expenses increased $0.6 million in 2008 compared to 2007, and increased $4.2 million in 2007 compared
to 2006. The slight increase in 2008 research and development expenses, compared to 2007, was primarily due to an increase of
$3.7 million related to our cardiac muscle contractility and mitotic kinesin inhibitors clinical trial programs, partially offset by decreases
of $1.7 million in personnel expenses, $0.8 million in laboratory expense and $0.5 million in facilities expenses. The increase in 2007
R&D expenses, compared to 2006, was primarily due to increases of $2.5 million related to our cardiac muscle contractility and mitotic
kinesin inhibitors clinical trial programs and preclinical outsourcing costs, $1.5 million for personnel expenses and $0.3 million for
facility expense.

From a program perspective, the increase in research and development spending in 2008, compared to 2007, was due to increases of
$4.6 million for our skeletal muscle contractility program and $1.2 million for our mitotic kinesin inhibitors development program,
$0.3 million for our smooth muscle contractility program, partially offset by the decreases in spending for $1.5 million for our cardiac
muscle contractility program, $3.0 million for our other research programs and $1.0 million for proprietary technologies. The increase in
research and development spending in 2007, compared to 2006, was due to increases of $4.3 million for our cardiac muscle contractility
program and $3.8 million for our skeletal muscle contractility program, partially offset by decreases of $0.3 million in spending for our
mitotic kinesin inhibitors development program, $1.9 million for our proprietary technologies and $1.7 million of our other research
programs.

  Years Ended December 31,   Increase (Decrease)  
  2008   2007   2006   2008   2007  
  (In millions)  

Cardiac muscle contractility  $20.9  $22.4  $18.1  $(1.5)  $ 4.3 
Skeletal muscle contractility   10.5   5.9   2.1   4.6   3.8 
Smooth muscle contractility   7.3   7.0   7.0   0.3   — 
Mitotic kinesin inhibitors   7.0   5.8   6.1   1.2   (0.3)
Proprietary technologies   2.9   3.9   5.8   (1.0)   (1.9)
All other research programs   5.4   8.4   10.1   (3.0)   (1.7)

Total research and development expenses  $ 54.0  $53.4  $49.2  $ 0.6  $ 4.2 

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, GSK reimbursed costs of $0.2 million, $0.4 million and $1.6 million,
respectively, of research and development activities relating to the discovery of mitotic kinesin inhibitors. We recorded these
reimbursements as related party revenue.

Clinical development timelines, likelihood of success and total completion costs vary significantly for each drug candidate and are
difficult to estimate. We anticipate that we will make determinations as to which early research programs to pursue and how much
funding to direct to each program on an ongoing basis in response to the scientific and clinical success of each drug candidate. The
lengthy process of seeking regulatory approvals and subsequent compliance with applicable regulations requires the expenditure of
substantial resources. Any failure by us to obtain and maintain, or any delay in obtaining, regulatory approvals could cause our research
and development expenditures to increase and, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

We expect our research and development expenditures to decrease in 2009, as a result of our restructuring in September 2008. We
expect to continue development of our drug candidate CK-1827452 for the potential treatment of heart failure and our potential drug
candidates CK-2017357 for the potential treatment of diseases and medical conditions associated with muscle weakness or wasting, and
our smooth muscle myosin inhibitor for the potential treatment of pulmonary arterial hypertension and diseases and medical conditions
associated with
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bronchoconstriction, and our Phase I clinical development of our drug candidates ispinesib and SB-743921 for the potential treatment of
cancer. For 2009, we anticipate research and development expenses to be in the range of $42.5 million to $46.5 million. Non-cash
expenses such as stock-based compensation and depreciation of approximately $4.5 million are included in the 2009 research and
development expenses.

General and administrative expenses

  Years Ended     
  December 31,   Increase (Decrease)  
  2008   2007   2006   2008   2007  
  (In millions)  

General and administrative expenses  $15.1  $16.7  $15.2  $ (1.6)  $ 1.5 

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.6 million in 2008, compared with 2007, and increased $1.5 million in 2007,
compared with 2006. The decrease in general and administrative expenses in 2008, compared to 2007, was primarily due to decreases of
$0.9 million in personnel expenses and $0.8 million in legal expenses. The increase in general and administrative expenses in 2007,
compared to 2006 expenses, was primarily due to increases in personnel expenses of $1.5 million, outside services, including audit,
accounting and tax fees, of $0.4 million, and facilities costs of $0.4 million. These increases were partially offset by a $0.8 million
decrease in legal expenses.

We expect that general and administrative expenses will increase in 2009. For 2009, we anticipate general and administrative
expenses to be in the range of $17.0 million to $18.0 million. Non-cash expenses such as stock-based compensation and depreciation of
approximately $3.0 million are included in the 2009 general and administrative expenses.

Interest and Other, Net

Components of interest and other, net are as follows:

     Increase  
  Years Ended December 31,   (Decrease)  
  2008   2007   2006   2008   2007  
  (In millions)  

Unrealized gain on put option  $ 3.4  $ —  $ —  $ 3.4  $ — 
Unrealized loss on trading securities   (3.4)   —   —   (3.4)   — 
Interest income and other income   3.2   8.3   4.7   (5.1)   3.6 
Interest expense and other expense   (0.5)   (0.7)   (0.5)   0.2   (0.2)

Interest and other, net  $ 2.7  $ 7.6  $ 4.2  $ (4.9)  $ 3.4 

Investments that we designate as trading securities are reported at fair value, with gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value
recognized in earnings and are included in interest and other, net. We classified our investments in auction rate securities (“ARS”) as
trading securities as of December 31, 2008.

In connection with the failed auctions of our ARS, which were marketed and sold by UBS AG and its affiliates, in October 2008,
we accepted a settlement with UBS AG pursuant to which UBS AG has issued to us Series C-2 Auction Rate Securities Rights (the “ARS
Rights”). The ARS Rights provide us the right to receive the par value of our ARS, i.e., the liquidation preference of the ARS plus accrued
but unpaid interest. We elected to measure the ARS Rights at fair value under SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Liabilities” (“SFAS 159”) to mitigate volatility in reported earnings due to its linkage to the ARS. As of December 31, 2008,
we recorded $3.4 million as fair value of the put option assets, classified as long-term assets on the Balance Sheet as December 31, 2008,
with a corresponding credit to interest and other, net. The ARS Rights are discussed in detail below under the heading “Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”

Interest income and other income consists primarily of interest income generated from our cash, cash equivalents and investments.
The decrease in interest and other income in 2008, compared to 2007, was due to lower average balances of cash, cash equivalents and
investments and lower market interest rates. The increase in interest
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and other income in 2007, compared to 2006, was primarily due to higher average balances of cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments.

Interest expense and other expense primarily consists of interest expense on borrowings under our equipment financing lines. The
decrease in interest and other expense in 2008, compared to 2007, was due to lower average outstanding balances, partially offset by
higher average effective interest rates. The increase in interest and other expense in 2007, compared to 2006, was due to higher average
effective interest rates and higher average outstanding balances. The total balance outstanding under our equipment financing lines was
$4.6 million at December 31, 2008 and $8.7 million at December 31, 2007, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

From August 5, 1997, our date of inception, through December 31, 2008, we funded our operations through the sale of equity
securities, equipment financings, non-equity payments from collaborators, government grants and interest income.

Our cash, cash equivalents and investments, excluding restricted cash, totaled $73.5 million at December 31, 2008, down
$66.3 million from $139.8 million at December 31, 2007. The decrease was primarily due to the use of cash to fund operations.

We have received net proceeds from the sale of equity securities of $315.3 million from August 5, 1997, the date of our inception,
through December 31, 2008, excluding sales of equity to GSK and Amgen. Included in these proceeds are $94.0 million received upon
closing of the initial public offering of our common stock in May 2004. In connection with execution of our collaboration and license
agreement in 2001, GSK made a $14.0 million equity investment in Cytokinetics. GSK made additional equity investments in
Cytokinetics in 2003 and 2004 of $3.0 million and $7.0 million, respectively.

In 2005, we entered into our first committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge pursuant to which Kingsbridge committed to
finance up to $75.0 million of capital for a three-year period. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, from time to time under this
committed equity financing facility, at our election, Kingsbridge purchased newly-issued shares of our common stock at a price between
90% and 94% of the volume weighted average price on each trading day during an eight day, forward-looking pricing period.

We received gross proceeds from draw downs and sales of our common stock to Kingsbridge under this facility as follows: 2005 —
gross proceeds of $5.7 million from the sale of 887,576 shares, before offering costs of $178,000; 2006 — gross proceeds of
$17.0 million from the sale of 2,740,735 shares; and 2007 — gross proceeds of $9.5 million from the sale of 2,075,177 shares. No
further draw downs are available to us under the 2005 Kingsbridge committed equity financing facility.

In October 2007, we entered into a new committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge, pursuant to which Kingsbridge
committed to finance up to $75.0 million of capital for a three-year period. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, from time to time
under this facility, at our election, Kingsbridge is committed to purchase newly-issued shares of our common stock at a price between
90% and 94% of the volume weighted average price on each trading day during an eight day, forward-looking pricing period. The
maximum number of shares we may issue in any pricing period is the lesser of 2.5% of our market capitalization immediately prior to the
commencement of the pricing period or $15.0 million. As part of the arrangement, we issued a warrant to Kingsbridge to purchase
230,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $7.99 per share, which represents a premium over the closing price of our common
stock on the date we entered into this facility. This warrant is exercisable beginning six months after the date of grant and for a period of
three years thereafter. Under the terms of the 2007 committed equity financing facility, the maximum number of shares we may sell is
9,779,411 (exclusive of the shares underlying the warrant) which, under the rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, is
approximately the maximum number of shares we may sell to Kingsbridge without approval of our stockholders. This limitation may
further limit the amount of proceeds we are able to obtain from this committed equity financing facility. We are not obligated to sell any of
the $75.0 million of common stock available under this committed equity financing facility and there are no minimum commitments or
minimum use penalties. This committed equity financing facility does not contain any restrictions on our operating activities, any
automatic pricing resets or any minimum market volume
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restrictions. As of December 31, 2008, we had not made any draw downs under the 2007 Kingsbridge committed equity financing
facility. As of March 11, 2009, we have received gross proceeds of $6.7 million from draw downs and sold 3,439,032 shares of our
common stock to Kingsbridge under the 2007 committed equity financing facility. Kingsbridge is not obligated to purchase any further
shares under this committed equity financing facility unless certain conditions are met, which include a minimum volume weighted
average price of $2.00 for our common stock.

In January 2006, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with certain institutional investors relating to the issuance and sale of
5,000,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $6.60 per share, for gross offering proceeds of $33.0 million. In connection with this
offering, we paid an advisory fee to a registered broker-dealer of $1.0 million. After deducting the advisory fee and the offering costs, we
received net proceeds of approximately $32.0 million from the offering.

In December 2006, we entered into stock purchase agreements with selected institutional investors relating to the issuance and sale of
5,285,715 shares of our common stock at a price of $7.00 per share, for gross offering proceeds of $37.0 million. In connection with
this offering, we paid placement agent fees to three registered broker-dealers totaling $1.9 million. After deducting the placement agent fees
and the offering costs, we received net proceeds of approximately $34.9 million from the offering.

In January 2007, we received a $42.0 million upfront license fee from Amgen in connection with our entry into our collaboration and
option agreement in December 2006. Contemporaneously with entering into this agreement, we entered into a common stock purchase
agreement with Amgen under which Amgen purchased 3,484,806 shares of our common stock at a price per share of $9.47, including a
premium of $1.99 per share, and an aggregate purchase price of approximately $33.0 million. After deducting the offering costs, we
received net proceeds of approximately $32.9 million. These shares were issued, and the related proceeds received, in January 2007.

As of December 31, 2008, we have received $54.4 million in non-equity payments from GSK and $42.0 million in non-equity
payments from Amgen.

We received zero, $1.7 million, and $4.3 million under equipment financing arrangements in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Under equipment financing arrangements, we received $23.7 million from August 5, 1997, the date of our inception, through
December 31, 2008. Interest earned on investments, excluding non-cash amortization/accretion of purchase premiums/discounts was
$2.9 million, $4.6 million, and $2.7 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Interest earned on investments, excluding non-cash
amortization/accretion of purchase premiums/discounts was $26.4 million from August 5, 1997, the date of our inception, through
December 31, 2008.

Net cash used by operating activities in 2008 was $61.3 million and primarily resulted from our net loss of $56.4 million. Deferred
revenue decreased $12.1 million in 2008 to $24.5 million at December 31, 2008 from $36.6 million at December 31, 2007. The decrease
was primarily due to the $12.2 million amortization of deferred Amgen license revenue. Net cash used in operating activities was
$3.0 million in 2007 and primarily resulted from the net loss of $48.9 million, partially offset by the receipt from Amgen in January
2007 of the $42.0 million upfront, non-refundable license and technology access fee under the collaboration and option agreement entered
into in December 2006. Net cash used in operating activities was $47.2 million in 2006 and was primarily due to our net loss of
$57.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities was $10.0 million in 2008 and primarily represented cash used in purchase of investments, net
of proceeds from the maturity of investments, of $11.9 million. Restricted cash totaled $2.8 million at December 31, 2008, down from
$5.2 million at December 31, 2007. This decrease was due to the contractual semi-annual reduction in the amount of security deposit
required by our lender. Net cash provided by investing activities was $45.5 million in 2007 and primarily represented proceeds from the
maturity of investments, net of investment purchases, of $47.0 million, partly offset by funds used to purchase property and equipment
of $2.6 million. Net cash used in investing activities was $13.7 million in 2006 and primarily represented net purchases of investments
in addition to property and equipment purchases.

Net cash used by financing activities was $3.5 million in 2008 and primarily represented principal payments of $4.1 million on our
lines of credit with General Electric Capital Corporation (“GE Capital”) to fund certain equipment, partially offset by the proceeds of
$0.5 million from our employee stock purchase plan and $0.1 million
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from the exercise of stock options. In August 2007, we secured a new line of credit with GE Capital of up to $3.0 million to finance certain
potential equipment purchases until September 30, 2008. The August 2007 equipment line of credit expired as of September 30, 2008. No
funds were borrowed under this line.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $34.7 million and $86.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Net cash provided by financing activities in 2007 primarily represented net proceeds of approximately $32.9 million from
the issuance of common stock to Amgen, less $6.9 million that was recorded as deferred revenue, and $9.5 million gross proceeds from
the issuance of stock under the 2005 Kingsbridge committed equity financing facility. Net cash provided by financing activities in 2006
was primarily due to net proceeds from our two public offerings of $66.9 million, proceeds from draw down of the 2005 Kingsbridge
committed equity financing facility of $17.0 million and proceeds from equipment financing lines of $4.3 million.

Auction Rate Securities (“ARS”).   Our long-term investments at December 31, 2008 included (at par value) $20.0 million of ARS.
These ARS were intended to provide liquidity via an auction process that resets the applicable interest rate at predetermined calendar
intervals, allowing investors to either roll over their holdings or gain immediate liquidity by selling such interests at par. As of
December 31, 2007, there were no ARS in an unrealized loss position, and there were no failed auctions associated with our ARS through
that date. Our ARS with auction reset dates prior to February 13, 2008 had successful auctions at which their interest rates were reset. In
February 2008, we liquidated $3.2 million of our ARS at par, which were classified as short-term investments as of December 31, 2007.
With the liquidity issues experienced in global credit and capital markets, these ARS have experienced multiple failed auctions since
February 2008, as the amount of securities submitted for sale has exceeded the amount of purchase orders. As a result, these affected
securities are currently not liquid.

All of our ARS are secured by student loans. Up to approximately 92% of the value of these student loans are backed by the full
faith and credit of the federal government. Additionally, all of our ARS had the highest credit rating of AAA as of December 31, 2008. In
February 2009, the rating of certain of our ARS with $4.7 million in par value was reduced to A3. All of these securities continue to pay
interest according to their stated terms (generally 120 basis points over the ninety-one day U.S. Treasury bill rate) with interest rates
resetting every 28 days. These ARS are scheduled to ultimately mature between 2036 and 2045, although we do not intend to hold them
until maturity.

The valuation of our ARS investment portfolio is subject to uncertainties that are difficult to predict. The fair value of these ARS
were estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow analysis as of December 31, 2008. The significant assumptions of this valuation model
were discount margins ranging from 375 to 410 basis points which are based on industry recognized student loan sector indices, an
additional liquidity discount of approximately 150 basis points and an estimated term to liquidity of 2 to 5 years. Other items this
analysis considers are the collateralization underlying the ARS, the creditworthiness of the counterparty, and the timing of expected future
cash flows. These ARS were also compared, when possible, to other observable market data with similar characteristics as the securities
held by us. Although the ARS continue to pay interest according to their stated terms, based on valuation models of the individual
securities, we have recognized in the Statement of Operations an unrecognized loss of approximately $3.4 million in interest and other, net
for ARS for which we have concluded that an other-than-temporary impairment exists. The fair value in long-term investments for these
ARS at December 31, 2008 was estimated $16.6 million.

In connection with the failed auctions of our ARS, which were marketed and sold by UBS AG and its affiliates, in October 2008,
we accepted a settlement with UBS AG pursuant to which UBS AG has issued to us Series C-2 Auction Rate Securities Rights (the “ARS
Rights”). The ARS Rights provide us the right to receive the par value of our ARS, i.e., the liquidation preference of the ARS plus accrued
but unpaid interest. Pursuant to the ARS Rights, we may require UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at any time between June 30,
2010 and July 2, 2012. In addition, UBS or its affiliates may sell or otherwise dispose of some or all of the ARS at its discretion at any
time prior to expiration of the ARS Rights, subject to the obligation to pay us the par value of such ARS. The ARS Rights are not
transferable, tradable or marginable, and will not be listed or quoted on any securities exchange or any electronic communications
network. As consideration for ARS Rights, we agreed to release UBS AG, UBS Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services, Inc.,
and/or their affiliates, directors, and officers from any claims
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directly or indirectly relating to the marketing and sale of the ARS, other than for consequential damages. UBS’s obligations in
connection with the ARS Rights are not secured by its assets and UBS is not required to obtain any financing to support these
obligations. UBS has disclaimed any assurance that it will have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its obligations in connection with
the ARS Rights. If UBS has insufficient funding to buy back the ARS and the auction process continues to fail, we may incur further
losses on the carrying value of the ARS.

The ARS Rights represent a firm agreement in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), which defines a firm agreement as an agreement with
an unrelated party, binding on both parties and usually legally enforceable, with the following characteristics: a) the agreement specifies
all significant terms, including the quantity to be exchanged, the fixed price and the timing of the transaction; and b) the agreement
includes a disincentive for nonperformance that is sufficiently large to make performance probable. The enforceability of the ARS Rights
results in a put option, which we recognized as a separate freestanding instrument that is accounted for separately from the ARS
investment. As of December 31, 2008, we recorded $3.4 million as fair value of the put option assets, classified as long-term assets on the
Balance Sheet as December 31, 2008, with a corresponding credit to interest and other, net in the Statement of Operations for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The put option does not meet the definition of a derivative instrument under SFAS 133. Therefore, we elected to
measure the ARS Rights at fair value under SFAS 159 to mitigate volatility in reported earnings due to its linkage to the ARS. We valued
the put option using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that included estimates of interest rates, based on data available as of
December 31, 2008, and was adjusted for any bearer risk associated with UBS’s financial ability to repurchase the ARS beginning
June 30, 2010. Any change in the assumptions on which these estimates are based or market conditions would affect the value of the ARS
Rights.

Prior to accepting the UBS settlement offer, we recorded our ARS as investments available-for-sale. We recorded unrealized gains
and losses on our available-for-sale debt securities, in accumulated other comprehensive income in the shareholders’ equity section of our
Balance Sheet. Such an unrealized loss did not reduce net income for the applicable accounting period. Simultaneously, due to the ARS
Rights granted by UBS, we made a one-time election to transfer the related ARS holdings from available-for-sale securities to trading
securities. As a result of this transfer, we recognized an other-than-temporary loss of approximately $3.4 million, and reversed the related
recognized loss that was previously recorded in other comprehensive loss on the Balance Sheet. The recording of the ARS Rights under
SFAS 159 and the recognition of the other-than-temporary impairment loss resulted in no net impact to the Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2008. We anticipate that any future changes in the fair value of the ARS Rights will be offset by the changes in
the fair value of the related ARS with no material net impact to the Statement of Operations, subject to the continued expected performance
by the financial institution of its obligations under the agreement. The ARS Rights will continue to be measured at fair value under
SFAS 159 until the earlier of our exercise of the ARS Rights, UBS’s purchase of the ARS in connection with the ARS Rights or the
maturity of the ARS underlying the ARS Rights.

In connection with the settlement, we entered into a loan agreement with UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial Services Inc. On
January 5, 2009, we borrowed approximately $12.4 million under the loan agreement, with our ARS held in accounts with UBS and its
affiliates as collateral. The loan amount was based on 75% of the fair value as assessed by UBS at the time of the loan. We have drawn
down the full amount available under the loan agreement. The amount of interest we will pay under the loan agreement is intended to equal
the amount of interest we would otherwise receive with respect to our ARS. The borrowings under the loan agreement are payable upon
demand. However, UBS Financial Services Inc. or its affiliates will provide to us alternative financing on terms and conditions
substantially the same as those under the loan agreement, unless the demand right was exercised as a result of certain specified events or
the customer relationship between UBS and us is terminated for cause by UBS. If such alternative financing cannot be established, then
a UBS affiliate will purchase the pledged ARS at par value. Proceeds of sales of our ARS will first be applied to repayment of the loan
with the balance, if any, for our account.

We continue to monitor the market for ARS and consider its impact (if any) on the fair market value of our investments. If the
market conditions deteriorate further, we may be required to record additional unrealized losses in earnings, offset by corresponding
increases in the put option. At present, if we need to access the funds that are in an illiquid state, we may not be able to do so without the
possible loss of principal until a future auction for these investments is successful, another secondary market evolves for these securities,
they are redeemed by the issuer or
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they mature. If we are unable to sell these securities in the market or they are not redeemed, we could be required to hold them to maturity.
We will continue to monitor and evaluate these investments on an ongoing basis for impairment.

Shelf Registration Statement.   In November 2008, we filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC, which was declared effective
in November 2008. The shelf registration statement allows us to issue shares of our common stock from time to time for an aggregate
initial offering price of up to $100 million. The specific terms of offerings, if any, under the shelf registration statement would be
established at the time of such offerings.

In August 2007, we secured a new line of credit with GE Capital of up to $3.0 million to finance certain equipment until
September 30, 2008. The line of credit was subject to the terms of a master security agreement between us and GE Capital, dated February
2001 and as amended on March 24, 2005 and related term sheet. As of December 31, 2008, this line of credit had expired and we had not
borrowed any funds under this line.

As of December 31, 2008, future minimum payments under lease obligations and equipment financing lines were as follows (in
thousands):

  Within   Two to   Four to   After     
  One Year  Three Years   Five Years   Five Years   Total  

Operating leases  $ 2,984  $ 5,716  $ 3,406  $ —  $ 12,106 
Equipment financing line   2,025   2,463   152   —   4,640 

Total  $ 5,009  $ 8,179  $ 3,558  $ —  $16,746 

Our long-term commitments under operating leases relate to payments under our two facility leases in South San Francisco,
California, which expire in 2011 and 2013.

Under the provisions of our amended collaboration and facilities agreement with Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Portola”), we were
obligated to reimburse Portola for certain equipment costs incurred by Portola in connection with research and related services that Portola
provided to us. We began to incur these costs when the equipment became available for use in the second quarter of 2006. Our payments
to Portola for such equipment costs, totaling $285,000, were made in eight quarterly installments commencing in the first quarter of 2006
and through the fourth quarter of 2007. No further payments are due under this agreement.

In future periods, we expect to incur substantial costs as we continue to expand our research programs and related research and
development activities. We also plan to continue to conduct clinical development of our cardiac muscle myosin activator CK-1827452 for
the potential treatment of heart failure, of ispinesib for the potential treatment of breast cancer and of SB-743921 for the potential treatment
of Hodgkin and non-Hodgkin lymphoma. We intend to continue to progress our skeletal sarcomere activator CK-2017357 and our
smooth muscle myosin inhibitor through IND-enabling studies and to conduct clinical development of these potential drug candidates. We
expect to incur significant research and development expenses as we advance the research and development of our other muscle
contractility programs through research to candidate selection.

Our future capital uses and requirements depend on numerous factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

 • the initiation, progress, timing, scope and completion of preclinical research, development and clinical trials for our drug
candidates and potential drug candidates;

 • the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatory approvals;

 • delays that may be caused by requirements of regulatory agencies;

 • Amgen’s decision with respect to its option for CK-1827452, and if Amgen exercises its option, Amgen’s decisions with regard to
funding of development and commercialization of CK-1827452 or other cardiac muscle myosin activators for the treatment of
heart failure under our collaboration;

 • GSK’s decisions with regard to future funding of development of our drug GSK-923295;

 • our level of funding for the development of current or future drug candidates;

62



Table of Contents

 • the number of drug candidates we pursue;

 • the costs involved in filing and prosecuting patent applications and enforcing or defending patent claims;

 • our ability to establish and maintain selected strategic alliances required for the development and commercialization of our
potential drugs;

 • our plans or ability to expand our drug development capabilities, including our capabilities to conduct clinical trials for our drug
candidates;

 • our plans or ability to establish sales, marketing or manufacturing capabilities and to achieve market acceptance for potential
drugs;

 • expanding and advancing our research programs;

 • hiring of additional employees and consultants;

 • expanding our facilities;

 • the acquisition of technologies, products and other business opportunities that require financial commitments; and

 • our revenues, if any, from successful development of our drug candidates and commercialization of potential drugs.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, interest earned on investments, proceeds from our
loan with UBS, and the proceeds from the 2007 Kingsbridge committed equity financing facility will be sufficient to meet our projected
operating requirements for at least the next 12 months. While Amgen may choose to exercise its option for an exclusive license to develop
and commercialize CK-1827452, there is no certainty this will occur.

If, at any time, our prospects for internally financing our research and development programs decline, we may decide to reduce
research and development expenses by delaying, discontinuing or reducing our funding of development of one or more of our drug
candidates or potential drug candidates or of other research and development programs. Alternatively, we might raise funds through
public or private financings, strategic relationships or other arrangements. There can be no assurance that funding, if needed, will be
available on attractive terms, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders and debt financing,
if available, may involve restrictive covenants. Similarly, financing obtained through future strategic alliances may require us to forego
certain commercialization and other rights to our drug candidates. Our failure to raise capital as and when needed could have a negative
impact on our financial condition and our ability to pursue our business strategy.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2008, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities
often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-
balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do not engage in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts. Therefore, we are not materially exposed to financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we
had engaged in these relationships. We do not have relationships or transactions with persons or entities that derive benefits from their
non-independent relationship with us or our related parties.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and expenses and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We review our estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience
and on various other
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assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. While our significant accounting policies are described in more detail in the notes to our financial statements
included in this Form 10-K, we believe the following accounting policies to be critical to the judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our financial statements.

Investments

Available-for-sale and trading investments.   Our investments consist of ARS, municipal and government agency bonds,
commercial paper, U.S. government treasury securities, and money market funds. We designated all investments, except for ARS held by
UBS, as available-for-sale and are therefore reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we reclassified ARS held by UBS from available-for-sale to trading
securities. Investments that we designate as trading assets are reported at fair value, with gains or losses resulting from changes in fair
value recognized in earnings. See “Notes to Financial Statements — Note 3 — Cash Equivalents, Investments and Fair Value
Measurements” for further detailed discussion. Investments with original maturities greater than approximately three months and
remaining maturities less than one year are classified as short-term investments. Investments with remaining maturities greater than one
year are classified as long-term investments. In addition, we classify investments as short-term or long-term based upon whether such
assets are reasonably expected to be realized in cash or sold or consumed during the normal operating cycle of the business.

Other-than-temporary impairment.  All of our available-for-sale investments are subject to a periodic impairment review. We
recognize an impairment charge when a decline in the fair value of our investments below the cost basis is judged to be
other-than-temporary. Factors considered by management in assessing whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred include:
the nature of the investment; whether the decline in fair value is attributable to specific adverse conditions affecting the investment; the
financial condition of the investee; the severity and the duration of the impairment; and whether we have the intent and ability to hold the
investment to maturity. When we determine that an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred, the investment is written down to its
market value at the end of the period in which we determine that an other-than-temporary decline had occurred. The amortized cost of debt
securities in this category is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization is included
in interest income. Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary, if any, on available-for-sale
securities are included in other income or expense. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as available-for-sale are included in interest and other, net.

The par value of our investments in ARS totaled $20.0 million at December 31, 2008 and $23.2 million at December 31, 2007. We
determined that no impairment of our investments existed at December 31, 2007. Due to the resetting variable rates of these securities, their
fair value generally approximated cost until February 2008. There were no realized gains or losses from these investments during the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006. There had been no failed auctions on any of our ARS through December 31, 2007 and we
deemed that no impairment existed as of that date. The unrealized loss on these investments was zero at December 31, 2007. At
December 31, 2007, we classified $20.0 million of its investment in ARS as long-term due to the uncertainty as to whether such securities
will be available for current operations. At December 31, 2008, we classified our investment in ARS as long-term investment trading
securities, where unrealized gains and losses are recorded in current period earnings.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.” SAB No. 104
requires that certain criteria must be met before revenue can be recognized: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered; the fee is fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured. Determination of
whether persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and whether delivery has occurred or services have been rendered are based on
management’s judgments regarding the fixed nature of the fee charged for research performed and milestones met, and the collectability of
those fees. Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria are not met for certain future transactions, revenue
recognized for any reporting period could be adversely affected.
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Research and development revenues, which are earned under agreements with third parties for contract research and development
activities, may include non-refundable license fees, research and development funding, cost reimbursements and contingent milestones
and royalties. Our revenue arrangements with multiple elements are evaluated under Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue
No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” and are divided into separate units of accounting if certain criteria are
met, including whether the delivered element has stand-alone value to the customer and whether there is objective and reliable evidence of
the fair value of the undelivered items. The consideration we receive is allocated among the separate units based on their respective fair
values, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applied to each of the separate units. Non-refundable license fees are recognized
as revenue as we perform under the applicable agreement. Where the level of effort is relatively consistent over the performance period, we
recognize total fixed or determined revenue on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of expected performance.

We recognize milestone payments as revenue upon achievement of the milestone, provided the milestone payment is non-refundable,
substantive effort and risk is involved in achieving the milestone and the amount of the milestone is reasonable in relation to the effort
expended or risk associated with the achievement of the milestone. If these conditions are not met, we defer the milestone payment and
recognize it as revenue over the estimated period of performance under the contract as we complete our performance obligations.

Research and development revenues and cost reimbursements are based upon negotiated rates for our FTEs and actual out-of-pocket
costs. FTE rates are intended to approximate our anticipated costs. Any amounts received in advance of performance are recorded as
deferred revenue. None of the revenues recognized to date are refundable if the relevant research effort is not successful. In revenue
arrangements in which both parties make payments to each other, we evaluate the payments in accordance with the provisions of EITF
Issue No. 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)” to
determine whether payments made by us will be recognized as a reduction of revenue or as expense. In accordance with EITF Issue
No. 01-9, revenue we recognize may be reduced by payments made to the other party under the arrangement unless we receive a separate
and identifiable benefit in exchange for the payments and we can reasonably estimate the fair value of the benefit received. The application
of EITF Issue No. 01-9 has not impacted us.

Preclinical Study and Clinical Trial Accruals

A substantial portion of our preclinical studies and all of our clinical trials have been performed by third-party contract research
organizations (“CROs”), and other vendors. For preclinical studies, the significant factors used in estimating accruals include the
percentage of work completed to date and contract milestones achieved. For clinical trial expenses, the significant factors used in
estimating accruals include the number of patients enrolled, duration of enrollment and percentage of work completed to date. We monitor
patient enrollment levels and related activities to the extent possible through internal reviews, correspondence and status meetings with
CROs and review of contractual terms. Our estimates are dependent on the timeliness and accuracy of data provided by our CROs and
other vendors. If we have incomplete or inaccurate data, we may under-or overestimate activity levels associated with various studies or
clinical trials at a given point in time. In this event, we could record adjustments to research and development expenses in future periods
when the actual activity levels become known. No material adjustments to preclinical study and clinical trial expenses have been
recognized to date.

Stock-Based Compensation

We apply the provisions of SFAS 123R, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ,” which establishes accounting for share-
based payment awards made to employees and directors including employee stock options and employee stock purchases. Under
SFAS No. 123R, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the calculated fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period, generally the vesting period of the award. We
elected the modified prospective transition method for awards granted subsequent to April 29, 2004, the date of our initial public offering,
and the prospective transition method for awards granted prior to our initial public offering. Prior periods are not revised for comparative
purposes under either transition method. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation to employees in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations. We also followed the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
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Compensation,” and complied with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure: an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.”

We account for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R and EITF Issue
No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with
Selling Goods, or Services.”

As required under the accounting rules, we review our valuation assumptions at each grant date and, as a result, from time to time
we will likely change the valuation assumptions we use to value stock based awards granted in future periods. The assumptions used in
calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards represent management’s best estimates at the time, but these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if conditions change and we use different assumptions,
our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected
forfeiture rate and recognize expense only for those shares expected to vest. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our
estimate, the stock-based compensation expense could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period.

Income taxes

We record the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and amounts
reported in the financial statements and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. We have recorded a full valuation allowance to
reduce our deferred tax asset to zero, because we believe that, based upon a number of factors, it is more likely than not that the deferred
tax asset will not be realized. If we were to determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to
the deferred tax asset would increase net income in the period such determination was made.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure,
present, and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, tax
positions must initially be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon
examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position
and relevant facts. We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 was recorded net in deferred tax
assets, which resulted in no FIN 48 liability on the Balance Sheet. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption
was $3.1 million. See “Notes to Financial Statements, Note 11 — Income Taxes” for additional information. As of December 31, 2008,
our unrecognized tax benefits were $4.2 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2007, the EITF issued a consensus on EITF Issue No. 07-01, “Accounting for Collaboration Arrangements Related
to the Development and Commercialization of Intellectual Property,” which is focused on how the parties to a collaborative agreement
should account for costs incurred and revenue generated on sales to third parties, how shared payments pursuant to a collaboration
agreement should be presented in the income statement and certain related disclosure questions. EITF Issue No. 07-01 is to be applied
retrospectively for collaboration arrangements in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We will adopt EITF Issue No. 07-1 in
the first quarter of 2009 and currently do not believe the adoption of EITF Issue No. 07-1 will have a material impact on its financial
position or results of operations.

We adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) and SFAS No. 157-3, “Determining the Value of a
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active” (“SFAS 157-3”). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157-3 expanded on the
implementation guidance in SFAS 157 for estimating the present value of future cash flows for some hard-to-value financial instruments
such as auction rate securities. The adoption of SFAS 157 and SFAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on our results of operations
and financial position.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB
Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements
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for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13” and FSP 157-2, “ Effective Date of FASB Statement
No. 157 .” FSP 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to remove certain leasing transactions from its scope, and was effective upon initial adoption
of SFAS 157. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items
that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until the beginning of the
first quarter of 2009. The adoption of SFAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on our financial statements when it is applied
to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis, beginning in the first quarter
of 2009.

We adopted SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-Including an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 permits companies to choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value (the
“fair value option”). If the fair value option is elected, any upfront costs and fees related to the item, e.g., debt issue costs, must be
recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred. The fair value option election is irrevocable and may generally be made on an
instrument-by-instrument  basis, even if a company has similar instruments that it elects not to fair value. At the adoption date, unrealized
gains and losses on existing items for which fair value has been elected are reported as a cumulative adjustment to beginning retained
earnings. The adoption of SFAS 159 did not have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position as the fair value
option was not elected for any of our financial assets or financial liabilities at the date of adoption, nor for any of our financial assets and
liabilities transacted in the year ended December 31, 2008 except the put option resulting from UBS’s ARS right offering. See “Notes to
Financial Statements — Note 3, Cash Equivalents, Investments and Fair Value Measurements.”

We adopted EITF Issue No. 07-3, “Accounting for Non-Refundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services to Be Used in
Future Research and Development Activities.” EITF Issue No. 07-3 states that non-refundable advance payments for future research
and development activities should be deferred and recognized as an expense as the goods are delivered or the related services are performed.
Entities should then continue to evaluate whether they expect the goods to be delivered or services to be rendered. If an entity does not
expect the goods to be delivered or services to be rendered, the capitalized advance payment should be charged to expense. The adoption of
EITF Issue No. 07-3 did not have a material effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate and Market Risk

Our exposure to market risk is limited to interest rate sensitivity, which is affected by changes in the general level of U.S. interest
rates, particularly because the majority of our investments are in short-term debt securities. The primary objective of our investment
activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the income we receive without significantly increasing risk. We are
exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and changes in the market values of our investments. Our interest income is sensitive to
changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates. Our exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our
investment portfolio. We have not used derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio. We invest a portion of our excess cash
in debt instruments of high-quality issuers and, by policy, limit the amount of credit exposure in any one issuer and investment class. We
protect and preserve our invested funds by attempting to limit default, market and reinvestment risk. Investments in both fixed-rate and
floating-rate interest-earning instruments carry a degree of interest rate risk. Fixed-rate securities may have their fair market value
adversely impacted due to a rise in interest rates, while floating-rate securities may produce less income than expected if interest rates fall.
Due in part to these factors, our future investment income may fall short of expectations due to changes in interest rates.

To minimize risk, we maintain our portfolio of cash and cash equivalents and short- and long-term investments in a variety of
interest-bearing instruments, including U.S. government and agency securities, high grade municipal and U.S. bonds and money market
funds. Our investment portfolio of short-term investments is subject to interest rate risk, and will fall in value if market interest rates
increase.

At December 31, 2008, we held approximately $16.6 million of ARS classified as long-term investments, whose underlying assets
are student loans which are substantially backed by the federal government. In February 2008, auctions began to fail for these securities
and each auction since then has failed. Consequently, the
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investments are not currently liquid and we will not be able to access these funds until a future auction of these investments is successful,
a buyer is found outside of the auction process, they are redeemed by the issuers or the investments mature. As a result, our ability to
liquidate our investment and fully recover the carrying value of our investment in the near term may be limited or not exist. As of
December 31, 2008, all our ARS were AAA-rated, the highest rating by a rating agency. In February 2009, the rating for certain of our
ARS with a par value of $4.7 million was reduced to A3. At December 31, 2008, our investment advisors provided a valuation for the
ARS investments utilizing a discounted cash flow approach to arrive at the valuation of our ARS, which was corroborated by a separate
and comparable discounted cash flow analysis we prepared. Based on this Level 3 valuation defined by SFAS 157, we valued the ARS
investments at $16.6 million, which represents a decline in value of $3.4 million from par. The assumptions used in preparing the
discounted cash flow model include estimates of, based on data available as of December 31, 2008, interest rates, timing and amount of
cash flows, credit and liquidity premiums, and expected holding periods of the ARS. These assumptions are volatile and subject to
change as the underlying sources of these assumptions and market conditions change, thereby could result in significant changes to the
fair value of our ARS.

In connection with the failed auctions of our ARS, which were marketed and sold by UBS AG and its affiliates, in October 2008,
we accepted a settlement with UBS AG pursuant to which UBS AG has issued to us the ARS Rights. The ARS Rights provide us the
right to receive the par value of our ARS, i.e., the liquidation preference of the ARS plus accrued but unpaid interest. Pursuant to the ARS
Rights, we may require UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at any time between June 30, 2010 and July 2, 2012. In addition, UBS or
its affiliates may sell or otherwise dispose of some or all of the ARS at its discretion at any time prior to expiration of the ARS Rights,
subject to the obligation to pay us the par value of such ARS. The ARS Rights are not transferable, tradable or marginable, and will not
be listed or quoted on any securities exchange or any electronic communications network. As consideration for ARS Rights, we agreed to
release UBS AG, UBS Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services, Inc., and/or their affiliates, directors, and officers from any claims
directly or indirectly relating to the marketing and sale of the ARS, other than for consequential damages. UBS’s obligations in connection
with the ARS Rights are not secured by its assets and do not require UBS to obtain any financing to support these obligations. UBS has
disclaimed any assurance that it will have sufficient financial resources to satisfy its obligations in connection with the ARS Rights. If
UBS has insufficient funding to purchase the ARS and the auction process continues to fail, we may incur further losses on the carrying
value of the ARS. We valued the put option using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that included estimates of interest rates, based on
data available as of December 31, 2008, and was adjusted for any bearer risk associated with UBS’s financial ability to repurchase the
ARS beginning June 30, 2010. Any change in these assumptions and market conditions would affect the value of the ARS Rights. A
decline in fair value of the ARS would be largely offset by an increase in fair value of the ARS Rights.

Prior to accepting the UBS offer, we recorded our ARS as investments available-for-sale. We recorded unrealized gains and losses on
our available-for-sale debt securities, in accumulated other comprehensive income in the shareholders’ equity section of our Balance Sheet.
Such an unrealized loss did not reduce net income for the applicable accounting period. Simultaneously, due to the ARS Rights granted by
UBS, we made a one-time election to transfer the related ARS holdings from available-for-sale securities to trading securities. As a result of
this transfer, we recognized an other-than-temporary loss of approximately $3.4 million, and reversed the related temporary valuation
allowance that was previously recorded in other comprehensive loss on the Balance Sheet. The recording of the ARS Rights under
SFAS 159 and the recognition of the other-than-temporary impairment loss resulted in no net impact to the Statement of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2008. We anticipate that any future changes in the fair value of the ARS Rights will be offset by the changes in
the fair value of the related ARS with no material net impact to the Statement of Operations, subject to UBS’s continued expected
performance of its obligations in connection with the ARS Rights. The ARS Rights will continue to be measured at fair value under
SFAS 159 until the earlier of our exercise of the ARS Rights, UBS’s purchase of the ARS in connection with the ARS Rights, or the
maturity of the ARS underlying the ARS Rights.

Our cash and cash equivalents are invested in highly liquid securities with original maturities of three months or less at the time of
purchase. Consequently, we do not consider our cash and cash equivalents to be subject to significant interest rate risk and have therefore
excluded them from the table below. On the liability side, our

68



Table of Contents

equipment financing lines carry fixed interest rates and therefore also may be subject to changes in fair value if market interest rates
fluctuate. We do not have any foreign currency or derivative financial instruments.

The table below presents the principal amounts and weighted average interest rates by year of maturity for our investment portfolio,
except ARS, and equipment financing lines (dollars in thousands):

                       Fair Value at  
                       December 31,  
  2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   Beyond 2013   Total   2008  

Assets:                                 
Short-term investments  $15,048   —   —   —   —   —  $15,048  $ 15,048 
Average interest rate   0.96%  —   —   —   —   —   0.96%    
Liabilities:                                 
Equipment financing lines  $ 2,025  $1,630  $ 833  $ 152   —   —  $ 4,640  $ 4,205 
Average interest rate   6.39%  6.82%  7.31%  7.25%  —   —   6.73%    

6 9



Table of Contents

ITEM 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

  Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   71 
Balance Sheets   72 
Statements of Operations   73 
Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)   74 
Statements of Cash Flows   77 
Notes to Financial Statements   78 

70



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cytokinetics, Incorporated:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statement of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cytokinetics, Incorporated (a development stage company) at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2008 and cumulatively, for the period from August 5, 1997 (date of inception) to December 31, 2008 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/  PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
San Jose, CA
March 12, 2009
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

BALANCE SHEETS

  December 31,  
  2008   2007  

  
(In thousands, except share

and per share data)  
ASSETS

Current assets:         
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 41,819  $ 116,564 
Short-term investments   15,048   3,175 
Related party accounts receivable   221   87 
Related party notes receivable — short-term portion   40   127 
Prepaid and other current assets   1,782   2,063 

Total current assets   58,910   122,016 
Investments in auction rate securities   16,636   20,025 
Investment put option   3,389   — 
Property and equipment, net   5,087   7,728 
Assets held for sale   325   — 
Related party notes receivable — long-term portion   9   99 
Restricted cash   2,750   5,167 
Other assets   348   335 

Total assets  $ 87,454  $ 155,370 
 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 1,382  $ 1,584 
Accrued liabilities   7,174   8,558 
Related party payables and accrued liabilities   —   22 
Short-term portion of equipment financing lines   2,025   4,050 
Short-term portion of deferred revenue   12,296   12,234 

Total current liabilities   22,877   26,448 
Long-term portion of equipment financing lines   2,615   4,639 
Long-term portion of deferred revenue   12,196   24,367 

Total liabilities   37,688   55,454 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)         
Stockholders’ equity:         

Convertible preferred stock:         
Authorized: 10,000,000 shares in 2008 and 2007         
Issued and outstanding: zero shares in 2008 and 2007   —   — 

Common stock, $0.001 par value:         
Authorized: 170,000,000 shares in 2008 and 120,000,000 shares in 2007         
Issued and outstanding: 49,939,069 shares in 2008 and 49,282,362 shares in 2007   50   49 

Additional paid-in capital   385,605   379,730 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   (329)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   18   (1)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage   (335,907)   (279,533)

Total stockholders’ equity   49,766   99,916 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 87,454  $ 155,370 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

           Period from  
           August 5, 1997  
           (Date of  
           Inception) to  
  Years Ended December 31,   December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006   2008  
  (In thousands, except per share data)  

Revenues:                 
Research and development revenues from related party  $ 186  $ 1,388  $ 1,622  $ 40,439 
Research and development, grant and other revenues   —   —   4   2,955 
License revenues from related parties   12,234   12,234   1,501   38,568 

Total revenues   12,420   13,622   3,127   81,962 
Operating expenses:                 

Research and development(1)   53,950   53,388   49,225   337,438 
General and administrative(1)   15,076   16,721   15,240   100,537 
Restructuring charges   2,473   —   —   2,473 

Total operating expenses   71,499   70,109   64,465   440,448 
Operating loss   (59,079)   (56,487)   (61,338)   (358,486)
Interest and other, net   2,705   7,593   4,223   22,579 
Net loss  $(56,374)  $(48,894)  $(57,115)  $ (335,907)

Net loss per common share — basic and diluted  $ (1.14)  $ (1.03)  $ (1.56)     
Weighted-average number of shares used in computing net loss per common share —

basic and diluted   49,392   47,590   36,618     
                

(1) Includes the following stock-based compensation charges:             
Research and development  $ 2,794  $ 2,932  $ 2,532  $ 11,106 
General and administrative   2,812   2,621   2,111   9,247 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

              Accumulated   Deficit     
              Other   Accumulated     
        Additional   Deferred   Comprehensive   During the   Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-In   Stock-Based   Income   Development   Stockholders’  
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Compensation   (Loss)   Stage   Equity (Deficit)  
  (In thousands, except share and per share data)  

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at $0.015
per share   147,625  $ —  $ 2  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 2 

Issuance of common stock to founders at $0.015 per share in exchange for
cash in January 1998   563,054   1   7   —   —   —   8  

Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (2,015)   (2,015)

Balances, December 31, 1998   710,679   1   9   —   —   (2,015)   (2,005)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.015-$0.58 per share   287,500   —   69   —   —   —   69 
Issuance of warrants, valued using Black-Scholes model   —   —   41   —   —   —   41 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   237   (237)   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   123   —   —   123 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments   —   —   —   —   (8)   —   (8)
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (7,341)   (7,341)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (7,349)

Balances, December 31, 1999   998,179   1   356   (114)   (8)   (9,356)   (9,121)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.015-$0.58 per share   731,661   1   194   —   —   —   195 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   93   (93)   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   101   —   —   101 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments   —   —   —   —   86   —   86 
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (13,079)   (13,079)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (12,993)

Balances, December 31, 2000   1,729,840   2   643   (106)   7 8   (22,435)   (21,818)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.015-$1.20 per share   102,480   —   56   —   —   —   56 
Repurchase of common stock   (33,334)   —   (19)   —   —   —   (19)
Compensation expense for acceleration of options   —   —   20   —   —   —   20 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   45   (45)   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   93   —   —   93 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments   —   —   —   —   190   —   190 
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (15,874)   (15,874)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (15,684)

Balances, December 31, 2001   1,798,986   2   745   (58)   268   (38,309)   (37,352)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.015-$1.20 per share   131,189   —   68   —   —   —   68 
Repurchase of common stock   (3,579)   —   (2)   —   —   —   (2)
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   (2)   2   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred compensation   —   —   —   6   —   —   6 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments   —   —   —   —   (228)   —   (228)
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (23,080)   (23,080)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (23,308)
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) — (Continued)

              Accumulated   Deficit     
              Other   Accumulated     
        Additional   Deferred   Comprehensive   During the   Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-In   Stock-Based   Income   Development   Stockholders’  
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Compensation   (Loss)   Stage   Equity (Deficit)  
  (In thousands, except share and per share data)  

Balances, December 31, 2002   1,926,596   2  $ 809  $ (50)  $ 40  $ (61,389)  $ (60,588)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.20-$1.20 per share   380,662   —   310   —   —   —   310 
Stock-based compensation   —   —   158   —   —   —   158 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   4,369   (4,369)   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   768   —   —   768 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments   —   —   —   —   6   —   6 
Net loss   —   —   —   —   —   (32,685)   (32,685)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (32,679)

Balances, December 31, 2003   2,307,258   2   5,646   (3,651)   46   (94,074)   (92,031)
Issuance of common stock upon initial public offering at $13.00 per

share, net of issuance costs of $9,151   7,935,000   8    93,996   —   —   —   94,004 
Issuance of common stock to related party for $13.00 per share   538,461   1   6,999   —   —   —   7,000 
Issuance of common stock to related party   37,482   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock upon initial public

offering   17,062,145   17   133,155   —   —   —   133,172 
Issuance of common stock upon cashless exercise of warrants   115,358   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.20-$6.50 per share   404,618   —   430   —   —   —   430 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to ESPP at $8.03 per share   69,399   —   557   —   —   —   557 
Stock-based compensation       —   278   —   —   —   278 
Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   2,198   (2,198)   —   —   — 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   1,598   —   —   1,598 
Repurchase of unvested stock   (16,548)   —   (20)   —   —   —   (20)
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments           —   —   (234)   —   (234)
Net loss               —   —   (37,198)   (37,198)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (37,432)

Balances, December 31, 2004   28,453,173   2 8   243,239   (4,251)   (188)   (131,272)   107,556 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.58-$7.10 per share   196,703   1   370   —   —   —   371 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to ESPP at $4.43 per share   179,520   —   763   —   —   —   763 
Issuance of common stock upon cashless exercise of warrants   14,532   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Issuance of common stock upon drawdown of committed equity

financing facility at $6.13-$7.35 per share, net of issuance costs of $178   887,576   1   5,546   —   —   —   5,547 
Stock-based compensation   —   —   67   —   —   —   67 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation, net of cancellations   —   —   (439)   1,799   —   —   1,360 
Repurchase of unvested stock   (20,609)   —   (25)   —   —   —   (25)
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments           —   —   174   —   174 
Net loss               —   —   (42,252)   (42,252)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (42,078)
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) — (Continued)

              Accumulated   Deficit     
              Other   Accumulated     
        Additional   Deferred   Comprehensive   During the   Total  
  Common Stock   Paid-In   Stock-Based   Income   Development   Stockholders’  
  Shares   Amount   Capital   Compensation   (Loss)   Stage   Equity (Deficit)  
  (In thousands, except share and per share data)  

Balances, December 31, 2005   29,710,895  $ 30  $ 249,521  $ (2,452)  $ (14)  $ (173,524)  $ 73,561 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.20-$7.10 per share   354,502   —   559   —   —   —   559 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to ESPP at a weighted price of

$4.43 per share   193,248   —   856   —   —   —   856 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to registered direct offerings at

$6.60 and $7.00 per share, net of issuance costs of $3,083   10,285,715   10   66,907   —   —   —   66,917 
Issuance of common stock upon drawdown of committed equity

financing facility at $5.53-$7.02 per share   2,740,735   3   16,954   —   —   —   16,957 
Stock-based compensation   —   —   3,421   —   —   —   3,421 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation, net of cancellations   —   —   (138)   1,358   —   —   1,220 
Repurchase of unvested stock   (1,537)   —   (2)   —   —   —   (2)
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments           —   —   (61)   —   (61)
Net loss               —   —   (57,115)   (57,115)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (57,176)

Balances, December 31, 2006   43,283,558   43   338,078   (1,094)   (75)   (230,639)   106,313 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.58-$7.10 per share   259,054   1   511   —   —   —   512 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to ESPP at a weighted price of

$4.49 per share   179,835   —   807   —   —   —   807 
Issuance of common stock upon drawdown of committed equity

financing facility at $4.43-$4.81 per share   2,075,177   2   9,540   —   —   —   9,542 
Issuance of common stock to related party for $9.47 per share, net of

issuance costs of $57   3,484,806   3   26,006   —   —   —   26,009 
Stock-based compensation   —   —   4,833   —   —   —   4,833 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation, net of cancellations   —   —   (45)   765   —   —   720 
Repurchase of unvested stock   (68)   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments           —   —   74   —   74 
Net loss               —   —   (48,894)   (48,894)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (48,820)

Balances, December 31, 2007   49,282,362   49   379,730   (329)   (1)   (279,533)   99,916 
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options for cash at

$0.58-$3.37 per share   95,796   —   131   —   —   —   131 
Issuance of common stock pursuant to ESPP at a weighted price of

$2.85 per share   164,451   —   468   —   —   —   468 
Issuance of restricted stock at a price of $0.001 per share   397,960   1   (1)   —   —   —   — 
Cancellation of restricted stock   (1,500)   —   —   —   —   —   — 
Stock-based compensation   —   —   5,277   —   —   —   5,277 
Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation, net of cancellations   —   —   —   329   —   —   329 
Components of comprehensive loss:                             

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on investments           —   —   19   —   19 
Net loss               —   —   (56,374)   (56,374)

Total comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (56,355)

Balances, December 31, 2008   49,939,069  $ 50  $ 385,605  $ —  $ 1 8  $ (335,907)  $ 49,766 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

           Period from  
           August 5,  
           1997  
           (Date of  
           Inception) to  
  Years Ended December 31,   December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006   2008  
     (In thousands)     

Cash flows from operating activities:                 
Net loss  $(56,374)  $(48,894)  $ (57,115)  $ (335,907)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:                 

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment   2,456   2,829   2,927   23,445 
(Gain) loss on disposal of equipment   3   13   (8)   351 
Non-cash restructuring expenses   476   —   —   476 
Non-cash interest expense   77   92   92   504 
Non-cash forgiveness of loan to officer   51   116   107   415 
Stock-based compensation   5,606   5,553   4,643   20,353 
Other non-cash expenses   7   7   —   182 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                 

Related party accounts receivable   (145)   41,959   (41,515)   (572)
Prepaid and other assets   192   (275)   413   (2,158)
Accounts payable   (6)   (969)   852   1,388 
Accrued liabilities   (1,540)   2,005   2,419   6,982 
Related party payables and accrued liabilities   (22)   (142)   (485)   — 
Deferred revenue   (12,109)   (5,299)   40,500   24,492 

Net cash used in operating activities   (61,328)   (3,005)   (47,170)   (260,049)
Cash flows from investing activities:                 
Purchases of investments   (24,462)   (51,700)   (143,046)   (669,365)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments   12,607   98,729   135,527   634,393 
Purchases of property and equipment   (658)   (2,563)   (5,370)   (29,550)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment   —   —   6   50 
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash   2,417   867   (862)   (2,750)
Issuance of related party notes receivable   —   —   —   (1,146)
Proceeds from repayments of notes receivable   130   129   63   829 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities   (9,966)   45,462   (13,682)   (67,539)
Cash flows from financing activities:                 
Proceeds from initial public offering, sale of common stock to related party and public offerings, net

of issuance costs   —   26,012   66,917   193,934 
Proceeds from draw down of Committed Equity Financing Facility, net of issuance costs   —   9,542   16,957   32,046 
Proceeds from other issuances of common stock   599   1,312   1,378   6,157 
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs   —   —   —   133,172 
Repurchase of common stock   —   —   (2)   (68)
Proceeds from equipment financing lines   —   1,742   4,347   23,696 
Repayment of equipment financing lines   (4,050)   (3,888)   (2,873)   (19,530)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities   (3,451)   34,720   86,724   369,407 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (74,745)   77,177   25,872   41,819 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period   116,564   39,387   13,515   — 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period  $ 41,819  $ 116,564  $ 39,387  $ 41,819 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Cytokinetics, Incorporated (the “Company”, “we” or “our”) was incorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware on August 5,
1997. The Company is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery and development of novel small molecule
therapeutics that modulate muscle function for the potential treatment of serious diseases and medical conditions. The Company is a
development stage enterprise and has been primarily engaged in conducting research, developing drug candidates and technologies, and
raising capital.

On April 26, 2004 the Company effected a one for two reverse stock split. All share and per share amounts for all periods presented
in the accompanying financial statements have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the reverse stock split. The Company’s
registration statement for its initial public offering (“IPO”) was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on
April 29, 2004. The Company’s common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ National Market, now the NASDAQ Global
Market, on April 29, 2004 under the trading symbol “CYTK”.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements contemplate the conduct of the Company’s operations in the normal course of
business. The Company has incurred net losses since inception and there can be no assurance that the Company will attain profitability.
The Company had a net loss of $56.4 million and net cash outflows from operations of $61.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2008 and an accumulated deficit of approximately $335.9 million as of December 31, 2008. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments declined from $119.7 million at December 31, 2007 to $56.9 million at December 31, 2008. If the Company’s losses and
net cash outflows continue, and sufficient capital is not available, its liquidity may be impaired.

The Company has funded its operations primarily through sales of common stock and convertible preferred stock, contract
payments under its collaboration agreements, debt financing arrangements, government grants and interest income. Until it achieves
profitable operations, the Company intends to continue to fund operations through the additional sale of equity securities, payments from
strategic collaborations, government grant awards and debt financing. Based on the current status of our development plans, the
Company believes that its existing cash, cash equivalents and short term investments at December 31, 2008 coupled with the additional
capital received in January and February of 2009 (see Note 14) will be sufficient to fund its cash requirements for at least the next
12 months. If, at any time, the Company’s prospects for financing its research and development programs decline, the Company may
decide to reduce research and development expenses by delaying, discontinuing or reducing its funding of development of one or more of
our drug candidates or potential drug candidates. Alternatively, the Company might raise funds through public or private financings,
strategic relationships or other arrangements. Such funding, if needed, may not be available on favorable terms, or at all.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Other Risks and Uncertainties

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of risk consist principally of cash and cash
equivalents, investments and accounts receivable. The Company’s cash, cash equivalents and investments are invested in deposits with
four major financial institutions in the U.S. Deposits in these banks may exceed the
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amount of insurance provided on such deposits. The Company has not experienced any realized losses on its deposits of cash, cash
equivalents or investments.

The recent economic turmoil in the United States, the continuing credit crisis that has affected worldwide financial markets, the
extraordinary volatility in the stock markets and other current negative macroeconomic indicators, such as the global recession, could
negatively impact the Company’s ability to raise the funds necessary to support its business and may materially adversely affect its
business, operating results and financial condition.

The Company performs an ongoing credit evaluation of its strategic partners’ financial conditions and generally does not require
collateral to secure accounts receivable from its strategic partners. The Company’s exposure to credit risk associated with non-payment is
affected principally by conditions or occurrences within Amgen Inc. (“Amgen”) and GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK”), its primary strategic
partners. Approximately 99%, 90%, and less than 10% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, were derived from Amgen. Accounts receivable due from Amgen was $130,000 at December 31, 2008 and zero at
December 31, 2007, and was included in related party accounts receivable. Approximately 1%, 10% and 97% of revenues for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were derived from GSK. Accounts receivable from GSK totaled $89,000 at
December 31, 2008 and $19,000 at December 31, 2007 and was included in related party accounts receivable. See also Note 5, “Related
Party Transactions,” below regarding collaboration agreements with Amgen and GSK.

Drug candidates developed by the Company may require approvals or clearances from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
(“FDA”) or international regulatory agencies prior to commercialized sales. There can be no assurance that the Company’s drug
candidates will receive any of the required approvals or clearances. If the Company were to be denied approval or clearance or any such
approval or clearance were to be delayed, it would have a material adverse impact on the Company.

The Company’s operations and employees are located in the United States. In the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
all of the Company’s revenues were received from entities located in the United States or from United States affiliates of foreign
corporations.

Restricted Cash

In accordance with the terms of the Company’s line of credit agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation (“GE Capital”),
the Company is obligated to maintain a certificate of deposit with the lender. The balance of the certificate of deposit was $2.8 million and
$5.2 million at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and was classified as restricted cash.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash
equivalents.

Investments

Available-for-sale and trading investments.   The Company’s investments consist of auction rate securities (“ARS”),
U.S. municipal and government agency bonds, commercial paper, U.S. government treasury securities, and money market funds. The
Company designated all investments, except for ARS held by UBS AG (“UBS”), as available-for-sale and are therefore reported at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008,
the Company reclassified ARS held by UBS from available-for-sale to trading securities. Investments that the Company designates as
trading assets are reported at fair value, with gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value recognized in net loss. See Note 3 for
further detailed discussion. Investments with original maturities greater than approximately three months and remaining
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maturities less than one year are classified as short-term investments. Investments with remaining maturities greater than one year are
classified as long-term investments. The Company classifies investments as short-term or long-term based upon whether such assets are
reasonably expected to be realized in cash or sold or consumed during the normal operating cycle of the business.

Other-than-temporary impairment.  All of the Company’s available-for-sale investments are subject to a periodic impairment
review. The Company recognizes an impairment charge when a decline in the fair value of its investments below the cost basis is judged
to be other-than-temporary. Factors considered by management in assessing whether an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred
include: the nature of the investment; whether the decline in fair value is attributable to specific adverse conditions affecting the
investment; the financial condition of the investee; the severity and the duration of the impairment; and whether the Company has the
intent and ability to hold the investment to maturity. When it is determined that an other-than-temporary impairment has occurred, the
investment is written down to its market value at the end of the period in which it is determined that an other-than-temporary decline has
occurred. The amortized cost of debt securities in this category is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
maturity. Such amortization is included in interest income. Recognized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be
other-than-temporary, if any, on available-for-sale securities are included in other income or expense. The cost of securities sold is based
on the specific identification method. Interest and dividends on securities classified as available-for-sale are included in interest and other,
net.

See Note 3 for additional details on the Company’s investment portfolio and events that occurred during 2008 that impacted the
classification of ARS in the Company’s Balance Sheet.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximates fair
value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The Company bases the fair value of short-term investments on current market
prices, and the fair value of noncurrent investments, using discounted cash flow models (Note 3). The carrying value of the put option
resulting from UBS’s ARS Rights offering (Note 3) is based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which approximates the
difference in value between the par value and the fair value of the associated ARS. As permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”), the Company may elect fair value measurement for certain financial assets on a case by case
basis. The Company has elected to use fair value measurement under SFAS 159 for the put option resulting from UBS’s ARS Rights
offering.

The fair value of the equipment financing lines is $4.2 million compared to the book value of $4.6 million based on borrowing rates
currently available to the Company.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets, which are generally three years for computer equipment and software, five years for laboratory
equipment and office equipment, and seven years for furniture and fixtures. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using
the straight-line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the related assets, typically ranging from
three to seven years. Upon sale or retirement of assets, the costs and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from
the balance sheet and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.
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Impairment of Long-lived Assets

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets,” the
Company reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment whenever events or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable. Under SFAS No. 144, an impairment loss
would be recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual
disposition are less than its carrying amount. Impairment, if any, is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-
lived asset exceeds its fair value. See Note 7, “Restructuring” for a discussion of asset impairments recorded in the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, “Revenue Recognition.”
SAB No. 104 requires that certain criteria must be met before revenue can be recognized: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; the fee is fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured.
Determination of whether persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and whether delivery has occurred or services have been rendered
are based on management’s judgments regarding the fixed nature of the fee charged for research performed and milestones met, and the
collectability of those fees. Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria are not met for certain future
transactions, revenue recognized for any reporting period could be adversely affected.

Research and development revenues, which are earned under agreements with third parties for contract research and development
activities, may include non-refundable license fees, research and development funding, cost reimbursements and contingent milestones
and royalties. The Company’s revenue arrangements with multiple elements are evaluated under Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
Issue No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” and are divided into separate units of accounting if certain
criteria are met, including whether the delivered element has stand-alone value to the customer and whether there is objective and reliable
evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items. The consideration the Company receives is allocated among the separate units based on
their respective fair values, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applied to each of the separate units. Non-refundable license
fees are recognized as revenue as the Company performs under the applicable agreement. Where the level of effort is relatively consistent
over the performance period, the Company recognizes total fixed or determined revenue on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of
expected performance.

The Company recognizes milestone payments as revenue upon achievement of the milestone provided the milestone payment is non-
refundable, substantive effort and risk is involved in achieving the milestone and the amount of the milestone is reasonable in relation to
the effort expended or risk associated with the achievement of the milestone. If these conditions are not met, the Company defers the
milestone payment and recognizes it as revenue over the estimated period of performance under the contract as the Company completes its
performance obligations.

Research and development revenues and cost reimbursements are based upon negotiated rates for the Company’s full time employee
equivalents (“FTE”) and actual out-of-pocket costs. FTE rates are intended to approximate the Company’s anticipated costs. Any
amounts received in advance of performance are recorded as deferred revenue. None of the revenues recognized to date are refundable if the
relevant research effort is not successful. In revenue arrangements in which both parties make payments to each other, the Company will
evaluate the payments in accordance with the provisions of EITF Issue No. 01-9, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to
a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products)” to determine whether payments made by us will be recognized as a
reduction of revenue or as expense. In accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-9, revenue recognized by the Company may be reduced by
payments made to the other party under the arrangement unless the
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Company receives a separate and identifiable benefit in exchange for the payments and the Company can reasonably estimate the fair
value of the benefit received. The application of EITF Issue No. 01-9 has had no material impact to the Company.

Preclinical Studies and Clinical Trial Accruals

A substantial portion of the Company’s preclinical studies and all of the Company’s clinical trials have been performed by third-
party contract research organizations (“CROs”) and other vendors. For preclinical studies, the significant factors used in estimating
accruals include the percentage of work completed to date and contract milestones achieved. For clinical trial expenses, the significant
factors used in estimating accruals include the number of patients enrolled, duration of enrollment and percentage of work completed to
date. The Company monitors patient enrollment levels and related activities to the extent practicable through internal reviews,
correspondence and status meetings with CROs, and review of contractual terms. The Company’s estimates are dependent on the
timeliness and accuracy of data provided by its CROs and other vendors. If the Company has incomplete or inaccurate data, it may
under- or overestimate activity levels associated with various studies or trials at a given point in time. In this event, it could record
adjustments to research and development expenses in future periods when the actual activity level become known. No material
adjustments to preclinical study and clinical trial expenses have been recognized to date.

Research and Development Expenditures

Research and development costs are charged to operations as incurred.

Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all employees. There have been no employer contributions to the
plan since inception.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for recording in the financial
statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on the
derecognition, classification, accounting in interim periods and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax positions. The accounting
provisions of FIN 48 were effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2007. See Note 11 for additional information, including the
effects of adoption on the Company’s financial statements.

Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” establishes standards for the reporting and presentation of comprehensive
income/(loss) and its components. Comprehensive income/(loss), as defined, includes all changes in stockholders’ equity during a period
from non-owner sources. Comprehensive income/(loss) for each of the year ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was equal to net
loss adjusted for unrealized gains and losses on investments.
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Segment Reporting

The Company has determined that it operates in only one segment.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of vested common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed by giving effect to all potential dilutive common shares,
including outstanding options, common stock subject to repurchase, warrants and convertible preferred stock unless their inclusion is
anti-dilutive. A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per common share
follows (in thousands):

  Years Ended December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006  

Numerator:             
Net loss  $(56,374)  $ (48,894)  $(57,115)

Denominator:             
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding   49,477   47,591   36,634 
Less:             

Restricted stock subject to repurchase   (85)   —   — 
Weighted-average shares subject to repurchase   —   (1)   (16)

Weighted-average number of common shares used in computing basic and diluted net
loss per share   49,392   47,590   36,618 

The following instruments were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per common share for the periods presented
because including them would have had an antidilutive effect (in thousands):

  December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006  

Options to purchase common stock   5,975   5,060   4,033 
Unvested restricted stock   396   —   — 
Common stock subject to repurchase   —   —   3 
Warrants to purchase common stock   474   474   244 
Shares issuable related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”)   43   36   43 

Total shares   6,888   5,570   4,323 

Stock-based Compensation

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which establishes accounting for share-based
payment awards made to employees and directors including employee stock options and employee stock purchases. Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 123R, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the calculated fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the employee’s requisite service period, generally the vesting period of the award.
The following table summarizes stock-based compensation related to employee stock options and employee stock purchases under
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SFAS No. 123R, including amortization of deferred compensation recognized under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB
25”), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (in thousands):

  Years Ended December 31.  
  2008   2007   2006  

Research and development  $ 2,794  $ 2,932  $2,532 
General and administrative   2,812   2,621   2,111 
Stock-based compensation included in operating expenses  $5,606  $5,553  $ 4,643 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options and employee stock
purchase plan shares. The key input assumptions used to estimate fair value of these awards include the exercise price of the award, the
expected option term, the expected volatility of the Company’s stock over the option’s expected term, the risk-free interest rate over the
option’s expected term, and the Company’s expected dividend yield, if any.

The fair value of share-based payments was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on
the following weighted average assumptions:

     Year Ended   Year Ended   Year Ended  
     December 31, 2008   December 31, 2007   December 31, 2006  
     Employee      Employee      Employee     
     Stock Options   ESPP   Stock Options   ESPP   Stock Options   ESPP  

Risk-free interest rate       2.98%  2.15%  4.49%  4.33%  4.68%  4.91%
Volatility       64%  68%  73%  76%  74%  72%
Expected life (in years)       6.08   1.25   6.00   1.25   6.08   1.25 
Expected dividend yield       0.00%  0.00%  0.00%  0.00%  0.00%  0.00%

The risk-free interest rate that the Company uses in the option pricing model is based on the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with
remaining terms similar to the expected terms of the options. The Company does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future
and therefore uses an expected dividend yield of zero in the option pricing model. The Company is required to estimate forfeitures at the
time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Historical data is used to
estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and record stock-based compensation expense only on those awards that are expected to vest.

Under SAB No. 107, “Share-Based Payments,” the Company used the simplified method of estimating the expected term for
stock-based compensation from January 1, 2006, the date it adopted SFAS No. 123R, through December 31, 2007. Starting January 1,
2008, the Company ceased to use the simplified method, and now uses its own historical exercise activity and extrapolates the life cycle of
options outstanding to arrive at its estimated expected term for new option grants.

From January 1, 2006, the date of adopting SFAS No. 123R, through December 31, 2007, the Company estimated the volatility of
its common stock by using an average of historical stock price volatility of comparable companies due to the limited length of trading
history. Starting January 1, 2008, the Company has used its own volatility history based on its stock’s trading history of approximately
four years. Because its outstanding options have an expected term of approximately six years, the Company supplemented its own
volatility history by using comparable companies’ volatility history for approximately two years preceding the Company’s IPO.

The Company measures compensation expense for restricted stock awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognizes the
expense over the expected vesting period. The fair value for restricted stock awards is based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant.
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As of December 31, 2008, there was $7.9 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years. As of December 31, 2008, there was $0.8 million of unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
1.7 years.

The Company amortized deferred stock-based compensation recorded prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R for stock options
granted prior to its IPO. The fair value of these awards was calculated at grant date using the intrinsic value method as prescribed in APB
25. At December 31, 2008, the deferred stock based compensation was fully amortized to expense.

On November 10, 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 123R-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax
Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards” (“FSP FAS 123R-3”). The Company elected to adopt the alternative transition method
provided in FSP FAS 123R-3. The alternative transition method includes a simplified method to establish the beginning balance of the
additional paid-in capital pool related to the tax effects of employee share-based payments, which is available to absorb tax deficiencies
recognized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) and SFAS No. 157-3, “Determining the
Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active” (“SFAS 157-3”). SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157-3 expanded on the
implementation guidance in SFAS 157 for estimating the present value of future cash flows for some hard-to-value financial instruments
such as auction rate securities. The adoption of SFAS 157 and SFAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of
operations and financial position; however additional disclosure has been added to the financial statements in Note 3 “Cash Equivalents,
Investments and Fair Value Measurements.”

The Company adopted SFAS 159, which permits companies to choose to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value (the “fair value option”). If the fair value option is elected, any upfront costs and fees related to the item, e.g., debt issue costs, must
be recognized in earnings and cannot be deferred. The fair value option election is irrevocable and may generally be made on an
instrument-by-instrument  basis, even if a company has similar instruments that it elects not to measure at fair value. At the adoption
date, unrealized gains and losses on existing items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported as a cumulative adjustment
to beginning retained earnings. The adoption of SFAS 159 did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations and
financial position as the fair value option was not elected for any of the Company’s financial assets or financial liabilities at the date of
adoption, nor for any of its financial assets and liabilities transacted in the year ended December 31, 2008 except the put option resulting
from UBS’s ARS right offering. See Note 3,“Cash Equivalents, Investments and Fair Value Measurements.”

The Company adopted EITF Issue No. 07-3, “Accounting for Non-Refundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services to Be
Used in Future Research and Development Activities.” EITF Issue No. 07-3 states that non-refundable advance payments for future
research and development activities should be deferred and recognized as an expense as the goods are delivered or the related services are
performed. Entities should then continue to evaluate whether they expect the goods to be delivered or services to be rendered. If an entity
does not expect the goods to be delivered or services to be rendered, the capitalized advance payment should be charged to expense. The
adoption of EITF Issue No. 07-3 did not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.
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Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In November 2007, the EITF issued a consensus on EITF Issue No. 07-01, “Accounting for Collaboration Arrangements Related
to the Development and Commercialization of Intellectual Property”, which is focused on how the parties to a collaborative agreement
should account for costs incurred and revenue generated on sales to third parties, how shared payments pursuant to a collaboration
agreement should be presented in the income statement and certain related disclosure questions. EITF Issue No. 07-01 is to be applied
retrospectively for collaboration arrangements in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company will adopt EITF Issue
No. 07-1 in the first quarter of 2009 and currently does not believe the adoption of EITF Issue No. 07-1 will have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations.

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) 157-1, “Application
of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value
Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13 “ and FSP 157-2, “ Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 157 .” FSP 157-1 amends SFAS 157 to remove certain leasing transactions from its scope, and was effective upon
initial adoption of SFAS 157. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities,
except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually), until the
beginning of the first quarter of 2009. The adoption of SFAS 157 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements when it is applied to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis,
beginning in the first quarter of 2009.

Note 2 — Supplementary Cash Flow Data

Supplemental cash flow information was as follows (in thousands):

           Period from  
           August 5, 1997  
  Years Ended December 31,   (Date of Inception) to  
  2008   2007   2006   December 31, 2008  

Cash paid for interest  $ 412  $594  $ 439  $ 3,999 
Cash paid for income taxes   1   1   1   10 
Significant non-cash investing and financing activities:                 

Deferred stock-based compensation   —   —   —   6,940 
Purchases of property and equipment through accounts payable   127   359   1,554   127 
Purchases of property and equipment through trade in value of disposed

property and equipment   —   —   131   258 
Penalty on restructuring of equipment financing lines   —   —   —   475 
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to common stock   —   —   —   133,172 
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Note 3 — Cash Equivalents, Investments and Fair Value Measurements

Cash Equivalents and Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of cash equivalents, short-term investments, long-term investments and investment put option at
December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows (in thousands):

  December 31, 2008  
  Amortized   Unrealized   Unrealized   Fair   Maturity  
  Cost   Gains   Losses   Value   Dates  

Cash equivalents — money market funds  $ 41,224   —   —  $ 41,224     
Short-term investments — U.S. Treasury

securities  $ 15,030  $ 18  $ —  $ 15,048   1/2009 — 3/2009 
Investments in auction rate securities  $ 20,025  $ —  $ 3,389  $ 16,636   6/2036 — 8/2045 
Investment put option  $ —  $ 3,389  $ —  $ 3,389   6/30/2010 — 7/2/2012 
                     
                     

  December 31, 2007  
  Amortized   Unrealized   Unrealized   Fair   Maturity  
  Cost   Gains   Losses   Value   Dates  

Cash equivalents:                     
Money market funds   91,241   —   —   91,241     
Commercial paper   24,901   1   (2)   24,900   1/2008 — 2/2008 

Total cash equivalents  $116,142   1   (2)  $116,141     
Short-term investments - student loan auction

rate securities  $ 3,175  $ —  $ —  $ 3,175   1/2008 
Long-term investments - student loan auction

rate securities  $ 20,025  $ —  $ —  $ 20,025   6/2036 — 8/2045 

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s cash equivalents and short-term investments had no unrealized losses.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s cash equivalents had unrealized losses of $2,000, and its short-term investments had no
unrealized losses. The unrealized losses on the Company’s commercial paper classified as cash equivalents at December 31, 2007 were
primarily caused by rising interest rates. The Company was able to collect all contractual cash flows related to the commercial paper held
at December 31, 2007 and no realized losses were incurred.

Interest income was $3.2 million, $8.3 million and $4.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and $27.5 million for the period August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008.

The Company’s long-term investments in ARS as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 refer to securities that are structured with short-
term interest reset dates every 28 days but with maturities generally greater than 10 years. At the end of each reset period, investors can
attempt to sell the securities through an auction process or continue to hold the securities at par value. As of December 31, 2007, there were
no ARS in an unrealized loss position and there were no failed auctions associated with the Company’s ARS through that date. In
February 2008, the Company liquidated $3.2 million of its ARS at par, which were classified as short-term investments as of
December 31, 2007.
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The Company classified its remaining ARS holdings as long-term investments as of December 31, 2007 based on their stated maturity
date.

At December 31, 2008, the Company held approximately $20.0 million in par value of ARS classified as long-term investments.
The assets underlying these ARS are student loans which are substantially backed by the federal government. In February 2008, auctions
began to fail for these securities and each auction since then has failed. Consequently, the investments are not currently liquid and the
Company will not be able to access these funds until a future auction of these investments is successful, a buyer is found outside of the
auction process, they are redeemed by the issuer or the investments mature. Typically, the fair value of ARS investments approximates
par value due to the frequent interest rate resets associated with the auction process. Currently, there is not an active market for these
securities, and therefore they do not have a readily determinable market value. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of the ARS no longer
approximates par value. Although the ARS continue to pay interest according to their stated terms, based on valuation models of the
individual securities, the Company has recognized in the Statement of Operations a loss of approximately $3.4 million on ARS in interest
and other, net for which for the Company has concluded that an other-than-temporary impairment exists. The fair value of the
Company’s investment in ARS as of December 31, 2008 was determined to be $16.6 million.

In connection with the failed auctions of the Company’s ARS, which were marketed and sold by UBS AG and its affiliates, in
October 2008, the Company accepted a settlement with UBS AG pursuant to which UBS AG has issued to the Company Series C-2
Auction Rate Securities Rights (the “ARS Rights”). The ARS Rights provide the Company the right to receive the par value of its ARS,
i.e., the liquidation preference of the ARS plus accrued but unpaid interest. Pursuant to the ARS Rights, the Company may require UBS
to purchase its ARS at par value at any time between June 30, 2010 and July 2, 2012. In addition, UBS or its affiliates may sell or
otherwise dispose of some or all of the ARS at its discretion at any time prior to expiration of the ARS Rights, subject to the obligation to
pay the Company the par value of such ARS. The ARS Rights are not transferable, tradable or marginable, and will not be listed or
quoted on any securities exchange or any electronic communications network. As consideration for ARS Rights, the Company agreed to
release UBS AG, UBS Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services, Inc., and/or their affiliates, directors, and officers from any claims
directly or indirectly relating to the marketing and sale of the ARS, other than for consequential damages. UBS’s obligations in connection
with the ARS Rights are not secured by its assets and UBS is not required UBS to obtain any financing to support those obligations.
UBS has disclaimed any assurance that it will have sufficient resources to satisfy its obligations in connection with the ARS Rights. If
UBS has insufficient funding to buy back the ARS and the auction process continues to fail, the Company may incur further losses on
the carrying value of the ARS.

The ARS Rights represent a firm agreement in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”), which defines a firm agreement as an agreement with an unrelated party, binding on both parties and
usually legally enforceable, with the following characteristics: a) the agreement specifies all significant terms, including the quantity to be
exchanged, the fixed price and the timing of the transaction; and b) the agreement includes a disincentive for nonperformance that is
sufficiently large to make performance probable. The enforceability of the ARS Rights results in a put option and is recognized as a
separate freestanding instrument that is accounted for separately from the ARS investment. As of December 31, 2008, the Company
recorded $3.4 million as fair value of the put option assets, classified as long-term assets on the Balance Sheet as December 31, 2008,
with a corresponding credit to interest and other, net in the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. The put option
does not meet the definition of a derivative instrument under SFAS 133. Therefore, the Company elected to measure the ARS Rights at fair
value under SFAS 159 to mitigate volatility in reported earnings due to its linkage to the ARS. The Company valued the put option using
a Black-Scholes option pricing model that included estimates of interest rates, based on data available as of December 31, 2008, and was
adjusted for any bearer risk associated with UBS’s ability to repurchase the ARS beginning June 30, 2010. Any change in these
assumptions and market conditions would affect the value of this ARS Rights.
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Prior to accepting the UBS offer, the Company recorded its ARS as investments available-for-sale. The Company recorded
unrealized gains and losses on its available-for-sale debt securities, in accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) in the shareholders’
equity section of the Balance Sheet. Such an unrealized loss did not impact net loss for the applicable accounting period. Simultaneously,
due to the ARS Rights granted by UBS, the Company made a one-time election to transfer the related ARS holdings from
available-for-sale securities to trading securities. As a result of this transfer, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary loss of
approximately $3.4 million, and reversed the related unrealized loss that was previously recorded in other comprehensive loss on the
Balance Sheet. The recording of the ARS Rights under SFAS 159 and the recognition of the other-than-temporary impairment loss
resulted in no net impact to the Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Company anticipates that any future
changes in the fair value of the ARS Rights will be largely offset by the changes in the fair value of the related ARS with no material net
impact to the Statement of Operations, subject to UBS’s continued expected performance of its obligations in connection with the ARS
Rights. The ARS Rights will continue to be measured at fair value under SFAS 159 until the earlier of the Company’s exercise of the ARS
Rights, UBS’s purchase of the ARS in connection with the ARS Rights, or the maturity of the ARS underlying the ARS Rights.

The Company continues to monitor the market for ARS and consider its impact (if any) on the fair market value of our investments.
If the market conditions deteriorate further, the Company may be required to record additional unrealized losses in earnings, offset by
corresponding increases in the put option.

Fair Value Measurements

As stated in Note 1, “Organization and Significant Accounting Policies,” on January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the methods of
fair value described in SFAS 157 to value its financial assets and liabilities. As defined in SFAS 157, fair value is the price that would
be received for assets when sold or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date (exit price). The Company utilizes market data or assumptions that the Company believes market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can
be readily observable, market corroborated or generally unobservable.

The Company primarily applies the market approach for recurring fair value measurements and endeavors to utilize the best
information reasonably available. Accordingly, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible, and considers the security issuers’ and the third-party insurers’ credit
risk in its assessment of fair value.

The Company classifies the determined fair value based on the observability of those inputs. SFAS 157 establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined by SFAS 157 are as followed:

Level 1 — Observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or through corroboration with
observable market data; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs, for which there is little or no market data for the assets or liabilities, such as internally-developed
valuation models.
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Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2008 are classified in the table below in one of the
three categories described above (in thousands):

  Fair Value Measurements Using   Assets  
  Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   At Fair Value  

Money market funds  $ 41,224  $ —  $ —  $ 41,224 
U.S. Treasury securities   15,048   —   —   15,048 
Investments in ARS   —   —   16,636   16,636 
Investment put option related to ARS Rights   —   —   3,389   3,389 

Total  $56,272  $ —  $ 20,025  $ 76,297 
Amounts included in:                 
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 41,224  $ —  $ —  $ 41,224 
Short-term investments   15,048   —   —   15,048 
Investments in ARS   —   —   16,636   16,636 
Investment put option   —   —   3,389   3,389 

Total  $56,272  $ —  $ 20,025  $ 76,297 

The valuation technique used to measure fair value for our Level 1 assets is a market approach, using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. The valuation technique used to measure fair
value for our Level 3 assets is an income approach, where the expected future cash flows were discounted back to present value for each
asset, except for the put option related to the ARS Rights, which is based on Black-Scholes option pricing model and approximates the
difference in value between the par value and the fair value of the associated ARS.

At December 31, 2008, the Company held approximately $16.6 million in fair value of ARS classified as long-term investments.
The assets underlying the ARS are student loans which are substantially backed by the federal government. During the first quarter of
fiscal 2008, the Company reclassified its ARS to the Level 3 category. The fair values of these securities were estimated utilizing a
discounted cash flow (“DCF”) analysis as of December 31, 2008. The Company reclassified its ARS to the Level 3 category as some of
the inputs used in the DCF model include unobservable inputs. The valuation of the Company’s ARS investment portfolio is subject to
uncertainties that are difficult to predict. The assumptions used in preparing the DCF model include estimates of interest rates, timing and
amount of cash flows, credit and liquidity premiums and expected holding periods of the ARS, based on data available as of
December 31, 2008. These assumptions are volatile and subject to change as the underlying sources of these assumptions and market
conditions change, thereby could result in significant changes to the fair value of ARS. The significant assumptions of this valuation
model were discount margins ranging from 375 to 410 basis points which are based on industry recognized student loan sector indices,
an additional liquidity discount of approximately 150 basis points and an estimated term to liquidity of 2 to 5 years. Other items this
analysis considers are the collateralization underlying the security investments, the creditworthiness of the counterparty and the timing of
expected future cash flows.

The ARS were also compared, when possible, to other observable market data for securities with similar characteristics as the
securities held by the Company. Although the ARS investments continue to pay interest according to their stated terms, based on valuation
models of the individual securities, the Company has recognized in the Statement of Operations an unrecognized loss of approximately
$3.4 million in interest and other, net for ARS that the Company has concluded that an other-than-temporary impairment exists.

Unrecognized gains of $3.4 million on the put option related to the ARS Rights are included in interest and other, net in the
accompanying Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. Unrealized losses
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for the year ended December 31, 2008 included losses totaling $3.4 million that were transferred from accumulated other comprehensive
loss as a result of the reclassification of the ARS from available-for-sale to trading securities.

Changes to estimates and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the ARS and the ARS Rights may result in materially
different values. In addition, actual market exchanges, if any, may occur at materially different amounts. Other factors that may impact
the valuation of the Company’s ARS and related ARS Rights include changes to credit ratings of the securities and to the underlying
assets supporting those securities, rates of default of the underlying assets, underlying collateral value, discount rates, counterparty risk
and ongoing strength and quality of market credit and liquidity.

The Company’s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant Level 3 inputs as of December 31,
2008 consisted solely of the ARS and the ARS Rights. The following table provides reconciliation for all assets measured at fair value
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the year ended December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

  ARS   Investment put option  

Balance as of December 31, 2007  $ —  $ — 
Transfer to Level 3 hierarchy measurement from Level 1   20,025     
Recognition of the ARS Rights   —   3,389 
Unrecognized losses on ARS trading securities included in interest and other, net   (3,389)   — 

Balance as of December 31, 2008  $16,636  $            3,389 

The total amount of assets measured using Level 3 valuation methodologies represented approximately 23% of our total assets as of
December 31, 2008.

Unrecognized gains of $3.4 million on the put option related to the ARS Rights are included in interest and other, net in the
accompanying Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. Unrecognized losses for the year ended December 31,
2008 included losses totaling $3.4 million that were transferred from accumulated other comprehensive loss as a result of the
reclassification of the ARS from available-for-sale to trading securities.

Note 4 — Balance Sheet Components

  December 31,  
  2008   2007  

Property and equipment, net (in thousands):         
Laboratory equipment  $ 18,254  $ 19,081 
Computer equipment and software   3,700   3,647 
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures   431   365 
Leasehold improvements   3,146   3,054 

   25,531   26,147 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization   (20,444)   (18,419)

  $ 5,087  $ 7,728 

Property and equipment pledged as collateral against outstanding borrowings under the Company’s equipment financing lines totaled
$10.1 million, less accumulated depreciation of $6.1 million, at December 31, 2008 and
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$21.9 million, less accumulated depreciation of $15.6 million, at December 31, 2007. Depreciation expense was $2.5 million,
$2.8 million and $2.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

  December 31,  
  2008   2007  

Accrued liabilities (in thousands):         
Clinical and pre-clinical costs  $5,368  $ 4,730 
Consulting and professional fees   446   448 
Bonus   13   1,560 
Vacation and other payroll related   9 5 9   1,211 
Other accrued expenses   388   609 

  $ 7,174  $8,558 

Interest receivable on cash equivalents and short- and long-term investments of $106,000 and $117,000 is included in prepaid and
other current assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note 5 — Related Party Transactions

Research and Development Arrangements

GSK

In 2001, the Company entered into a collaboration and license agreement with GSK, establishing a strategic alliance to discover,
develop and commercialize small molecule drugs for the treatment of cancer and other diseases. Under this agreement, GSK paid the
Company an upfront licensing fee for rights to certain technologies and milestone payments regarding performance and developments
within agreed-upon projects. In conjunction with these projects, GSK agreed to reimburse the Company’s costs associated with the
strategic alliance. In connection with the agreement, in 2001 GSK made a $14.0 million equity investment in the Company. In 2001, the
Company also received $14.0 million for the upfront licensing fee, which was recognized ratably over the initial five-year research term of
the agreement. In the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company recognized none, $1.4 million and $2.8 million,
respectively, as license revenue under this agreement. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no license revenue under this agreement was
deferred. The Company received and recognized as revenue $0.2 million, $0.4 million and $1.6 million in FTE and other expense
reimbursements for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $32.5 million in the period from August 5,
1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008. The Company also received and recognized as revenue $1.0 million in performance
milestone payments under the agreement for the year ended December 31, 2007, and zero in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2006,
respectively, and $8.0 million in the period from August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008 as no ongoing performance
obligations existed with respect to this aspect of the agreement.

For those drug candidates that GSK develops under the strategic alliance, the Company can elect to co-fund certain later-stage
development activities which would increase its potential royalty rates on sales of resulting drugs and provide the Company with the
option to secure co-promotion rights in North America. If the Company exercises its co-promotion option, then it is entitled to receive
reimbursement from GSK for certain sales force costs it incurs in support of its commercial activities.

Under the November 2006 amendment to the collaboration and license agreement with GSK, the Company assumed responsibility,
at its expense, for the continued research, development and commercialization of inhibitors of kinesin spindle proteins, including
ispinesib and SB-743921, and other mitotic kinesins, other than centromere-associated protein E (“CENP-E”). Under the November
2006 amendment, the Company’s development of ispinesib

92



Table of Contents

CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED
(A Development Stage Enterprise)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

and SB-743921 were subject to GSK’s option to resume responsibility for the development and commercialization of either or both drug
candidates. In December 2008, GSK’s option to license ispinesib and SB-743921 expired. Consequently, all rights to these drug
candidates remain with the Company, subject to certain royalty obligations to GSK. Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007
included zero and $20,000, respectively, payable to GSK for outsourced services.

The initial five-year research term of the collaboration and license agreement expired in June 2005, and has been extended for an
additional year in each of June 2006, 2007 and 2008. Under these extensions, GSK and the Company are conducting translational
research activities focused on CENP-E, each at its own expense. GSK is currently conducting a Phase I clinical trial of the CENP-E
inhibitor GSK-923295 at its expense under the agreement.

GSK made additional equity investments in the Company in 2003 and 2004 of $3.0 million and $7.0 million, respectively.

Amgen

On December 29, 2006, the Company entered into a collaboration and option agreement with Amgen to discover, develop and
commercialize novel small-molecule therapeutics that activate cardiac muscle contractility for potential applications in the treatment of
heart failure. The agreement provides Amgen a non-exclusive license and access to certain technology, and an option to obtain an exclusive
license to CK-1827452 world-wide, except Japan. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received an upfront, non-refundable
license and technology access fee of $42.0 million from Amgen, which the Company is recognizing as revenue ratably over the maximum
term of the non-exclusive license, which is four years. Management determined that the obligations under the non-exclusive license did not
meet the requirement for separate units of accounting and therefore should be recognized as a single unit of accounting.

The Company is conducting research and development activities at its own expense for CK-1827452 in accordance with an agreed
upon plan. Amgen’s option is exercisable during a defined period, the ending of which is dependent upon satisfaction of certain
conditions, primarily the delivery of Phase I and Phase IIa clinical trials data for CK-1827452 in accordance with an agreed development
plan, the results from which may be sufficient to support its progression into Phase IIb clinical development. To exercise its option,
Amgen is required to pay a non-refundable fee of $50.0 million and thereafter would have an exclusive license for development and
commercialization of the CK-1827452 world-wide, excluding Japan. On exercise of the option, the Company is required to transfer all
data and know-how necessary to enable Amgen to assume responsibility for development and commercialization of CK-1827452 and
related compounds, which Amgen will perform at its sole expense. Development services, if any, performed by the Company for Amgen
after commencement of the exclusive license term will be reimbursed by Amgen. Under the agreement, the Company may be eligible to
receive pre-commercialization and commercialization milestone payments of up to $600.0 million in the aggregate on CK-1827452 and
other potential products arising from research under the collaboration and royalties that escalate based on increasing levels of the annual
net sales of products commercialized under the agreement. The agreement also provides for the Company to receive increased royalties by
co-funding Phase III development costs of drug candidates under the collaboration. If the Company elects to co-fund such costs, it would
be entitled to co-promote products in North America and participate in agreed commercial activities in institutional care settings, at
Amgen’s expense. If Amgen elects not to exercise its option on CK-1827452, the collaboration would terminate and the Company may
then proceed independently to develop CK-1827452 itself or with third parties.

In connection with entering into the collaboration and option agreement, the Company contemporaneously entered into a common
stock purchase agreement (the “CSPA”) with Amgen, which provided for the sale of 3,484,806 shares of the Company’s common stock
at a price per share of $9.47 and an aggregate purchase price of approximately $33.0 million. On January 2, 2007, the Company issued
3,484,806 shares of common stock to
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Amgen under the CSPA. After deducting the offering costs, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $32.9 million in
January 2007. The common stock was valued using the closing price of the common stock on December 29, 2006, the last trading day
of the common stock prior to issuance. The difference between the price paid by Amgen of $9.47 per share and the stock price of $7.48
per share of common stock totaled $6.9 million. This premium was recorded as deferred revenue in January 2007 and is being
recognized as revenue ratably over the maximum term of the non-exclusive license granted to Amgen under the collaboration and option
agreement, which is approximately four years.

The Company recognized license revenue under the agreement of $12.2 million, $12.2 million and $0.1 million in 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively and $24.6 million in the period August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008. The Company also
recognized revenue of $5,000 in 2008 for sales of clinical material to Amgen.

Other Research and Development Arrangements

In 1998, the Company entered into a licensing agreement with certain universities where the Company’s founding scientists are also
affiliated with the universities. The Company agreed to pay technology license fees and milestone payments for technology developed
under the licensing agreement. The Company is also obligated to make minimum royalty payments, as specified in the agreement,
commencing the year of product market introduction or upon an agreed upon anniversary of the licensing agreement. The Company paid
$51,000, $74,000 and $59,000 to the universities under this agreement in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $1.1 million in the
period August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008.

Other

Portola

In August 2004, the Company entered into a collaboration and facilities agreement with Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Portola”),
replacing a verbal agreement entered into in December 2003. Under the agreement, Portola provided research and related services and
access to a portion of their facilities to support such services. In the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company
incurred expenses of zero, $164,000 and $913,000, respectively, for research services provided under this agreement. In March 2005, the
agreement was amended to provide for the purchase and use of certain equipment by Portola in connection with Portola providing research
and related services to the Company and the Company’s reimbursement to Portola of $285,000 for the equipment in eight quarterly
payments from January 2006 through October 2007. The entire equipment reimbursement of $285,000 was recognized in expenses in
2005. In March 2006, the agreement was amended to extend it through December 31, 2006 and update certain pricing and other terms and
conditions. There were no accounts payable or accrued liabilities payable to Portola at December 31, 2008 or 2007 for such services.

In August 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Portola whereby Portola sub-subleased approximately 2,500 square
feet of office space from the Company at a monthly rate of $1.75 per square foot. The term of the agreement commenced on August 22,
2006 and continued until October 31, 2006, with the option to extend on a month-to-month basis thereafter. Sublease income from this
agreement offset rent expense. Portola terminated the sublease agreement effective April 30, 2007.

Related Party Notes Receivable

In 2001 and 2002, the Company extended loans for $200,000 and $100,000, respectively, to certain officers of the Company. The
loans accrue interest at 5.18% and 5.75% and are scheduled to mature on November 12, 2010 and July 12, 2008, respectively. In 2002
the Company extended loans totaling $650,000 to various certain officers and employees of the Company. The loans accrue interest at
rates ranging from 4.88% to 5.80% and have scheduled
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maturities on various dates between 2005 and 2011. Certain of the loans are collateralized by the common stock of the Company owned
by the officers and by stock options and were repaid in full within eighteen months after the Company’s IPO date of April 29, 2004.
Certain of the loans will be forgiven if the officers remain with the Company through the maturation of their respective loans. The
Company did not extend any loans to officers or employees of the Company subsequent to 2002. Principal repayments totaled $130,000
and $129,000 and principal forgiven totaled $47,000 and $97,000 in 2008 and 2007, respectively. A total of $48,000 and $226,000 was
outstanding on these loans at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and was classified as related party notes receivable. Interest
receivable on these loans totaled $1,000 at December 31, 2008 and $3,000 at December 31, 2007 and was included in related party
accounts receivable.

Effective March 31, 2008, James Sabry voluntarily resigned from his position as Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company, and on April 1, 2008, he assumed his new role as the non-employee Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the
Company’s Scientific Advisory Board and a consultant to the Company. In accordance with the terms of Dr. Sabry’s promissory note
payable to the Company, the outstanding balance of the note of $100,000 became due, and was repaid in full, on April 30, 2008.

Board Members

The Company incurred consulting fees earned by Dr. Sabry of $120,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Dr. Sabry did not
earn any consulting fees during 2007.

James Spudich is a member of the Company’s Board of Directors and a consultant to the Company. The Company incurred
consulting fees earned by Dr. Spudich of $38,000 and $50,000 in the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Charles Homcy, M.D., is the President and CEO of Portola. Dr. Homcy was a member of the Company’s Board of Directors
through July 1, 2008 and continues as a consultant to the Company. The Company incurred consulting fees to Dr. Homcy of $15,000,
$23,000 and $25,000 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2008 and 2007 included zero and
$3,000, respectively, payable to Dr. Homcy for consulting fees.

Note 6 — Equipment Financing Line

In July 2002, the Company entered into an equipment financing agreement with GE Capital under which the Company could borrow
up to $7.5 million through a financing line of credit, which was subsequently refinanced. In 2002, 2003 and 2004 the Company executed
draws on this line of credit totaling approximately $7.5 million with effective interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 8.77%. This financing
line of credit expired on January 1, 2004 and no additional borrowings are available to the Company under it. As of December 31, 2008,
the balance of equipment loans outstanding under this line was approximately $170,000.

In January 2004, the Company entered into an equipment financing agreement with GE Capital under which the Company could
borrow up to $4.5 million under a financing line of credit expiring December 31, 2006. The Company executed draws aggregating
$2.0 million, $1.3 million and $0.9 million during 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively at interest rates ranging from 4.56% to 7.44%. In
October 2006, the Company was informed by GE Capital that the amounts available under this equipment line had been reduced by
approximately $0.3 million. As of December 31, 2008, the balance of equipment loans outstanding under this line was $1.8 million, and
no additional borrowings are available to the Company under it.

In April 2006, the Company obtained a line of credit with GE Capital of up to $4.6 million to finance certain equipment until
April 28, 2007. In 2007 and 2006, the Company executed draws on this line of credit totaling approximately $4.1 million at interest rates
ranging from 7.24% to 7.68%. As of December 31, 2008, the balance of equipment loans outstanding under this line was $2.7 million
and no additional borrowings are available to the Company under it.
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In August 2007, the Company secured a new line of credit with GE Capital of up to $3.0 million to finance certain equipment until
September 30, 2008. As of December 31, 2008, this credit line had expired. The Company had not borrowed any funds under this line
and no future borrowings are available to the Company under it.

Borrowings under the equipment lines have financing terms ranging from 48 to 60 months. All lines are subject to the master
security agreement between the Company and GE Capital and their respective term sheets, and are collateralized by property and
equipment of the Company purchased by such borrowed funds and other collateral as agreed to be the Company. In connection with the
lines of credit with GE Capital, the Company is obligated to maintain a certificate of deposit with the lender (see Note 1 “Organization and
Significant Accounting Policies — Restricted Cash”).

As of December 31, 2008, future minimum lease payments under equipment lease lines were as follows (in thousands):

2009  $2,025 
2010   1,630 
2011   833 
2012   152 

Total  $ 4,640 

Interest expense was $0.5 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively, and $4.8 million for the period from August 5, 1997 (date of inception) through December 31, 2008.

Note 7 — Restructuring

In September 2008, the Company announced a restructuring plan to realign its workforce and operations in line with a strategic
reassessment of its research and development activities and corporate objectives. As a result, the Company has focused its research
activities to its muscle contractility programs while continuing to advance its ongoing clinical trials in heart failure and cancer and has
discontinued early research activities directed to oncology. The Company communicated to affected employees a plan of organizational
restructuring through involuntary terminations. Pursuant to SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities,” the Company recorded a charge of approximately $2.5 million in 2008. To implement this plan, the Company reduced its
workforce by approximately 29%, or 45 employees. The affected employees were provided with severance payments and outplacement
assistance.

The Company has completed substantially all restructuring activities and recognized all anticipated restructuring charges. All
severance payments were made as of December 31, 2008. The Company expects to record only immaterial changes to the accrued
restructuring costs during 2009, primarily related to employee benefits and outplacement services.

As a result of the restructuring plan, in the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded restructuring charges of
$2.2 million for employee severance and benefit related costs and $0.3 million related to the impairment of lab equipment that is held for
sale. The Company expects to sell the held-for-sale equipment by September 2009.
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The following table summarizes the accrual balances and utilization by cost type for the restructuring plan (in thousands):

  Employee Severance   Impairment of     
  and Related Benefit   Fixed Assets   Total  

Restructuring liability at December 31, 2007  $ —  $ —  $ — 
2008 charges   2,190   283   2,473 
Cash payments   (1,997)   —   (1,997)
Non-cash settlement   —   (283)   (283)
Restructuring liability at December 31, 2008  $ 193  $ —  $ 193 

Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases office space and equipment under two non-cancelable operating leases with expiration dates in 2011 and 2013.
Rent expense net of sublease income was $3.0 million, $3.2 million and $3.0 million, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively, and was $21.3 million for the period from August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008. The terms of
both facility leases provide for rental payments on a graduated scale and the Company’s payment of certain operating expenses. The
Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period. In 2006, the Company entered into a sublease agreement
with Portola, which resulted in zero, $18,000 and $22,000 of sublease income offsetting rent expense in 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and $40,000 for the period August 5, 1997 (inception) through December 31, 2008. The sublease agreement with Portola
terminated on April 30, 2007.

As of December 31, 2008, future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases were as follows (in thousands):

2009      $ 2,984 
2010       3,092 
2011       2,624 
2012       2,076 
2013       1,330 
Thereafter       — 

Total      $12,106 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may provide indemnifications of varying scope and terms to vendors, lessors,
business partners and other parties with respect to certain matters, including, but not limited to, losses arising out of the Company’s
breach of such agreements, services to be provided by or on behalf of the Company, or from intellectual property infringement claims
made by third-parties. In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its directors and certain of its officers
and employees that will require the Company, among other things, to indemnify them against certain liabilities that may arise by reason
of their status or service as directors, officers or employees. The Company maintains director and officer insurance, which may cover
certain liabilities arising from its obligation to indemnify its directors and certain of its officers and employees, and former officers and
directors in certain circumstances. The Company maintains product liability insurance and comprehensive general liability insurance,
which may cover certain liabilities arising from its indemnification obligations. It is not possible to determine the maximum potential
amount of exposure under these indemnification obligations due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts
and
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circumstances involved in each particular indemnification obligation. Such indemnification obligations may not be subject to maximum
loss clauses.

Note 9 — Convertible Preferred Stock

Effective upon the closing of the initial public offering on April 29, 2004, all outstanding shares of the Company’s convertible
preferred stock converted into 17,062,145 shares of common stock. In January 2004, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to
the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation changing the authorized number of shares of preferred stock to
10,000,000, effective upon the closing of the initial public offering. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were 10,000,000 shares of
convertible preferred stock authorized and no shares outstanding.

Note 10 — Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common Stock

The Company’s Registration Statement (SEC File No. 333-112261) for its initial public offering was declared effective by the SEC
on April 29, 2004 and the Company’s common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ National Market, now the NASDAQ Global
Market, on that date under the trading symbol “CYTK.” The Company sold 7,935,000 shares of common stock in the offering,
including shares that were issued upon the full exercise by the underwriters of their over-allotment option, at $13.00 per share for aggregate
gross proceeds of $103.2 million. In connection with this offering, the Company paid underwriters’ commissions of $7.2 million and
incurred offering expenses of $2.0 million. After deducting the underwriters’ commissions and the offering expenses, the Company
received net proceeds of approximately $94.0 million from the offering. In addition, pursuant to an agreement with an affiliate of GSK,
the Company sold 538,461 shares of its common stock to GSK immediately prior to the closing of the initial public offering at a
purchase price of $13.00 per share, for a total of approximately $7.0 million in net proceeds.

In October 2005, the Company entered into a committed equity financing facility (“CEFF”) with Kingsbridge Capital Ltd.
(“Kingsbridge”), pursuant to which Kingsbridge committed to purchase, subject to certain conditions of the CEFF, up to $75.0 million
of the Company’s newly-issued common stock during the next three years. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, from time to time
under the CEFF, the Company could require Kingsbridge to purchase newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stock at a price
between 90% and 94% of the volume weighted average price on each trading day during an eight day, forward-looking pricing period. The
maximum number of shares the Company could issue in any pricing period is the lesser of 2.5% of the Company’s market capitalization
immediately prior to the commencement of the pricing period or $15.0 million. The minimum acceptable volume weighted average price
for determining the purchase price at which the Company’s stock could be sold in any pricing period was the greater of $3.50 or 85% of
the closing price for the Company’s common stock on the day prior to the commencement of the pricing period. In 2007, the Company
received gross proceeds of $9.5 million from the drawdown of 2,075,177 shares of common stock pursuant to our CEFF. In 2006, the
Company received gross proceeds of $17.0 million from the drawdown of 2,740,735 shares of common stock pursuant to our CEFF. In
2005, the Company received gross proceeds of $5.7 million from the draw down and sale of 887,576 shares of common stock before
offering costs of $178,000. No further draw downs are available to the Company under the 2005 CEFF with Kingsbridge.

In January 2006, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement with certain institutional investors relating to the issuance
and sale of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at a price of $6.60 per share, for gross offering proceeds of $33.0 million. In
connection with this offering, the Company paid an advisory fee to a registered broker-dealer of $1.0 million. After deducting the advisory
fee and the offering costs, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $32.0 million from the offering. The offering was made
pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statement on Form S-3 (SEC File No. 333-125786) filed on June 14, 2005.
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In December 2006, the Company entered into stock purchase agreements with selected institutional investors relating to the issuance
and sale of 5,285,715 shares of our common stock at a price of $7.00 per share, for gross offering proceeds of $37.0 million. In
connection with this offering, the Company paid placement agent fees to three registered broker-dealers totaling $1.85 million. After
deducting the placement agent fees and the offering costs, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $34.9 million from the
offering. The offering was made pursuant to the Company’s shelf registration statements on Form S-3 (SEC File No. 333-125786) filed
on June 14, 2005 and October 31, 2006 (SEC File No. 333-138306).

In connection with entering into the collaboration and option agreement, the Company also entered into a CSPA with Amgen, which
provided for the sale of 3,484,806 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price per share of $9.47 and an aggregate purchase price
of approximately $33.0 million. On January 2, 2007, the Company issued 3,484,806 shares of common stock to Amgen under the
CSPA. After deducting the offering costs, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $32.9 million in January 2007. The
common stock was valued using the closing price of the common stock on December 29, 2006, the last trading day of the common stock
prior to issuance. The difference between the price paid by Amgen of $9.47 per share and the stock price of $7.48 per share of common
stock totaled $6.9 million. This premium was recorded as deferred revenue in January 2007 and is being recognized as revenue ratably
over the maximum term of the non-exclusive license granted to Amgen under the collaboration and option agreement, which is
approximately four years.

In October 2007, the Company entered into a new committed equity financing facility with Kingsbridge (the “2007 CEFF”),
pursuant to which Kingsbridge committed to finance up to $75.0 million of capital over a three-year period. Subject to certain conditions
and limitations, from time to time under the 2007 CEFF, at the Company’s election, Kingsbridge is committed to purchase newly-issued
shares of the Company’s common stock at a price between 90% and 94% of the volume weighted average price on each trading day
during an eight day, forward-looking pricing period. The maximum number of shares the Company may issue in any pricing period is
the lesser of 2.5% of its market capitalization immediately prior to the commencement of the pricing period or $15.0 million. As part of
the arrangement, the Company issued a warrant to Kingsbridge to purchase 230,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of
$7.99 per share, which represents a premium over the closing price of its common stock on the date it entered into the 2007 CEFF. This
warrant is exercisable beginning six months after the date of grant and for a period of three years thereafter. Under the terms of the 2007
CEFF, the maximum number of shares the Company may sell is 9,779,411 (exclusive of the shares underlying the warrant) which,
under the rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, is approximately the maximum number of shares it may sell to Kingsbridge
without approval of the Company’s stockholders. This limitation may further limit the amount of proceeds the Company is able to obtain
from the 2007 CEFF. The Company is not obligated to sell any of the $75.0 million of common stock available under the 2007 CEFF and
there are no minimum commitments or minimum use penalties. The 2007 CEFF does not contain any restrictions on the Company’s
operating activities, any automatic pricing resets or any minimum market volume restrictions. As of December 31, 2008, the Company
had not made any draw downs under the 2007 CEFF.

Warrants

In connection with its building lease, the Company issued warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock for $0.58 per
share in July 1999. The fair value of the warrants, calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model, was capitalized in other assets and
amortized over the life of the building lease, which expired in August 2000. The amount charged to rent expense was $11,000 from
August 5, 1997 (date of inception) through August 2000. The warrants were fully exercised in 2004 in a cashless exercise.

The Company has issued warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock, which became exercisable for common stock upon the
conversion of the outstanding shares of preferred stock into common stock in conjunction with the Company’s initial public offering. In
September 1998, in connection with an equipment line of credit
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financing, the Company issued warrants to the lender. The Company valued the warrants by using the Black-Scholes pricing model in
fiscal 1999 when the line was drawn, and the fair value of $30,000 was recorded as a discount to the debt and amortized to interest
expense over the life of the equipment line. In August 2005, these warrants were exercised by the lender in a cashless exercise, yielding
13,199 shares of common stock on a net basis. In connection with a convertible preferred stock financing in August 1999, the
Company issued warrants to the preferred stockholders. The warrants were valued at $467,000 using the Black-Scholes pricing model
and the value was recorded as issuance cost as an offset to convertible preferred stock. These warrants expired unexercised on August 30,
2006. In connection with an equipment line of credit, the Company issued warrants to the lender in December 1999. The value of the
warrants was calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model and was deemed insignificant. In August 2005, these warrants were
exercised by the lender in a cashless exercise, yielding 1,333 shares of common stock on a net basis.

The Company issued warrants to purchase 244,000 of common stock to Kingsbridge in connection with the CEFF that was entered
into in October 2005. The warrants are exercisable at a price of $9.13 per share beginning six months after the date of grant and for a
period of five years thereafter. The warrants were valued at $920,000 using the Black-Scholes pricing model and the following
assumptions: a contractual term of five years, risk-free interest rate of 4.3%, volatility of 67%, and the fair value of our stock price on the
date of performance commitment, October 28, 2005, of $7.02. The warrant value was recorded as an issuance cost in additional paid-in
capital on the initial draw down of the CEFF in December 2005. These warrants are vested and fully exercisable as of December 31, 2008.

The Company issued warrants to purchase 230,000 shares of common stock to Kingsbridge in connection with the 2007 CEFF. The
warrants are exercisable at a price of $7.99 per share beginning six months after the date of grant and for a period of three years thereafter.
The warrants were valued at $594,000 using the Black-Scholes pricing model and the following assumptions: a contractual term of three
years, risk-free interest rate of 4.275%, volatility of 73%, and the fair value of the Company’s stock price on the date of performance
commitment, October 15, 2007, of $6.00. The warrant value will be recorded as an issuance cost in additional paid-in capital on the
initial draw down of the 2007 CEFF. These warrants are vested and fully exercisable as of December 31, 2008.

Outstanding warrants were as follows at December 31, 2008:

Number   Exercise   Expiration  
of Shares   Price   Date  

 244,000  $ 9.13   04/28/11 
 230,000  $ 7.99   04/15/11 

Stock Option Plans

2004 Plan

In January 2004, the Board of Directors adopted the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”), which was approved by the
stockholders in February 2004. The 2004 Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options, restricted
stock, stock appreciation rights, stock performance units and stock performance shares to employees, directors and consultants. Under
the 2004 Plan, options may be granted at prices not lower than 85% and 100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of
grant for nonstatutory stock options and incentive stock options, respectively. Options granted to new employees generally vest 25% after
one year and monthly thereafter over a period of four years. Options granted to existing employees generally vest monthly over a period of
four years. On January 1, 2008, the number of authorized shares automatically increased by a number of shares equal to the lesser of
(i) 1,500,000 shares, (ii) 3.5% of the outstanding shares on such date, or (iii) an amount determined by the Board of Directors.
Accordingly, on January 1, 2008, the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2004 Plan was increased to a
total of 2,997,296 shares. At the May
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2008 Annual Stockholder Meeting, the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the 2004 Plan was increased by
2,000,000. The stockholders also approved an amended and restated 2004 Plan that eliminated the automatic increase provision. As of
December 31, 2008, 8,491,935 shares of common stock were authorized for issuance under the 2004 Plan.

1997 Plan

In 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan (the “1997 Plan”). The Plan provides for the granting
of stock options to employees and consultants of the Company. Options granted under the 1997 Plan may be either incentive stock
options or nonstatutory stock options. Incentive stock options may be granted only to Company employees (including officers and
directors who are also employees). Nonstatutory stock options may be granted to Company employees and consultants. Options under the
Plan may be granted for terms of up to ten years from the date of grant as determined by the Board of Directors, provided, however, that
(i) the exercise price of an incentive stock option and nonstatutory shall not be less than 100% and 85% of the estimated fair market value
of the shares on the date of grant, respectively, and (ii) with respect to any 10% shareholder, the exercise price of an incentive stock option
or nonstatutory stock option shall not be less than 110% of the estimated fair market value of the shares on the date of grant and the term
of the grant shall not exceed five years. Options may be exercisable immediately and are subject to repurchase options held by the
Company which lapse over a maximum period of ten years at such times and under such conditions as determined by the Board of
Directors. To date, options granted generally vest over four or five years (generally 25% after one year and monthly thereafter). As of
December 31, 2008, the Company had reserved 1,073,399 shares of common stock for issuance related to options outstanding under the
1997 Plan, and there were no shares available for future grants under the 1997 Plan.

Activity under the two stock option plans was as follows:

  Shares      Weighted  
  Available for      Average Exercise  
  Grant of Option   Stock Options   Price per Share  
  or Award   Outstanding   Stock Options  

Options authorized   1,000,000   —  $ — 
Options granted   (833,194)   833,194   0.20 
Options exercised   —   (147,625)   0.20 
Options forfeited   —   —   — 

Balance at December 31, 1998   166,806   685,569   0.12 
Increase in authorized shares   461,945   —   — 
Options granted   (582,750)   582,750   0.39 
Options exercised   —   (287,500)   0.24 
Options forfeited   50,625   (50,625)   0.20 

Balance at December 31, 1999   96,626   930,194   0.25 
Increase in authorized shares   1,704,227   —   — 
Options granted   (967,500)   967,500   0.58 
Options exercised   —   (731,661)   0.27 
Options forfeited   68,845   (68,845)   0.30 

Balance at December 31, 2000   902,198   1,097,188   0.52 
Options granted   (525,954)   525,954   1.12 
Options exercised   —   (102,480)   0.55 
Options forfeited   109,158   (109,158)   0.67 
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  Shares      Weighted  
  Available for      Average Exercise  
  Grant of Option   Stock Options   Price per Share  
  or Award   Outstanding   Stock Options  

Balance at December 31, 2001   485,402   1,411,504   0.73 
Increase in authorized shares   1,250,000   —   — 
Options granted   (932,612)   932,612   1.20 
Options exercised   —   (131,189)   0.64 
Options forfeited   152,326   (152,326)   0.78 

Balance at December 31, 2002   955,116   2,060,601   0.95 
Options granted   (613,764)   613,764   1.39 
Options exercised   —   (380,662)   1.02 
Options forfeited   49,325   (49,325)   0.89 

Balance at December 31, 2003   390,677   2,244,378   1.06 
Increase in authorized shares   1,600,000   —   — 
Options granted   (863,460)   863,460   7.52 
Options exercised   —   (404,618)   1.12 
Options forfeited   74,025   (58,441)   3.64 
Options retired   (36,128)   —   — 

Balance at December 31, 2004   1,165,114   2,644,779   3.10 
Increase in authorized shares   995,861   —   — 
Options granted   (996,115)   996,115   7.23 
Options exercised   —   (196,703)   1.48 
Options forfeited   182,567   (161,958)   5.89 

Balance at December 31, 2005   1,347,427   3,282,233   4.31 
Increase in authorized shares   1,039,881   —   — 
Options granted   (1,250,286)   1,250,286   7.04 
Options exercised   —   (354,502)   1.47 
Options forfeited   146,854   (145,317)   7.16 

Balance at December 31, 2006   1,283,876   4,032,700   5.31 
Increase in authorized shares   1,500,000   —   — 
Options granted   (1,647,570)   1,647,570   6.65 
Options exercised   —   (259,054)   1.95 
Options forfeited   360,990   (360,922)   6.94 

Balance at December 31, 2007   1,497,296   5,060,294   5.80 
Increase in authorized shares   3,500,000   —   — 
Options granted   (1,731,594)   1,731,594   3.41 
Restricted stock awards granted   (397,960)   —   — 
Options exercised   —   (95,796)   1.36 
Options forfeited   720,876   (720,876)   5.79 
Restricted stock awards forfeited   1,500   —   — 

Balance at December 31, 2008   3,590,118   5,975,216   5.18 
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The options outstanding and currently exercisable by exercise price at December 31, 2008 were as follows:

  Options Outstanding   Vested and Exercisable  
     Weighted   Weighted Average      Weighted  
  Number of   Average   Remaining Contractual   Number of   Average  
Range of Exercise Price  Options   Exercise Price   Life (Years)   Options   Exercise Price  

$0.20 — $1.00   276,175  $ 0.59   1.57   276,175  $ 0.59 
$1.20   603,184  $ 1.20   3.76   603,184  $ 1.20 
$2.00 — $3.33   293,892  $ 2.95   8.05   82,092  $ 2.00 
$3.37   1,146,101  $ 3.37   9.12   240,497  $ 3.37 
$3.45 — $6.50   674,255  $ 5.33   7.28   444,254  $ 5.82 
$6.55 — $6.78   342,000  $ 6.59   6.83   308,924  $ 6.59 
$6.81   1,029,407  $ 6.81   8.16   451,913  $ 6.81 
$6.88 — $7.15   1,104,269  $ 7.09   6.97   800,593  $ 7.09 
$7.29 — $9.95   498,433  $ 9.14   6.25   461,101  $ 9.24 
$10.12   7,500  $ 10.12   5.67   7,500  $ 10.12 
   5,975,216  $ 5.18   7.03   3,676,233  $ 5.32 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2008 was $2.06 per share. The
total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2008 was $0.2 million. The aggregate intrinsic value of
options outstanding and options exercisable as of December 31, 2008 was $1.7 million and $1.7 million, respectively. The intrinsic value
is calculated as the difference between the market value as of December 31, 2008 and the exercise price of shares. The market value as of
December 31, 2008 was $2.85 as reported by NASDAQ. As of December 31, 2008 the total number of options vested and expected to
vest was 5,893,517 with a weighted average exercise price of $5.19 per share, aggregate intrinsic value of $1.7 million and weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.01 years.

As of December 31, 2007, there were 2,897,840 options outstanding, exercisable and vested at a weighted average exercise price of
$5.03 per share. As of December 31, 2006, there were 2,240,233 options outstanding, exercisable and vested at a weighted average
exercise price of $4.00 per share. The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted in the years ended December 31, 2008,
2007, and 2006 was $2.06, $4.50 and $4.88, respectively.

Restricted stock award activity was as follows:

     Weighted  
     Average Award  
  Number of   Date Fair Value per  
  Shares   Share  

Restricted stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2007   —  $ — 
Awards granted   397,960   2.37 
Options forfeited   (1,500)   2.37 

Restricted stock awards outstanding at December 31, 2008   396,460   2.37 
Vested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2008   —   — 

The Company measures compensation expense for restricted stock awards at fair value on the date of grant and recognizes the
expense over the expected vesting period. The fair value for restricted stock awards is based on the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. Unvested restricted stock awards are subject to repurchase at no cost to the Company. All the
outstanding restricted stock awards vest annually over an
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approximately two-year period. As of December 31, 2008, there was $0.8 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
restricted stock awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

Stock-based Compensation

Deferred Employee Stock-Based Compensation

In anticipation of its 2004 IPO, the Company determined that, for financial reporting purposes, the estimated value of its common
stock was in excess of the exercise prices of its stock options. Accordingly, for stock options issued to employees prior to its IPO, the
Company recorded deferred stock-based compensation and is amortizing the related expense on a straight line basis over the service
period, which is generally four years. The Company recorded deferred employee stock compensation of $6.2 million for the period from
August 5, 1997 (date of inception) through December 31, 2007. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company
recorded no deferred stock compensation. For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company recorded amortization of
deferred stock-based compensation of $0.3 million, $0.7 million, and $1.2 million, respectively, in connection with options granted to
employees. As of December 31, 2008, the deferred compensation was fully amortized.

Non-employee Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock option grants to non-employees in accordance with the EITF Consensus No. 96-18, “Accounting
for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or
Services,” which requires that these equity instruments are recorded at their fair value on the measurement date. The measurement of
stock-based compensation is subject to adjustment as the underlying equity instruments vest.

There were no stock option grants to non-employees in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 or 2006. When terminating
employees continue to provide service to the Company as consultants, the expense associated with the continued vesting of the related
stock options is classified as non-employee stock compensation expense after the status change.

In connection with services rendered by non-employees, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense of $27,000,
$14,000 and $27,000 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, and $1.4 million for the period from August 5, 1997 (date of inception)
through December 31, 2008.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”)

In January 2004, the Board of Directors adopted the ESPP, which was approved by the stockholders in February 2004. Under the
ESPP, statutory employees may purchase common stock of the Company up to a specified maximum amount through payroll
deductions. The stock is purchased semi-annually at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value at certain plan-defined dates. The
Company issued 164,451, 179,835 and 193,248 shares of common stock during 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, pursuant to the
ESPP at an average price of $2.85 per share, $4.49 per share and $4.43 per share, in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. At
December 31, 2008 the Company had 713,547 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the ESPP.

Note 11 — Income Taxes

The Company did not record an income tax provision in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 because the Company
had a net taxable loss in each of those periods.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The significant components of the Company’s deferred tax
assets and liabilities were as follows (in thousands):

  As of December 31,  
  2008   2007  

Deferred tax assets:         
Depreciation and amortization  $ 11,855  $ 10,213 
Reserves and accruals   11,343   973 
Net operating losses   104,891   95,706 
Tax credits   16,511   13,761 

Total deferred tax assets   144,600   120,653 
Less: Valuation allowance   (144,600)   (120,653)
Net deferred tax assets  $ —  $ — 

Following is a reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate:

  
For The Years Ended

December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006  

Tax at federal statutory tax rate   (34)%  (34)%  (34)%
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit   (6)%  (6)%  (6)%
Research and development credits   (5)%  (5)%  (5)%
Adjustment to prior year research and development credits due to results of research and development

credit study   —   2%   — 
Adjustment due to Section 383 limitation   —   2%   — 
Deferred tax assets not benefited   43%   38%   43%
Stock based compensation   2%   3%   2%

Total  $ 0%  $ 0%  $ 0%

Management believes that, based upon a number of factors, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized;
therefore a full valuation allowance has been recorded. The valuation allowance increased by $23.9 million in 2008, $18.3 million in
2007 and $26.1 million in 2006.

The Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $292.1 million and state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $95.4 million at December 31, 2008. If not utilized, the federal and state operating loss carryforwards
will begin to expire in various amounts beginning 2018 and 2010, respectively. Due to California state’s temporary suspension of net
operating losses in 2008 and 2009, the state carryover period will be extended by two additional years for an net operating losses sustained
in pre-2008 tax years. The net operating loss carryforwards include deductions for stock options. When utilized, the portion related to
stock options deductions will be accounted for as a credit to stockholders’ equity rather than as a reduction of the income tax provision.

The Company had research credit carryforwards of approximately $9.2 million and $10.6 million for federal and state income tax
purposes, respectively, at December 31, 2008. If not utilized, the federal carryforwards will expire in various amounts beginning in 2018.
The California state credit can be carried forward indefinitely.
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The Tax Reform Act of 1986 limits the use of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards in certain situations where equity
transactions resulted in a change of ownership as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 382. During the year ended December 31,
2007, the Company conducted a study and determined that the Company’s use of its federal research credit is subject to such a
restriction. Accordingly, the Company reduced its deferred tax assets and the corresponding valuation allowance by $0.8 million. As a
result, the research credit amount as of December 31, 2007 reflects the restriction on the Company’s ability to use the credit.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48 which prescribes a comprehensive model for how companies should recognize, measure,
present, and disclose in their financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, tax
positions must initially be recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon
examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions must initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit
that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position
and relevant facts. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.

This statement became effective for the Company on January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 on January 1, 2007
resulted in no FIN 48 liability on the balance sheet. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption was
$3.1 million. The Company is currently not subject to income tax examinations. In general, the statute of limitations for tax liabilities for
these years remains open for purpose of adjusting the amounts of the losses and credits carried forward from those years.

Interest and penalties were zero for 2008, and the Company’s policy to account for interest and penalties is to classify both as
income tax expense in the financial statements. Because the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance on all its deferred tax assets,
FIN 48 has had no impact on the Company’s effective tax rate. The Company does not expect its unrecognized tax benefits to change
materially over the next 12 months.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits (“UTBs”) for the year ended December 31,
2008 (in thousands):

  Federal   Federal Tax Benefit   Unrecognized Income Tax  
  and State   of State Income Tax   Benefits- Net of Federal  
  Tax   UTBs   Benefit of State UTBs  

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 1, 2007  $ 3,129  $ 566  $ 2,563 
Reduction for tax positions of prior years   (232)   96   (328)
Addition for tax positions related to the current year   644   130   514 

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31, 2007  $ 3,541  $ 792  $ 2,749 
Reduction for tax positions of prior years   —   —   — 
Addition for tax positions related to the current year   694   137   557 

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31, 2008  $ 4,235  $ 929  $ 3,306 
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Note 12 — Interest and Other, Net

Components of interest and other, net are as follows:

           Period from  
           August 5, 1997  
           (Date of  
           Inception) to  
  Years Ended December 31,   December 31,  
  2008   2007   2006   2008  
  (In thousands, except per share data)  

Unrealized gain on put option (Note 3)  $ 3,389  $ —  $ —  $ 3,389 
Unrealized loss on trading securities (Note 3)   (3,389)   —   —   (3,389)
Interest income and other income   3,196   8,292   4,746   27,939 
Interest expense and other expense   (491)   (699)   (523)   (5,360)

Interest and other, net  $ 2,705  $7,593  $ 4,223  $ 22,579 

Investments that the Company designates as trading securities are reported at fair value, with gains or losses resulting from changes
in fair value recognized in earnings and are included in interest and other, net. The Company classified its investments in ARS as trading
securities as of December 31, 2008.

The Company elected to measure the ARS Rights at fair value under SFAS 159 to mitigate volatility in reported earnings due to its
linkage to the ARS. As of December 31, 2008, the Company recorded $3.4 million as fair value of the put option assets, classified as
long-term asset on the Balance Sheet as December 31, 2008, with a corresponding credit to interest and other, net.

Interest income and other income consists primarily of interest income generated from our cash, cash equivalents and investments.
Interest expense and other expense primarily consists of interest expense on borrowings under the Company’s equipment financing lines.

Note 13 — Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly results were as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

  First   Second   Third   Fourth  
  Quarter   Quarter   Quarter   Quarter  

2008                 
Total revenues  $ 3,069  $ 3,074  $ 3,125  $ 3,151 
Net loss   (13,895)   (15,364)   (16,259)   (10,856)
Net loss per share — basic and diluted  $ (0.28)  $ (0.31)  $ (0.33)  $ (0.22)

2007                 
Total revenues  $ 3,205  $ 3,177  $ 4,130  $ 3,109 
Net loss   (11,692)   (12,628)   (11,321)   (13,253)
Net loss per share — basic and diluted  $ (0.25)  $ (0.27)  $ (0.24)  $ (0.27)

Note 14 — Subsequent Events

In January 2009, GE Capital approved a reduction in the amount of our certificate of deposit of $0.5 million (See Note 8
“Equipment Financing Line” and Note 1 “Organization and Significant Accounting Policies — Restricted Cash.”)

UBS “no net cost” loan.   In October 2008, The Company accepted an offer of settlement with UBS AG relating to certain ARS
marketed and sold by UBS AG and its affiliates. Pursuant to the settlement, UBS AG has
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issued to the Company the ARS Rights, which provide the Company the right to receive the par value of its ARS, i.e., the liquidation
preference of the ARS plus accrued but unpaid interest. Pursuant to the ARS Rights, the Company may require UBS to purchase its ARS
at par value at any time between June 30, 2010 and July 2, 2012. In addition, UBS or its affiliates may sell or otherwise dispose of some
or all of the ARS at its discretion at any time prior to expiration of the ARS Rights, subject to the obligation to pay the Company the par
value of such ARS. The ARS Rights are not transferable, tradable or marginable, and will not be listed or quoted on any securities
exchange or any electronic communications network. As consideration for the ARS Rights, the Company agreed to release UBS AG, UBS
Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services, Inc., and/or their affiliates, directors, and officers from any claims directly or indirectly
relating to the marketing and sale of the ARS, other than for consequential damages.

In connection with the settlement, the Company entered into a loan agreement with UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial Services
Inc. On January 5, 2009, the Company borrowed approximately $12.4 million under the loan agreement, with the Company’s ARS held
in accounts with UBS and its affiliates as collateral. The loan amount was based on 75% of the fair value as assessed by UBS at the
time of the loan. The Company has drawn down the full amount available under the loan agreement. The amount of interest payable
under the loan agreement is intended to equal the amount of interest the Company would otherwise receive with respect to its ARS. The
borrowings under the loan agreement are payable upon demand. However, UBS Financial Services Inc. or its affiliates will provide to the
Company alternative financing on terms and conditions substantially the same as those under the loan agreement unless the demand right
was exercised as a result of certain specified events or the customer relationship between UBS and the Company is terminated for cause
by UBS. If such alternative financing cannot be established, then a UBS affiliate will purchase the pledged ARS at par value. Proceeds of
sales of the ARS will first be applied to repayment of the loan with the balance, if any, for the Company’s account.

Kingsbridge draw down.   As of March 11, 2009, we have received gross proceeds of $6.7 million from draw downs and sold
3,439,032 shares of our common stock to Kingsbridge under the 2007 CEFF. Kingsbridge is not obligated to purchase any further shares
under this committed equity financing facility unless certain conditions are met, which include a minimum volume weighted average
price of $2.00 for our common stock.
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Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.  Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under
the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that
information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.  Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Our management
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008. In making this assessment, our
management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2008, our internal control over financial reporting is
effective based on these criteria.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has audited the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, as stated in their report, which is included herein.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting.  There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

In September 2008, David J. Morgans, Jr., Ph.D., our Executive Vice President, Preclinical Research and Development, established a
stock trading plan that provides for the exercise of options to purchase up to 185,361 shares of our common stock and the sale of up to
269,861 shares of our common stock on pre-determined dates from November 1, 2008 through May 31, 2010.

In February 2009, Robert I. Blum, our President and Chief Executive Officer, established a stock trading plan that provides for the
exercise of options to purchase up to 75,000 shares of our common stock and the sale of up to 75,000 shares of our common stock on
pre-determined dates from March 16, 2009 through February 18, 2010.

On February 19, 2009, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed Dr. John T. Henderson as a new Class III director of the
Company. Dr. Henderson is expected to be appointed to serve on the Company’s Nominating and Governance Committee and
Compensation and Talent Committee. Also on February 19, 2009, Stephen Dow was appointed as the Lead Outside Director of the Board
of Directors.

On February 25, 2009, we announced that we believe we completed the delivery to Amgen of the Phase I and Phase IIa clinical trials
data for CK-1827452 required to define the date by which Amgen’s option to acquire an exclusive license to CK-1827452 will expire if
not exercised.

In March 2009, we entered into an Amendment No. 1 to our Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement with each of
Robert I. Blum, David J. Morgans, Jr., Sharon Barbari, Michael Rabson, Andrew A. Wolff and David W. Cragg, each in substantially
the form filed as Exhibit 10.68 to this report. These amendments were entered into in order to comply with Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code and its regulations.
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PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information regarding our directors and executive officers, our director nominating process and our audit committee is
incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, where it appears under the
headings “Board of Directors” and “Executive Officers.”

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information regarding our Section 16 beneficial ownership reporting compliance is incorporated by reference from our definitive
Proxy Statement described above, where it appears under the headings “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees of the Company. We publicize the Code of
Ethics through posting the policy on our website, http://www.cytokinetics.com. We will disclose on our website any waivers of, or
amendments to, our Code of Ethics.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement referred to in Item 10 above,
where it appears under the headings “Executive Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated by
reference from our definitive Proxy Statement referred to in Item 10 above, where it appears under the heading “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

The following table summarizes the securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans as of December 31,
2008:

  Number of Securities      Number of Securities  
  to be Issued   Weighted Average   Remaining Available  
  Upon Exercise of   Exercise Price of   for Future Issuance  
  Outstanding Options,   Outstanding Options,   Under Equity  
Plan Category  Warrants and Rights   Warrants and Rights   Compensation Plans  

Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders   5,975,216  $ 5.18   3,590,118 
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders   —   —   — 

Total   5,975,216  $ 5.18   3,590,118 

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement referred to in Item 10 above
where it appears under the headings “Certain Business Relationships and Related Party Transactions” and “Board of Directors.”

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement referred to in Item 10 above,
where it appears under the heading “Principal Accountant Fees and Services.”
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

(1) Financial Statements (included in Part II of this report):

 • Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 • Balance Sheets

 • Statements of Operations

 • Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

 • Statements of Cash Flows

 • Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

  Balance at              
  Beginning of   Charged to   Charged to      Balance at  
  Period   Expenses   other accounts   Deductions   End of Period  

Year Ended December 31, 2006                     
Deferred tax valuation allowance  $ 76,209   26,105   —   —  $ 102,314 

Year Ended December 31, 2007                     
Deferred tax valuation allowance  $ 102,314   18,339   —   —  $ 120,653 

Year Ended December 31, 2008                     
Deferred tax valuation allowance  $ 120,653   23,947   —   —  $ 144,600 

(3) Exhibits:

Exhibit   
Number 

D e s c r i p t i o n

 3.1  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.(1)
 3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws.(1)
 4.1  Specimen Common Stock Certificate.(2)
 4.2

 
Fourth Amended and Restated Investors Rights Agreement, dated March 21, 2003, by and among the Company and certain
stockholders of the Registrant.(1)

 4.3
 

Master Security Agreement, dated February 2, 2001, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital
Corporation.(1)

 4.4  Cross-Collateral and Cross-Default Agreement by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(1)
 4.5

 
Warrant for the purchase of shares of common stock, dated October 28, 2005, issued by the Company to Kingsbridge
Capital Limited.(3)

 4.6  Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 28, 2005, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital Limited.(3)
 4.7  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(4)
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Exhibit   
Number 

D e s c r i p t i o n

 4.8
 

Warrant for the purchase of shares of common stock, dated October 15, 2007, issued by the Company to Kingsbridge
Capital Limited.(5)

 4.9  Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 15, 2007, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital Limited.(5)
 10.1  1997 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan.(1)
 10.2  2004 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated of May 22, 2008).(6)
 10.3  2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(1)
 10.4

 
Build-to-Suit Lease, dated May 27, 1997, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and Metaxen,
LLC.(1)

 10.5
 

First Amendment to Lease, dated April 13, 1998, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and
Metaxen, LLC.(1)

 10.6  Sublease Agreement, dated May 1, 1998, by and between the Company and Metaxen, LLC.(1)
 10.7  Sublease Agreement, dated March 1, 1999, by and between Metaxen, LLC and Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(1)
 10.8

 
Assignment and Assumption Agreement and Consent, dated July 11, 1999, by and among Exelixis Pharmaceuticals,
Metaxen, LLC, Xenova Group PLC and Britannia Pointe Grande Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.9
 

Second Amendment to Lease, dated July 11, 1999, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and
Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(1)

 10.10  First Amendment to Sublease Agreement, dated July 20, 1999, by and between the Company and Metaxen, LLC.(1)
 10.11

 
Agreement and Consent, dated July 20, 1999, by and among Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., the Company and Britannia
Pointe Grand Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.12
 

Amendment to Agreement and Consent, dated July 31, 2000, by and between the Company, Exelixis, Inc., and Britannia
Pointe Grande Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.13  Assignment and Assumption of Lease, dated September 28, 2000, by and between the Company and Exelixis, Inc.(1)
 10.14  Sublease Agreement, dated September 28, 2000, by and between the Company and Exelixis, Inc.(1)
 10.15  Sublease Agreement, dated December 29, 1999, by and between the Company and COR Therapeutics, Inc.(1)
 *10.16

 
Exclusive License Agreement between The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University, The Regents of the
University of California, and the Company dated April 21, 1998.(1)

 10.17
 

Modification Agreement between The Regents of the University of California, The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford
Junior University and the Company, dated September 1, 2000.(1)

 10.18
 

Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Wellcome
International B.V.(1)

 10.19
 

Amendment No. 1 to Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 2, 2003, by and among the Company,
Glaxo Wellcome International B.V. and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.20  Collaboration and License Agreement, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 *10.21  Memorandum, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 *10.22

 
Letter Amendment, dated October 28, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.23
 

Letter Amendment, dated November 5, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company
and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.24
 

Letter Amendment, dated December 13, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company
and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
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Exhibit   
Number 

D e s c r i p t i o n

 *10.25
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 11, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.26
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.27
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.28
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 10.29  Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 10, 2004, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 10.30  David J. Morgans and Sandra Morgans Promissory Note, dated October 18, 2000.(1)
 10.31  James H. Sabry and Sandra J. Spence Promissory Note, dated November 12, 2001.(1)
 10.32  David J. Morgans and Sandra Morgans Promissory Note, dated May 20, 2002.(1)
 10.33  Robert I. Blum Cash Bonus Agreement, dated September 1, 2002.(1)
 10.34  David J. Morgans Cash Bonus Agreement, dated September 1, 2002.(1)
 10.35  Robert I. Blum Amended and Restated Cash Bonus Agreement, dated December 1, 2003.(1)
 10.36  David J. Morgans Amended and Restated Cash Bonus Agreement, dated December 1, 2003.(1)
 *10.37

 
Collaboration and Facilities Agreement, dated August 19, 2004, by and between the Company and Portola Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.(7)

 *10.38
 

First Amendment, dated March 24, 2005, to the Collaboration and Facilities Agreement by and between the Company and
Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(8)

 *10.39
 

Amendment, dated September 21, 2005, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(9)

 10.40
 

Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 28, 2005, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(3)

 10.41  Sublease, dated November 29, 2005, by and between the Company and Millennium Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(10)
 10.42

 
Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 18, 2006, by and among the Company, Federated Kaufmann Fund and Red
Abbey Venture Partners, LLC.(11)

 10.43  Letter Agreement dated January 17, 2006, by and between the Company and Pacific Growth Equities LLC.(11)
 10.44  Loan Proposal, executed January 18, 2006, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(3)
 10.45  Loan Proposal, executed March 16, 2006, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(12)
 *10.46

 
Second Amendment, dated March 17, 2006, to the Collaboration and Facilities Agreement by and between the Company
and Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(12)

 *10.47
 

Letter Amendment, dated June 16, 2006, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(13)

 10.48  Sub-Sublease Agreement, dated August 4, 2006, by and between the Company and Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(14)
 *10.49

 
Amendment, dated November 27, 2006, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(15)

 10.50  Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(4)
 *10.51  Collaboration and Option Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(16)
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Number 

D e s c r i p t i o n

 *10.52
 

Letter Amendment, dated June 18, 2007, to Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and Glaxo
Group Limited.(17)

 10.53  Loan Proposal, executed August 28, 2007, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(18)
 10.54

 
Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2007, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(5)

 *10.55
 

Letter Amendment, dated March 11, 2008, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.

 *10.56
 

Letter Amendment, dated June 18, 2008, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(19)

 10.57  Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of its directors and executive officers.(6)
 *10.58

 
Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement, dated April 1, 2008, by and between the Company and James. H.
Sabry.(20)

 10.59 Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by and between the Company and Michael Rabson.(20)
 10.60

 
Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 21, 2007, by and between the Company and Robert
Blum.(6)

 10.61  Form of Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and its executive officers.(6)
 *10.62

 
Amendment No. 1, dated June 17, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 *10.63
 

Amendment No. 2, dated September 30, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company
and Amgen Inc.

 10.64  Acceptance of UBS AG Settlement Offer Relating to Auction Rate Securities dated October 27, 2008.
 *10.65

 
Amendment No. 3, dated October 31, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 10.66
 

Credit Line Agreement, effective December 30, 2008, by and among the Company, UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial
Services Inc.

 *10.67
 

Amendment No. 4, dated February 20, 2009, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 10.68  Form of Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreements.
 23.1  Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
 24.1  Power of Attorney (see page 116).
 31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 32.1

 
Certifications of the Principal Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350).

(1) Incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1, registration number 333-112261, declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2004.

(2) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 9,
2007.

(3) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 20, 2006.

(4) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 3,
2007.

(5) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 15, 2007.
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(6) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 5, 2008

(7) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 12, 2004, as amended February 16, 2005.

(8) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 12, 2005.

(9) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 10, 2005.

(10) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 5, 2005, as amended on December 13, 2005.

(11) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 18, 2006.

(12) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22,
2006.

(13) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19,
2006.

(14) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 8, 2006.

(15) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 27, 2006.

(16) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12,
2007.

(17) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19,
2007.

(18) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 29,
2007.

(19) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 20,
2008, as amended June 20, 2008.

(20) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2,
2008.

* Pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, portions of this Exhibit have been redacted from the publicly filed document and
have been furnished separately to the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 406 under the Securities Act of
1933 or Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable.

(b) Exhibits

The exhibits listed under Item 15(a)(3) hereof are filed as part of this Form 10-K, other than Exhibit 32.1 which shall be deemed
furnished.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other financial statement schedules are omitted because the information is inapplicable or presented in the notes to the financial
statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED

 By: /s/  Robert I. Blum
Robert I. Blum
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dated: March 12, 2009

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints
Robert I. Blum and Sharon A. Barbari, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for
him in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of
said attorneys-in-fact or their substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature  
T i t l e

 Date

/s/  Robert I. Blum
Robert I. Blum  

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)  

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  Sharon A. Barbari
Sharon A. Barbari  

Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Executive)  

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  James Sabry, M.D., Ph.D.
James Sabry, M.D., Ph.D.  

Chairman of the Board of Directors
 

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  Stephen Dow
Stephen Dow  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  A. Grant Heidrich, III
A. Grant Heidrich, III  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

       

John T. Henderson  
Director

 
 

       
/s/  Denise M. Gilbert
Denise M. Gilbert  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  Mark McDade
Mark McDade  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  Michael Schmertzler
Michael Schmertzler  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

       
/s/  James A. Spudich, Ph.D
James A. Spudich, Ph.D  

Director
 

March 12, 2009

116



Table of Contents

Exhibit   
Number 

D e s c r i p t i o n

 3.1  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.(1)
 3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws.(1)
 4.1  Specimen Common Stock Certificate.(2)
 4.2

 
Fourth Amended and Restated Investors Rights Agreement, dated March 21, 2003, by and among the Company and certain
stockholders of the Registrant.(1)

 4.3
 

Master Security Agreement, dated February 2, 2001, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital
Corporation.(1)

 4.4  Cross-Collateral and Cross-Default Agreement by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(1)
 4.5

 
Warrant for the purchase of shares of common stock, dated October 28, 2005, issued by the Company to Kingsbridge
Capital Limited.(3)

 4.6  Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 28, 2005, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital Limited.(3)
 4.7  Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(4)
 4.8

 
Warrant for the purchase of shares of common stock, dated October 15, 2007, issued by the Company to Kingsbridge
Capital Limited.(5)

 4.9  Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 15, 2007, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital Limited.(5)
 10.1  1997 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan.(1)
 10.2  2004 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated of May 22, 2008).(6)
 10.3  2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(1)
 10.4

 
Build-to-Suit Lease, dated May 27, 1997, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and Metaxen,
LLC.(1)

 10.5
 

First Amendment to Lease, dated April 13, 1998, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and
Metaxen, LLC.(1)

 10.6  Sublease Agreement, dated May 1, 1998, by and between the Company and Metaxen, LLC.(1)
 10.7  Sublease Agreement, dated March 1, 1999, by and between Metaxen, LLC and Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(1)
 10.8

 
Assignment and Assumption Agreement and Consent, dated July 11, 1999, by and among Exelixis Pharmaceuticals,
Metaxen, LLC, Xenova Group PLC and Britannia Pointe Grande Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.9
 

Second Amendment to Lease, dated July 11, 1999, by and between Britannia Pointe Grand Limited Partnership and
Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(1)

 10.10  First Amendment to Sublease Agreement, dated July 20, 1999, by and between the Company and Metaxen, LLC.(1)
 10.11

 
Agreement and Consent, dated July 20, 1999, by and among Exelixis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., the Company and Britannia
Pointe Grand Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.12
 

Amendment to Agreement and Consent, dated July 31, 2000, by and between the Company, Exelixis, Inc., and Britannia
Pointe Grande Limited Partnership.(1)

 10.13  Assignment and Assumption of Lease, dated September 28, 2000, by and between the Company and Exelixis, Inc.(1)
 10.14  Sublease Agreement, dated September 28, 2000, by and between the Company and Exelixis, Inc.(1)
 10.15  Sublease Agreement, dated December 29, 1999, by and between the Company and COR Therapeutics, Inc.(1)
 *10.16

 
Exclusive License Agreement between The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior University, The Regents of the
University of California, and the Company dated April 21, 1998.(1)

 10.17
 

Modification Agreement between The Regents of the University of California, The Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford
Junior University and the Company, dated September 1, 2000.(1)
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 10.18
 

Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Wellcome
International B.V.(1)

 10.19
 

Amendment No. 1 to Series D Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 2, 2003, by and among the Company,
Glaxo Wellcome International B.V. and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.20  Collaboration and License Agreement, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 *10.21  Memorandum, dated June 20, 2001, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 *10.22

 
Letter Amendment, dated October 28, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.23
 

Letter Amendment, dated November 5, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company
and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.24
 

Letter Amendment, dated December 13, 2002, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company
and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.25
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 11, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.26
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.27
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 *10.28
 

Letter Amendment, dated July 28, 2003, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(1)

 10.29  Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 10, 2004, by and between the Company and Glaxo Group Limited.(1)
 10.30  David J. Morgans and Sandra Morgans Promissory Note, dated October 18, 2000.(1)
 10.31  James H. Sabry and Sandra J. Spence Promissory Note, dated November 12, 2001.(1)
 10.32  David J. Morgans and Sandra Morgans Promissory Note, dated May 20, 2002.(1)
 10.33  Robert I. Blum Cash Bonus Agreement, dated September 1, 2002.(1)
 10.34  David J. Morgans Cash Bonus Agreement, dated September 1, 2002.(1)
 10.35  Robert I. Blum Amended and Restated Cash Bonus Agreement, dated December 1, 2003.(1)
 10.36  David J. Morgans Amended and Restated Cash Bonus Agreement, dated December 1, 2003.(1)
 *10.37

 
Collaboration and Facilities Agreement, dated August 19, 2004, by and between the Company and Portola Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.(7)

 *10.38
 

First Amendment, dated March 24, 2005, to the Collaboration and Facilities Agreement by and between the Company and
Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(8)

 *10.39
 

Amendment, dated September 21, 2005, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(9)

 10.40
 

Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 28, 2005, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(3)

 10.41  Sublease, dated November 29, 2005, by and between the Company and Millennium Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(10)
 10.42

 
Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 18, 2006, by and among the Company, Federated Kaufmann Fund and Red
Abbey Venture Partners, LLC.(11)

 10.43  Letter Agreement dated January 17, 2006, by and between the Company and Pacific Growth Equities LLC.(11)
 10.44  Loan Proposal, executed January 18, 2006, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(3)
 10.45  Loan Proposal, executed March 16, 2006, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(12)
 *10.46

 
Second Amendment, dated March 17, 2006, to the Collaboration and Facilities Agreement by and between the Company
and Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(12)
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 *10.47
 

Letter Amendment, dated June 16, 2006, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(13)

 10.48  Sub-Sublease Agreement, dated August 4, 2006, by and between the Company and Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.(14)
 *10.49

 
Amendment, dated November 27, 2006, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(15)

 10.50  Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(4)
 *10.51  Collaboration and Option Agreement, dated as of December 29, 2006, by and between the Company and Amgen Inc.(16)
 *10.52

 
Letter Amendment, dated June 18, 2007, to Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and Glaxo
Group Limited.(17)

 10.53  Loan Proposal, executed August 28, 2007, by and between the Company and General Electric Capital Corporation.(18)
 10.54

 
Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 15, 2007, by and between the Company and Kingsbridge Capital
Limited.(5)

 *10.55
 

Letter Amendment, dated March 11, 2008, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.

 *10.56
 

Letter Amendment, dated June 18, 2008, to the Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and
Glaxo Group Limited.(19)

 10.57  Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and each of its directors and executive officers.(6)
 *10.58

 
Scientific Advisory Board Consulting Agreement, dated April 1, 2008, by and between the Company and James. H.
Sabry.(20)

 10.59 Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, by and between the Company and Michael Rabson.(20)
 10.60

 
Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 21, 2007, by and between the Company and Robert
Blum.(6)

 10.61  Form of Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and its executive officers.(6)
 *10.62

 
Amendment No. 1, dated June 17, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 *10.63
 

Amendment No. 2, dated September 30, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company
and Amgen Inc.

 10.64  Acceptance of UBS AG Settlement Offer Relating to Auction Rate Securities dated October 27, 2008.
 *10.65

 
Amendment No. 3, dated October 31, 2008, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 10.66
 

Credit Line Agreement, effective December 30, 2008, by and among the Company, UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial
Services Inc.

 *10.67
 

Amendment No. 4, dated February 20, 2009, to the Collaboration and Option Agreement by and between the Company and
Amgen Inc.

 10.68  Form of Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreements.
 23.1  Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
 24.1  Power of Attorney (see page 116).
 31.1  Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 31.2  Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 32.1

 
Certifications of the Principal Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350).

(1) Incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-1, registration number 333-112261, declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2004.
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(2) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 9,
2007.

(3) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 20, 2006.

(4) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 3,
2007.

(5) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 15, 2007.

(6) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 5, 2008

(7) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 12, 2004, as amended February 16, 2005.

(8) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 12, 2005.

(9) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 10, 2005.

(10) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 5, 2005, as amended on December 13, 2005.

(11) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 18, 2006.

(12) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 22,
2006.

(13) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19,
2006.

(14) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 8, 2006.

(15) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 27, 2006.

(16) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12,
2007.

(17) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 19,
2007.

(18) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 29,
2007.

(19) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 20,
2008, as amended June 20, 2008.

(20) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2,
2008.

* Pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, portions of this Exhibit have been redacted from the publicly filed document and
have been furnished separately to the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 406 under the Securities Act of
1933 or Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable.



Exhibit 10.55

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) PURSUANT TO RULE
24B-2 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

CONFIDENTIAL

280 East Grand Avenue
South San Francisco, CA 94080
Tel (650) 624-3000 Fax (650) 624-3010

March 11, 2008

Vinod Ramachandran, Ph.D.
Alliance Management
Worldwide Business Development
2301 Renaissance Blvd.
Mailstop: RN0420
King of Prussia, PA 19406

Re: Amendment to Collaboration and License Agreement; [***]

Dear Dr. Ramachandran:

As you know, Glaxo Group Limited (“GSK”) and Cytokinetics, Inc. (“CK”) are parties to that certain Collaboration and License
Agreement dated June 20, 2001, as amended (the “Collaboration Agreement”).

The Parties agree that the last sentence of Section 8.2.1 of the Collaboration Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as
follows:

“Subject always to the foregoing, [***] will be responsible at the expense of [***] for drafting, filing, prosecuting and maintaining any
jointly owned Patent directed primarily to Compounds [***], including, but not limited to, processes for making Compounds [***],
methods of use of Compounds [***] or intermediates of such; provided that [***] may elect to request that [***] be responsible for
drafting, filing, prosecuting and maintaining any such Patent, subject to [***] in connection therewith.”

Except as specifically modified hereby, the Collaboration Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined have the meaning ascribed in the Collaboration Agreement.

Please have this letter countersigned by an authorized representative of GSK if you agree to the foregoing terms.
       
Sincerely,  Agreed and accepted:
       
/s/ Robert I. Blum  GLAXO GROUP LIMITED
       
  By:  /s/ Paul Williamson
    Name:  Paul Williamson
Robert I. Blum
President and Chief Executive Officer
Cytokinetics, Inc.  

Title: for and on behalf of Edinburgh Pharmaceutical Industries,
Limited, Corporate Director
Date:   20 March 2008

 
cc:

 
Lisa A. DeMarco, Esq., Vice President 
and Associate General Counsel,  

 
 

 

 
 

R&D Legal Operations, GlaxoSmithKline
Laura Madden, Esq., Patent Counsel, GlaxoSmithKline  

 
 

 

 



*** Certain information on the page has been omitted and filed separately with the Commission. Confidential treatment has been
requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) PURSUANT TO RULE
24b-2 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

Confidential

June 17, 2008

Andrew Gengos
Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development
Amgen Inc.
One Amgen Center Dr.
Thousand Oaks, CA 91320-1799

Re: Amendment No. 1 to Collaboration and Option Agreement

Dear Andrew,

As you know, Cytokinetics, Incorporated (“CK”) and Amgen Inc. (“Amgen”) are parties to that certain Collaboration and Option
Agreement dated December 29, 2006 (the “ Option Agreement”). By this letter amendment (this “ Amendment”), effective as of
June 17, 2008, CK and Amgen agree to amend the Option Agreement as follows:

 1.  Section 2.12.3.1(iii) of the Option Agreement is hereby replaced in its entirety by the following:

“(iii) reviewing CK’s progress against the activities set forth in the Development Plan and Schedule 10.2.1 and the
potential for Amgen to exercise the Amgen Option...”

 2.  Schedule 10.2.1 of the Option Agreement (Development Activities) is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as
attached hereto.

Except as expressly set forth herein, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Capitalized
terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meaning ascribed in the Option Agreement.

If the foregoing is acceptable and agreed to by Amgen, please so indicate by having an authorized representative of Amgen sign this
Amendment in the appropriate signature line below, and return such signed copy to Marjorie Wagman, Associate General Counsel,
at your earliest convenience. A duplicate original is enclosed for your records. If you have any questions or comments, please do not
hesitate to contact Marjorie at (650) 624-2925 or by email at mwagman@cytokinetics.com.
     
Sincerely,  Agreed and accepted:
     
/s/ Michael S. Rabson  Amgen Inc.
     
  By:  /s/ Andrew Gengos
Michael S. Rabson  Name: Andrew Gengos
Sr. Vice President, Business Development and Legal Affairs, and  Title:  Vice President
General Counsel  Date:  23 June 08
   
Amgen Contract No. 200625165-001  1

 



 

Confidential

Exhibit A

Schedule 10.2.1

Development Activities

[attached]
   
Amgen Contract No. 200625165-001  2

 



 

Confidential

SCHEDULE 10.2.1

(amended June 17, 2008)

Development Activities

[***]

 

*** Certain information on this page has been omitted and filed separately with the Commission. Confidential treatment has
been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

   
Amgen Contract No. 200625165-001  3

 



Exhibit 10.63

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED AND
FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) PURSUANT TO RULE 24b-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

September 30, 2008

Mr. Robert I. Blum, President and CEO
Cytokinetics, Incorporated
280 East Grand Avenue
South San Francisco, California 94080

  Re: Amendment Number Two to Collaboration and Option Agreement Amgen Reference Number: 200625165

Dear Robert:

I am writing to memorialize Amgen Inc.’s (“Amgen”) and Cytokinetics, Incorporated’s (“CK”) agreement with respect to certain research and/or development
activities to be conducted by or on behalf of Amgen (the “R&D”) as part of the parties’ collaboration under that certain Collaboration and Option Agreement,
Amgen contract number 200625165 effective December 29, 2006, which was subsequently amended effective June 27, 2008 by Amgen contract number
200625165-001, (collectively the “Option Agreement”). If you are in agreement, please sign and return this letter agreement to Richard Person at One Amgen
Center Drive, Thousand Oaks, CA 91230, MS 28-2-C. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning ascribed in the
Option Agreement.

1. Except as expressly set forth in this letter agreement, the terms and conditions of the Option Agreement shall apply to the R&D and all information,
documents and materials provided hereunder.

2. CK shall provide Amgen with (a) those materials requested by Amgen to conduct the R&D in accordance with the Research and Development Plan attached
hereto as Exhibit A (the “Plan”), including chemical and biological materials (to the extent that CK may do so without violating any Law or contractual
obligation), in amounts not to exceed those specified in the Plan; and (b) any available material safety data sheets for such materials and other documents
requested by Amgen to conduct the R&D in accordance with the Plan ((a) and (b) collectively, the “CK Materials”). Amgen shall not use any Amgen
Affiliate or Third Party to conduct any work in connection with the R&D, except as expressly stated in the Plan or as otherwise expressly agreed in writing
by CK. Amgen shall not, unless CK expressly agrees otherwise in writing: (i) perform or have performed any preclinical safety study with any CK
Materials, or (ii) perform or have performed any pharmacokinetics or drug metabolism study (regardless of whether such study is

Confidential
Contract #200625165-002

 



 

Cytokinetics, Incorporated
September 30, 2008
Page 2 of 14

  described in the Plan) with any CK Materials, except pursuant to a study protocol that CK has approved in writing in advance.

3. Except as set forth in this Section 3, each Party shall be responsible for its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with the R&D, i.e., the provision
of the CK Materials with respect to CK, and the remaining costs of conducting the R&D with respect to Amgen, and neither Party shall have any
obligation to reimburse the other’s costs in connection with the R&D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, [***] with respect to the [***] as referenced in the
Plan. In addition, the Parties may agree in writing as to additional amounts of specified Materials to be provided by CK for Amgen’s use in conducting the
R&D hereunder, for which [***]. Amgen shall be solely responsible for the costs of any third parties engaged by Amgen in connection with the R&D.

4. Amgen shall conduct the R&D in accordance with the Plan and shall provide to CK [***], and shall provide to CK [***] described in the Plan. As used
herein, [***] means (a) [***] and (b) all other [***] reasonably sufficient to [***] each item described in subsection (a), in each case, relating to and
arising out of or in connection [***]. [***] is and shall remain the sole owner of the [***], and [***] shall use the [***] solely in the conduct of the R&D
in accordance with the Plan. Amgen shall maintain full and accurate written records, but not in excess of Amgen’s normal practices, pertaining to its use of
the CK Materials [***]. For purposes of Section 14 of the Option Agreement, the [***] shall be deemed to be confidential and proprietary information of
[***] pursuant to the Option Agreement, subject to the exclusions set forth in Sections 14.1.1 through 14.1.5 of the Option Agreement as may be
applicable.

5. As used herein, “Intellectual Property” means technology, patent rights, trade secrets, algorithms and other intellectual property, whether patentable or not.
Except as provided in Section 6 below, all right, title and interest in and to all Intellectual Property that specifically relates to: (a) [***]; (b) [***] (c) [***]
be solely and exclusively owned by [***] (the “[***] Intellectual Property”). [***] hereby irrevocably assigns, and automatically shall be deemed to have
irrevocably assigned, to [***] all right, title and interest in and to all [***] Intellectual Property. [***] shall execute such documents and take such actions
as [***] may reasonably request to allow [***] to document, obtain, enforce and defend such rights. [***] shall promptly inform [***] in writing of all
Intellectual Property that is conceived, reduced to practice and/or otherwise made or developed by or on behalf of [***], whether solely or jointly with
others, to the extent that such Intellectual Property (i) has not been previously disclosed to [***] pursuant to [***], and (ii) could reasonably be expected to
have commercial value to [***].

 

6. [***] Intellectual Property shall not include Intellectual Property created by or on behalf of [***] that does not specifically relate to [***], above (the
“[***] Intellectual Property”). [***] hereby grants to [***] a royalty-free, irrevocable, perpetual, world-wide, paid-up, exclusive (even as to [***]) right
and license, with the right to grant and authorize sublicenses, to utilize the [***] Intellectual Property in connection with making, having made, using,
selling, offering for sale, importing or otherwise exploiting [***].

Confidential
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  [***] retains all rights to the [***] Intellectual Property for any purpose other than making, having made, using, selling, offering for sale, importing or
otherwise exploiting [***].

7. [***] shall not file any patent application, without the prior written consent of [***], which: (a) discloses or contains any (i) [***] or (ii) any data or
information related to [***] or generated by or on behalf of [***]; or (b) contains any claim that, if issued, would specifically cover the manufacture, use,
sale, offer for sale and/or import of any [***] and/or any formulation containing any [***] and/or any method of making or using any [***].

8. Amgen shall not use in connection with the R&D, without CK’s express prior written consent, any [***], in each case, that is [***]. If Amgen uses any
such [***] in connection with the R&D [***], then such [***] shall be deemed [***].

9. Amgen’s right to conduct the R&D under this letter agreement shall terminate simultaneously with the expiration of the Amgen Option. All other rights and
obligations under this letter agreement shall survive any completion or termination of the R&D. Following the termination of the R&D, upon CK’s written
request, Amgen shall return all unused CK Materials or, at Amgen’s discretion, destroy them and provide CK with a certificate of destruction. If the
Amgen Option expires unexercised, then Amgen shall promptly (a) provide CK with [***] in whatever condition [***], to the extent not previously [***],
and (b) return to CK all copies of the CK Materials [***].

10. This letter agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This letter agreement may
not be amended or supplemented in any way except by a written document signed by an authorized representative of each party. This letter agreement is
intended to supplement the Option Agreement and is not intended to modify the Option Agreement except as expressly set forth herein.

Sincerely,
   
/s/ Terry Rosen   
Terry Rosen   
Vice President, Research   

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED

CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED

Confidential
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/s/ Robert I. Blum   
Robert I. Blum   
President and CEO   
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Exhibit A

Research and Development Plan

General plan for using the CK Materials requested from Cytokinetics:

     [***]
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UBS Financial Services Inc.

Please complete and sign this form.

We must receive it by November 14, 2008.

Acceptance of UBS’s offer relating to auction rate securities

By signing below and returning this form, I accept UBS’s offer of Rights relating to my Eligible ARS in the account listed below. I
understand and acknowledge the following:

 •  All Eligible ARS must remain in my UBS account listed below until I exercise my Rights to sell my Eligible ARS to UBS or
they are redeemed by the issuer or purchased or sold on my behalf by UBS;

 

 •  I will instruct my UBS Financial Advisor or Branch Manager if and when I want to exercise my Rights and sell my Eligible ARS
to UBS during the period of June 30, 2010, through July 2, 2012;

 

 •  The acceptance of UBS’s offer constitutes consent (to the extent legally required) for UBS, acting as principal, to purchase my
Eligible ARS or to sell them on my behalf at any time in its sole discretion and without other prior notice to me, from
the date that I accept this offer through July 2, 2012;

 

 •  If UBS purchases, sells or otherwise disposes of my Eligible ARS, it will deposit the par value in my account within one
business day of settlement of the transaction;

 

 •  I release UBS and its employees/agents from all claims except claims for consequential damages directly or indirectly
relating to its marketing and sale of ARS and expressly agree that I will not seek any damages or costs (punitive damages,
attorney fees, etc.) other than consequential damages. I also will not serve as a class representative or receive benefits
under any class action settlement or investor fund;

 

 •  If the account named below is in the name of a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity, I represent and warrant that I
have the power and authority to accept this offer on behalf of that entity.

     
  Please complete and sign this form.
  We must receive it by November 14, 2008.
CYTOKINETICS, INC.     
ATTN: SHARON SURREY-BARBARI     
280 EAST GRAND AVENUE  Mail  UBS Financial Services Inc.
SO SAN FRANCISCO CA 94080-4808    ATTN: ARS Group
    1000 Harbor Boulevard
    Weehawken, NJ 07086
     
Account Number: CP 70764  Fax  +1-201-422-7766
         

 
Account owner signature

 
/s/ Sharon A. BARBARI

 
Date

 
10/27/08

  Additional party signature  SVP Finance and CFO  Date   

  Daytime telephone number  (650) 624-3009     

If you have questions, please contact your UBS Financial Advisor or Branch Manager at +1-312-525-4500. Clients outside the
U.S. may call +1-201-352-0105 collect.

We kindly request that you do not include comments or questions on this form as it could delay processing of your



instructions.

UBS AG has filed a registration statement (including a prospectus) with the SEC for the offering to which this communication
relates. Before you make an investment decision, you should read the prospectus in that registration statement and other
documents that UBS has filed with the SEC for more complete information about UBS and this offering. You may get these
documents for free by visiting EDGAR on the SEC Web site at www.sec.gov or by calling UBS’s ARS Client Service Center at +1-
800-253-1974.

UBS Financial Services Inc. serves as the clearing firm for UBS International Inc. Accordingly, the information and terms contained
in this letter and the accompanying materials are directed to clients of both UBS Financial Services Inc and UBS International Inc.

   
      ©2008 UBS Financial Services Inc. All rights reserved. Member SIPC.  1C-ARS0



Exhibit 10.65

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) PURSUANT TO RULE
24b-2 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

October 31, 2008

Mr. Robert I. Blum, President and CEO
Cytokinetics, Incorporated
280 East Grand Avenue
South San Francisco, California 94080

      Re: Amendment Number Three to Collaboration and Option Agreement
Amgen Reference Number: 200625165

Dear Robert:

As you know, Amgen Inc. (“Amgen”) and Cytokinetics, Incorporated (“CK”) are parties to that certain Collaboration and Option
Agreement, Amgen contract number 200625165, dated December 29, 2006, as amended (the “Option Agreement”). Pursuant to
Amendment Number Two to the Collaboration and Option Agreement, Amgen contract number 200625165-002, dated
September 30, 2008 (“Amendment No. 2”), Amgen is conducting certain research and development activities. By this letter (this
“Letter Agreement”), the Parties wish to expand the scope of these activities. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined will have the meaning ascribed in the Option Agreement and Amendment No. 2.

1. This Letter Agreement is deemed effective as of September 30, 2008.
 

2. The Plan is hereby amended to include the activities set forth in Exhibit A hereto.
 

3. As requested by Amgen, CK will provide Amgen with an additional [***] of [***] CK- 1827452, [***].

4.   For clarity, the Parties agree that (a) the purification by Amgen (or by [***] on behalf of Amgen) of the [***] CK-1827452 provided
to Amgen by CK under this Letter Agreement and under Amendment No. 2 is covered by the Plan; and (b) the data sets provided to
Amgen by CK relating to the clinical trials of CK-1827452 are CK Materials.

5.    Except as expressly set forth herein, all terms and conditions of the Option Agreement and Amendment No. 2 remain in full force
and effect.

Please confirm CK’s agreement to the foregoing by having an authorized representative of CK countersign this Letter Agreement
where indicated below. Please return a fully executed copy of this Letter Agreement to Richard V. Person, Sr. Counsel, at Amgen.
     
Sincerely,  ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED   
     
  CYTOKINETICS, INCORPORATED   
     
/s/ Terry Rosen
Terry Rosen  

/s/ Michael Rabson
Michael Rabson  

 

Vice President, Research  Sr. Vice President, Business Development   
  and Legal Affairs, and General Counsel   

 

*** Certain information on the page has been omitted and filed separately with the Commission. Confidential treatment has
been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Confidential
Contract #200625165-003

 





 

Cytokinetics, Incorporated
October 31, 2008
Page 2 of 2

EXHIBIT A

Additional R&D Activities Under Plan

[***]

 

*** Certain information on the page has been omitted and filed separately with the Commission. Confidential treatment has
been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  App l i ca t i on  and  Agreemen t  f o r  Organ iza t i ons  and  Bus inesses  Fo r  I n te rna l  Use  On ly  Va r iab le  Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  a t  UBS Bank  USA .Cy tok ine t i cs ,  I nc .  . 5V  .62006  .CP F i xed  Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  a t  UBS Bank  USA .  . 5F  .  .  x  Co l l a te ra l  Accoun t ( s )  a t  UBS F inanc ia l  Se rv i ces  Inc .  I nse r t  t he  i n fo rma t ion  be low  fo r  each  UBS F inanc ia l  Se rv i ces  Inc .  accoun t  t o  be  p ledged  to  secu re  the  Bor rower# fs  c red i t  l i ne .  Fu l l  Co l l a te ra l  (Secu r i t i es )  Accoun t  T i t l e  B ranch  Accoun t  Number  FA#  1 )  Cy tok ine t i cs ,  I nc .  CP  14862  CPW4 2 )  3 )  4 )  5 )  6 )  C red i t  L ine  Accoun t  Se lec t  t he  t ype  o f  c red i t  l i ne  accoun t :  Va r iab le  Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  F i xed  Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  Bo th  I f  you  do  no t  i nd i ca te  you r  p re fe rence  you  w i l l  be  deemed  to  have  se lec ted  the  #gBo th#h  op t i on .  Accoun t  Ownersh ip  Se lec t  t he  Organ iza t i on /Bus iness  S t ruc tu re :  I s  t h i s  en t i t y  /  o rgan iza t i on  a  Corpo ra t i on  bus iness  tha t  p rov ides  commerc ia l  Co rp -  Subchap te r  ‘S ’  Fed  Char te r -Cred i t  Un ion  Fed  Char te r -T rus t  Co .  goods  o r  se rv i ces  ( i . e . ,  an  ope ra t i ngL im i ted  L iab i l i t y  Company  (LLC)  Founda t ion -no t  f o r  p ro f i t  Gov t  Agency -Federa l  en t i t y )?  Endowment -no t  f o r  p ro f i t

Gov t  Agency -Loca l  En t  L im i ted  L iab i l i t y  Pa r tne rsh ip  (LLP)  Yes  No  L im i ted  L iab i l i t y -L im i ted  S ta te  Char te r -S&L  Bank  Gov t  Agency -S ta te  Pa r tne rsh ip  (LLLP)  S ta te  Char te r -Sav ings  Bank  Any  changes  o r  co r rec t i ons  So le  P rop r ie to rsh ip  S ta te  Char te r -Comm Bank  to  the  i n fo rma t ion  on  th i s  app l i ca t i on  mus t  be  i n i t i a l ed  by  Pa r tne rsh ip -Genera l  S ta te  Char te r -T rus t  Co .  you .  Pa r tne rsh ip -L im i ted  S ta te  Char te r -Cred i t  Un ion  Assoc ia t i on  S ta te  Char te r - Indus  Loan  Par tne rsh ip - Inves t  C lub  Fed  Char te r -Sav ings  Assoc  Inves t  C lub  Membersh ip  Fed  Char te r -Na t ’ l  Bank  Bor rower  In fo rma t ion  Th is  sec t i on  shou ld  be  comp le ted  byOrgan iza t i on /Bus iness  the  .  Bo r rower  Organ iza t i on  /  Bus iness  Name Cy tok ine t i cs ,  I nc .  Loca t i on  o f  Address  Organ iza t i on /Bus iness  i s  (p lease  comp le te  each  i t em tha t  app l i es ) :  Bus iness  — Pr imary  O the r  (  p lease  spec i f y  )  X  1 )  I nco rpo ra ted  Un inco rpo ra ted  S t ree t  Address I f  a  P .O .  Box ,  comp le te  the  Add i t i ona l  Address  In fo rma t ion  on  (  2 )  Fo r  P ro f i t  No t  Fo r  P ro f i t  page  4  . ) :  I ndus t r y  Group  (e .g . ,  Cons t ruc t i on ,  Se rv i ce ,  e t c . ) :  280  EAST GRAND AVENUE Othe r  X  C i t y :  S ta te :  Z IP :  I s  t he  Organ iza t i on /Bus iness  pub l i c l y  No  Yes ;

s p e c i f y :  S O  S A N  F R A N C I S C O  C A  9 4 0 8 0 - 4 8 0 8  l i s t e d ?  U S A  B u s i n e s s  T e l e p h o n e  N u m b e r :  E x c h a n g e  ( N Y S E ,  A M E X ,  o r  N A S D A Q )  T i c k e r  S y m b o l  X  P l a c e  o f  F o r m a t i o n  /  I n c o r p o r a t i o n  U S A  ( i f  f o r m e d / i n c o r p o r a t e d ,  s p e c i f y  D e l a w a r e  S t a t e ) :  O t h e r  ( s p e c i f y )  T I N :  D a t e  o f  I n c o r p o r a t i o n  /  E s t a b l i s h m e n t :  H B  R e v  0 7 / 0 8  H B  L O A D  S P E D O C  U X  E  H B  V 1 0 2  c 2 0 0 8  U B S  B a n k  U S A .  A l l  r i g h t s  r e s e r v e d  S i g n  a n d  d a t e  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  o n  5 p a g e



 



 



Bor rower  F inanc ia l  and  Ownersh ip  In fo rma t ion  Annua l  I ncome:  L iqu id  Asse ts :  I s  t he  Bor rower  an  o f f i ce r  o r  member  o f  t he  boa rd  o f  d i rec to rs  o f  i t s  subs id ia r i es  o r  a f f i l i a tes?*  Ne t  Wor th  F i sca l  Year  End  ( i nd i ca te  mon th )  Yes  No  I f  yes ,  p lease  spec i f y :  Subs id ia ry  o r  A f f i l i a te  Emp loyee  Name and  SS#  Do  you  rece i ve  a  subs tan t i a l  amoun t  o f  you r  revenue /wea l th  (ove r  50%)  ( t rade /expo r t )  f r om a  coun t r y  ou ts ide  o f  t he  Un i ted  S ta tes?  I s  t he  Bor rower  an  immed ia te  fam i l y  member  o f  an  execu t i ve  o f f i ce r  Yes  No  I f  yes  spec i f y :  member  o f  t he  boa rd  o f  d i rec to rs  o f  UBSImmed ia te  fam i l y  member  AG? means  a  spouse  o r  any  o the r  re la t i ve  res id ing  i n  t he  Bor rower# fs  Coun t ry ( i es ) :  t o  whom the  Bor rower  l ends  f i nanc ia l  suppor t .  Yes  No  I f  yes ,  p lease  spec i f y :  Does  the  Bor rower  own  10% o r  more  o f  t he  sha res  o f  any  pub l i c l y  t raded  company?  Subs id ia ry  o r  A f f i l i a te  Emp loyee  Name and  SS#  Yes  No  I f  yes ,  p lease  spec i f y  company  and  %:  x  x  % Wi l l  any  o f  t he  l oan  p roceeds  be  used  to  repay  any  deb t  o r  t o ,  o r  pu rchase  an  asse t  f rom,  UBS AG o r  i t s  subs id ia r i es  o r  Yes  No  I f  yes ,  p lease  spec i f y :  A re  any  o f  t he  Bor rowers ,  bus iness  owners  o r

d i rectors /pr inc ipa l  o f f icers  a  Subsid iary  or  Af f i l ia te  cont ro l  person of  UBS AG or  i ts  subs id iar ies or  a f f i l ia tes?*  Yes No I f  yes,  p lease spec i fy  company and %: x  x  % *For  purposes these quest ions,  “cont ro l ”  means a person or  ent i ty  that  e i ther  (a)  owns,  cont ro ls  or  has the power  to  vote 25% or  more of  any c lass of  vot ing ab i l i ty  to  cont ro l  the e lect ion of  the major i ty  o f  the d i rectors  o f  a  company,  or  (c)  has the power  to  exerc ise a cont ro l l ing in f luence over  management  po l ic ies presumed to  have cont ro l  o f  a  company i f  the person or  ent i ty  owns,  cont ro ls  or  has the power  to  vote 10% or  more of  any c lass of  vot ing secur i t ies  of  the company and is  an execut ive of f icer  or  d i rector  o f  the company or  ( i i )  no other  person has a greater  percentage of  that  c lass of  vot ing secur i t ies .  Pr inc ipa l  Of f icer /Benef ic ia l  Owner  Complete th is  sect ion for  the Pr inc ipa l  Of f icer (s)  o f  the borrower ,  or  benef ic ia l  owner  for  an LLC.  To inc lude addi t ional  pr inc ipa l  page and submi t  i t  w i th  the appl icat ion.  Pr inc ipa l  Of f icer  Name SS# Pr inc ipa l  Of f icer  Name SS# Sharon A.  Barbar i  ROBERT BLUM Country  o f  Ci t izenship:  Date of  B i r th  Country  o f  Ci t izenship:  Date of  B i r th  USA Other

( s p e c i f y )  U S A  O t h e r  ( s p e c i f y )  P a s s p o r t / C E D U L A  a n d  G r e e n  C a r d # :  ( I f  n o n - U . S .  a n d  n o  S S #  s p e c i f i e d )  P a s s p o r t / C E D U L A  a n d  G r e e n  C a r d # :  ( I f  n o n - U . S .  a n d  n o  S S #  s p e c i f i e d )  P a s s p o r t / C E D U L A  C o u n t r y  o f  I s s u a n c e :  P a s s p o r t / C E D U L A  C o u n t r y  o f  I s s u a n c e :  U S A  U S A  S t r e e t  A d d r e s s :  S t r e e t  A d d r e s s :  2 8 0  E a s t  G r a n d  A v e .  2 8 0  E A S T  G R A N D  A V E N U E  C i t y :  S t a t e :  Z I P  C i t y :  S t a t e :  Z I P  S a n  F r a n c i s c o  C A  9 4 0 8 0 - 4 8 0 8  S O  S A N  F R A N C I S O  C A  9 4 0 8 0 - 4 8 0 8  U S A  U S A  T e l e p h o n e  N u m b e r :  T e l e p h o n e  N u m b e r :  H B  R e v  0 7 / 0 8  H B  L O A D  S P E D O C  U X  E  H B  V 1 0 2  2  c 2 0 0 8  U B S  B a n k  U S A .  A l l  r i g h t s  r e s e r v e d  S i g n  a n d  d a t e  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  o n  5 p a g e



 



 



Cred i t  L ine  Accoun t  Fea tu res  In te rna l  Use  On ly  Check  Wr i t i ng  A l te rna te  Ma i l i ng  Address  fo r  Checks  I f  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  rece i ve  Cred i t  L ine  checks  fo r  you r  c red i t  l i ne  accoun t ,  P r i n t  t he  ma i l i ng  add ress  fo r  t he  de l i ve ry  o f  checks  i f  d i f f e ren t  f rom p lease  en ro l l  be low :  add ress  on  the  checks :  Check  he re  i f  you  wou ld  l i ke  Cred i t  L ine  checks .  Checks  w i l l  be  i n  t he  name o f  t he  Bor rower .  P lease  p r i n t  t he  add ress  tha t  you  wou ld  l i ke  to  appear  on  you r  checks .  W i re  Ins t ruc t i ons  fo r  Loan  Paymen t :  ( I n  US Do l l a rs )  Bank  Name:  UBS AG Wi re  Sys tem Address :  ABA 026007993  Fo r  Fu r the r  C red i t  t o  t he  Accoun t  UBS Bank  USA o f :  Accoun t  Number :  101 -WA-792479-000  Fo r  t he  Bene f i t  o f :  Fu l l  Name Accoun t  Number :  5 [F  o r  V ]  00000  A l te rna te  Ma i l i ng  Address  fo r  Checks  P r in t  t he  ma i l i ng  add ress  fo r  t he  de l i ve ry  o f  checks  i f  d i f f e ren t  f rom the  add ress  on  the  checks :  UBS Cred i t  Co rp  Wi re  Ins t ruc t i ons  a re  as  fo l l ows :  UBS AG ABA #  026007993  A /C  #  101 -wa-258661-000  A /C  Name:  UBS Cred i t  Co rp  x  Sen io r  Po l i t i ca l  A f f i l i a t i on  A re  you ,  any  au tho r i zed  s igna to r i es ,  bene f i c i a l  owners ,  t rus tees ,  powers  o f  a t to rney  o r  o the r  i nd i v idua ls  w i th

au thor i t y  to  immedia te  fami ly  members  o r  c lose  assoc ia tes  a :  I )  Cur ren t  U.S.  po l i t i ca l  o f f i c ia l  (as  de f ined  in  sec t ion  B  be low)?No Yes ;  comple te :  A)Po l i t i ca l  Of f i c ia l# fs  Name:  B)Cur ren t  Pos i t ion :  Pres ident  V ice  Pres ident  US Cab ine t  Member  Speaker  o f  the  House o f  Representa t i ves  Supreme Cour t  Jus t i ce  Cha i rman o f  the  Jo in t  Ch ie fs  o f  S ta f f  Ambassador  C)Re la t ionsh ip  to  C l ien t (s ) :  Se l f  Immedia te  fami ly  member  C lose  assoc ia te  Assoc ia ted  w i th  bus iness  o r  t rus t  I I )Cur ren t  o r  fo rmer  Sen io r  non-U.S.  po l i t i ca l  o f f i c ia l ,  non-U.S.  Re l ig ious  Group/Organ iza t ion ,  o r  Sen io r / In f luen t ia l  No Yes ;  comple te :  representa t i ve  o f  a  non-U.S.  Re l ig ious  Group/Organ iza t ion?  Po l i t i ca l  Of f i c ia l# fs  Name:  Cur ren t  o r  Former  Pos i t ion :  Re la t ionsh ip  to  C l ien t (s ) :  Se l f  Immedia te  fami ly  member  C lose  assoc ia te  Assoc ia ted  w i th  bus iness  o r  t rus t  HB Rev 07 /08  HB LOAD SPEDOC UX E HB V102 3  c2008 UBS Bank USA.  A l l  r igh ts  reserved.  S ign  and da te  the  app l i ca t ion  on  5page



 



 



D u p l i c a t e  P a r t y  A d d e n d u m  C o m p l e t e  t h i s  s e c t i o n  f o r  e a c h  D u p l i c a t e  P a r t y  t o  r e c e i v e  a  d u p l i c a t e  c r e d i t  l i n e  a c c o u n t  s t a t e m e n t .  I n t e r n a l  L o c a t i o n  C o d e  ( U B S  F i n a n c i a l  S e r v i c e s  I n c .  U s e  O n l y )  N a m e :  C o u n t r y  o f  C i t i z e n s h i p :  U S A  O t h e r  ( s p e c i f y ) :  S t r e e t  A d d r e s s :  C i t y :  S t a t e :  Z I P :  A d d i t i o n a l  A d d r e s s  I n f o r m a t i o n  I f  t h e  B o r r o w e r ’ s  m a i l i n g  a d d r e s s  i s  a  P . O .  B o x  p l e a s e  p r o v i d e  a  l e g a l  r e s i d e n c e  a d d r e s s  b e l o w .  F i r s t  N a m e :  L a s t  N a m e :  S t r e e t  A d d r e s s :  L o c a t i o n  o f  A d d r e s s :  B u s i n e s s  -  P r i m a r y  B u s i n e s s  —  S e c o n d a r y  C i t y :  S t a t e :  Z I P :  O t h e r  ( S p e c i f y ) :  H B  R e v  0 7 / 0 8  H B  L O A D  S P E D O C  U X  E  H B  V 1 0 2  4  c 2 0 0 8  U B S  B a n k  U S A .  A l l  r i g h t s  r e s e r v e d  S i g n  a n d  d a t e  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  o n  5 p a g e



 



 

   

Credit Line Agreement  

Borrower Agreement

BY SIGNING BELOW, THE BORROWER UNDERSTANDS, ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT:

A  The Borrower has received and read a copy of this Borrower Agreement, the attached Credit Line Account Application and
Agreement (including the Credit Line Agreement following this Borrower Agreement) and the Loan Disclosure Statement
explaining the risk factors that the Borrower should consider before obtaining a loan secured by the Borrower’s securities
account. The Borrower agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions contained in the Credit Line Account Application and
Agreement (including the Credit Line Agreement following this Borrower Agreement) (which terms and conditions are
incorporated by reference). Capitalized terms used in this Borrower Agreement have the meanings set forth in the Credit Line
Agreement.

 

B  THE BORROWER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT UBS BANK USA MAY DEMAND FULL OR PARTIAL PAYMENT
OF THE CREDIT LINE OBLIGATIONS, AT ITS SOLE OPTION AND WITHOUT CAUSE, AT ANY TIME, AND THAT NEITHER
FIXED RATE ADVANCES NOR VARIABLE RATE ADVANCES ARE EXTENDED FOR ANY SPECIFIC TERM OR DURATION.
THE BORROWER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT ALL ADVANCES ARE SUBJECT TO COLLATERAL
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS. THE BORROWER UNDERSTANDS THAT UBS BANK USA MAY, AT ANY TIME, IN ITS
DISCRETION, TERMINATE AND CANCEL THE CREDIT LINE REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT AN EVENT HAS
OCCURRED.

 

C  UNLESS DISCLOSED IN WRITING TO UBS BANK USA AT THE TIME OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND APPROVED BY UBS
BANK USA, THE BORROWER AGREES NOT TO USE THE PROCEEDS OF ANY ADVANCE EITHER TO PURCHASE,
CARRY OR TRADE IN SECURITIES OR TO REPAY ANY DEBT (I) USED TO PURCHASE, CARRY OR TRADE IN
SECURITIES OR (II) TO ANY AFFILIATE OF UBS BANK USA. THE BORROWER WILL BE DEEMED TO REPEAT THIS
AGREEMENT EACH TIME THE BORROWER REQUESTS AN ADVANCE.

 

D  THE BORROWER UNDERSTANDS THAT BORROWING USING SECURITIES AS COLLATERAL ENTAILS RISKS. SHOULD
THE VALUE OF THE SECURITIES IN THE COLLATERAL ACCOUNT DECLINE BELOW THE REQUIRED COLLATERAL
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS, UBS BANK USA MAY REQUIRE THAT THE BORROWER POST ADDITIONAL
COLLATERAL, REPAY PART OR ALL OF THE BORROWER’S LOAN AND/OR SELL THE BORROWER’S SECURITIES. ANY
REQUIRED LIQUIDATIONS MAY INTERRUPT THE BORROWER’S LONG-TERM INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND MAY
RESULT IN ADVERSE TAX CONSEQUENCES.

 

E  Neither UBS Bank USA nor UBS Financial Services Inc. provides legal or tax advice and nothing herein shall be
construed as providing legal or tax advice.

 

F  Upon execution of this Credit Line Account Application and Agreement, the Borrower declares that all of the information
requested in the Application and supplied by the Borrower is true and accurate and further agrees to promptly notify UBS Bank
USA in writing of any material changes to any or all of the information contained in the Application including information relating
to the Borrower’s financial situation.

 

G  Subject to any applicable financial privacy laws and regulations, data regarding the Borrower and the Borrower’s securities
accounts may be shared with UBS Bank USA affiliates. Subject to any applicable financial privacy laws and regulations, the
Borrower requests that UBS Bank USA share such personal financial data with non-affiliates of UBS Bank USA as is necessary
or advisable to effect, administer or enforce, or to service, process or maintain, all transactions and accounts contemplated by
this Agreement.

 



H  The Borrower authorizes UBS Bank USA and UBS Financial Services Inc. to obtain a credit report or other credit references
concerning the Borrower (including making verbal or written inquiries concerning credit history) or to otherwise verify or update
credit information given to UBS Bank USA at any time. The Borrower authorizes the release of this credit report or other credit
information to UBS Bank USA affiliates as it deems necessary or advisable to effect, administer or enforce, or to service,
process or maintain all transactions and accounts contemplated by this Agreement, and for the purpose of offering additional
products, from time to time, to the Borrower. The Borrower authorizes UBS Bank USA to exchange Borrower information with
any party it reasonably believes is conducting a legitimate credit inquiry in accordance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act. UBS
Bank USA may also share credit or other transactional experience with the Borrower’s designated UBS Financial Services Inc.
Financial Advisor or other parties designated by the Borrower.

 

I  UBS Bank USA is subject to examination by various federal, state and self-regulatory organizations and the books and records
maintained by UBS Bank USA are subject to inspection and subpoena by these regulators and by federal, state, and local law
enforcement officials. The Borrower also acknowledges that such regulators and officials may, pursuant to treaty or other
arrangements, in turn disclose such information to the officials or regulators of other countries, and that U.S. courts may be
required to compel UBS Bank USA to disclose such information to the officials or regulators of other countries. The Borrower
agrees that UBS Bank USA may disclose to such regulators and officials information about the Borrower and transactions in the
credit line account or other accounts at UBS Bank USA without notice to the Borrower. In addition, UBS Bank USA may in the
context of a private dispute be required by subpoena or other judicial process to disclose information or produce documentation
related to the Borrower, the credit line account or other accounts at UBS Bank USA. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees
that UBS Bank USA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to respond to subpoenas and judicial process as it deems
appropriate.

 

J  To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all financial
institutions to obtain, verify, and record information that identifies each person who opens an account. When the Borrower
opens an account with UBS Bank USA, UBS Bank USA will ask for the Borrower’s name, address, and other information that
will allow UBS Bank USA to identify the Borrower. UBS Bank USA may also ask to see other identifying documents. UBS
Financial Services Inc. and UBS Bank USA are firmly committed to compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
including those related to combating money laundering. The Borrower understands and agrees that the Borrower must take all
necessary steps to comply with the anti-money laundering laws, rules and regulations of the Borrower’s country of origin,
country of residence and the situs of the Borrower’s transaction.

 

K  UBS Bank USA and its affiliates will act as creditors and, accordingly, their interests may be inconsistent with, and potentially
adverse to, the Borrower’s interests. As a lender and consistent with normal lending practice, UBS Bank USA may take any
steps necessary to perfect its interest in the Credit Line, issue a call for additional collateral or force the sale of the Borrower’s
securities if the Borrower’s actions or inactions call the Borrower’s creditworthiness into question. Neither UBS Bank USA nor
UBS Financial Services Inc. will act as Client’s investment advisor with respect to any liquidation. In fact UBS Bank USA will act
as a creditor and UBS Financial Services Inc. will act as a securities intermediary.

 

L  The Borrower understands that, if the Collateral Account is a managed account with UBS Financial Services Inc., (i) in addition
to any fees payable to UBS Financial Services Inc. in connection with the Borrower’s managed account, interest will be payable
to the Bank on an amount advanced to the Borrower in connection with the Credit Line Account, and (ii) the performance of the
managed account might not exceed the managed account fees and the interest expense payable to the Bank in which case the
Borrower’s overall rate of return will be less than the costs associated with the managed account.

 

M  UBS Bank USA may provide copies of all credit line account statements to UBS Financial Services Inc. and to any Guarantor.
The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that UBS Bank USA may share any and all information regarding the Borrower and
the Borrower’s accounts at UBS Bank USA with UBS Financial Services Inc. UBS Financial Services Inc. may provide copies of
all statements and confirmations concerning each Collateral Account to UBS Bank USA at such times and in such manner as
UBS Bank USA may request and may share with UBS Bank USA any and all information regarding the Borrower and the
Borrower’s accounts with UBS Financial Services Inc.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned (“Borrower”) has signed this Agreement, or has caused this Agreement to be signed in its
name by its duly authorized representatives, as of the date indicated below.

DATE:                                        



       
       
Name of Borrower: Cytokinetics, Inc.     
     
By:   Title: Chief Financial Officer/CFO
  (Signature of Authorized Signatory of Borrower)* Sharon A. Barbari    (Title of Authorized Signatory of Borrower)
By:   Title: Chief Executive Officer/CEO
  (Signature of Authorized Signatory of Borrower)* ROBERT BLUM    (Title of Authorized Signatory of Borrower)

The authorized signatory of the Borrower must be one of the Authorized Persons designated on the applicable UBS Bank USA
supplemental form excecuted by the Borrower (e.g., the Supplemental Corporate Resolution Form (HP Form)).
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Credit Line Agreement — Demand Facility

THIS CREDIT LINE AGREEMENT (as it may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, this “Agreement”)
is made by and between the party or parties signing as the Borrower on the Application to which this Agreement is attached (together
and individually, the “Borrower”) and UBS Bank USA (the “Bank”) and, together with the Application, establishes the terms and
conditions that will govern the uncommitted demand loan facility made available to the Borrower by the Bank. This Agreement
becomes effective upon the earlier of (i) notice from the Bank (which notice may be oral or written) to the Borrower that the Credit
Line has been approved and (ii) the Bank making an Advance to the Borrower.

1)  Definitions

 -  “Advance” means any Fixed Rate Advance or Variable Rate Advance made by the Bank pursuant to this Agreement.
 

 -  “Advance Advice” means a written or electronic notice by the Bank, sent to the Borrower, the Borrower’s financial advisor
at UBS Financial Services Inc. or any other party designated by the Borrower to receive the notice, confirming that a
requested Advance will be a Fixed Rate Advance and specifying the amount, fixed rate of interest and Interest Period for
the Fixed Rate Advance.

 

 -  “Application” means the Credit Line Account Application and Agreement that the Borrower has completed and submitted
to the Bank and into which this Agreement is incorporated by reference.

 

 -  “Approved Amount” means the maximum principal amount of Advances that is permitted to be outstanding under the
Credit Line at any time, as specified in writing by the Bank.

 

 -  “Breakage Costs” and “Breakage Fee” have the meanings specified in Section 6(b).
 

 -  “Business Day” means a day on which both of the Bank and UBS Financial Services Inc. are open for business. For
notices and determinations of LIBOR, Business Day must also be a day for trading by and between banks in U.S. dollar
deposits in the London interbank market.

 

 -  “Collateral” has the meaning specified in Section 8(a).
 

 -  “Collateral Account” means, individually and collectively, each account of the Borrower or Pledgor at UBS Financial
Services Inc. or UBS International Inc., as applicable, that is either identified as a Collateral Account on the Application to
which this Agreement is attached or subsequently identified as a Collateral Account by the Borrower or Pledgor, either
directly or indirectly through the Borrower’s or Pledgor’s UBS Financial Services Inc. financial advisor, together with all
successors to those identified accounts, irrespective of whether the successor account bears a different name or account
number.

 

 -  “Credit Line” has the meaning specified in Section 2(a).
 

 -  “Credit Line Account” means each Fixed Rate Account and each Variable Rate Account of the Borrower that is established
by the Bank in connection with this Agreement and either identified on the Application or subsequently identified as a
Credit Line Account by the Bank by notice to the Borrower, together with all successors to those identified accounts,
irrespective of whether any successor account bears a different name or account number.

 

 -  “Credit Line Obligations” means, at any time of determination, the aggregate of the outstanding principal amounts of all
Advances, together with all accrued but unpaid interest on the outstanding principal amounts, any and all fees or other
charges payable in connection with the Advances and any costs of collection (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) and



other amounts payable by the Borrower under this Agreement, and any and all other present or future obligations of the
Borrower and the other respective Loan Parties under this Agreement and the related agreements, whether absolute or
contingent, whether or not due or mature.

 

 -  “Event” means any of the events listed in Section 10.
 

 -  “Fixed Rate Advance” means any advance made under the Credit Line that accrues interest at a fixed rate.
 

 -  “Guarantor” means any party who guaranties the payment and performance of the Credit Line Obligations.
 

 -  “Guaranty Agreement” means an agreement pursuant to which a Guarantor agrees to guaranty payment of the Credit Line
Obligations.

 

 -  “Interest Period” means, for a Fixed Rate Advance, the number of days, weeks or months requested by the Borrower and
confirmed in the Advance Advice relating to the Fixed Rate Advance, commencing on the date of (i) the extension of the
Fixed Rate Advance or (ii) any renewal of the Fixed Rate Advance and, in each case, ending on the last day of the period.
If the last day is not a Business Day, then the Interest Period will end on the immediately succeeding Business Day. If the
last Business Day would fall in the next calendar month, the Interest Period will end on the immediately preceding
Business Day. Each monthly or longer Interest Period that commences on the last Business Day of a calendar month (or
on any day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the appropriate subsequent calendar month) will end
on the last Business Day of the appropriate calendar month.

 

 -  “Joint Borrower” has the meaning specified in Section 7(a).
 

 -  “LIBOR” means, as of any date of determination:

 (i)  for Variable Rate Advances, the prevailing London Interbank Offered Rate for deposits in U.S. dollars having a
maturity of 30 days as published in The Wall Street Journal “Money Rates” Table on the date of the Advance; and

 

 (ii)  for Fixed Rate Advances of one (1) year or less, the prevailing London Interbank Offered Rate for deposits in U.S.
dollars having a maturity corresponding to the length of the Interest Period applicable to the Advance as quoted by
the Bloomberg service at 4:00 a.m. Eastern Standard Time on the date of the Advance.

If the rate ceases to be regularly published by The Wall Street Journal or stated by the Bloomberg Service, as applicable,
LIBOR will be determined by the Bank in its sole and absolute discretion. For any day that is not a Business Day, LIBOR
will be the applicable LIBOR in effect immediately prior to that day.

 -  “Loan Party” means each Borrower, Guarantor and Pledgor, each in their respective capacities under this Agreement or
any related agreement.

 

 -  “Person” means any natural person, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or
limited liability partnership, association, organization or any other legal entity.

 

 -  “Pledgor” means each Person who pledges to the Bank any Collateral to secure the Credit Line Obligations (or to secure
the
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   obligations of any Guarantor with respect to the guaranty of the Credit Line Obligations). Pledgors will include (i) each
Borrower who pledges Collateral to secure the Credit Line Obligations, (ii) each Guarantor who has pledged collateral to
secure the Credit Line Obligations or its obligations under a Guaranty Agreement, (iii) any spouse of a Borrower who
executes a spouse’s pledge and consent agreement with respect to a jointly held collateral account, (iv) any other joint
account holder who executes a joint account holder pledge and consent agreement with respect to a jointly held collateral
account, and (v) any other Person who executes a pledge agreement with respect to the Credit Line.

 

 -  “Premier Credit Line” means any Credit Line with an Approved Amount equal to or greater than $250,000.
 

 -  “Prime Credit Line” means any Credit Line with an Approved Amount less than $250,000.
 

 -  “Prime Rate” means the floating “Prime Rate” as published in The Wall Street Journal “Money Rates” Table from time to
time. The Prime Rate will change as and when the Prime Rate as published in The Wall Street Journal changes. In the
event that The Wall Street Journal does not publish a Prime Rate, the Prime Rate will be the rate as determined by the
Bank in its sole and absolute discretion.

 

 -  “Securities Intermediary” has the meaning specified in Section 9.
 

 -  “UBS Bank USA Fixed Funding Rate” means, as of any date of determination for Fixed Rate Advances of greater than one
(1) year, an internally computed rate established from time-to-time by the Bank, in its sole discretion, based upon the
LIBOR swap curve for a corresponding period as well as the Bank’s assessment of other lending rates charged in the
financial markets.

 

 -  “UBS Financial Services Inc.” means UBS Financial Services Inc. and its successors.
 

 -  “UBS-I” means UBS International Inc. and its successors.
 

 -  “Variable Rate Advance” means any advance made under the Credit Line that accrues interest at a variable rate.”

2)  Establishment of Credit Line; Termination

 a)  Upon the effectiveness of this Agreement, the Bank establishes an UNCOMMITTED, DEMAND revolving line of credit (the
“Credit Line”) in an amount up to the Approved Amount. The Bank may, from time to time upon request of the Borrower,
without obligation and in its sole and absolute discretion, authorize and make one or more Advances to the Borrower. The
Borrower acknowledges that the Bank has no obligation to make any Advances to the Borrower. The Bank may carry each
Variable Rate Advance in a Variable Rate Account and may carry each Fixed Rate Advance in a Fixed Rate Account, but
all Advances will constitute extensions of credit pursuant to a single Credit Line. The Approved Amount will be determined,
and may be adjusted from time to time, by the Bank in its sole and absolute discretion.

 

 b)  THE BORROWER AND EACH OTHER LOAN PARTY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT THE BANK MAY DEMAND
FULL OR PARTIAL PAYMENT OF THE CREDIT LINE OBLIGATIONS, AT ITS SOLE AND ABSOLUTE DISCRETION AND
WITHOUT CAUSE, AT ANY TIME, AND THAT NEITHER FIXED RATE ADVANCES NOR VARIABLE RATE ADVANCES
ARE EXTENDED FOR ANY SPECIFIC TERM OR DURATION.

 

 c)  UNLESS DISCLOSED IN WRITING TO THE BANK AT THE TIME OF THE APPLICATION, AND APPROVED BY THE
BANK, THE BORROWER AGREES NOT TO USE THE PROCEEDS OF ANY ADVANCE EITHER TO PURCHASE,
CARRY OR TRADE IN SECURITIES OR TO REPAY ANY DEBT (I) USED TO PURCHASE, CARRY OR TRADE IN
SECURITIES OR (II) TO ANY AFFILIATE OF THE BANK. THE BORROWER WILL BE DEEMED TO REPEAT THE
AGREEMENT IN THIS SECTION 2(C) EACH TIME IT REQUESTS AN ADVANCE.



 

 d)  Prior to the first Advance under the Credit Line, the Borrower must sign and deliver to the Bank a Federal Reserve Form U-
1 and all other documentation as the Bank may require. The Borrower acknowledges that neither the Bank nor any of its
affiliates has advised the Borrower in any manner regarding the purposes for which the Credit Line will be used.

 

 e)  The Borrower consents and agrees that, in connection with establishing the Credit Line Account, approving any Advances
to the Borrower or for any other purpose associated with the Credit Line, the Bank may obtain a consumer or other credit
report from a credit reporting agency relating to the Borrower’s credit history. Upon request by the Borrower, the Bank will
inform the Borrower: (i) whether or not a consumer or other credit report was requested; and (ii) if so, the name and
address of the consumer or other credit reporting agency that furnished the report.

 

 f)  The Borrower understands that the Bank will, directly or indirectly, pay a portion of the interest that it receives to the
Borrower’s financial advisor at UBS Financial Services Inc. or one of its affiliates. To the extent permitted by applicable
law, the Bank may also charge the Borrower fees for establishing and servicing the Credit Line Account.

 

 g)  Following each month in which there is activity in the Borrower’s Credit Line Account in amounts greater than $1, the
Borrower will receive an account statement showing the new balance, the amount of any new Advances, year to date
interest charges, payments and other charges and credits that have been registered or posted to the Credit Line Account.

 

 h)  Each of the Loan Parties understands and agrees that the Bank may, at any time, in its sole and absolute discretion,
terminate and cancel the Credit Line regardless of whether or not an Event has occurred. In the event the Bank terminates
and cancels the Credit Line the Credit Line Obligations shall be immediately due and payable in full. If the Credit Line
Obligations are not paid in full, the Bank shall have the right, at its option, to exercise any or all of its remedies described in
Section 10 of this Agreement.

3)  Terms of Advances

 a)  Advances made under this Agreement will be available to the Borrower in the form, and pursuant to procedures, as are
established from time to time by the Bank in its sole and absolute discretion. The Borrower and each Loan Party agree to
promptly provide all documents, financial or other information in connection with any Advance as the Bank may request.
Advances will be made by wire transfer of funds to an account as specified in writing by the Borrower or by any other
method agreed upon by the Bank and the Borrower. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that the Bank will not make
any Advance to the Borrower unless the collateral maintenance requirements that are established by the Bank in its sole
and absolute discretion have been satisfied.

 

 b)  Each Advance made under a Premier Credit Line will be a Variable Rate Advance unless otherwise designated as a
Fixed Rate Advance in an Advance Advice sent by the Bank to the Borrower. The Bank will not designate any Advance as
a Fixed Rate Advance unless it has been requested to do so by the Borrower (acting directly or indirectly
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   through the Borrower’s UBS Financial Services Inc. financial advisor or other agent designated by the Borrower and
acceptable to the Bank). Each Advance Advice will be conclusive and binding upon the Borrower, absent manifest error,
unless the Borrower otherwise notifies the Bank in writing no later than the close of business, New York time, on the third
Business Day after the Advance Advice is received by the Borrower.

 

 c)  Each Advance made under a Prime Credit Line will be a Variable Advance.
 

 d)  Unless otherwise agreed by the Bank: (i) all Fixed Rate Advances must be in an amount of at least $100,000; and (ii) all
Variable Rate Advances taken by wire transfer must be in an amount of at least $2,500. If the Borrower is a natural person,
the initial Variable Rate Advance under the Credit Line must be in an amount equal to at least $25,001 (the “Initial
Advance Requirement”). If the initial Advance requested by the Borrower is made in the form of a check drawn on the
Credit Line that does not satisfy the Initial Advance Requirement, then, in addition to and not in limitation of the Bank’s
rights, remedies, powers or privileges under this Agreement or applicable law, the Bank may, in its sole and absolute
discretion:

 (i)  pay the check drawn by the Borrower if, prior to paying that check, the Bank makes another Advance to the Borrower,
which Advance shall be in an amount not less than $25,001; or

 

 (ii)  pay the check drawn by the Borrower; or
 

 (iii)  decline to pay (bounce) the check.

If the Bank elects option (ii), no interest shall accrue on the amount of the Advance made by paying the check, and the
amount of that Advance shall be due and payable to the Bank immediately (with or without demand by the Bank).

4)  Interest

 a)  Each Fixed Rate Advance will bear interest at a fixed rate and for the Interest Period each as specified in the related
Advance Advice. The rate of interest payable on each Fixed Rate Advance will be determined by adding a percentage rate
to (i) LIBOR, if the Fixed Rate Advance is for a period of one (1) year or less or (ii) the UBS Bank USA Fixed Funding Rate,
if the Fixed Rate Advance is for a period of greater than one (1) year, as of the date that the fixed rate is determined.

 

 b)  Each Variable Rate Advance under a Premier Credit Line will bear interest at a variable rate equal to LIBOR, adjusted
daily, plus the percentage rate that (unless otherwise specified by the Bank in writing) is shown on Schedule I below for
the Approved Amount of the Credit Line. For Premier Credit Lines, the rate of interest payable on Variable Rate Advances
is subject to change without notice in accordance with fluctuations in LIBOR and in the Approved Amount. On each day
that LIBOR changes or the Approved Amount crosses one of the thresholds that is indicated on Schedule I (or that is
otherwise specified by the Bank in writing), the interest rate on all Variable Rate Advances will change accordingly.

 

 c)  Each Variable Rate Advance under a Prime Credit Line will bear interest at a variable rate equal to the Prime Rate,
adjusted daily, plus the percentage rate that (unless otherwise specified by the Bank in writing) is shown on the attached
Schedule II and that corresponds to the aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Prime Credit Line on that day.
For Prime Credit Lines, the rate of interest payable on Variable Rate Advances is subject to change without notice in
accordance with fluctuations in the Prime Rate and in the aggregate amount outstanding under the Prime Credit Line. On
each date that the Prime Rate changes or the aggregate principal amount outstanding under the Prime Credit Line
crosses one of the thresholds that is indicated on Schedule II (or that is otherwise specified by the Bank in writing), the
interest rate on all Variable Rate Advances will change accordingly.

5)  Payments



 a)  Each Fixed Rate Advance will be due and payable in full ON DEMAND or, if not earlier demanded by the Bank, on the
last day of the applicable Interest Period. Any Fixed Rate Advance as to which the Bank has not made a demand for
payment and that is not paid in full or renewed, which renewal is in the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank, (pursuant
to procedures as may be established by the Bank) as another Fixed Rate Advance on or before the last day of its Interest
Period, will be automatically renewed on that date as a U.S. dollar denominated, Variable Rate Advance in an amount
(based, in the case of any conversion of a non-U.S. dollar denominated Fixed Rate Advance, upon the applicable, spot
currency exchange rate as of the maturity date, as determined by the Bank) equal to the unpaid principal balance of the
Fixed Rate Advance plus any accrued but unpaid interest on the Fixed Rate Advance, which Variable Rate Advance will
then accrue additional interest at a variable rate as provided in this Agreement.

 

 b)  Each Variable Rate Advance will be due and payable ON DEMAND.
 

 c)  The Borrower promises to pay the outstanding principal amount of each Advance, together with all accrued but unpaid
interest on each Advance, any and all fees or other charges payable in connection with each Advance, on the date the
principal amount becomes due (whether by reason of demand, the occurrence of a stated maturity date, by reason of
acceleration or otherwise). The Borrower further promises to pay interest in respect of the unpaid principal balance of each
Advance from the date the Advance is made until it is paid in full. All interest will be computed on the basis of the number
of days elapsed and a 360-day year. Interest on each Advance will be payable in arrears as follows:

 (i)  for Fixed Rate Advances — on the last day of the Interest Period (or if the Interest Period is longer than three months,
on the last day of each three month period following the date of the Advance) and on each date that all or any portion
of the principal amount of the Fixed Rate Advance becomes due or is paid; and

 

 (ii)  for Variable Rate Advances — on the twenty-second day of each month other than December, and on the thirty-first
day of December, and on each date that all or any portion of the principal amount of the Variable Rate Advance
becomes due or is paid.

 

 To the extent permitted by law, and without limiting any of the Bank’s other rights and remedies under the Agreement,
interest charges on any Advance that are not paid when due will be treated as principal and will accrue interest at a
variable rate from the date the payment of interest was due until it is repaid in full.

 d)  All payments of principal, interest or other amounts payable under this Agreement will be made in immediately available
funds and in the same currency in which the Advance was made, which unless otherwise agreed by the Bank, will be U.S.
dollars. UBS Financial Services Inc. or UBS International Inc., as applicable, may act as collecting and servicing agent for
the Bank for the Advances. All payments will be made by wire transfer of funds to an account specified by the Bank or by
another method agreed upon by the Bank and the Borrower. Upon receipt of all payments, the Bank will credit the same to
the Credit Line Account. The Bank shall apply
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   the proceeds of any payments in the following order; first to any Breakage Costs, Breakage Fee, other fees, costs of
collection and expenses, second to the outstanding principal amount of the related Advance and third to accrued interest.

 

 e)  All payments must be made to the Bank free and clear of any and all present and future taxes (including withholding
taxes), levies, imposts, duties, deductions, fees, liabilities and similar charges other than those imposed on the overall net
income of the Bank. If so requested by the Bank, the Borrower will deliver to the Bank the original or a certified copy of
each receipt evidencing payment of any taxes or, if no taxes are payable in respect of any payment under this Agreement,
a certificate from each appropriate taxing authority, or an opinion of counsel in form and substance and from counsel
acceptable to the Bank in its sole and absolute discretion, in either case stating that the payment is exempt from or not
subject to taxes. If any taxes or other charges are required to be withheld or deducted from any amount payable by the
Borrower under this Agreement, the amount payable will be increased to the amount which, after deduction from the
increased amount of all taxes and other charges required to be withheld or deducted from the amount payable, will yield to
the Bank the amount stated to be payable under this Agreement. If any of the taxes or charges are paid by the Bank, the
Borrower will reimburse the Bank on demand for the payments, together with all interest and penalties that may be
imposed by any governmental agency. None of the Bank, UBS Financial Services Inc., UBS-I or their respective
employees has provided or will provide legal advice to the Borrower or any Loan Party regarding compliance with (or the
implications of the Credit Line and the related guaranties and pledges under) the laws (including tax laws) of the
jurisdiction of the Borrower or any Loan Party or any other jurisdiction. The Borrower and each Loan Party are and shall be
solely responsible for, and the Bank shall have no responsibility for, the compliance by the Loan Parties with any and all
reporting and other requirements arising under any applicable laws.

 

 f)  In no event will the total interest and fees, if any, charged under this Agreement exceed the maximum interest rate or total
fees permitted by law. In the event any excess interest or fees are collected, the same will be refunded or credited to the
Borrower. If the amount of interest payable by the Borrower for any period is reduced pursuant to this Section 5(f), the
amount of interest payable for each succeeding period will be increased to the maximum rate permitted by law until the
amount of the reduction has been received by the Bank.

6)  Prepayments; Breakage Charges

 a)  The Borrower may repay any Variable Rate Advance at any time, in whole or in part, without penalty.
 

 b)  The Borrower may repay any Fixed Rate Advance, in whole or in part. The Borrower agrees to reimburse the Bank,
immediately upon demand, for any loss or cost (“Breakage Costs”) that the Bank notifies the Borrower has been incurred
by the Bank as a result of (i) any payment of the principal of a Fixed Rate Advance before the expiration of the Interest
Period for the Fixed Rate Advance (whether voluntarily, as a result of acceleration, demand or otherwise), or (ii) the
Customer’s failure to take any Fixed Rate Advance on the date agreed upon, including any loss or cost (including loss of
profit or margin) connected with the Bank’s re-employment of the amount so prepaid or of those funds acquired by the
Bank to fund the Advance not taken on the agreed upon date.

 

   Breakage Costs will be calculated by determining the differential between the stated rate of interest (as determined in
accordance with Section 4(a) of the Agreement) for the Fixed Rate Advance and prevailing LIBOR and multiplying the
differential by the sum of the outstanding principal amount of the Fixed Rate Advance (or the principal amount of Fixed
Rate Advance not taken by the Borrower) multiplied by the actual number of days remaining in the Interest Period for the
Fixed Rate Advance (based upon a 360-day year). The Borrower also agrees to promptly pay to the Bank an
administrative fee (“Breakage Fee”) in connection with any permitted or required prepayment. The Breakage Fee will be
calculated by multiplying the outstanding principal amount of the Fixed Rate Advance (or the principal amount of Fixed



Rate Advance not taken by the Borrower) by two basis points (0.02%) (with a minimum Breakage Fee of $100.00). Any
written notice from the Bank as to the amount of the loss or cost will be conclusive absent manifest error.

7)  Joint Credit Line Account Agreement; Suspension and Cancellation

 a)  If more than one Person is signing this Agreement as the “Borrower”, each party (a “Joint Borrower”) will be jointly and
severally liable for the Credit Line Obligations, regardless of any change in business relations, divorce, legal separation,
or other legal proceedings or in any agreement that may affect liabilities between the parties. Except as provided below for
the reinstatement of a suspended or cancelled Credit Line, and unless otherwise agreed by the Bank in writing, the Bank
may rely on, and each Joint Borrower will be responsible for, requests for Advances, directions, instructions and other
information provided to the Bank by any Joint Borrower.

 

 b)  Any Joint Borrower may request the Bank to suspend or cancel the Credit Line by sending the Bank a written notice of the
request addressed to the Bank at the address shown on the Borrower’s periodic Credit Line Account statements. Any
notice will become effective three Business Days after the date that the Bank receives it, and each Joint Borrower will
continue to be responsible for paying: (i) the Credit Line Obligations as of the effective date of the notice, and (ii) all
Advances that any Joint Borrower has requested but that have not yet become part of the Credit Line Obligations as of the
effective date of the notice. No notice will release or in any other way affect the Bank’s interest in the Collateral. All
subsequent requests to reinstate credit privileges must be signed by all Joint Borrowers comprising the Borrower,
including the Joint Borrower requesting the suspension of credit privileges. Any reinstatement will be granted or denied in
the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank.

 

 c)  All Credit Line Obligations will become immediately due and payable in full as of the effective date of any suspension or
cancellation of the Credit Line. The borrower will be responsible for the payment of all charges incurred on the Advances
after the effective date. The Bank will not release any Loan Party from any of the obligations under this Agreement or any
related agreement until the Credit Line Obligations have been paid in full and this Agreement has been terminated.

8)  Collateral; Grant of Security Interest; Set-off

 a)  To secure payment or performance of the Credit Line Obligations, the Borrower assigns, transfers and pledges to the
Bank, and grants to the Bank a first priority lien and security interest in the following assets and rights of the Borrower,
wherever located and whether owned now or acquired or arising in the future: (i) each Collateral Account; (ii) any and all
money, credit balances, certificated and uncertificated securities, security entitlements, commodity contracts, certificates of
deposit, instruments, documents, partnership interests, general intangibles, financial assets and other investment property
now or in the future credited to or carried, held or maintained in any Collateral Account; (iii) any and all over-the-counter
options, futures, foreign exchange, swap or similar contracts between the Borrower and either UBS Financial Services Inc.
or any of its affiliates; (iv) any and all accounts of the Borrower at the Bank or any of its affiliates; (v) any and all supporting
obligations and other
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   rights ancillary or attributable to, or arising in any way in connection with, any of the foregoing; and (vi) any and all interest,
dividends, distributions and other proceeds of any of the foregoing, including proceeds of proceeds (collectively, the
“Collateral”).

 

 b)  The Borrower and if applicable, any Pledgor on the Collateral Account, will take all actions reasonably requested by the
Bank to evidence, maintain and perfect the Bank’s first priority security interest in, and to enable the Bank to obtain control
over, the Collateral and any additional collateral pledged by the Pledgors, including but not limited to making, executing,
recording and delivering to the Bank (and authorizes the Bank to file, without the signature of the Borrower and any
Pledgor where permitted by applicable law) financing statements and amendments thereto, control agreements, notices,
assignments, listings, powers, consents and other documents regarding the Collateral and the Bank’s security interest in
the Collateral in such jurisdiction and in a form as the Bank reasonably may require. Each Loan Party irrevocably
authorizes and appoints each of the Bank and UBS Financial Services Inc., as collateral agent, to act as their agent and
attorney-in-fact to file any documents or to execute any documents in their name, with or without designation of authority.
Each Loan Party acknowledges that it will be obligated in respect of the documentation as if it had executed the
documentation itself.

 

 c)  The Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees to maintain in a Collateral Account,
at all times, Collateral having an aggregate lending value as specified by the Bank from time to time.

 

 d)  The Bank’s sole duty for the custody, safe keeping and physical preservation of any Collateral in its possession will be to
deal with the Collateral in the same manner as the Bank deals with similar property for its own account. The Borrower
(and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees that the Bank will have no responsibility to act on
any notice of corporate actions or events provided to holders of securities or other investment property included in the
Collateral. The Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees to (i) notify the Bank
promptly upon receipt of any communication to holders of the investment property disclosing or proposing any stock split,
stock dividend, extraordinary cash dividend, spin-off or other corporate action or event as a result of which the Borrower or
Pledgor would receive securities, cash (other than ordinary cash dividends) or other assets in respect of the investment
property, and (ii) immediately upon receipt by the Borrower or Pledgor of any of these assets, cause them to be credited to
a Collateral Account or deliver them to or as directed by the Bank as additional Collateral.

 

 e)  The Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees that all principal, interest, dividends,
distributions, premiums or other income and other payments received by the Bank or credited to the Collateral Account in
respect of any Collateral may be held by the Bank as additional Collateral or applied by the Bank to the Credit Line
Obligations. The Bank may create a security interest in any of the Collateral and may, at any time and at its option, transfer
any securities or other investment property constituting Collateral to a securities account maintained in its name or cause
any Collateral Account to be redesignated or renamed in the name of the Bank.

 

 f)  The Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees that if a Collateral Account has
margin features, the margin features will be removed by UBS Financial Services Inc. or UBS International Inc., as
applicable, so long as there is no outstanding margin debit in the Collateral Account.

 

 g)  If the Collateral Account permits cash withdrawals in the form of check writing, access card charges, bill payment and/ or
electronic funds transfer services (for example, Resource Management Account ®, Business Services Account BSA®,
certain Basic Investment Accounts and certain accounts enrolled in UBS Financial Services Inc. Investment Consulting
Services programs), the Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account) agrees that the
“Withdrawal Limit” for the Collateral Account, as described in the documentation governing the account will be reduced on



an ongoing basis so that the aggregate lending value of the Collateral remaining in the Collateral Account following the
withdrawal may not be less than the amount required pursuant to Section 8(c).

 

 h)  In addition to the Bank’s security interest, the Borrower (and, if applicable, any other Pledgor on the Collateral Account)
agrees that the Bank will at all times have a right to set off any or all of the Credit Line Obligations at or after the time at
which they become due, whether upon demand, at a stated maturity date, by acceleration or otherwise, against all
securities, cash, deposits or other property in the possession of or at any time in any account maintained with the Bank or
any of its affiliates by or for the benefit of the Borrower, whether carried individually or jointly with others. This right is in
addition to, and not in limitation of, any right the Bank may have at law or otherwise.

 

 i)  The Bank reserves the right to disapprove any Collateral and to require the Borrower at any time to deposit into the
Borrower’s Collateral Account additional Collateral in the amount as the Bank requests or to substitute new or additional
Collateral for any Collateral that has previously been deposited in the Collateral Account.

9)  Control
 

  For the purpose of giving the Bank control over each Collateral Account and in order to perfect the Bank’s security interests in
the Collateral, the Borrower and each Pledgor on the applicable Collateral Account consents to compliance by UBS Financial
Services Inc., UBS-I or any other securities intermediary (in any case, the “Securities Intermediary”) maintaining a Collateral
Account with entitlement orders and instructions from the Bank (or from any assignee or successor of the Bank) regarding the
Collateral Account and any financial assets or other property held therein without the further consent of the Borrower or any
other Pledgor on the applicable Collateral Account. Without limiting the foregoing, the Borrower and each Pledgor on the
Collateral Account acknowledges, consents and agrees that, pursuant to a control agreement entered into between the Bank
and the Securities Intermediary:

 a)  The Securities Intermediary will comply with entitlement orders originated by the Bank regarding any Collateral Account
without further consent from the Borrower or any Pledgor. The Securities Intermediary will treat all assets credited to a
Collateral Account, including money and credit balances, as financial assets for purposes of Article 8 of the Uniform
Commercial Code.

 

 b)  In order to enable the Borrower and any Pledgor on the applicable Collateral Account to trade financial assets that are
from time to time credited to a Collateral Account, the Securities Intermediary may comply with entitlement orders
originated by the Borrower or any Pledgor on the applicable Collateral Account (or if so agreed by the Bank, by an
investment adviser designated by the Borrower or any Pledgor on the applicable Collateral Account and acceptable to the
Bank and the Securities Intermediary) regarding the Collateral Account, but only until the time that the Bank notifies the
Securities Intermediary, that the Bank is asserting exclusive control over the Collateral Account. After the Securities
Intermediary has received a notice of exclusive control and has had a reasonable opportunity to comply, it will no longer
comply with entitlement orders originated by the Borrower or any Pledgor (or by any investment adviser designated by the
Borrower or any Pledgor)
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   concerning the Collateral Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, and irrespective of whether it has received
any notice of exclusive control, the Securities Intermediary will not comply with any entitlement order originated by the
Borrower or any Pledgor (or by any investment adviser designated by the Borrower or any Pledgor) to withdraw any
financial assets from a Collateral Account or to pay any money, free credit balance or other amount owing on a Collateral
Account (other than cash withdrawals and payments not exceeding the “Withdrawal Limit” as contemplated in Section 8
(g)) without the prior consent of the Bank.

10)  Remedies

 a)  If any of the following events (each, an “Event”) occurs:

 (i)  the Borrower fails to pay any amount due under this Agreement;
 

 (ii)  the Borrower and/or any other relevant Loan Party fails to maintain sufficient Collateral in a Collateral Account as
required by the Bank or any Guarantor fails to maintain collateral as required by the Bank under its Guaranty
Agreement;

 

 (iii)  the Borrower or any other Loan Party breaches or fails to perform any other covenant, agreement, term or condition
that is applicable to it under this Agreement or any related agreement, or any representation or other statement of the
Borrower (or any Loan Party) in this Agreement or in any related agreement is incorrect in any material respect when
made or deemed made;

 

 (iv)  the Borrower or any other Loan Party dies or is declared (by appropriate authority) incompetent or of unsound mind
or is indicted or convicted of any crime or, if not an individual, ceases to exist;

 

 (v)  any voluntary or involuntary proceeding for bankruptcy, reorganization, dissolution or liquidation or similar action is
commenced by or against the Borrower or any other Loan Party, or a trustee in bankruptcy, receiver, conservator or
rehabilitator is appointed, or an assignment for the benefit of creditors is made, with respect to the Borrower or any
other Loan Party or its property;

 

 (vi)  the Borrower or any Loan Party is insolvent, unable to pay its debts as they fall due, stops, suspends or threatens to
stop or suspend payment of all or a material part of its debts, begins negotiations or takes any proceeding or other
step with a view to readjustment, rescheduling or deferral of all or any part of its indebtedness, which it would or
might otherwise be unable to pay when due, or proposes or makes a general assignment or an arrangement or
composition with or for the benefit of its creditors;

 

 (vii)  a Collateral Account (or any account in which collateral provided by a Loan Party is maintained) or any portion
thereof is terminated, attached or subjected to a levy;

 

 (viii) the Borrower or any Loan Party fails to provide promptly all financial and other information as the Bank may request
from time to time;

 

 (ix)  any indebtedness of the Borrower or any other Loan Party in respect of borrowed money (including indebtedness
guarantied by the Borrower or any other Loan Party) or in respect of any swap, forward, cap, floor, collar, option or
other derivative transaction, repurchase or similar transaction or any combination of these transactions is not paid
when due, or any event or condition causes the indebtedness to become, or permits the holder to declare the
indebtedness to be, due and payable prior to its stated maturity;

 

 (x)  final judgment for the payment of money is rendered against Borrower (or any Loan Party) and, within thirty days



from the entry of judgment, has not been discharged or stayed pending appeal or has not been discharged within
thirty days from the entry of a final order of affirmance on appeal;

 

 (xi)  any legal proceeding is instituted or any other event occurs or condition exists that in the Bank’s judgment calls into
question (A) the validity or binding effect of this Agreement or any related agreement or any of the Borrower’s (or any
other Loan Party’s) obligations under this Agreement or under any related agreement or (B) the ability of the
Borrower (or any Loan Party) to perform its obligations under this Agreement, or under any related agreement; or

 

 (xii)  the Bank otherwise deems itself or its security interest in the Collateral insecure or the Bank believes in good faith
that the prospect of payment or other performance by any Loan Party is impaired.

   then, the Credit Line Obligations will become immediately due and payable (without demand) and the Bank may, in its
sole and absolute discretion, liquidate, withdraw or sell all or any part of the Collateral and apply the same, as well as the
proceeds of any liquidation or sale, to any amounts owed to the Bank, including any applicable Breakage Costs and
Breakage Fee. The Bank will not be liable to any Loan Party in any way for any adverse consequences (for tax effect or
otherwise) resulting from the liquidation of appreciated Collateral. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the sale
may be made in the Bank’s sole and absolute discretion by public sale on any exchange or market where business is then
usually transacted or by private sale, and the Bank may be the purchaser at any public or private sale. Any Collateral that
may decline speedily in value or that customarily is sold on a recognized exchange or market may be sold without
providing any Loan Party with prior notice of the sale. Each Loan Party agrees that, for all other Collateral, two calendar
days notice to the Loan Party, sent to its last address shown in the Bank’s account records, will be deemed reasonable
notice of the time and place of any public sale or time after which any private sale or other disposition of the Collateral may
occur. Any amounts due and not paid on any Advance following an Event will bear interest from the day following the
Event until fully paid at a rate per annum equal to the interest rate applicable to the Advance immediately prior to the Event
plus 2.00%. In addition to the Bank’s rights under this Agreement, the Bank will have the right to exercise any one or more
of the rights and remedies of a secured creditor under the Utah Uniform Commercial Code, as then in effect, or under any
other applicable law.

 b)  Nothing contained in this Section 10 will limit the right of the Bank to demand full or partial payment of the Credit Line
Obligations, in its sole and absolute discretion and without cause, at any time, whether or not an Event has occurred and is
continuing.

 

 c)  All rights and remedies of the Bank under this Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to all other rights and
remedies that the Bank may have at law or equity or under any other contract or other writing for the enforcement of the
security interest herein or the collection of any amount due under this Agreement.

 

 d)  Any non-exercise of rights, remedies and powers by the Bank under this Agreement and the other documents delivered in
connection with this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights, remedies and powers. The Bank fully
reserves its rights to invoke
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   any of its rights, remedies and powers at any time it may deem appropriate.

11)  Representations, Warranties and Covenants by the Loan Parties
 

  Each Borrower and each other Loan Party (if applicable) makes the following representations, warranties and covenants (and
each Borrower will be deemed to have repeated each representation and warranty each time a Borrower requests an Advance)
to the Bank:

 a)  Except for the Bank’s rights under this Agreement and the rights of the Securities Intermediary under any account
agreement, the Borrower and each relevant Pledgor owns the Collateral, free of any interest, lien or security interest in
favor of any third party and free of any impediment to transfer;

 

 b)  Each Loan Party: (i) if a natural Person, is of the age of majority; (ii) is authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement
and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and any related agreement; (iii) is not an employee benefit plan, as
that term is defined by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or an Individual Retirement Credit Line
Account (and none of the Collateral is an asset of a plan or account); and (iv) unless the Loan Party advises the Bank to
the contrary, in writing, and provides the Bank with a letter of approval, where required, from its employer, is not an
employee or member of any exchange or of any corporation or firm engaged in the business of dealing, either as a broker
or as principal, in securities, bills of exchange, acceptances or other forms of commercial paper;

 

 c)  Neither the Borrower nor any Pledgor on the Collateral Account has pledged or will pledge the Collateral or grant a
security interest in the Collateral to any party other than the Bank or the Securities Intermediary, or has permitted or will
permit the Collateral to become subject to any liens or encumbrances (other than those of the Bank and the Securities
Intermediary), during the term of this Agreement;

 

 d)  No Loan Party is in default under any material contract, judgment, decree or order to which it is a party or by which it or its
properties may be bound;

 

 e)  Each Loan Party has duly filed all tax and information returns required to be filed and has paid all taxes, fees,
assessments and other governmental charges or levies that have become due and payable, except to the extent such
taxes or other charges are being contested in good faith and are adequately reserved against in accordance with GAAP.

 

 f)  The Borrower and each relevant Pledgor (i) is and at all times will continue to be the legal and beneficial owner of all
assets held in or credited to any Collateral Account or otherwise included in the Collateral, and (ii) does not hold any
assets held in or credited to any Collateral Account or otherwise included in the Collateral in trust or subject to any
contractual or other restrictions on use that would prevent the use of such assets to (a) repay the Bank or (b) be pledged
as Collateral in favor of the Bank.

 

   The provisions of this Section 11 will survive the termination of this Agreement or any related agreement and the
repayment of the Credit Line Obligations.

12)  Indemnification; Limitation on Liability of the Bank and the Securities Intermediary
 

  Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Bank and the Securities Intermediary, their affiliates and their respective
directors, officers, agents and employees against any and all claims, causes of action, liabilities, lawsuits, demands and
damages, for example, any and all court costs and reasonable attorneys fees, in any way relating to or arising out of or in
connection with this Agreement, except to the extent caused by the Bank’s or Securities Intermediary’s breach of its obligations
under this Agreement. Neither the Bank nor the Securities Intermediary will be liable to any party for any consequential
damages arising out of any act or omission by either of them with respect to this Agreement or any Advance or Collateral



Account. The provisions of this Section 12 will survive the termination of this Agreement or any related agreement and the
repayment of the Credit Line Obligations.

13)  Acceptance of Application and Agreement; Applicable Law

  THIS APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT WILL BE RECEIVED AND ACCEPTED BY BANK IN THE STATE OF UTAH, OR IF
THIS APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT IS DELIVERED TO BANK’S AGENT, UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC., IT WILL BE
RECEIVED AND ACCEPTED WHEN RECEIVED BY UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.’S UNDERWRITING DEPARTMENT.
DELIVERY OF THE APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT TO THE BORROWER’S FINANCIAL ADVISOR AT UBS FINANCIAL
SERVICES INC. WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED RECEIPT OR ACCEPTANCE BY BANK. ALL DECISIONS MADE BY BANK
REGARDING THE CREDIT LINE WILL BE MADE IN UTAH.

 

  THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
UTAH APPLICABLE TO AGREEMENTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY IN THE STATE OF UTAH AND, IN
CONNECTION WITH THE CHOICE OF LAW GOVERNING INTEREST, THE FEDERAL LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES,
EXCEPT THAT WITH RESPECT TO THE COLLATERAL ACCOUNT AND THE BANK’S SECURITY INTEREST THEREIN,
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE NEW YORK UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, AND FOR PURPOSES
OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE COLLATERAL ACCOUNT AND THE BANK’S SECURITY INTEREST THEREIN, THE
JURISDICTION OF UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC. AND UBS-I SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

14)  Assignment

  This Agreement may not be assigned by the Borrower without the prior written consent of the Bank. This Agreement will be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and permitted assigns of the Borrower. The Bank may assign this
Agreement, and this Agreement will inure to the benefit of the Bank’s successors and assigns.

15)  Amendment

  This Agreement may be amended only by the Bank, including, but not limited to, (i) the addition or deletion of any provision of
this Agreement and (ii) the amendment of the (x) “Spread Over LIBOR/UBS Bank USA Fixed Funding Rate” in Schedule I or (y)
“Spread Over Prime” in Schedule II to this Agreement, at any time by sending written notice, signed by an authorized officer of
the Bank, of an amendment to the Borrower. The amendment shall be effective as of the date established by the Bank. This
Agreement may not be amended orally. The Borrower or the Bank may waive compliance with any provision of this Agreement,
but any waiver must be in writing and will not be deemed to be a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement. The
provisions of this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the Bank and the Borrower with respect to the subject
matter hereof and supersede all prior or contemporaneous agreements, proposals, understandings and representations,
written or oral, between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

16)  Severability

  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable, by reason of any law, rule, administrative
order or judicial
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  or arbitral decision, the determination will not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.
 

17)  Choice of Forum; Waiver of Jury Trial

 a)  ANY SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY JUDGMENT ENTERED BY ANY COURT
REGARDING THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE
BROUGHT AND MAINTAINED EXCLUSIVELY IN THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE STATE OF UTAH
OR IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE STATE OF UTAH. EACH OF THE LOAN PARTIES
IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE COURTS OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE STATE OF UTAH AND OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE STATE OF UTAH FOR THE
PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING AS SET FORTH ABOVE AND IRREVOCABLY AGREES TO BE
BOUND BY ANY JUDGMENT RENDERED THEREBY IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING.
EACH OF THE LOAN PARTIES IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY
OBJECTION WHICH IT MAY HAVE NOW OR IN THE FUTURE TO THE LAYING OF VENUE OF ANY SUCH ACTION OR
PROCEEDING BROUGHT IN ANY SUCH COURT REFERRED TO ABOVE AND ANY CLAIM THAT ANY SUCH ACTION
OR PROCEEDING HAS BEEN BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

 

 b)  EACH OF THE LOAN PARTIES (FOR ITSELF, ANYONE CLAIMING THROUGH IT OR IN ITS NAME, AND ON BEHALF
OF ITS EQUITY HOLDERS) IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY REGARDING
ANY CLAIM BASED UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT.

 

 c)  Any arbitration proceeding between the Borrower (or any other Loan Party) and the Securities Intermediary,
regardless of whether or not based on circumstances related to any court proceedings between the Bank and the
Borrower (or the other Loan Party), will not provide a basis for any stay of the court proceedings.

 

 d)  Nothing in this Section 17 will be deemed to alter any agreement to arbitrate any controversies which may arise
between the Borrower (or any other Loan Party) and UBS Financial Services Inc. or its predecessors, and any
claims between the Borrower or the Loan Party, as applicable, and UBS Financial Services Inc. or its employees
(whether or not they have acted as agents of the Bank) will be arbitrated as provided in any agreement between the
Borrower or the Loan Party, as applicable, and UBS Financial Services Inc.

18)  State Specific Provisions and Disclosures

 a)  For residents of Ohio:
 

   The Ohio laws against discrimination require that all creditors make credit equally available to all creditworthy
customers, and that credit reporting agencies maintain separate credit histories on each individual upon request.
The Ohio civil rights commission administers compliance with this law.

 

 b)  For residents of Oregon:
 

   NOTICE TO BORROWER: DO NOT SIGN THIS AGREEMENT BEFORE YOU READ IT. THIS AGREEMENT PROVIDES
FOR THE PAYMENT OF A PENALTY IF YOU WISH TO REPAY A FIXED RATE ADVANCE PRIOR TO THE DATE
PROVIDED FOR REPAYMENT IN THE AGREEMENT

 

 c)  For residents of Vermont:
 



   NOTICE TO BORROWER: THE ADVANCES MADE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE DEMAND LOANS AND SO MAY
BE COLLECTED BY THE LENDER AT ANY TIME. A NEW LOAN MUTUALLY AGREED UPON AND SUBSEQUENTLY
ISSUED MAY CARRY A HIGHER OR LOWER RATE OF INTEREST.

 

   NOTICE TO JOINT BORROWER: YOUR SIGNATURE ON THE AGREEMENT MEANS THAT YOU ARE EQUALLY
LIABLE FOR REPAYMENT OF THIS LOAN. IF THE BORROWER DOES NOT PAY, THE LENDER HAS A LEGAL RIGHT
TO COLLECT FROM YOU.

 

 d)  For residents of California:

 (i)  Any person, whether married, unmarried, or separated, may apply for separate credit.
 

 (ii)  As required by law, you are notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit record may be
submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.

 

 (iii)  The Borrower will notify the Bank, within a reasonable time, of any change in the Borrower’s name, address, or
employment.

 

 (iv)  The Borrower will not attempt to obtain any Advance if the Borrower knows that the Borrower’s credit
privileges under the Credit Line have been terminated or suspended.

 

 (v)  The Borrower will notify the Bank by telephone, telegraph, letter, or any other reasonable means that an
unauthorized use of the Credit Line has occurred or may occur as the result of the loss or theft of a credit card
or other instrument identifying the Credit Line, within a reasonable time after the Borrower’s discovery of the
loss or theft, and will reasonably assist the Bank in determining the facts and circumstances relating to any
unauthorized use of the Credit Line.

19)  Account Agreement
 

  Each Loan Party acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement supplements their account agreement(s) with the
Securities Intermediary relating to the Collateral Account and, if applicable, any related account management
agreement(s) between the Loan Party and the Securities Intermediary. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and any other agreement between the Loan Party and the Securities Intermediary, the terms of this
Agreement will prevail.

 

20)  Notices
 

  Unless otherwise required by law, all notices to a Loan Party may be oral or in writing, in the Bank’s discretion, and if in
writing, delivered or mailed by the United States mail, or by overnight carrier or by telecopy to the address of the Loan
Party shown on the records of the Bank. Each Loan Party agrees to send notices to the Bank, in writing, at such address
as provided by the Bank from time to time.
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Schedule I to UBS Bank USA Credit Line Agreement
Schedule of Percentage Spreads Over LIBOR or the UBS Bank USA Fixed
Funding Rate, as applicable  Spread Over LIBOR/UBS Bank  
Aggregate Approved Amount  USA Fixed Funding Rate  

$250,000 to $499,999  2.750%   
$500,000 to $999,999  1.750%   
$1,000,000 to $4,999,999  1.500%   
$5,000,000 and over  1.250%   
 

Schedule II to UBS Bank USA Credit Line Agreement
Schedule of Percentage Spreads Over Prime
Outstanding Amount under Credit Line  Spread Over Prime  

$0 to $24,999  3.125%   
$25,000 to $49,999  2.625%   
$50,000 to $74,999  2.125%   
$75,000 to $99,999  1.625%   
$100,000 to $249,999  1.375%   

NOTICE TO CO-SIGNER (Traduccion en Ingles Se Requiere Por La Ley)

You are being asked to guarantee this debt. Think carefully before you do. If the borrower doesn’t pay the debt, you will have to. Be
sure you can afford to pay if you have to, and that you want to accept this responsibility.

You may have to pay to the full amount of the debt if the borrower does not pay. You may also have to pay late fees or collection
costs, which increase this amount.

The creditor can collect this debt from you without first trying to collect from the borrower. The creditor can use the same collection
methods against you that can be used against the borrower, such as suing you, garnishing your wages, etc. If this debt is ever in
default, that fact may become a part of your credit record.

This notice is not the contract that makes you liable for the debt.

AVISO PARA EL FIADOR (Spanish Translation Required By Law)

Se le esta pidiendo que garantice esta deuda. Pienselo con cuidado antes de ponerse de acuerdo. Si la persona que ha pedido
este prestamo no paga la deuda, usted tendra que pagarla. Este seguro de que usted podra pagar si sea obligado a pagarla y de
que usted desea aceptar la responsabilidad.

Si la persona que ha pedido el prestamo no paga la deuda, es posible que usted tenga que pagar la suma total de la deuda, mas
los cargos por tardarse en el pago o el costo de cobranza, lo cual aumenta el total de esta suma.

El acreedor (financiero) puede cobrarle a usted sin, primeramente, tratar de cobrarle al deudor. Los mismos metodos de cobranza
que pueden usarse contra el deudor, podran usarse contra usted, tales como presentar una demanda en corte, quitar parte de su
sueldo, etc. Si alguna vez no se cumpla con la obligacion de pagar esta deuda, se puede incluir esa informacion en la historia de
credito de usted.

Este aviso no es el contrato mismo en que se le echa a usted la responsabilidad de la deuda.
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Re: Account Number CP 14862 (the “Account”)

ADDENDUM TO CREDIT LINE AGREEMENT

The attached “Credit Line Agreement” sets forth certain terms related to the extension of credit by UBS Bank USA (the “Bank”) with
respect to certain assets held through the above-referenced discretionary corporate cash management Account with UBS Financial
Services Inc. (the “Firm”). The party signing this Addendum as Client where indicated below (the “Client”) understands and agrees
that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in either the Credit Line Agreement (including, without limitation, Section 19
of the Credit Line Agreement) or the existing Corporate Cash Management Account Agreement applicable to the Account (the
“Account Agreement”), the terms of the Credit Line Agreement supplement, but do not replace, the existing Account Agreement as
follows: (i) the terms of the Credit Line Agreement (as amended from time to time in accordance with its terms) shall govern with
respect to any matters, issues or disputes related directly to, or arising directly from, the extension of credit and/or the status of Client
as borrower and the Bank as lender pursuant to the Credit Line Agreement (e.g., matters relating to the loan account(s) established
at the Bank pursuant to the Credit Line Agreement, the terms of any borrowing or extension of credit under the Credit Line
Agreement, and/or the indemnification of the Bank as a lender); and (ii) the terms of the Account Agreement (as amended from time
to time in accordance with its terms) shall govern with respect to all other matters (e.g., matters relating to the Account established at
the Firm pursuant to the Account Agreement, the Firm’s trading authority and activities and/or the indemnification of the Firm for the
services it provides under the Account Agreement).

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Client further understands and agrees that:

(A)  The Account remains a discretionary account, as described in Section 5 of the Account Agreement, and the Firm will continue to
exercise investment discretion over the assets in the Account as provided in the Account Agreement.

 

(B)  If applicable, Client may continue to receive Financial Advisor Reports with respect to the Account, as described in Section 8 of
the Account Agreement, and Client’s receipt of such reports remains subject to the provisions of Section 8 of the Account
Agreement.

 

(C)  Solely with respect to disputes arising out of the extension of credit and/or the status of Client as borrower and the Bank as
lender pursuant to the Credit Line Agreement, the choice of law provisions of Section 13 of the Credit Line Agreement and the
dispute resolution provisions of Section 17 of the Credit Line Agreement shall govern. With respect to any other disputes
relating to the Account, the choice of law provisions of Section 14 of the Account Agreement and the dispute resolution
provisions of Section 15 of the Account Agreement shall continue to govern.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]
[Signature page follows]

 



 

Acknowledged and agreed this            day of                                                              ,                     
     
Client’s Name:  Cytokinetics, Incorporated   
     
By:     
    
Name:     
    
Title:     
    

 



 

 
UBS Bank USA

  KU

ADDENDUM TO CREDIT LINE ACCOUNT APPLICATION AND
AGREEMENT

         
Credit Line Account    Account Number   
Cytokinetics, Inc.  5V   62006  CP
 
Collateral Account    Account Number   
Cytokinetics, Inc.  CP   14862  CPW4

This Addendum (this “Addendum”) is attached to, incorporated by reference into and is fully a part of the Credit Line Account
Application and Agreement between UBS Bank USA (the “Bank”) and the borrower named in the signature area below (the
“Borrower”), dated as of the date hereof (as amended or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Agreement”). This Addendum and
the Agreement shall not become effective and binding upon the Bank until this Addendum has been executed by the Borrower and
accepted by the Bank at its home office. Any conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this Addendum shall be resolved in
accordance with the terms of this Addendum. Defined terms used herein to have the respective meanings set forth in the Agreement
unless otherwise defined in this Addendum.

A.  The Bank, UBS Financial Services Inc. and the Borrower each acknowledge and agree that:

Definitions

1.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following definitions in Section 1:

 “•  “Additional Payments” has the meaning specified in Section 5 g).
 

 •  “ARS Collateral” means any and all Collateral consisting of Auction Rate Securities.
 

 •  “ARS Payments” has the meaning specified in Section 5 g).
 

 •  “Auction Rate Securities” means any and all securities determined by the Bank, in its sole and absolute discretion, as
being commonly referred to as “Auction Rate Securities,” which, for greater certainty, include, without limitation, debt
securities on which the interest rate payable is periodically re-set by an auction process and/or equity securities on
which any dividend payable is periodically re-set by an auction process.

 

 •  “Taxable SLARC Maximum Auction Rate” means the applicable “reset rate,” “maximum auction rate” or other similar
rate as may be specified in the prospectus or other documentation governing any applicable Taxable Student Loan
Auction Rate Securities as representing the failed auction rate or similar rate payable on such Auction Rate
Securities, in each case expressed as a per-annum rate and as calculated in the Bank’s sole and absolute
discretion.

 

 •  “Taxable Student Loan Auction Rate Securities” means any and all Auction Rate Securities Collateral consisting of
securities determined by the Bank, in its sole and absolute discretion, as being commonly referred to as “Student
Loan Auction Rate Securities” and on which the interest or dividend rate paid or payable to the Borrower by the
issuer of such securities is taxable to the Borrower.”

Terms of Advances

2.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as Section 3 e):
 

  “The Borrower acknowledges that the Bank will not make an Advance against the ARS Collateral in amounts equal to the fair
market or par value of the ARS Collateral unless the Borrower arranges for another person or entity to provide additional
collateral or assurances on terms and conditions satisfactory to the Bank. In requesting an Approved Amount equal to the par
value of the ARS Collateral, the Borrower has arranged for UBS Financial Services Inc. to provide, directly or through a third
party, the pledge of additional collateral and/or assurances to the Bank so that the Bank will consider making Advances from



time to time in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and in amounts equal to, in the aggregate, the par value of the ARS
Collateral at the date of an Advance. In addition, the Borrower, the Bank and UBS Financial Services Inc. acknowledge and
agree that if (a) the Bank is repaid all of the Credit Line Obligations due to the Bank under the Agreement and this Addendum
and (b) as part of such repayment, the Bank realizes on the additional collateral and/or assurances pledged or otherwise
provided by UBS Financial Services and/or any such third party to the Bank, then the Agreement shall not terminate and the
Bank shall automatically assign to UBS Financial Services Inc. and any such third party, and UBS Financial Services Inc. and
any such third party shall automatically assume and be subrogated to, all of the Bank’s rights, claims and interest in and under
the Agreement and this Addendum, including without limitation, the security interest in the Collateral, including without limitation
the ARS Collateral, granted the Bank under the Agreement and this Addendum (further including, without limitation, interest,
dividends, distributions, premiums, other income and payments received in respect of any and all such Collateral) to the extent
of the amount that the Bank has realized on all or any part of the additional collateral and/or assurances pledged or otherwise
provided by UBS Financial Services and/or any such third party to the Bank in order to effect the repayment of the Credit Line
Obligations due to the Bank under the Agreement. Upon such automatic assignment and subrogation, UBS Financial Services
Inc. and any such third party shall be entitled to directly exercise any and all rights and remedies afforded the Bank under the
Agreement, this Addendum and any and all other documents and agreements entered into in connection with the Agreement
and/or this Addendum.”
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Credit Line Account Number           

5V            62006            CP

Interest

3.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as a new Section 4 d), Section 4 e) and Section 4 f):

 “d)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, and subject to the provisions of Sections 4 e) and f) of
this Agreement, the interest rate charged on any and all outstanding Variable Rate Advances shall be the lesser of
(i) the amount prescribed by Sections 4 a), b), or c) of this Agreement, as applicable, and (ii) the then applicable
weighted average rate of interest or dividend rate paid to the Borrower by the issuer of the ARS Collateral.

 

 e)  The Bank and the Borrower acknowledge and agree that the Bank shall be entitled to determine or adjust, at any
time and from time to time, the interest rate payable by the Borrower to the Bank on all or any part of the outstanding
Variable Rate Advances to reflect any changes in the composition of the ARS Collateral, to address any inability to
determine interest rates, or for any other reason that, in the Bank’s sole and absolute discretion, is necessary to give
effect to the intent of the provisions of this Agreement, including, without limitation, this Section 4 (it being
acknowledged and agreed that the provisions of this Section 4 are intended to cause the interest payable by the
Borrower under this Agreement to equal the interest or dividend rate payable to the Borrower by the issuer of any
ARS Collateral) and any and all such adjustments by the Bank hereunder shall be conclusive and binding on the
Bank and the Borrower absent manifest error.

 

 f)  If and to the extent that any or all of the ARS Collateral consists of Taxable Student Loan Auction Rate
Securities, then notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, when calculating such weighted
average interest rate, the interest rate paid to the Borrower with respect to such Taxable Student Loan Auction
Rate Securities shall be deemed to be equal to (i) for the period from the date of this Addendum through and
including January 21, 2009, the applicable coupon rate(s) and (ii) from January 22, 2009 and thereafter, the then
applicable Taxable SLARC Maximum Auction Rate, for, and to the extent of, such Taxable Student Loan Auction
Rate Securities. The Borrower will be charged interest on the Loan in months in which the Borrower does not
receive interest on the Taxable Student Loan Auction Rate Securities.”

Payments

4.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as Section 5 g):
 

  “The Borrower will make additional payments (“Additional Payments”) as follows:

 •  The proceeds of any liquidation, redemption, sale or other disposition of all or part of the ARS Collateral will be
automatically transferred to the Bank as payments. The amount of these payments will be determined by the
proceeds received in the Collateral Account, and may be as much as the total Credit Line Obligations.

 

 •  All other interest, dividends, distributions, premiums, other income and payments that are received in the Collateral
Account in respect of any ARS Collateral will be automatically transferred to the Bank as payments. These are
referred to as “ARS Payments.” The amount of each ARS Payment will vary, based on the proceeds received in the
Collateral Account. The Bank estimates that the ARS Payments will range from zero to fifteen ($15.00) dollars per
month per $1,000 in par value of Pledged ARS. The Bank will notify the Borrower at least ten (10) days in advance of
any ARS Payment that falls outside of this range. If the Borrower would prefer to have advance notice of each
payment to be made to Advances, the Borrower may cancel ARS Payments as described below.

 

 •  The Borrower agrees that any cash, check or other deposit (other than a deposit of securities) made to the Collateral
Account is an individual authorization to have such amount transferred to the Bank as a payment. The amount of
each payment is the amount of the deposit.

Each Additional Payment will be applied, as of the date received by the Bank, in the manner set forth in the last sentence of
Section 5 d). The Borrower acknowledges that neither the Bank nor UBS Financial Services Inc. sets or arranges for any
schedule of Additional Payments. Instead, Additional Payments will be transferred automatically from the Collateral Account
whenever amounts are received in the Collateral Account, generally on the second Business Day after receipt.



The Borrower may elect to stop ARS Payments at any time, and this election will cancel all ARS Payments that would occur
three (3) Business Days or more after the Bank receives such notice. If the Borrower stops ARS Payments, the Borrower will
continue to be obligated to pay principal, interest, and other amounts pursuant to the Agreement. If the Borrower elects to
cancel ARS Payments, all other Additional Payments will be cancelled. Cancelling ARS Payments and Additional Payments
may result in higher interest charges by the Bank because amounts received in the Collateral Account will not be automatically
transferred and credited. Any amounts received in the Collateral Account will remain in the Collateral Account unless the Bank
permits you to withdraw all or part of such amounts. Your notice to cancel must be sent to: Attention: Head of Credit Risk
Monitoring, UBS Bank USA, 299 South Main Street, Suite 2275, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111, or call (801) 
741-0310.

Important Disclosure About Required Payments. If Additional Payments are sufficient to pay all accrued interest on Advances
on or before a due date, then the Borrower need not make an additional interest payment. Excess Additional Payments will be
applied against principal. However, if Additional Payments are not sufficient to pay all accrued interest on Advances on or
before a due date, then the Bank may, in its sole discretion (1) capitalize unpaid interest as an additional Advance, or
(2) require the Borrower to make payment of all accrued and unpaid interest.”
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Credit Line Account Number           

5V            62006            CP

Remedies

5.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as Section 10 e):

  “The Borrower agrees that in the event the Bank determines to liquidate or sell any Collateral, the Bank shall, to the fullest
extent permitted by applicable law, have the right to do so in any manner, including, without limitation, the sale of Collateral
individually or in a block, for cash or for credit, in a public or private sale, with or without public notice, through the use of sealed
bids or otherwise, with the aid of any advisor or agent who may be an affiliate of the Bank or in any other manner as the Bank in
its sole discretion shall choose. The Borrower acknowledges that the price the Bank obtains for Collateral in the Bank’s chosen
method of sale may be lower than might be otherwise obtained in another method of sale, and the Borrower hereby agrees that
any such sale shall not be considered to be not commercially reasonable solely because of such lower price. The Borrower
understands that there may not be a liquid market for the Collateral and that, as a result, the price received for the Collateral
upon liquidation or sale by the Bank may be substantially less than the Borrower paid for such Collateral or than the last market
value available for it, if any. The Borrower further agrees that any sale by the Bank shall not be considered to be not
commercially reasonable solely because there are few (including only one) or no third parties who submit bids or otherwise
offer to buy the Collateral. The Borrower understands that the Bank’s sale of any of the Collateral may be subject to various
state and federal property and/or securities laws and regulations, and that compliance with such laws and regulations may
result in delays and/or a lower price being obtained for the Collateral. The Borrower agrees that the Bank shall have the right to
restrict any prospective purchasers to those who, in the Bank’s sole discretion, the Bank deems to be qualified. The Borrower
acknowledges that the Bank shall have sole authority to determine, without limitation, the time, place, method of advertisement
and manner of sale and that the Bank may delay or adjourn any such sale in its sole discretion. The Borrower expressly
authorizes the Bank to take any action with respect to the Collateral as the Bank deems necessary or advisable to facilitate any
liquidation or sale, and the Borrower agrees that the Bank shall not be held liable for taking or failing to take any such action,
regardless if a greater price may have been obtained for the Collateral if such action was or was not taken, as applicable. The
Borrower hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any legal right of appraisal, notice, valuation, stay, extension,
moratorium or redemption that the Borrower would otherwise have with respect to a sale of the Collateral.”

Representations, Warranties and Covenants by the Loan Parties

6.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as Section 11 g):

 “g)  If at any time there are Credit Line Obligations outstanding under the Credit Line, then in connection with any ARS
Collateral, if at any time any such ARS Collateral may be sold, exchanged, redeemed, transferred or otherwise
conveyed by the Borrower for gross proceeds that are, in the aggregate, not less than the par value of such Auction
Rate Securities to any party, including, without limitation, to UBS Financial Services Inc. and/or any of its affiliates
(any such sale, exchange, redemption, transfer or conveyance referred to herein as an “ARS Liquidation”), the
Borrower agrees (i) to immediately effect such ARS Liquidation to the extent necessary to satisfy all Credit Line
Obligations in full and (ii) that the proceeds of any such ARS Liquidation so effected shall be immediately and
automatically used to pay down any and all such outstanding Credit Line Obligations to the extent of such proceeds.
The Borrower hereby acknowledges and agrees with the Bank and directs UBS Financial Services Inc. that to the
extent permitted by applicable law, this Section 11 g) shall constitute an irrevocable instruction, direction and
standing sell order to UBS Financial Services Inc. to effect an ARS Liquidation to the extent it is possible to do so at
any time during the term of this Agreement. The Borrower further agrees with the Bank and UBS Financial Services
Inc. to execute and deliver to the Bank and/or UBS Financial Services Inc. such further documents and agreements
as may be necessary in the sole and absolute discretion of the Bank and/or UBS Financial Services Inc. to effect the
foregoing irrevocable instruction, direction and standing sell order.”

Waivers

7.  The Agreement is amended by adding the following as Section 21:
 

  “The Borrower hereby (i) acknowledges and admits its indebtedness and obligations to the Bank under the Agreement;
and (ii) acknowledges, admits and agrees that it has no and shall assert no defenses, offsets, counterclaims or claims in



respect of its obligations under the Agreement, in each case notwithstanding any claim or asserted claim that it may
have, or purport to have, against any affiliate of the Bank.”

Schedules I and II
         
8. a) Schedule I of the Agreement is amended in its entirety to read as follows:     
    $25,001 to $499,999   2.750%
    $500,000 to $999,999   1.750%
    $1,000,000 to $4,999,999   1.500%
    $5,000,000 and over   1.250%
  b) Schedule II of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with: “[Intentionally Deleted].”     
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Credit Line Account Number           

5V            62006            CP

No Fixed Rate Advances/Prime Credit Lines

9.  The Bank and the Borrower acknowledge and agree that notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement: (a) the
Borrower shall not request and the Bank shall not make a Fixed Rate Advance; and (b) there shall be no Prime Credit Line
facilities available under the Agreement.

Alternative Financing

10.  If at any time the Bank exercises its right of demand under Section 5 a), Section 5 b) and Section 10 b) of the Loan Agreement
for any reason other than (i) the occurrence of an Event under Sections 10 a) (iv), (v), (vii), (ix) (if and to the extent any
indebtedness specified thereunder is to the Bank or any of the Bank’s affiliates), or (xi) of the Agreement; or (ii) in connection
with any termination for cause by UBS Financial Services Inc. of the overall customer relationship between UBS Financial
Services Inc. and the Borrower or its affiliates, then UBS Financial Services Inc. shall, or shall cause one or more of its affiliates,
to provide as soon as reasonably possible, alternative financing on substantially the same terms and conditions as those under
the Agreement and the Bank agrees that the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as such alternative
financing has been established.

Margin Calls; Interest Payments

11.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, the Bank and the Borrower acknowledge and agree that UBS
Financial Services Inc. or any affiliate thereof may, in its sole and absolute discretion, elect to: (i) provide additional collateral to
the Bank in the form of United States Treasury Securities if and to the extent that the Borrower does not maintain in a Collateral
Account, Collateral having an aggregate lending value as specified by the Bank from time to time; and/or (ii) satisfy any and all
amounts of accrued and unpaid interest that are otherwise due and payable by the Borrower to the Bank under the Agreement,
to the extent that the amount of any Additional Payments under the Agreement are insufficient to satisfy any and all such
amounts.

Collateral Account Features

12.  Section 8 f) of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
 

  “If a Collateral Account has margin features, the margin features will be removed by UBS Financial Services Inc. or UBS
International Inc., as applicable, so long as there is no outstanding margin debit in the Collateral Account. If a Collateral
Account has Resource Management Account® or Business Services Account BSA® features, such as check writing, cards, bill
payment, or electronic funds transfer services, all such features shall be removed by UBS Financial Services Inc. or UBS
International Inc., as applicable.”

No Credit Line Checks

13.  The Bank and the Borrower acknowledge and agree that notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, the Credit
Line shall not have Credit Line checks.

Headings

14.  The headings of each of Section of this Addendum is for descriptive purposes only and shall not be deemed to modify or qualify
the terms, conditions, rights or obligations described in such Section.

 

B.  This Addendum may be signed in multiple original counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

[Signature page(s) follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has signed this Addendum pursuant to due and proper authority as of the date set forth
below.
     

  Sharon A. Barbari, Chief Financial Officer/CFO   

Date  Print Name and Title  Signature
  ROBERT BLUM, Chief Executive Officer/CEO   

Date  Print Name and Title  Signature
       
  UBS BANK USA   
       
  By:     
  Name:   
  Title:     
       
  By:     
  Name:    
  Title:     

       

  UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC.   
       
  By:     

  Name:    
  Title:     
       
  By:     
      
  Name:    
  Title:     

  Date:            , 2008   
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Exhibit 10.67

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “COMMISSION”) PURSUANT TO RULE
24b-2 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

Confidential

February 20, 2009

Andrew Gengos
Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development
Amgen Inc.
One Amgen Center Dr.
Thousand Oaks, CA 91320-1000

Re:  Amendment No. 4 to Collaboration and Option Agreement (Amgen Reference Number: 200625165)

Dear Mr. Gengos,

As you know, Cytokinetics, Incorporated (“CK”) and Amgen Inc. (“Amgen“) are parties to that certain Collaboration and Option
Agreement dated December 29, 2006, as amended (the “Option Agreement “). By this letter amendment (this “Amendment”),
effective as of the date first set forth above, CK and Amgen agree to amend the last sentence of Section 10.1 of the Option
Agreement such that it reads in its entirely as follows:

     “Within the ninety (90) day exercise period referenced in Sections 10.2.1, 10.2.3, 10.2.4 or 10.2.5, CK shall not commence any
new Clinical Trials; provided, however, during such period CK may commence the Phase IIa Trial designated as [***] and entitled
[***]”.

A copy of the protocol for this trial (the “Study”) was provided by [***] of Cytokinetics to [***] of Amgen via e-mail on February 19,
2009. Cytokinetics agrees that [***]

Except as expressly set forth herein, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Capitalized
terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meaning ascribed in the Option Agreement.

If the foregoing is acceptable and agreed to by Amgen, please so indicate by having an authorized representative of Amgen sign this
Amendment in the appropriate signature line below, and return such signed copy to Marjorie Wagman, Associate General Counsel,
at your earliest convenience. A duplicate original is enclosed for your records. If you have any questions or comments, please do not
hesitate to contact Marjorie at (650) 624-2925 or by email at mwagman@cytokinetics.com.

Sincerely,
         
    Agreed and accepted:   
         
/s/ Michael Rabson    Amgen Inc.   
         
    By:  /s/ Andrew W. Gengos   

         
Michael Rabson    Name: Andrew W. Gengos   
Sr. Vice President,         
Business Development and Legal Affairs,    Title:  Vice President, Strategy & Corporate   
and General Counsel      Development   
         
    Date:     

 

*** Certain information on the page has been omitted and filed separately with the Commission. Confidential treatment has been



requested with respect to the omitted portions.

Amgen Contract No. 200625165-006

 



Exhibit 10.68

March __, 2009

[Name]
[Title]
Cytokinetics, Incorporated
280 East Grand Ave.
South San Francisco, CA 94080

Re: Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement

Dear                     ,

As you know, Cytokinetics, Incorporated (the “Company”) and you (“Executive”) are parties to that certain Amended and Restated Executive Employment
Agreement effective [date] (the “Agreement”). By this letter amendment, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as described below in order to comply with
Internal Revenue Code Section 409A, effective as of January 1, 2009:

1. Section 9(b)(i) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
 

  “To receive any of the severance payment, vesting acceleration and benefits described in section 9(a), the release described in Section 9(a)(Y) must be
entered into and must not be revoked by the Employee within the fifty-two (52) day period following the termination of the Executive’s employment. No
severance pursuant to Section 9(a) shall be paid or provided until the release becomes effective. Any severance payment, acceleration and benefits to which
Executive otherwise would have been entitled under Section 9(a) during such fifty-two (52) day period shall be paid or provided, as applicable, by the
Company to Executive in full arrears on the fifty-third (53 rd) day following Executive’s employment termination date or such later date as is required to
avoid the imposition of additional taxes under Section 409A. Any other severance payments and benefits will be paid or provided, as applicable, by the
Company to the Executive in accordance with normal payroll policies as provided in Section 9(a). If Executive should die before all amounts have been
paid, such unpaid amounts will be paid in a lump-sum payment to Executive’s designated beneficiary, if living, or otherwise to the personal representative
of Executive’s estate.”

Any capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein will have the meaning ascribed in the Agreement. Except as expressly set forth herein, all of
the terms of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

 



 

Please so indicate your acceptance of the foregoing by signing this letter amendment in the appropriate signature line below, and return such signed copy to
David Cragg, Vice President, Human Resources at your earliest convenience.
       
Sincerely,       
  Agreed and accepted:   
       
  By:     
Robert I. Blum       
President and CEO  Date:     
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-125786, 333-129786, 333-138306, 333-146814 and
333-155259) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-115146, 333-125973, 333-133323, 333-136524, 333-140963, 333-149713 and 333-152850) of Cytokinetics,
Incorporated of our report dated March 12, 2009, relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which
appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, CA
March 12, 2009

 



Exhibit 31.1

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert I. Blum, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cytokinetics, Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

     a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

     c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

     a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
     
   
 By:  /s/ Robert I. Blum   
  Robert I. Blum,  

  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)  

 

Date: March 12, 2009

 



Exhibit 31.2

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sharon A. Barbari, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cytokinetics, Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

     a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

     c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

     a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
     
   
 By:  /s/ Sharon A. Barbari   
  Sharon A. Barbari,  

  Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)  

 

Date: March 12, 2009

 



Exhibit 32.1

CEO and CFO CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

(18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Robert I. Blum, President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director, and Sharon A. Barbari, Chief Financial Officer, of Cytokinetics, Incorporated (the “Company”), hereby certify that to the best of our
knowledge:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, and to which this certification is attached as Exhibit 32.1 (the
“Annual Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

2. The information contained in this Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
     
   
 By:  /s/ Robert I. Blum   
  Robert I. Blum,  

  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)  

 
   
 By:  /s/ Sharon A. Barbari   
  Sharon A. Barbari,  

  Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)  

 

Date: March 12, 2009
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